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Pearson at a glance

Financial highlights

oTo read abounr our [KAs go e pi4

Sales

£49bn
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+27%

Ad)usted operating profit

(excluding Meiger marhet)

+ 80/0 IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Awverage annual growth in
headiine terms 2009-2014

Adjusted earnings pershare

+04%

Operatlng rash fow
6.67%
— \ o

Cundend

+/.5%
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Chairman’s introduction

IMAGE REMOVED

Glen Moieno
Charman

“The most difficult phase of our
transformation has now been
completed... one which has lad
the foundations to strengthen
our position as the world's
largest education company.”

Share price performance

+32.0%

FTSE IGO0 +2 0%
FTSE Ali Share +2 3%

Performance over {2 momhbstoannguntement of
predniniry results {close of 27 February 2015}

Seurce Dawstream

Read our full Governance section p57-1 Y )
LEADERSHIP & EFFECTIVENESS p60-69 €
ACCOUNTABILITY p70-77 Q
ENGAGEMENT p78-81 @
REMUNERATION p82-106 ©
ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES pl07-112©

Dear shareholders,

We continue to male this report as helpfid as possible

to our shareholders and everyone mnterested i our
company We are guided by the IRC and FRC's prinaipies,
and wherever possible, we will conunue to move towards
those over the next few years Our ambition this years

to tell a more transparent, conase and joined-up story
of the journey we are on to create value

In 20{3 we made a senes of commitments designed to
measure and ncrease the company’s Impact on learning
outcomes around the world in 2014, John Faflon and tis
{eadership team have embedded efficacy — the dea that
each product or service we mvestin is judged by the
outcomes it helps learners achieve - as the defining
principle a1 ound which Pearson s orgamsed We also,
as an organisation, reaffirmed the values that we stand
for, which John talks about mmore depth on page 4
This reportis the story of how these commitments will
resultin a more sustanable and profitable company

Read mare about this in our Chief executive's strategic
overview on p4-9, and our Efficacy secuon on p38-43

Transforming for long-term success

The most difficult phase of our transformation has now
been completed This has been one of the most significant
restructures in our long and varied history, one which has
{aid the foundations to strengthen our position as the
world’s largest education compary The benefits of thrs
restructure are already being felt as Pearson becomes
more digital, more service driven, and more capable

of mproving educauon in the world's great economies
They are atso visible in the way we are organised, the
strategies behind which we are marshalled, and our
emerging culture This is explained and exermplified
throughout this report

Transformations of thrs scale cannot succeed without

the commitment of all our stakeholders, and tamvery
grateful to our shareholders and employees for the
confidence and patience they have placed in our long-term
viston Although 1n 2014 our share price saw some
volatiity at the ume{ write thvs (having just announced
our prefiminary results) it has recovered significantly
rising 32% overthe last {2 months Over the ten years to
December 2014 it had almost doubled (89 3%), during
which time the total shar eholder return has increased

by 182 6% Moreover, I'm delighted that, for the 23rd
consecutive year we've baen able to increase our dividend
per share We have confidence that these trends wil
contnue, thanks to the steps we have takenn the last
TWO YEars
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Share price perfor mance

IMAGES REMOVED

Source Dhatasuante 3 Decemba r 2044

Total shareholder recurn (TSR)

IMAGES REMOVED

Source. Datastream to 31 Decembrer 2084

TSR 1s one of cur KPIs

More onpl4 @

Burding a bafanced and stt ong team

Though our immediate transformauon has been
completed, we wilf, of course, continue to adapt and
IMprove Lo ensule out ongoing success We continue Lo
buld a balanced, expenenced team, welcoming Elizabeth
Corley and Tim Score to the board, and a number of
tughly regarded industry speciahsts to the executive
managemeant tearmn

This year we have also held our trienmial external board
review, and alongside that we have established a process
for long-term succession planning, which we'll under take
annually | would lile o take this opportnity to thank our
chneffinancal officer, Robin Freestone, for bus enormous
contribution to Pearson over the last ten years We look
forward to Coram Williams joining us in that role on

I August 2015 Read more about our board on page 60,
and the execunve team on page 9

Lookmg forward

These are exciting umes for everyone wwolved at Pearson,
as we begin to see the opportunities created by two

years of very substanual wransformation ithas beena
chaflenging journey at tmes, but worth it We now move
Inte our next chapter, better prepared than everto help
people all over the world progress in their lives through
learning. and in so doing create a growing sustainable
company for the benefit of our shareholders

IMAGE REMOVED

Glen Moreno, Chairman
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Chief executive's strategic overview

IMAGE REMOVED

John Fallon
Chief £ veculne

“For education to really work it needs
to not only provide access, but
ensure progress... by standing at the
intersecuon of new technology and
good teaching practices, we can help
to make learning more accessible
and more relevant for more people
around the world.”

Short stores of impact

Deai shaieholder s,

Pearson’s purpose is to empower people to progress in
then lives through learning, and that means we put the
iearner at the heart of everything we do Through this
review, you'll see five stores from students that llustrate
how we've been doing over thelast year

Each story demonstrates the commitment and ability
of the young woman mvolved, each a great source of
nsprration to all of us Each showcases one of Pearson’s
most commet cially successful products (MG, BTEC,
Connections, Wall Street Enghsh, MyLabs) of recent
years And they all dlustrate that the bigger fearson’s
soaal Impact - in Improving access to good quaity
education and ensunng that wransfates into meaningful
learning outcomes for far more pecple — the more we
can create a faster growing and more profitable company,
and do so in a sustanable manner

Last October Malala Yousafzai accepted her Nobel Peace
Prize on behalf of the 66 milion gils around the world
who don't go to school In this same spnit I've chosen five
stories that are about the achievements of young women
around the world You'll find more stortes reflecung the
full diversity of what we do at www pearson com

Positioned to make a greater impact

The transfot maton programme we launched in February
of 2013 1s now complete Over the course of two years
we carried out as much restructuring, in terms of actnaty
and costs incurred, as we'd carried out in the previous six

Rozannas story

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Rozanna has beaten overwhelmmg odds Borninto a
farruly in Zyimbabwe n which nesther parent had taken
A-levels, [etalone attended university she wasnota
typical candidate for tugher educanon [nsecunty, lack
of aceess to technology and fear about personal salety
were some of the barners she faced Buther thirst

{ar education led her to entolin Pearson's Midrand
Graduate Institute (MG!) m South Africa Rozannais
now a third-year psychiology major with a drive for
achievernent that has inspi ed us all at Pearson She
prases her lecturers and credits much of her success with
the personalised (earrung technology she uses at MG!
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That programme has been alf about setung Pearson up
to be abie to demonstrate the impact of whatwe doin
education around the world {tis about enabling us to

do right ac oss Pearson the thing that we have done
mncreasingly well in many parts of the company, and which
our stones of people learning all help to demonstrate
That s, we stand at the intersection of new technology
{with its ability to engage, personalise and diagnose} and
new, more effective, ways of teacting Thus position allows
us to develop products and services that enable the
benefits of richer, deeper learning to be more widely felt

We've had ta conduct this accelerated programme of
change whilst dealing with cychical and pohicy refated forces
i our biggest markets, which [ described in fast year's
report, and which continued to hurvus i 2014 inspre

of these challenges I'm pleased to report that we did
meet the financial expectations that we set publicly for
the company at the start of the year Overall, at a urne

of much internal disruption and upheaval weputina
generally good compettive performance There were

a couple of areas of under-performance, too, and we're
working hard to do better i these actvities in 2015

it wasn't just Pearson’s education 1 elated busmesses that
performed well through this period of change Penguin
Random House, the company we own with Bertelsmann,
turned in a best-selling performance whilst integrating the
two compares And the finanaal Times, now partof our
professional education bustness, conunued to defiver the
world's best news and information to its audiences whilst
acceleraung its own digital transipon

Short stores of impact

In 2045 we expect Pearson's prafits to start to grow
again, as the forces that have been warling against us
over the last two years start to ease, and as we benefit
from the cost savings achieved by owr restructuring and
the revenues generated by our new investments

A growing global demand

We'll be working hard with our customiers to tackle what
we think 1s one of the mostimportant challenges i the
world today For globalisation and the disrupuve powers
of technology mean we hve in a ‘Second Machine Age’

i which, as my colleague, Lionet Barber (editor of the
Financial Times) puts it, “leverage in the workplace 1s best
achieved through knowledge " This means that equipping
every global ciizen with what are someumes described as
2l st century skills' 1s more important than ever n other
words, for education to really work, it needs to not only
provide access, but ensure progress

To prosper in career and college, all young people need to
leave school hterate and numerate, with good knowledge
of science, technology and the hiberal arts and being able
to apply that knowledge to solve 1eal world problems
They also need to be proficient in the fands of less tangible
slulls that will help them succeed in the workplace - crincal
thinkmng, adaptabiity, team-working, and digital fluency

They need the grt, resilience and determination to
persevere and succeed — and, most of all, they need
the capacity to carry on learning throughout their lives
These are all tungs that can be taught

Bethany's story

IMAGE REMOVED

iMAGE
REMOVED

Bethany s a UK student whao did not take A-fevels, but
instead went after a BTEC qualficavon She, (ke so
many recent BTEC applicants, applied to university with
a different skilset, but not with any fess deternwnation
or ability Her har d worle and credennals were
recognised when she was accepred to study Psychology
and binguistics at Oxford Uriversity Bethany's story
fighfights that a skifls-based qualification ke a BTEC 15
not a lesser credenual but one that can set a student
up for success in tugher educanon and a carecr
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Cluef executive's strategic overview continued

2015 prionues

Meeung the need

For the two biflion people learning English as a foreign
fanguage, or the 300-400 milton more peopie enrofimg m
higher education over the next 30 years, and all the other
students of all ages around the world the need for effecnve
and relevant teaching and {earning will continue to grow

Of course. there are challenges to meeting this need
Fragmented and siloed approaches to education, changes
1n government pohcy and regulations, and widely diverse
economic and socal conditions, make ourwork and that
of educators worldwide, much mare complex Butwe

are confident that by standing at the intersecuon of new
technology and good teaching pracuces, we can help to
rake learning more accessible and more relevant for more
people around the world

In 2015, five priorwes, outlned here, are guiding our work.

IMAGE REMOVED

Short stories of impact

A business model focused on helping mare

| people achieve better learning outcomes
Out efficacy ative, first outiined in last year's report, 1s
no longer st a framewor k Efficacy 1s now at the centre
of our business madel and a major part of how we create
value This year, we'll embed it even more deeply into the
fabric of everything we do 5o that it reaches more products,
influences more people and transforms more processes
As our customers becorne ever more facused on achieving
better returns on education related spending, Pearson s at
the forefront of a great global growth opportumty And it
enables us to put our socral impact at the very heart of our
business This apphes to our Project Literacy campaign
(page 54) and the renewed investment in our Pearson
Aflordable Learning Fund (page 56) just asitdoes to the
research and development of new praducts and services
and the way we engage with our customers each day

tt1s the means by which we ensure that educauonis
more accessible, impactful and affordable, and delivers
those outcomes to people regardless of location

Oui business madel

Qu-officay pragramme
assessing and mmproving
the ampact of ¢

o odugts siund e
vitd 1@ Lreduun el
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Zuriels story

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Zuriel is an ambitious 12-year old documentary
filmmaleer, onginally fram Nigera, who now hves in
Cahforrea She s enrolled in Pearson's entrely online
Connecuons Academy, which she says alfows her to
"do extracurncufar acovives even when traveling
overseas, ¢ eating documentanies, and interviewing
Adncan leaders,” without mmissing important
schoolwork Zunel recentdy launched the “Speak Up,
Stand Up" project to mspire girls on the Afiican
conunent to * stay in school get a good educaton,
and also to accomplish their dreams " We can safely
say she is leading by example
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2 New digital products

To further this worl, we'l be launching new global
products to meet the need for much beteer learning
outcomes They connect content with assessment and
feedback They use analyucs and big data to personalise
learning — makang it a far more collaborative and effective
expenence for students and teachers Theyali draw on
world-class research nto the science of teaching and
learnwng In the end they'il all be mobile first and device
neutral And they are all designed to rake full account of
just how 'messy’ education can be, how importantitis

to delwver large and complex projects, and how to deal
with ‘last mile' 1ssues Qur customers all know that the

1 eal problem m education 1s not finding a great teacher
ora really good school, but being able to rephcate that
excellence at scale All our new dignal products are
focused on meeting that need

Our prioritles

3 A more facused company

We re bulding these products in a modular and scalable
way, and deploying them on a simaller number of global
platforms Thes improves the customer experience
makes it much easier to share assets and resources across
the whole company, and is also much more cast effecave
Itis one example of how we are simphifying our company
We've already reduced the number of applications and
systems used across the company by 0%, and we will
conunue that work this year We have afready sold a
number of businesses where aither we lacked scale or
wa saw hmited scope for us to have a more directimpact
on{earning outcomes This work will continue, as we
focus our resources and energy on the biggest education
challenges we see around the world it1s where we can
malke the biggest impact, and where, by runming Pearson
as one company we see the biggest opportunity

Ouw Operatng structurg

Brended antv ruat 56160 5 Bended and vruyf
{eg Cowectons Educaton; ngher edecavonizamng

Siremas feg COC)
Large feate dssessment
servees {ey TestNay)
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enVisonMATH Pearzon
System of Courses
Rezhze}

{er CTO

B vded and vt wa'
Eng'shilanguaze leaniyneg
18 g Walt Sereer F sghs)
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Short stores of impact

Fear ot VUE

GontScaleof Engs 52 -

and Progress
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TopNotch)
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Julid’s story

IMAGE REMOVED

iMAGE
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Jula 1s tearning English at one of Pearson's Walf Street
English cenures in Shanghas | met with her dut ing my wisic
thera and was nspired by het drive She now hves far
from her parents’ farm in seudy China, and farfrom

the norms of rural ife [ula's deasion to leavehaome to
continue in ighereducaton might have come as a shedk
to her farmly, but she is determined w unprove her
Enghsh language capabrlmes i orderto further her career
prospects and, one day, find worlc wath a global company
She fikes to engage on socal medm with friends she's met
virtuatly around the world — and she wants to use her
English language sloils to spread the word that, as she
puts it, “there's more to my couniry than ar polluuon ™
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Chief executive's strategic overview continued

W taw o il

A more consistently hugh
performing culture

At 1ts best, Pearson has atways championed high
performance, we're now talung a whole series of
actions (including how we recrut, apprase and reward
everyone who works for Pearson) to make this a feature
of everything we do We've reaffirmed, and amplified,
our long held values of “brave, imaginauve and decent’.
which are particularly important at a ume of great change
(Of the top 100 executives in the company, 70 are in the
last two years, new to their roles or to the company)
We've also added ‘accountable’ as a fourth core value
This s impartant to ensure that, in our new more ‘'matnx’
style organisatton we all actively help each other to
achieve our collective goals It also recognises how
important it i to be accountable to the public trust

for alt we doin education around the world

IMAGE REMOVED

Short stories of impact

5 A stronger brand

Thus accountability extends to our willingness to engage
i the public debate Educanon 1s one of the most
important areas of public fife and evolees strong
emonons and opirions in a field where data and
evidence as to ‘what works' can be difficult to come

by Our focus on educauonal impact and learming
outcomes ~ and ouropenness and transparency in
holding ourselves to account in achieving these goals -
s vital to address these concerns Today, pubhc
awareness of Pearson as the world's leading learmng
company, 1s stli relatively limited i we are gong to
achieve our full potenual we need to build Pearson,

as a global educauon brand that 1s known for our work
In empowering more people to progress in their ves
through learning This means, for example, that we
need to be much less muted in our engagementin the
circa 78 miflion-voice strong 'global conversation’ that
our research tells us 1s currently talung place ar ound the
topics of ‘educauon’ and ‘learning” And we also need
to orgamise our product marketing so that we positon
Pearson, especially ontine and through soaal medta

1n a much more coherent way

Taylors story

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Taylor 1s a student at the University of North Texas
who was not thrilled that Statistics was a required
course for her major She lacked confidence m math
and nearly let that fear cause hes to change course
and quither degree progt amme altogether 'l thought
| didn t have the ability to do maths,’ she told us
Taylor was then intreduced to Pearson’s MyStatstab
and deaded to push through her fear [nstead of fature,
she found success through using the toof to reinforce
learning and practice in difficult areas She completed
her Staustics class with the highest possible grade
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Looking ahead

in accepong her Nobel Peace Prize, Malala Yousafzai said
‘tammany {am not rasing my voice, itis the voice of
those 66 miliion girls * At the same event her fellow
reciprent Karlash Satyarth sec us all the task of
unversalising knowledge’

All 40,000 Pearson colleagues are tackling these priorities
in that spirt of ‘| am many,” worlkung with each other and
with the millions of students, teachers and schools we
serve We'll grow by helping more of our fellow cnizens
to grow, by universalising the knowledge (and the skidlls)
they'll need to succeed in this increasmngly human capital
driven world Working with the communities in which
we operate, we'll combine new technology and new
teaching to enable the world to earn 2 far greater return
on the §5 trdlion and more that 1s spanton education
each year Aswe succeed, we'll grow our market
opportunity and help many more people make progress
in therr hives through learning As a result, we'll startto
grow agan in 2015, and more importandy, itwill set us
up to be a faster growing. leaner, more profitable and
cash-gene: ative company for years 1o come We'llbea
company deploying tess capital and capable of eaining
higher returns

My executive team

I thank afl my cotleagues for their hard work and
commitmient And { thank our shareholders for their
support and patience We are already better placed i
help more lea: ners around the world o achieve thewr
own personal aspiranons

IMAGE REMCVED

John Fallan Chief executive

Lines of Business Enabling functions
Dioug Kubach, President, School Robin Freestone, Chief financal officer
1w Boale, President, Higher Education Coram Wilkarns, Chuef financial officer from (st August 2015
jobhn Ridding, President, Professionaf tMichael Barber Chiel education adviser
ate James Chuelcorporate dffan s officer
Geographies Luyen Chou Chief product officer
Don Kilburn, President, North Amenca Albert Hitchecodt, Chielinformaton officer
Rod Brstow President, Core Melmda Wolfe Chiel human esources officer
Tamara Minicle Scokaio, President. Growth Philt foffman Chiel corporale finance & straregie development officer
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Financial overview

IMAGE REMOVED

Robin Fireesione Chief finanwual officer

S1ies {nt CER)

+2%

Adjusted earmings per share

-5%

Operatmy, cash flow

+10%

Dividend pet share

+6%

“In 2014, revenues were up 2% at

constant exchange rates to £4.9bn,
and level in underlying terms, but
declined 4% in headline terims due to
the negative impact of exchange rates.”

Business performance o Mo TeRowTh cnov:-—:: N Row Th
Sales 4874 5069 4% 2% 0%
Adjusted apet atng profit

{excluding Mergermai et} 720 710 1% 8% 5%
Adjusted operating profit 722 736 (2)% 5% 5%
Adjusteg earnings

per share 667 70lp (5)%

Operating cash flow 649 588 HQ%8

Free cash flow 413 269 54%

Free cash {low per share 509 333 53%

Return an invested capital S56% 54% 0 2%pts

Net debt 1639 1379 {19)%

Statutor y results

Sales 4874 5089 A%

Operating profit 398 458 (13)%

Profit befoi e tax 305 382 (200%

Basic earnings per share 58ip 666p (13)%

Cash generated in

operations 704 684 3%
Diwvidend per share S510p 480p 6%
Note

G owth rates are stated on g con i excage rat JCEF 119 un ess othervise (1l 3 Wheit
quotd L nderlymg prowth rarcs exciinde oot curm iy moveav it nd portolo Lianges Un'ess
otherw v staied sales exuiuck Peapy 1 ind ergermarketwole ad usted apeeating profitsincisde
Pengun Ponginn Random House an { Me promarker Conunmngoper swons exchurte hoth Pengom
andMergi rovirkes

5) Thie Bus ness periors ance mea.uies e na 1 GAMP neastres ander conciiat oe ot rQuvEint
starnnry biead ng pader 1FRS are ncluded mnates tothe concolidatedfimancial stwernenss 7 £ ra:
and 34 and the tovpon e & 1l opsr Mag meYures

opFor worparibity purposes we Bhave ndidod an adcht o 1! agusted uperaung profit e wsure that
exciirdes the re uts of Merpas s, betbut in ‘udes those of Pengun n 2014 Mergermo ket cont. buted
only one month of profie (CIm} whii tacomr pu.ed atflyoar in 2043 £ 26m AlSough Penglinisa
dern mursed bu. ness the reeddts are no v stfoct vely incuded witin our assacate share of PRH
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Profic & loss statement

Restructuring

in 2014, Pearson sales dechned £195m, 4% m headline
terms, to £4 9bn Total adusted operating profit fell
£14m 2% headline terms, to £722m after £44m of
net restructuring char ges (2013 £135m)

Currency movements, primarily from the strength of
Sterfing refative to the US Dollar during the year, reduced
sales by £272m and operatng profits by £49m At
constant exchange rates {ie stripping out the impact of
those currency movements), our sales and adjusted
operatng profit grew 2% and 5%, respectvely

Acquisiions and disposals contributed £79m to sales and
a net zero to aperating profits at constant exchange rates
This includes incegration costs and mvestments related

to our hewly-acquired compantes, which we expense
Pengun Random House was reported post tax for the
full year in 2014, compared to only the second halfin 2013
following the cormbination of Penguin with Random House
on | July 2013, and resuited in a £7m reduction in the
contribution to operating Income with an equal benefit

o our tax charge

Stripping out the impact of portfolio changes, Penguin
Random House and the impact of currency mavements,
revenues were level in underiying terms while adjusted
operating profit (excluding Mergermarket) grew by 5%

Net mterest payable in 2014 was £64m compared to
£72mm 2013 This decrease 1s mainly due to the impact
of foreign exchange translauon and additonal interest
recavable on cash balances held overseas which offset
the effect of higher average net debt levels in the period

Qur tax rate m 20H4 was 179% compared to 14 656 in
2013 reflectmg tax settlements in 2013

Adjusted earnings per share were 66 7p (2013 70 Ip}

Net restructuring charges were £44m (2013 £135m)

and mcuded portiolio, utle. marketing and technology
rationahsation in North America the consolidation and
integration of our operations i cer tain Growth markets
and a move to a distributor model n South Karea, the
exit of non-strategic business lines i certain Core and
Growth markets, and, across all of our businesses,
technology platform and operatons smphficanon and the
ongomng transformation of our supply cham and customer
contact operatons Gross restruciuning costs were £84m
n 2014 (2013 £176m) offset by esumated net benefits
m-year of £40m (2013 £Hm)

Cash generaton

Headline operating cash flow increased by £6Imto
£649m benefitng from improved working capital from
deferred revenue growth and an increased dividend

from Penguin Random House, partly offset by increased
investment levels and ongomng restructuring charges

Free cash flow increased by £144m to £413m, addinonally
reflecung lower tax paynients Our average worlang
capital to sales rato improved by afurther | | percentage
ponts to 12 3% helped by lower ventory tevels and the
absence of Penguin

Return on mvested capital

Qur return on average invested capital was 5 6% (2613
54%) Desprte lower repor ted profit, ROIC benefited
from lower cash tax paid We expect ROIC to start to
improve again in 2015
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Financial overview continued

Statutary results

In 2014, our statutory operaung profit was £398m aftera
£77mwiite down of the balance sheet value of intangibles
in our (ndranbusmess a £38m loss on disposai of our
stale in Nook Media and a £40n1 gain on the disposal

of our stake in Safari Books Onine and CourseSmart
Our statutory earnings were £470m, indudinga £198m
gain from the disposat of Mergermarket and a £29m
adjustment to the Penguin disposal, primarify in refauon
1O penstons

in 2013, our statutory operating profit was £458m
Our statutory earmngs were £539m. including a £217m
gain from the disposal of Penguin

Balance sheet

Our net debuincreased to £1,63%m (£1,379m in 2013)
primarily reflecting the strengthening of the US daoltar
refative to Sterling and the acquisition of Grupo Mulx
partly offset by the disposal of Mergermarket, fewer
restructuring charges, improved worlung capital, the
growth n deferred revenue and an increased dividend
from Pengum Random House Pearson’s net debt/
EBITDA rato increased from | éxin 2013 to 1 9xin 2014
and our interest cover increased from 10 2x to 11 3x

Drndend

The board s proposing a dividend increase of 6% to 51 Op,
subject to shareholder approval 2014 wili be Pearson’s
23rd straight year of increasing our dividend above the
rate of mflavon Overthe pastten years we have
increased our dvidend at a compound annual rate of

7%, returning more than £2 9bn to shareholders We
have a progressive dvidend policy weintend to build

our divdend cover to around 2 Ox over the long term,
increasing our dividend more in hne with earrings growth
from then

2015 outlook

{n 2014, we completed the major restructuring and
product mvestment programme, imtiated m 2043,
designed 1o accelerate Pearson's stuft towards significant
growth opportunitias in digital, services and fast-giowing
economies Ve believe tus will provide Pearson with a
significandy larger market opportunity, a sharper focus
on the fastest-growing marikets and stronger financial
returns in 2015, we are retuming to more normal levels
of restructuring expenditure

Based on 21 January 2015 exchange rates, we expect to
report adjusted earnings per share of between 75p and
80pin 20i5 The majorfactors behind this guidance are
as follows

Trading conditions

We continue Lo expect that cychcal and policy related
factors stabdise in 2015

in North America our largest market, we expect growth
in online higher educanon services and YUE and, with
more stable college enrolments and a slower new edition
year, fearnung services to be broadly tevel In school,

while the posstbilty of further policy related disrupuon
remains, we expect greater stability in learning services
and assessments with growth i virtual schools

In our Core markets (which include the UK, Italy and
Australia), we expect trading conditions 1o stabilise in the
UK growth in inside services to broadly offset dechnes in
learning services in Australia, and sustained share in {taly
following share gams in 2014 We expect the Financial
Tumes wo continue to benefit from, and nvestn, its

digital transtuon
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in ourGrowth markets (which mclude Brazil, China, India
and South Aftica), we expect good growth in China in
our Enghsh Language Learning adult and test preparation
businesses and conunued stabihity in learring services,
Brazl, we expect a better year in our Sistemas business
and good growth in our English Language Learning
franchises, and in South Africa we expect a more stable
year i learing services with modest growth in higher
educauon direct delivery

Portfolio changes

We benefited for many yeai s from the synergies

created by mregraung Penguin nto our shared services
operations Following the transition of Pengum from
Pearson services during 2014, some shared services

costs remain with Pearson without associated 1 evenues
We esumate these shared services costs at approximately
£30m We can reduce this somewhat over tme which
will be captured in our normal fevels of restructuring

Pearson has mitiated a process to explore a possible sale
of PowerSchool and our other Student Informaton
Systemns businesses including PowerSchool SMS
Gradespeed, and eSIS Forms This processisat an early
stage and there s no ces tamty thatitwilllead to a
transaction In 2014, PowerSchool comtributed $97m of

r evenues and $20m of operatng income Our guidance
assumes ownership of PowerSchool for all of 2015
Pearson has appointed Evercore to advise on the process

Currency movements

Pearson generates approximately 60% of its sales in the
US A five cent move in the average £ § exchange rate for
the full year {which in 2014 was £1 $! 65) has an impact of
approximately | 3p on adjusted earnmgs per share

The benefit [rom the weakering of Sterling agamst the
LS dolfar on our reported operaung ncome will be
partly offset by the strength of Sterling aganst a range of
non-US doflar currencies, nduding the euro, Australian
doflar and certain emer ging markets curnrencies, and a
fugher interest charge as Sterling weakness agamnst the
US dollar mereases the Sterling value of our US dollar
denominated debt and interest payments

Restructuring

We will benefit from the absence of £44m of exceptional
net restructuring charges expensed in 2014 and we stii
expect to generate £45m of incremental cost savings

in 2015

These benefits wili be partly offset by normal levels of net
restructurtng of approximately £30min 2015

Interest and tax

We axpect our interest charge to be tugher than 2014,
reflecting higher average net debt levels, primarnily as a
result of the strength of the US dollar against Sterling

Ve expect a tax rate of approximately 17% on our total
profitbefore tax {which includes the post-tax contribution
fr om Penguin Random House)
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Key performance indicators
Five-year performance

Financial cbjectves KRt Performance
| Sales 3 O/
Ma'nta’|n Sdles rose 2% at CER w1 2014 and have grown over the tast + .7 (8]
IO ng_te Fm five years at an average annual rate of over 3%, reflecting
good long term growth m digitaf and se) vices businesses and Lear nmore aboutimk 1o
grOWth acquistions in the global educauon mark et par ually offsetby a remvunet auon on pas

shift to subscripuion revenues, recent cychical and policy factors
and adverse exchange rate movements

Total adjusted oper attng profit 3 40/
Total adjusted operating pi ofit) ose 5% 10 2014 at CER and has e (]
faflen at a compound annual 1 ate of 3 4% smce 2009 1eflecung

good long-term growih in digial & services offset by the sale of

businesses, exceptional 1 estructuring costs in 2014 recent cycheal
and policy factors and adver se exchange rate movements

H Tatal adjusted eat nings O Cy
Dehver Total adjusted earnings per share 1s Jown 5% year on year o + .4 (@]
2014 reflecung portfolio chnges exchange rate movements
SUStalnable and a higher tax rate Over five years EPShas grown atan Learnmot¢ about hink to

1emuner 1wonon pBb

returns average annual rate of 0 4% reflecung good long term growth
in our digital and se1 vices businesses offset by declines n prnt
portfolio changes recent erceptional t estruciul ing costs, cyclicat
and policy factor s and adverse exchange rate movements

Retut it on tnvested capital 3 3

ROIC grow 0 2% to 5 6% in 2014 and was affected by lower .

reported profit and a tigher tax charge ROIC has fallen from percentage points

8 9% 1n 2009 We expect ROIC 1o start to improve again i 2015 Learnmore sbout ink o
1emuneraton on pBe

Total shareholder return +6 I 9(7

TSR in 2014 was 7% which compaies to 4 1% rewrn on the . Q

FTSE 100 Index of large UK Iisted companies Over five years,
Pear sun has teturned approxmately 62%, welt ahead of the
rewsrn on the F ISE 100 Index of 45% over the same perod

Learn more about ink. to
remuneranion on pB&

Dividends per share _+_7 50/

We increased dvidends in respect of 2014 by 6% 10 Sip o . (@]

23rd swraight yeas of increasing our dvwdend above the1ate

of imflauon

Cperating cash flow 0
Mana’ge our Cperaung cash flow rose to £64%m i 20[4 up more than 10% = 6 . 6/0
cas h pOSIUOﬂ benefiung fram lower restructurng charges, wnproved working

capital, deferred revenue growth and an increased dividend from Leanmore aboutink o
EHeCU VEIY Pengum Random House, jai Hy offset by increased imvesument remunt rauon on pBé

fevels Qver five yaal s operanng cash llow has decined at an
average annual 1 ate of over 6% perantum eflecong good long
term growthin ow digital and services businesses offsec by dedltnes
npont por tioho changes, recent excepuonal restrcturmg costs,
cychical and policy factors and zdverse exchange 1 ate movements
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IMAGE REMOVED Services £2 1bn . N
2014 -62 1%
GrOW Revenue shat e
2010 - 10 9%
IMAGE REMOVED presence n A9 £794
emerglng 2004 - 16 3%
markets
IMAGE REMOVED Non financral measures
+ Review programme on track
DEllver » Plans o lepgo:r first pilot impact
measurable results in 2006 on target
[mpact tfficacy reviews
(£ Fcaey) completed
e, 200
IMAGE REMOVED
Deliver Gender diversry
d HMEN WOMEN
gen er Board 7 0% 3 30
balance Senor managers
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IMAGE REMOVED board directors) 64 65% 35 3%
All einproyees 17064 2% 33470 58%
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Developing for access, delivering for outcomes

Our strategy centres on a significant and exating
long-term opportunity: the sustained and growing
global demand for greater affordability, access, and
achievement in education. VWe can meet this demand
by accelerating our shift to digital, to services and to
fast-growing economies; and committing to delver
measurably improved learning outcomes through
our efficacy frameworlk.

Our primary segments for management reporting
are Geographies (North America, Core and
Growth) as this is how we drive business
performance. This is how we reach learners, through
content and digital services in individual classrooms:
through broad partnerships with public and private
education instituions and, in certamn markets, by
directly expanding capacity through our own schools

and colleges.

This geographical structure is wholly dependent upon
a parallel product development strategy, in which we
organise by learning ages and stages — School, Higher
Education and Professional.

By focusing our product development around the
needs of the learner; we are able to centre evidence
and expertise where it can be best appled to
improving outcomes for people.
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Ope atng pecformante contnued

Geography

North
America

Sales Adusted operatng pofic

£3.0bn £464m

Revenues declined 3% in headline terms, due
to the strengthening of sterling against the
LS dollar, but increased by 2% at both CER
and in underlying terms. Revenue growth in
Connections Education, VUE, Clinical and
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IMAGE REMOVED Higher Education was partally offset by

declines in School learning services and State 0
c
Assessments Adjusted operating profits o
declined 2% in headhine terms due to currency 2
movements, but grew 5% at both CER and -
s
underlying, reflecting revenue mix, lower 3
N
returns provision, reduced US pension costs -
and lower restructunng charges
In our statutory results, we recogrised a £38m
foss on disposal of our 5% stake in Nook Media _
and a £40m gain on the disposal of our stakes g
in Safari Books Online and CourseSmart z
z
2
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Operating performance continued

North America
continued

School

In School, good growth m Connections Educauon, our
virtual schools business, was offset by declines in our
State Assessments business due to the impact of legslative
changes in Texas and California, and in learning services,
due to some loss of market share (as reported at the half
year), revenue deferral on blended programmes and
softnessin the Open Territories

Connectons Education served over 62,000 Full Time
Equivatent students during 2014 through full-ume virtual
and blended programmes, up more than 15% from 2013
Three new full-ume virtual public schools were launched in
2014 and an addiuonal one wilt launchin 2015 Atfull-ume
wirtual schools supported by Connections Educauon,
students consistently outperfor m then virtual school
peers on state standardised tests Students at College
Park Academy ablended schoolin Mat yland using the
Connecuons Education curmnculum scored significantly
tugher than their in-state peers in reading and mathm

the Maryland School Assessment (MSA) for 6th and

7th Grades

In State and Natronal Assessments, high stakes online test
volumnes grew strongly, up 40% on 2013 to 11 miflion, as
customers transitioned to computer-based testng Paper-
based high stakes test velumes declined 17% to 32 mullion,
 part due to the growth of computer-based tesung, but

IMAGE REMOVED

Connectons Education served over 62,000 (+15%) full ame
equivalent students duiing 2014 through full-ume wvirtual znd
blended progiammes At full ume vi tuat schools supported
by Connectuons Cducaton students consistently cutperform
thetr vir tuad school peers un state standardised tests

Leam more 4t connecoonsedur ation com

also the impact of legislative changes in Texas and Calfortea
We were awarded contr acts to administer Parinership for
Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers (PARCC)
assessments 0 H states and extended our contracts

to adrimister Virpinia Standards of Learning (SOL)
Assessments and the Maryland High School Assessment
We will conunue to administer the Florida Comprehensive
Assessment Test (FCAT) unul summer 2016

Clirical Assessment grew strongly, benefiung from the
launch of the fifth edition of the Wechsler Intelligence Scale
for Childi en (WISC-V) and strong growth in Q-Interacuve,
where early studies are showing good improvements in
mental heafth professional productivity and student
engagement levels

PowerSchool supported almost 13 million students (mn
more than 70 countres), broadly level with 2013, while
licensed Schoolnet student counts rose more than 10% to
over 10 milion In New jersey we launched Schoolhet in 27
school districts, with 14 more implementauons in progress,
and have delivered over 400,000 assessments since launch

{.earming services revenues declined due to the impact of
revenue defer rals from blended digitaf programmes and
aloss of market share, with a wealer performance in
Grades 6-8 Science and Math in Texas, and Grades 6-12
Literature and Grades 6-8 Math in Florida only partly
offset by a stronger performance in K-6 Math in Texas,
Grades 6-12 Social Studies in Tennessee and Grades

K-6 Math in Calforria Ve won an estimared 25% of
the total new adoptions market {of $3210m i 2044)
enVisionMATH, which now has the largestinstalled base
of elementary students m the US, conunues to drive
significant improvements in student computaton and
problem solving

IMAGE REMOVED
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Higher Education

in Higher Educaton, total college enrolments fell, as
expected, by | 3% Careerenrolments m two-year public
{community) and four-year for-profit colleges dedined
3%, with nsing employment rates and regulatory change
affecung the for-profit and developmental learning sector s

|_earning services grew modesty, primarily due to market
share gams, continued growth in digitat courseware
registrations, a stronger new edition cycle and less
pronounced seasonality MyLab registrations m North
Arnerica grew 3% to almost || millon Lecturer generated
case studies indicate that the use of MyLab programmes,
as part of a broader course redesign, can support
improvements o student test scores (http //pearsn/
{ZxLE} We launched REVEL, which combines trusted
content with interactive videcs, qurzzes, a mobile user
mterface study tools assignment calendar and
performance dashboard for |7 humantes and social
sciences subjects The launch of REVEL 15 the firstof
nurmerous product lines taling advantage of our new
cloud-based, mobile-ready, and data analytics capabiivies
New editions launched m 2014 indiided Tro The Structures
and Properues of Chernistry; Acemogiu Laibsen and List,
Econorcs, and Pearson Wiiter, an apphication built for
mobile devices that helps students in developing wrinng
slulls We published a range of digital tides for The Boy
Seouts of America and implemented a new digital
curriculum incorporating enhanced Merit Badge
programmes in subgects Including Roboucs Digital
Technology and First Aud for the organisauon’s 2 7 million
youth members

IMAGE REMOVED

In 2014, we launched REVEL combiming trusted content
with rich interactwaty and content across {7 bumanines
and socal scrences tubjects REVEL s the firse of our

1 oduct hines talung fult advantage of ow new doud based
mobile-ready and data analytres capabiliues

Learn more at pearsenivghered comiievel

Peai son On Line Services, whet e we run fully online
undergraduate and g aduate learning p1 ogrammies and
earn certamn revenues based on the success of the students
and the nstitution, grew course enrolments by 22% during
the year with continued strong growth m programmes

at Arizona State Univer sity Online and University of
Florida Online We signed new programmes with

Bradley University, to create five online graduate degree
programmes in nursing and counselling, and Urwversity of
Texas at Ausun, Dana Center where we are partnening for
the web dehivery of math courses foi its New Mathways
Project ((NMP) wiuch will become part of a state-wide
reform iniuative in a collaborauon between Dana Center
and the Texas Association of Commurity Colleges

We expanded our collabaraton with the Amencan
Health informanion Management Association {AHIMA)

to adrminister its online education business, which serves
AHIMA's 71,000 members ncluding 10,000 higher
educauon students each year We now provide our
learning management system hosting 100 courses based
on AHIMA content, technical support, a next generation
Virtwal Lab Product, and are launctung a Coding Basics
course combining AHIMA and Pearson content

Professional

ArVUE, global test volumes grew 9% year-on-yea 1o
almost 13 mulion boosted by conunued growthm 1T,
State Regulatory and Professional certfications

New contracts include a dea! to admunister the Microsoft
Cerufied Professionat (MCP) Program globally, which
significandy expands our existing partnership with
Microsoft through Ceroport's Microsoft Office Speaalist
(MOS) and Microsoft Technology Associate (MTA) exams

IMAGE REMOVED

M L b regstracons in North America
y d grew 3% to afmost | mitlion
tecturer penerated case studies indicate that

the use of MyLab progranmimes can support
IMPTOvVeTents In test scores

Learn mas g 4t pearscomylabandimisterng com
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Opwr i performance contnued

Geography

Core

Sales Adjusied operaung profit

£1.2bn £152m

Revenues dechned by 8% i headline terms and
by 5% at both CER and i underlying terms
Modest growth in ftaly and good growth at
VUE was offset by dedlines n UK assessment
revenues, due to the iImpact of policy changes
on our UK school qualfications business, and
reduction in partner market revenues, due to
divestments and a move to distributor models
implemented in 2013 FT revenues were
broadly tevel at CER, with digital content
growth offset by declines in print content and
advertising Adjusted operating profit (excluding
Mergermarket) increased by £32m to £152m,
driven by the benefits of restructuring actions
taken over the last two years in alf markets and
by profitgrowth at the FT

IMAGE REMOVED

Our new operating and s eporung structure

Core 2 bages, Cong mkets methe U Astiabe Gomand
e Benelnx and itay Addmonally »ehave aroune [QGpampea
rakits vehitse we do notd e soale o seles, w2 A collabvae xre
wrih otnars

Learn more about Qur operanng soructure an p7 o
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Operating performance continued

Core continued

IMAGE REMOVED

We continue 1o invest to busld Pearson College in the
UK, and graduated ow first 32 students during the year
Pearson College was one of only fown private co'leges to
pass Quatity Assurance Agency (QAA) review first tme

Learn mos e at prarsoncoliege com

School

fn the UK qualificauons have been impacted by
government policy, where changes to accountability
measures and a shift to end of course assessments in
GCSE have led 1o a 21% dechnem BTECs and 1% dedine
m General Qualifications in the year We marked almost
four milllon Natonal Curncutum Tests, up 24% on 2043
Our contract to administer the Nagonal Curriculum Test
{NCT)was extended to 2017 More than 4,600 schools,
with almost 850,000 children, now subscrbe to at least
one of the Bug Club services, our pnmary schoot blended
reading programme

In Australa, we benefited from a stronger adoption year
and the taunch of the locally standardised version of the
Wechsler Pre and Primary Scales of Intelligence (fourth
edwion) In fraly, we gained share in both primary and
sacondary with new tiles combined with professional
development and online cross-curricula support

in primary, we developed Top Secret and adapted

Our Discovery Island English Language Learning
programmes In secondary, we extended our market
leadership in the Humanities

Revenues dechned significantly in our parwner markets due
to challenging market condittons in Africa and Scandinavia
and the move to a distibutor model in certain markets
We disposed of our locat schocls ists in the Caribbean

as we contnue to focus on our largest global geographic
opportunities

Higher Educauon

in the UK, our learning services revenues dedined,
primartly due to enrolment contracuon following policy
changes i the vocatonal markets We contnue 1o
invest to buld Pearson College and graduated our first

IMAGE REMOVED

Maore than 4,600 schoots in the UK wath
almost 850,000 chitdren now subseribe
ro at least one of the Bug Club services,
oun pnmary school reading programme

Learn more at bugciub co uk
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32 students during the year Pear son College was one
of anly four private colleges wo pass Quality Assurance
Agency (QAA) review first ume

in Australia, learning services revenues grew modestly
benefiting from growth in cor & subgects, such as Brology.
and direct-to insttution sales of digitaf fearmng products
offset by our exit from vocatonal publishing Monash
Oniine, our collaboration with Monash University,
contnues to show good growth and will faunch addinonal
courses in the second half of 2015 [n addison we
collaborated with another leading university in Austrahia
to provide course development recruttment, enrolment,
and student support services for past-graduate courses

Professional

At VUE, test volumes grew strongly followng the
successful launch of a new contract with CPA Austraha
to deliver Professional level exams and continued good
growthin UK Driving Theory test volumes We will
continue to deliver our UK contract to administer the
Drwing Theory test for the DVSA unul September 2016
VUE entered into ten year partnerships with the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA)
and the Assaciation of Chartet ed Cerufied Accountants
(ACCA) in the UK to transform a selection of their exams
from pen and paper to computer-based testng

The contnbunon from The Economist Group was lower
due to a dechine In advertsing revenue, a weaker US dollar
and lower profits at CQ Rolf Call The arculation of The
Economistremains robust at | 6 milion, with anincrease
of 23% in digital subscnptions The Economist’s new daily
app Espresso, was downloaded almaost 400 600 omes
The Group's content marketing services continue to
grow with revenue increasing by 20% at CER

Financial Times Group

At the Financial Tmes Group, the FT grew its total
arculation by {0% year-on yearto a record high of
nearly 720,000 across print and online Digital
subscriptians increased 21% year-on-year w almost
504,000 and now represent 70% of the FT's total
paying audience The strong digital arculation growth
offset continued st uctural dechnes in print content
.and adverusing, where the FT continues to take
market share

Product innovatien and launches, including an FY
Weekend app. daily Ft stF T briefing with editors’
selection of essential news and comment from across
the web, ‘follow the author’ alerts and anew FT
Android App continue to result in steady growthm
mabile usage and tume spent on FTcom Mobile 1s
the fastest g owing channel We hunched the FT }HiE
Corporate Learning Afliance ajoint venture with iE
Business School, which provides premium custom
fearrung to business leaders around the globe The
partnership connects the acadermic excellence of
praminent business schools with the FT's award-
winning journalism and msight into real world and
real ume business challenges

IMAGE REMOVED

Rnaraal Tames” product inmovangns
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Operating perlormanre continued

Geography
o
s
Growth :
G
z
g
Sales Adjusted opes wung profit

£746m £35m

Revenues grew 1% in headline terms, despite the strength of
sterling against key emerging mariet currencies, grew by 11% at
CER, benefiting from the acquisiion of Grupo Mult, and were
down 1% in underlying terms, primarily due to the phasing of
purchasing and a stronger School textbook adoption in South
Africain 2013 Growmg English Language Learning enrolments in
China and college enroiments in Saudi Arabia and South Africa
were offset by a smaller Schoo! textbook market in South Afnca,
and lower revenues in Brazi from Sistemas, and ELT and Higher
Education textbooks Excluding the textbook impact in South
Africa, revenues grew 4% in underiying terms Adjusted operating
profit declined by £3m to £35m reflecting a benefit from the
acquisition of Grupo Mulu offset by a slower adoption yearin
South Afrca, launch costs associated with our new vocational
colleges and a contract provision in Saudi Arabia, and weaker
revenues and restructuring costs in Brazil

In our statutory results, we wrote down the balance sheet value of
our Indian business by £77m largely reflecung the reduced value of
online tutoring which was pnmanly focused on the US market

IMAGE REMOVED
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Operating performance continued

Growth continued

School

Professional

In South Africa, we performed well, compettively
matntaining our market share of the School textbook
rmarket, but volumes dechined significantly to more normal
levels following a large adoption year, and significant share
gams,n2013

in Brazil, enrolments in our Sistermas were down 3% to
481,000 with growth in our public Ststemas (NAME)
offset by declines in our private Sistemas as we combined
cur three sales forces into one 72% of the mumapakhues
that adopted NAME for lower secondary educauon
showed improvement in thewr IDEB score, Brazd's
federally established measure of educational quality

{n India, DigClass our multimedia teaching solution s
now installed in more than 26,000 ¢lassrooms, up more
than 10% on 2013 We par tner ed with 1BM to fur ther
accelerate our deployment across the country

Higher Educauon

In South Affrca, student enrolments i CTI/MGH, our
private networl of higher educauon institutons, grew
by 15%to 13,400 across 13 campuses

tn Mesxaco, our fully accredited online university
partnership, UTEL, nc eased the number of students
eniolted from under 5,000 last year to more than 9,000
in 2014 as a result of improved consumer marketng
efforts and better student retention

inindia Higher Education revenues declined due to
high levels of returns

{MAGE REMOVED

DigiClass, our multimedea reactung solution s
now instalted n more than 26,000 dassrooms
inindia upmoie than 10% on 2043

Eoarn more at dijiclass v

In Pearson English, good growth in direct delivery
China and inside services in Brazl due to the acquisition
of Grupo Mult was pai tly offset by dechnes in learning
services in Brazil and Mexico

Global student registrauons for MyEnglishLab grew
15% to more than 460,000 with strong growthin
Latin America

We launched the Global Scale of Enghsh (GSE), 2 new
global standard for scoring English language proficency
on a prease, numeric, universal scale for businesses,
governments and academic mstitutions The scale 1s being
embedded into all Pearson Enghsh products and services

In China, English direct delivery enrolments grew at
both Wall Street English (WSE), up 2% 10 66,000, and
Global Educauon up 7% o 117,000 To suppoitlong-
te1m growth, we consolidated our ERP systerns in China
and deployed a Salesforce com CRM system in WSE
We divested our online vocational tratning operations

in Brazil, we completed the acquisiton of Grupo Mulu,
the largest provider of private fanguage schools m
Brazil We successfully integrated the business despite
challenging market condiions and disruption caused
by the World Cup and Presidenual elections

IMAGE REMOVED
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F’enguin Random House

Pearson owns 47% of Penguin Random House, the first
wuly global consumer book publishing company Pengun
Random House was reported post-tax for the full year in
20i4, compared to only the second halfin 20{3 following
the combmnation of Penguin with Randem Housc on

| July 2013, which resulted in a2 £7m reducuion in the
cantrbution to operating mcome with an equal benefic
to aur tax charge

Penguin Random House performed wellin 2044,
benefiting partcularly from a strong publishing
performance in Children’s around the world and
mult-milllion-copy film and television tig s

The US business published 760 New York Times print and
eboak bestsellers in 2014 {2013 full year pro forma 790},
enjoying excepuonal success in children’s publishing with
John Green's The Fault m our Stars (29 weeles at number
one on the New York Times bestsellers istand nearly eight
milhon coptes sold) and four million copies of his backlist
utles, ve-in vdes from Disney's Frozen film (more than

17 mithon copies scid), Dashner’s The Maze Runner,
Forman's if 1 Stay and continued strong sales of LEGO™
movie be-n ttfes Notable Adult tides mduded Grisham's
Gray Mountamn, Child's Personal, Monk Kidd's The lnvention
of Wings, Foltett's Edge of Etermity, Bush's 41 A Porwrait of
My Father. along with stroag film and television ue-ns,
such as Flynn's Gene Girl, Hiltenbrand's Unbroken, and
Maruns's Song of Fire and fce novels The UK business

publshed 206 Sunday Times bestsellers (2013 pro forma
207). also enjoying outstanding sales of john Green
along with the continued strength of Kinney's Wimpy
id franchise Key Aduft utfes included Brown's Inferna,
Olwer's janve’s Comfort Food and Girl Oniine by YouTube
sensation Zoella, which became the fastest-selling debut
UK novel ever

Penguin Random House has a strong publishing
programpme for 2015, ncluding new titles from john
Grisham Jarmie Oliver, Toni Morrison, James Patterson,
Sylvia Day Lee Child, Nick Hornby Harlan Coben,
Danelie Steel, John Sandford, fanet Evanowich Gayle
Forman, Enuly Giffin and Nora Roberts, as well as film
tie-ins for 50 Shades of Grey, john Green's Paper Towns,
the sequel to James Dasher's The Maze Runner, and
Star Wars

The integration of the two businesses 1 progressing

welt and 15 on track to delver net benefits in 2015 and
beyond Organisational structures have been aligned,
systerns integration 15 well underway and consolidation
of North Amencan warehousing will be completed in
the first half of 2015 in March 2014, Penguin Random
House acquired Santillzna Ediciones Generales, aleading
trade book publisher n Spain, Portugal and across

Laun America, consolidanng its leadership in Spanish
language publishing

IMAGE REMOVED
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We launched Global Scale of English, a new
giobal standard for scoring Enghsh language
proliciency w be embedded into all Pea son
Enghish produc.< and services

Leamn morc at english comegse

Swudent enrolments at Wall Street English
in Chima grew ro 66,000 (+2%)

Ledrn rore at wallstreetenghsh com

We completed the acquisition of
Grupo Mulu the la gest provider of
private fanguage schouls inBraal
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Other financial information

Net finance costs

All figures n £ mifhons 2044 3

&) 72

Netinterest payable

Finance income/(costs)
in respect of employee

benefit plans ) | 3}
Othernet finance costs 30) ()
Total net finance costs (93) (76)

Net interest payable in 2014 was £64m, comparedto
£72min 2013

Although our fixed rate policy reduces the inpact of
changes in market intet est rates, we were still able to
benefit from low average US dollar and sterling interest
rates during the year Year-on-year, average three-month
ILIBOR {weighted for the Group's net borrowings in LS
dollars and sterling at each year end) fell by 0 1% 10 0 2%
This decrease in floating market interest rates, along with
the impact of foreign exchange wranstauon and addiuonal
interest receivable on cash balances held over seas, more
than offset the eflect of higher levels of average net debt
in the period These factors contributed to the overall
decrease in the Group's average net interest payable
from 4 8% to 3 6% The Group s average net debt rose
by £260m, largely as a result of net acquisition acuwity
and the translauon of our predemmantly US dollar debt

Finance income and costs refating 1o retrement benefits
have been excluded from our adjusted earmings as we
believe the Income statement presentauon does not
reflect the economic substance of the underlying assets
and habiities Also included in the statutory definition of
net finance costs (but not in our adyusted measure) are
finance costs on put opuons and deferred consideration
assocrated with acqguisitions, foreign exchange and
other gans and losses  Finance costs for put opuons
and deferred constderation are excluded from adjusted
earnings as they relate ro the future potenual acquisiton

of non-controlling interests and don't reflect cash
expended Foreign exchange and other gains and losses
are exchided from adjusted earnings as they represent
short-term fluctuations in market value and are subject
o significant volauhty Other gams and losses may not
be realised in due course as 1tis normally the intention
to hold the related instruments 1o maturity

In 2014, the total of these tems excluded from adjusted
earnings was a loss of £29m compared to aloss of £4m

1 2013 Both the losses in 2014 and 2013 mainly relate to
foreign exchange differences on un-hedged cash and cash
equivalents and other financral instruments

Funding poasiton and hquid resources

The Group finances s operations by a mixwre of cash
flows from operations, short-term borrowings from
banks and commeraal paper markets, and longer-term
loans from banks and capital markets Cur objective is
o secure conunuity of funding at a reasonable cost from
diverse sources and with varying maturmes The Group
doos not use off-balance sheet speaal purpose entities as
a source of hquidity or for any other financing purposes
The net debt position of the Group 15 set out below

Allfigures in £ nulftons W14 013
Cash and cash equivalents 530 729
E’ﬂarketable securities t6 6
Net dervative assets 40 76
Bonds .27 el
Bank loans and overdrafs €@ @)
Finance leases (o) (1)
Netdebt (169 (1415
Netcashclassfiedas
held for sale. - 36

Toral net debt (1 639)

Total net debt (1.379)
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Net acquisiton activity and foreign exchange rate
movements are the fargest contributors ta the increase
in the Group's netdebt Reflecung the geographical and
currency splitof cur business, atarge propor tion of our
debt 1s denominated in US dollars (see note |9 for our
poficy) The strengthening of the US dollar agamst sterling
during 2014 (from $1 66 to $1 56 £1) increases the stering
equivalent value of our reported net debt

The Group's credit ratngs remained unchanged durng
the year The long-term raungs are Baal from Moody's
and BBB+ from Standard & Poor's, and the short-term
ratings are P2 and A2 respectively in January 2014,
Moody's changed the outlook on its shortterm and
jong-term ratings from ‘Stable’ to "‘Negatve’ In May 2014,
the Group accessed the capital markets, raising €500m
through the sale of notes matuning m May 2021 and
bearing merest at | 875% The notes were swapped

to ficaung rate in US dollars to conform with the

poklicy described in note 19 The Group has & $1,750m
committed revolving credit facility which was

refinanced in August 2014 and matures in August 2019
At 31 December 2014 this faclity was undrawn The
faclity s used for short-term drawings and providing
refimancing capabiites including acting as a back up for
our US commeraal paper programme  This programme
is primardy used to finance our US working capital
requirements, in particular our US educauonal businesses
which have a peak borrowing requirement in june

A 31 December 2014, no commercial paper was
outstanding The Group also maintains other committed
and uncommitted facilives to finance short-term workng
capiral requirements in the ordinary course of business
Further details of the Group's approach to the
management of financial nsks are set out n note |9

to the financial staterments

Taxaton

The effecuve tax rate on adjusted earmings in 2014 was
179% as compared to an effecuve rate of 14 6% 0 2013
Qur overseas profits which arise maindy in the US, are
largely subject to tax athigher rates than thatin the UK
(which had an effective statutory rate of 2{ 5% in 20t4
and 23 25% 11 2013) These higher tax rates were largely
offset by amortsation-related rax deductions and by
adjustments arsing from settlements with tax authorities
Both these items were less significant n 2014 than they
had been in 2013

The reported tax charge on a statutory basis in 2014 was
£63m (20 7%) compared to a charge of £87m (22 8%) n
2013 The decrease m the statutor y rate 1s mainly due to
tax benefits arising on the increase in ntangible charges
only partly offset by the factors affecung the adjusted rate
as described above

Tax pard i 2014 was £[63m compared to £246min 2013
Tax paid n 2013 was unusually tigh as a result of the
permitted deferral of US tax payments in 2012 following
Hurricane Sandy These payments were subsequently
made in 2013 and were accompanied by additional
payments arsing from settlements with tax authorwes,
including £55m relating to prior year disposals

Disconunued operations

in October 2012, Pearson and Bertelsmann announced
an agreement to create a new consumer publishing
business by combining Pengusn and Random House
The transaction completed on | july 2013 and from that
point, Pearson no longer controlled the Penguin Group
of companiies and has equity accounted for-its 47%
associate interest in the new Penguin Random House
(PRH) venture
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Other finanaal information continued

The loss of conu ol resulted in the Penguin business being
classified as held for sale on the Pearson balance sheet at
30 fune 2013 and a subsequent gain on sale of £202m was
reported in the second half of 2013 Included in the gain
reported in 2013 was a provision for amounts payable to
Bertelsmann upon serdement of the transfer of pension
habthues to PRH During 2014, twas deaded that this
transferwould not go ahead as planned and the costs have
been credited back n the £29m gain reported agatnst the
disposalin 2014

The results for Penguin in the first hatf of 2013 and the
gains repot ted in both 2013 and 2014 have been included
i discontinued operations The share of results fromthe
assodcate interest in the PRH venture anising in the second
half of 2013 and in 2014 has been induded m operaung
profitin continung operattons

Addiuonally, on 29 November 2013 we announced

the sale of the Mergermarket Group to BC Par tners
The sale was complated on 4 February 2014 and resulted
in a gan of £198m after tax The Mergermarket business
was classified as held for sale on the balance sheet at

3 December 203 and the gain and the results for both
2013 and 2014 to the date of sale have been included in
discontinued operations

Non-controlling interesc

There are non-comrolling interests in the Group's
businesses in South Africa, China and ndia although none
of these are matenal to Group numbers Dunng 2013
some of the minorities in South Afica and India were
boughtout, further reduang the impact of these interests
in 2014

Orher comprehensive income

Induded in other comprehensive income are the net
exchange differences on translauon of foreign operations
The gan on transfauon of £175mn 2014 compares toa
loss i 2013 of £217m and 1s prinaipally due to movements
in the US dollar A significant proportion of the Group's
operations are based in the US and the US doflar
serengthened m 2014 from an opering rate of £1 $1 66

to a closingrate at the end of 20{4 of £1 $i 56 At the end
of 203 the LIS dollar had weakened m companson to the
opening rate moving from £1 $t 63 to £1 $1 66

Alsoincluded in other camprehensive mcome n 20415
an actuanial gan of £8m (after offsettinga £{5mloss in
respect of assocrates) in relation to post-retirement plans
This gain arises from changes in the assumptions used to
value the habihties and from returns on plan assets that are
in excess of the discount rate The gam compares to an
actuarial gamnin 2013 of £79m

Drdends

The dvidend accounted for in our 2014 financial
statements totaling £397m represents the final dvidend
inrespect of 2013 (32 Op) and the mterim dwidend for
2014 (17 0p) We are proposing a final dividend for 2014
of 34 Op, bringing the total paid and payablen respect
of 2014 1o 51 Op, a 6% increase on 2013 Ths finat 2014
dividend which was approved by the board in February
2015, 1s subject to approval at the forthcorming Annual
General Meetng and will be charged agamnst 2015 profits
For 2014, the dividend 1s covered 1 3 umes by adjusted
earnings

We seek to maintain a balance between the requirements
of our shareholders for a nising stream of dwvidend mcorme
and the reinvestment opportumtes which we dentify
around the Group and through acquisizons  The board
expects to raise the dividend above inflaton, more inftine
with earnings growth, thereby martaining dvidend cover
at around two times earmings in the long term

Post-retirement benefits

Pearson operates a varnety of pension and post
retrement plans Our UK Group penston plan has by
far the largest defined benefit section We have some

smaller defined benefit sections in the US and Canada but,

outside the UK, most of cur compamnes operate defined
conuribunon plans In addition to pension plans we also
operate post-retirement medical benefit plans (PRM8s),
the most significant of which s in the US In 2014 we
amended the elgibiity critera for the US PRMB plan
This amendment resulted n a curtalment gam and a
reductionin the ongoing service cost of the plan
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The charge to prafit in respect of worldwide pensions and
retu ement benefits for conunuing operations amounted
to £83mn 2014 (2013 £96m) of which a charge of £84m
(2013 £93m} was i eported in adjusted operating profit
and anincome of £1m {2013 charge £3mj was repor ted
agamst other net finance costs The reduced charge m
201451 par t due to the US PRMB curtalment gain

and also to a reductionn costs refating to our defined
contnbuton plans

The overall surplus on the UK Group pension plan of
£86m at the end of 2013 has inar eased to a surplus of
£190m at the end of 2014 The mavement has arisen
prinapally due to continuing asset returns and deficit
funding which was only partally offset by an unfavourable
movement in the discount rate used to value the iabihtes
In total, our worldwide deficit in respect of pensions and
other post-retirement benefits decreased from a net
defiat of £56m at the end of 2013 to a netasset of £27m
at the end of 2014

Acquistions and disposals

The acquisiuon of Grupo Multy, Brazil's teading adult
English language training company, for £437m (plus £49m
in net debt assumed) was announced in December 2013
and completed on {1 February 2014 There were no
other signfficant acquisitons in the year We recorded
£240m of goodwill on the Grupoe Mult transaction
together with £254m of intangibles relaung to trade
names, content. franchises and technology In total
acquisitons completed in the year contributed an
additional £70m of sales and £29m of adjusted
operatng profit

The sale of the Mergermarket group of compantes to

BC Partners for £375m was completed on 4 February
2014 and realised a profit before tax of £244m In addwon
our North America business disposed of its joint venture
nterests in Safan Books Online and CourseSmart,
realising a profit before tax of £40m and its investment

in Nook Media, realising 2 foss before tax of £38m

Return on mvested capital (ROIC)

Our ROIC 15 calculated as total adjusted operaung profic
less cash tax, expressed as a percentage of average gross
mnvested capital ROIC increased from 5 4% in 2013 10

5 6% in 2004 Increased profitand reduced tax payments
are the mam reasons for the movernent

Related party transactions

Transacuons with related parties are shown in note 37
of the financral statements

Post balance sheet events

There were no significant post balance sheet events
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Identfying and assessing risk

Qur principal nsks and uncertanties are outlined below
These are the most sigrificant nsks that may adversely
affect our business strategy, financial posiwon or future
performance The risk assessment process evaluates the
probability of the risk materiasing and the financeat or
sti-ategic impact of the r1sk Those nisks wihich have a
tugher probability and significantimpact on swrategy
reputation or operations, or a financial impact greater
than £40m are idenufied as principal risics

The nsk assessment and reporung criteria are designed

to provide the board with a consistent, Group-wide
perspectve of the key risks The reports to the board,
which are submitted twice per year, include an assessment
of the probabihity and impact of risks materialising, as weil
as nisk mingation mitratives and thewr effectiveness

The dentfication of the principal Gi oup risks 1s mformed
by discussions with each Line of Business, Geography and
key enabhng funcuons, identifying key risks and assessing
the adeguacy of mitigating controls

The Pearson executive member s have oversight of risks
relevant to each of thenr areas of responsibility This s now
included n then goals and objecuves

The audit commuttee prowides oversight and reassurance
to the board with regai d to the procedures for the
dentification, assessment and reporung of nsk See page
7t {or the committee’s nisk-related activiues duning 2014
including deep dives into selected principal nisks

Management is responsible for considering and execuung
the appropriate action to mitigate these risks whenever
possible lt1snot possible to idenufy every nsk that could
affect our businesses, and the actions taken to miugate the
risks described below cannot provide absolute assurance
that a r1sk wifl not materialise and/or adversely affect our
business or financial performance

Risk appeute There are certain areas where we do not
have any appetite to take risks, such as complying with
jaws on anti-bribery and corruption or the safety and
security of learners Inother areas such as strategy and
change. we recognise the importance of managed rsk-
taking in order to achieve business objectives and goals
During 2015, further work is being done to define risk
appetite and tolerance and 1o embed this more formally
into deaiston makang and day-to-day business acuvities

OUR PRINCIPAL GROUP RISKS

Outlined here are the most significant
risks that may affect our future. Ve
assess the probability of the risk
materialising and the financial or
strategic impact of the risk. The risks
with greatest potential impact are
identified as principal risks

Learnmore about Princpal nisics
and uncer tainties ot p36-37 Q)
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Our prinaipal risks

Rusk categories To aid i the identfication of nisks and
development of assocated mingating acuons, risks are
categorised intc four main areas strategy and change,
operavonal, financial, and legal and complrance

Key changes to Group risks in 2014 As set out:n the ‘our
performance’ section, 2014 was a year of considerable
change across the Group These changes provide the
foundauon for significant mitigation of strategic and
market risks, mcluding the shift to digital and services

But with change there can be an inerease n risk in the
short-term Additional governance and oversight was
put n place to mitigate these change-refated risks As the
new organisaton structure stabifised, there was resulting
dlarity in roles and responsibiiities This, together with the
appointment of management and staff to key posimons,
assisted in muitigatng risk in a number of key areas

IMPACT
irancial, repucat.ona, strateg'e opcrational)

PROBABILITY
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With the increased focus on growing our direct delivery
business activiues, there has been a need to improve

the effective management of related operational 1 1sks

Thus ncludes the safety and security of our learners, which
is reflected as a new principal risk Specific 1 oles have been
created and filled 1o ensure there 1s expertise to deal

with these areas and this wiall continue to be a focus area

m 2015

With the acceleraung shift to digital products, we

continue to look at ways that we canimprove our
customers experence of our products and services

Ths 1s particufarly the case for products where there are
periods of peak demand on our systems, such as ‘back to
school’ times A dedicated cross-business task force has
been put in place to ensure that root causes are addressed
and improvemeris implemented

Learn more about Risk Governance an p76 €
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Principal risks and uncertainttes continued

STRATEGIC & CHANGE RiSKS

Rusk

Mitigation

Government regulanon and decisions
Changes in fundity policy and/or regulanions
impact busime sy model and/or coment
deasions across all markets

In the US we actively monitor changes through paruapation in advisory
boards and representation on standard setting commuttees Our customer
1 elationship teams have detadled knowledge of each state marker We work
through our own col por at affaics team and ourindustry trade associations
including the Assoaauan of Amencan Fublisher s YWe ate also momitol ing
muniapal funding and the impact on our educatton receivables

tr the UK we rasntan refationships with those government departments and
agencies that are responsible for policy and funding We work proactively
wath them to ensure Qur programmes meet exisung ang nevy government
objecuves at the tight quahty level

Across all of our other markets, local management monitor and respond
to potential and actuat changes in regulauons, supported by our global
corparawe affars team This includes Growth markeis of China, India,
Brazil and South Africa

Dignal and services evolutson and market
forces Fatfure to successiully investinand
delver the nght products and services

Our global educaton strategy will drive a faster move 10 digial and services,
recognising that this is a sigrificant opporlunity for Pearson aswell asa
potenual nsk ‘We are transfornung out products and services for the

digital ervironment along with managing aur printinventortes

Oun content 1s being 1dapted 1o new technologes across our businesses
and s priced to dive demand We devetop new disusbution channels by
adapung our product offering and mvestingin new formats

As set out on page 38-43 our focus onefficacy is dnving our decisions on
how and where we invest in products and services

Acquisinans, divestments and joint ventui es
Falure to generare anucipated revenue
growih synergies and/or cost savings from
acquisitions, mergers and other business
combunations could lead 10 goedwill and
mizngible asset impan ments

We performipre tansaction due difigence and closely monitor actual
performance 1o ensure we are meeting operatanal and financial targets

Any dvergence from these plans wilf resultin management acuon to inprove
pet formance and mimimise the risk of any impan ments Executive management
1nd the board receve regular reparts on the status of acquisitions and
mergers with a formal review once per year

Business wansfor mauon and change

The pace and scope of our business
transformation rtiatives increase the
execution sk that benefits may notbe fully
realised, costs of these changes ray Inci ease,
orthat our business as usual activies do not
periormin line with expectauons

Asnoted i the Charman s mtroducuon the most difficult phase of our
transformation has now been compieted There remaina number of
important change imtiatives m progress such as the Enabling Programime
which will deliver sustainable improvements in finance human resources and
operauons In additon to usval good pracucesin place for project and change
management there s enhanced governance monitormgand reporung place
for these most significant change mitatives

Talent. Farffure to attract retan and develop
staff, including adapuing to new siall sets
required to run the business

Ttuough the changes during 2043 and 2014 we have been successfuln
promoung our best internal talent and recruimng ndniduals who are global
teaders in their speaic field

As part of our transformation we have made and conuinue to make
impravements in a number of areas that are key 10 mitigating talent nisk
These indude clear employee objecuves and development plans an all
employee engagement survey with achon plans as appropriate, successon
planning and talent management, and compeunve remuneration plans

See page 65 for deraits of the board's talent review

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Rusk

Mingation

Customer facing systems Fadure to maintan
and support customer facing services,
systems, and platforms including quabty

and urmely execution of new products

and enhancernents

Effecuve project management disaplines are in place to ensure that
enhancements and new products meet the required standards Real ume
montarmg and reportng of oper avonal performance is used todentify
anyissues ind diree L appr opriate responses

A Quahty Task Torce {QTF) 1510 place 10 oversee improvements to ensure
ou customers expenendce is one thatis expected from a digial business
Ths iitianve has all eady defivered sipmificant tacical improvements and

1s driving longer 1erm, strategicimprovements
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Miugzion

1
1

Tesung fadure A control brakdown or
service (aiure 1n our school assessment
and quahfications businesses could resuh
i financial loss and reputatonal damage

QOur professional services and school
assessment businesses involve compler
contractual 1 elatuonships with both
government agencies and commercial
customers for the provision of vanous
testing ser vices Our financial results,
growth prospects and/or reputation may
be adves sely affected of these contracts
and refatonships are poorly managed

We seek to mimmise the nsic of a brealdown in our student marking wath the use
of robust quality assurance procedur es and controls and oversight of contract
performance combined with our investmentm technology projectmanagement
and slulis development of owr people

In additton to the internal business procedures and controls implemented to
ensure we successfully deliver on owr contractual commitments we also seek

10 develop and mamtain good relatonships with ow customers to miminise
associated risks

We also look to dversify our pot tlalio to mimmise reliance on any single

contract

$SAMISAY dNO l

Safety safeguarding and p1 otecuon
faiture to adequately pt otect children
and learners pa ticularly in our direct
delwery businesses

Resk

Recognismg the impaortance of managiig evolving risks assocrated with our dir ect
delivery business modeis, we created and filled the role of a head of safeguarding
and protecucn See page 49 for further details

Mitigtion
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Tax Risk that changes intaxlaw or
percepuons on ax planning surategies
lead ro hugher effective tax r ate or
negilve reputanonatympact

Rusk

Our tax strategy reflects our business strategy and the focations and financing
needs of our operations tn common with many compantes we seek to manage
our tax affairs Lo protect value for our shareholder s in ine with our broader
fiduoiary dutes We are comrmitted to complying with all statutory obhgations
16 undertake full disclosure to wax author mies and to follow agreed polices and
p1 ocedures with regard to tax planning and strategy

Over sight of tax strategy 1s wathin the | et of the audit comimittee, which
receives a report on this topic at least once a year All of the audit commitiee
members are mdependent non-executive directors The chieffinancial officer 15
responsible for tax sirategy the conduct of our tax affars and the management
of taxrisk a1 e delegated 1o a global team of tax professionals

Mitigatron

E2vdIH TIVID0S YNO

intellectual property {{'we do not
adequately protect our intellectual
property and pr oprietary rights our
compenuve postion and resuits may be
adversely affected and limit ou abiiity
10 grow

We seek ta rmitigate thns type of nisk through general vigilance, co-operation
with other publishers and trade assoaations advances in technology as well
as1ecourse 1o law as necessary Digital mghts management standards and
monitonng pr ogrammes have been developed Wehave a prracy task force

to idennfy weaknesses and remediate breaches Ye momitor activittes and
regulatons in each market for developrents i copynght/mtellectual proper ty
law and enforcement and take legal action where necessary

FONYNYIAOD l
i

Data privacy and cyber securty Falureto
comply with data privacy regulatons snd
standards or wealkness i informaton
security Including a fallure w prevent o1
detect a mahcrous attack on our systems
could resultn amajor data privacy bieach
causing reputaconal damage w ourbrands
and finanaiat loss

Through ou global enterprise informauon security and compliance programme
we have established a gover nance model secunity and privacy framework and
policies 2 global secunty and privacy orgarisational madel and standard based
mformation secunty and privacy conti ols and pracuces

We constantly test and re evaluate our data secur ity procedures and controls
across all ow businesses with the aim of ensering personal data s secus ed and
we comply with relevant legisfauon and contractuat requirernents We pursue
appropnate plvacy accreditatons, e g TRUSTe Privacy and Sa'e Harbor Seal
We regutarly monitor regulation changes to assess the Impact on exisung
processes and programmes We have established & global secuniy operauons
centre that provides angomg nomtoning of potentialmalicious attacks on our
wfrastructure and spsterns

Anu-biibery and corrupuon Faduieto
effectively manage 1isies assoctated wath

compliance to global and local ABC legislanon

QOur ABC complance programme was rolted outm 2011 to support compliance
with UK Brber y Act, infine with adequate procedures’ guidance Our zero
tolerance' app oach s also designed to comply wath alf other global and{ecal
ABC laws and 1 egulanions We have arisic-based programme of traning (online
and face-to-face) Our ABC policy s communicated to thwrd parties and forms
part of our contractual terms for igher risk thnd parves

SINIWIALYLS THIDNYNIY
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Hficacy

l. Introduction

“A deceptively ssmple but incredibly
powerful Idea that every product
we sell can be measured and judged
by the outcomes it helps the learner
to achieve " John Fallon, Chief executive

Measuring outcomes

At the time of writing last year's Annual report we had
Just announced a new commitment to what the company
calls efficacy The goal was smple, but also mcredibly
chalienging we would mave to define measurable learner
outcomes for Pearson products and services, and to
report publicly on thelearner outcomes dehvered by

our products in early 2018

We were also extremely aware that efficacy in education is
not a challenge we can tackle alone ‘We wili need to share
what we are finding out, and be prepared to hstento all
the feedback And we will need to be willing to learn from
others as they pursue their own methods Weitemain
absolutely cornmitted 1o this cornmunity approach

Review process and result

When we began efficacy was merely a concept and a
fofty goal We had developed aframework which could
evaluate the ikellhood that a product or service will deliver
its mtended outcomes, and had designed a process to
apply the framework within the Lines of Business via
efficacy reviews Since 20{2, we have completed 200
reviews This process has provided snapshots of the state
of efficacy v different parts of Pearson, as wellas what
investments we need to make in order to move towards
greater efficacy, ata product and service level

Reporung on efficacy progress

2. Making the change

Developing our strategy

The commutment to efficacy has emerged as the contral
theme to Pearson’s strategy and culture Qur employees
are driven by the mission of helping learners make progress
in their ives, it provides meaning to our work There s also
adlear business and commeraial case for the learner-centric
approach we are now talung to run our company Pearson’s
scale means we are in the strongest positonn the global
rmarker to evaluate the effectiveness of different educational
products across many populauons. and to develop and
implement new ewvidence-based models We are the first

m the rarket to commit to reporting on product efficacy,
and the fir st to engage outside partners who wil
independently valdate the ngour and objectivity of our
efficacy measurement This feedback loop will make our
products better and strengthen our relatianships with
customers and end learners. and will yield meaningful
results for the business in the corning years We alsc hope
that through this approach we will influence the education
sector more brroadly

Embedding efficacy

Culture We also know that our commitment to efficacy 1s
much more than a strategy ~ to be truly effecuve it needs to
become a way of worlang for ever y one of our employees
To make this happen we have put in place a global efficacy
network of Pearson experts who are dedicated, most of
them full-tme, to embedding efficacy into the way we do
business as acompany 1heir efforts will ensure all our
employces are driven by the rission of helpimg fearners
to make progress in theirves The team s matched to
Pearson’s new orgamisational structure we have efficacy
leaders in each global Line of Business as wefl as the

Making the change m 2014

We are commutied 10 reporung on learner ourcames by 2018
Published i 2013 The incomplcte ginde to delvering leaines ourcomes
explained the programme and s transformanve potential The response
was uverwhelmingly positive from mternal and extternal staleehulders,
and sver the pastyear we ve made further sides Afongside dus Annual
regort we are publishing On the rood to defvering
fearner owtcorres winch reports
thes progress

Read the reparts online at

efficacy pearson com

200

Effeacy reviews

20,150

Lmployees huve eng iged in efficacy uatmng

88

Efficacv leaders auross Pearson
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Geographies, working cross-funcuonally to impact global
and iocal product development and the way we maricet,
sell and measure our products and services

Traning Efficacy depends on the commitment of every
employee — not only those occupying these new positions
So we have also rolled out broadscale efficacy training on
the topic thraughout the company We have ¢reated an
online course on efficacy, which was added to the new
hire orientation paclcage and is avadable to everyone n
the company wia our internal learming portal Over 20,000
employees have taken the course Inaddwon efficacy
leaders are runmng workshops and traimings in person

all over the world to bulld awai eness and understanding

External engagement We know that going this alone 1s
notanopten The soluttons to the efficacy challenge will
emerge from many cornet s, from different professions,
and also from different sectars That's why we have
contnued our public engagements, to help play our part

tn this global community of changemakers VWe partnered
with the RSAn the UK on a seres aboutlearner
outcomes, and contributed to the Shared Value Iniiative’s
conference on the Role of Business in Educauon We have
emphasised efficacy in our presence at innovation events
such as New School Venture Fund's annual conference
and $XSWedu Efficacy s also a central part of our
commitment to the Global Partnership for Education,

of which Pearson s the only corporate member; we will
be offening m-lund workshops and efficacy reviews 1o
member countries, and giving GPE members access to
our growmng body of research on learner cutcomes

LEADERSHIP: EVHICACY LAPRERITS

“Efficacy 1s the reason why t work in education —long
before I'd ever even heard of that word As a South
Aldrican, live in one of the most wonderful butatso
one of the most unequal countres in the world
Everyday | am confronted with examples of how
people have erther benefited from a strong education
or been severely disadvantaged by the lack of one
Through offering good quality educauen,

with measurable improvement of

lear ner outcomes we can help bring

about change "

IMAGE REMOVED

Marion Smallbones
L5 cacy directon, Schoy!

“To me. efficacy means that we care enough about the
customer experience and the wrust they place mus,
that we're widling to reorganise our company to make
sur e we deliver the outcomes we're promusing It
means being personally accountable for my acuons,
and asking myself each day “How canl

make a difference to students and

teachers today™

IMAGE REMOVED

Karen Mullane
Voo presider, Blaacy el s
Paars s North, Areevca

Learn about our operaung structure on p7 €

*Before hearing about efficacy,
| thought my job was just to drive,
| thought, isn't it the same to
be a truck drniver who delivers
books and a truck driver

“. Now [ realise my job has to do with
educaton |am a partof the educational
process in my country. My chidren,
and even my grandchildren, will be
benefited by the job ido”

who delvers alcoholic
drinks or tobacco?...”

IMAGE REMOVED

Juan Hernandez a Pearson wuck daver who particpated
in a workshop calfed Eficacia para rodos faohvated by
Veromea Valges Efficacy manager Laun Amoncabub
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Efficacy continued

3. Efficacy in action

Efficacy is changing the way we
operate and develop our business,
alongside our employees, customers,
and the broader education market.
We have early evidence of the
impact of the products and services
we deliver to customers.

Efficacy approach and acuvities

Efficacy reviews, studies and implementation

Ouw efficacy review process provides a ngorous way to
evaluate whether a given product or se vice is positioned
to deliver learner outcomes and to identify how it should
bemproved ltisbeng used n every Line of Business

{see framework below) Efficacy studies evaluate the
efficacy of a product or service in the market, conducted
in partnership with customers, tearners, and increasingly
thwd-party academic institutions We are starung to work
with customers to ensure that Pearson products and
services are used and implemented in ways that maximise
therr efficacy based on this research

Efficacy wn the product lifecycle

Define intended learner outcomes

Review products to ensure they are posiuoned to
deliver on those outcomes, and put i place efficacy
IMmprovement programimes

Conduct research to measure the efficacy of products
and feed insights badk into product development

Supportcustomers to effectvely implement the
products to get the best outcomes possible

Starting from outcomes

in 2014 we further defined the standards for these
assessments of our products, creaung a more detaded
description of the outcomes Pearson products and services
dehver as well as the refauve strengths of different types
of evidence used n our studies The table opposite shows
our proposed framework for the types of outcomes that
customers desire

Efficacy review framework

Our efficacy framework examines different
aspects of our product performance

I Ourcomes 2 Ewndence

3 Plantung and

4 Capaaty o dehver
implementaton

Our efficacy flameworics also bemng used by ethers fwith our supper
and their feedback hias heiped o refine it View our online tool at
cfficacy pearson comiui -path so-afficacy/how 1o review

Pearson products atall stages of matunty will be
meorporanng efficacy into thew development via a formal
global product kfecycle which s being rolled out across
the business New products or featu es will need to be
justfied by educational research supporting their design;
products i growth mode will be gathering increasingly
robust evidence that the product is improving learner
outcomes and evolve accordingly Matwre products

will continue to sustam and monitor efficacy evidence
alongside financial metrics Further, efficacy requirements
are how incorporated into our acquisiions and
investments processes, from the Pearson Affordable

L earnung Fund to tradiuonal M&A

Shaping Pearson products

In addiuon to the huge strides on culture and processes
described above, we have a plann place to quickly impact
arange of Pearson products and to prepare the company
to report publicly on efficacy m 2048

Making the change n 2014

“We are enthusiastic supporters
of the efficacy approach.
{n 2014 itbecame the
way we work and plan.
It's not a review
process, it 1s a way

of doing business " IMAGE

REMOVED

Caspar de Bono
Maruig g 08 #eiee, Franezal Timee B2B
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EFFICACY: T¥PLS CF GUTCOMES

Definiuon

Example cutcomes

The degree to which learners can
access aproduct (e g accessto
technology and socio economic
access)

The level of learner satisfacuon

The level of motivation and
confidence that the learner gams

Alllearners can access digital
learning matertals from a
personal computer tablet
or smart phone at anyvnie

Learners have a positive
learning experience

The progress that the learner
makes through the course

[fie ime taken to achieve the
standard or competence

Learners complete cou se of
work within one semester

Qualficavon ganed

The leve! of performance on a
standardised test

Course-specific competencies
demonstrated

The acquisition of speafic skalis

Learner earns a bachelor’s
degiee

The learner wilt be able to
demonstrate mastery of
the English course matertal

Level of aspu ation
Caregory and value

Utihe
ACcess R
The learner access
and experience

Usage rhythm
Completion | 2
The umeliness
of completon

: Competenaues
Achievernent | Somee
The standard of achievement achieved
orlevel of competence
i ‘Door
Progression | 2o .
Learner progression
s

Malang the change in 2014

Ability of learner to progress to
next course of study trainmng
or employment

Learner gets ganful
employmentn field of study

“Akey chent was dehghted to hear about our interestin
helping bint focus on achieving the outcomes he had set
Aldough he wasn't used to having such a conversation
with a publisher [fus admission} he was very open about
what they need to do with the vanous schools and
programmes they manage Through the course of our
conversaton, he rade it dear that he wanted to buld a
new ‘premier’ partnerstup with us What really struck
me 1s how a conversauon on efficacy and cutcomes
created an almost kid-in-a-candy-store response from
such a seasoned executive ™

“What really struck me
Is how a conversation
on efficacy and cutcomes
created an almost
kid-in-a-candy-store
response.”

IMAGE
REMOVED

Bruce Berpevall
Bares duevekprien o cor
t=ghier Cdueato-
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Efficacy continued

4. Early impact in 2014

The first wave

in 2014 we denufied a ‘fit st wave' of products with

whuch to nmate our won k in efficacy The st was chosen
based on a set of business and efficacy critera, including
rmarket position, product and data maturity, strategic
importance, and the scale of customer base and revenue
The products and services represent a mix of geographies
and target learner papulanons They will be the focus of
the first externally-audited efficacy report n 2018

Key achievements so far

We ve achieved the following milestones in our umeline for
impacung the full range of Pearson products and services

All of the ‘first wave’ products have defined the learner
outcomes they are positioned to deliver, as welt as the
metrcs they will use to measut e those outcames

Pearson products i all categosies are stead|ly progi essing
through efficacy reviews, we are developing mechanisms
for classfying and tracking products progress on efficacy
throughout the company next yeat

A majonty of the products which have undergone efficacy
reviews are on the path o efficacy, meaning they are
canunually worlang to complete the acuons identified
during efficacy reviews to increase the efficacy of the
product, are demonstraung progress on gathering
efficacy evidence and are refining their efficacy plans
through follow-on reviews and dialogue with customers

Each Line of Busmess has at least one ‘first wave’ product
that is n a posiuon to report on efficacy impact with a
view towards external reporung n 2018 We are sharing
these publicly alongside this Annual report

Learn about our Lines of Business in
our operatng structure on p7 €

EFFICACY: PRCOUCT PROGRESS IN 204+

As evidence of the progress we have made, we are
publiciy sharing detatls of efficacy progress for five of
our products on an online site This data s prelminary,
we do not yet have fully vahdated evidence of outcomes
with customers, because of the lead tme that rigarous
studies require We are eager, however, to test early
results with our customers and other stakeholders to
inform the development of our research and reporung
processes We invite you to read the full reports at
efficacy pearson com/progress

enVisionmath 2 0 a comprehensive next generation elomental y
mathematcs curriculum that has research hnsed mstrucoionat
pracuces and ss based on the ighly successfut enVisionMATH that
reaches aver six midlion learners enVisionMATH user s achieve
sgnificantly greater growth m math proficency compared 10 othes
programmes as evidenced by an mdependent randonmsed cont ofiriaf

Wall Street Engiish pw owdes premum Enghish language progranmes
for young professronals in aepthefficacy reviews of operations were
carried outinfoul countries and have ted o a variery of Impt overnents,
from he lpmgiearners to better define thewr guals to measuring thew
progress agamst these

MyEngfishLab provides fearnets in secandary school and higher
education with interactive online pracoce, homework and
assessments, and teachers with a range of diagnosuc tools for Enghish
language blended-learning programmes More than 450,000 new
learners in 25 countries used MyEnghshLabs i 2014 The efficacy
review has led to 1 variety of improvements from UX o currrculum
desgn Efficacy studies were also campleted wath more than

25 institutions around the world

MasteringChemystry for General Chemmistry s an online homewarh
witorial and assessment programme serving up to 250 000 tearners
arwwally in the United States wath 30 000 learners annually across

60 ciher countries For seven years, our product team «nd the efficacy
resuilts team in North America have worked with educators to collect
evidence abeut the impact of MasterngCherstry on learung and
have generated 17 sets of user generated results Inaddiion several
wdependent pect 1 eviewed academic arucles have documented the
cfficacy of MasteringChemistr y bavh i and ouiside the US Weare
mobilising a wider set of eificacy actraves i 2045 o supportiur ther
product mprovements and documentsmpacr anleai ner outtomes
across a broader set of geographies

CTi and MGt provide pathweays for the emergent neddie dss 1o gam
aceess 1o higher education in South Africa and the econonvc and
personal advancement opportumties that this provides Currenty
they sorve 14 000 stdents across 12 CTland (3 MGEcampuses Oy
efiicacy effor s provide abgectrve evidence of these opportunimes
date und our ongoing efficacy programme s tocused on constandy
#rp) oving pppurumties for our students and graduates
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Marntaming progress through 2015 A globat reseal ch programme a
We take the view that 2015 1s a crincal year for malung A successful future for Pearson funges on insight into — and
progress on operationalising efficacy Our priorsty will response to ~fundamental questions in educauon For
be on delivering efficacy m our strategic products, from that reason, we are building global research capabibties
end to end This will enable us to parucipate deeply in the worldwide
canversation about learner outcomes, and to nform
Key auns for 2015 business leadet s of effective educational pracuces

in addition to efficacy studies and market research, which
are based in bustness units, our new research capabilines
will iook into broad and global educavan themes, that
We are continually working to complete the actions could in turn drive specific product innovations

denufied during efficacy reviews 1o increase the
efficacy of the product, dernonstrating progress
on gathering efficacy evidence, and refining their
efficacy plans through follow-on reviews and
dralogue with custormers

The ‘first wave' of products will conunuie to malke
demonstrable progress on the path to efficacy
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The global research team will aim to uncover clear and

rephcable findings to eight key unanswered questons in
education, ranging from the micro (how chitdrenlearn)
to the macro (how educaucon systems worl effectively)

Read the fit st reports onkine at Learn more atresearch pearson com o
efficacy pearson cam/progress bt
0
O
>
We will identify the next set of products to =
be the focus for efficacy efforts ;;:;
_‘
This will be the 'second wave', and the 1 elevant teams
will have identified clear outcomes to be delivered
by their products, as well as having gone through
cfficacy reviews
[n]
o
=
We will have evidence of ncreased awareness Z
and adoption of efficacy nternally z
(9]
m

This will cover all functions and geographies, and we IMAGE REMOVED
will have reworked major internal processes to align
with the efficacy agenda {including, for example,
partnerships acquisittons, and product strategy)

We will cantinue to ncr ease the external
awareness of efficacy

through our ongotng work with stakeholders, and 10
p1omate the adoption of outcomes-based approaches
to education in the market
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Our socia
impact
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The single most important contribution that Pearson can
malke to socety is to equip people with the access and
skills they need to progress Our commitment to efficacy,
(p38) 15 the means through which we will achieve this

$5INISTIE N0

Learning empowers people, and it defines our company
purpose. Acting responsibly 1s central to achieving this
purpose and to our business strategy, and how we deiver
Is as important as what we achieve.

tt shapes the deasions we make, the cutture and values
we promote and sustain, the relationships we foster,
and the ways we treat our planet Ultimately, operating
responsibly helps us to better delver outcomes for
people, and to better meet the expectations of all

of socety.

IDNYHYOIYId N0 l

IMAGE REMOVED

Robmn Freestone Chiel financial officer
{and board mginber responuble for corporate 1esponsiniy)
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Qur soaal impact strategy

In 2014 we reviewed and redefined our sociaiimpact strategy
We have identificd three o1 ganmsing ideas that siruciure our reporung

IDINVNYIAOD

Standards

Impact

Qur standards worl sces
U5 LOMINUE TO IWEsST N ouT
people and to work hard to
redue: our envis ormenal
footpnnt

We plan to make a sigrficant
comribution through
campaigning and programmse
acuwvity with a partcular fuuus
onlireracy

Innovation

Through mnovation we will
pariner to help find sohiitons
te some of the bigrest unmet
educational needs
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Overview

Standards

Our commercial success is
dependent on us operatingina
responsible way. We report our
approach and the progress we
are making across five areas’

Standards

I Qur 1esponsibality Seepi7 ©
2 Qur values and behaviour See p48 @
3 Qur relanonships Seepd9 @
4 Qur planet Seep52 @
5 Qur performance See ps3 Q)

Also in this section

Impact Project Literacy See p54 @
Socal innovauon Seep56 ©

We will report on our progress in alt these areas
v our 2014 Social Impact report avaifable on
pearson com/socal-impact

[. Our responsibility

Definitons

Pearson has adopted a broad definiion of responsible
business and has established 2 set of commitments
across a range of socal, community and human nghts
principles to

Ensure that our products and services are inclusive,
appropriate i content to the age, locauon and abiity
of the learner, and are easy and safe to use and access

Respect and protect how we use and share data
entrusted to us by lear ners and our customers

Inform, support and equip colleagues to work
collaboratvely

Encourage and reward high performance, nurturing talent
and c1 eaung a culture where all are able to realise thewr
indvidual potennal

Provide a safe and healthy workplace for our employees
and the learners of all ages we directly serve

Extend our commitments onfabour standards, human
nghts and environmental responsibiity to include our
suppliers and business partners

Provide opportunities for Pearson people to be good
atzens and to get involved m their local communities

Dehver against our targets on our response to climate
change and to make more efficent use of resources

Responsibility at Pearson

Envirenment and supply chain

Climate chiange

Responsible resource use

Responsible p1 ccurement

Crange — part of owr rsk and compliance agenda

See p7! @
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Based on these commitments, the broad ‘responsible
business’ issue map for Pearson s setout befow ltreflects
a seres of priorues that are common across Many sectors
and individual comparves These are the issues that we
focus on when thinking about responsible business

Some ofthese 1ssues ai e central to ouir business success,
others may be small based on our commercial oper ations
buit have the potential to sigrificantly affect our impact
and reputation The priorities in orange already form
part of our risk and comphance agenda described on p71
The relative significance of 1ssues varies based on country
operational, political and regulatory environments as well
as learnor expectavons The premuse of our sodal impact
strategy 1s that in moving towards a single operaung
company model this s underpinned by clear consistent,
global pohcies and standards across the entire responsible
business agenda

Governance

Corporate responsibility cannot be separated from
our business and reputaton Our board ofdirectors
has ulumate responsibility for considering issues of
responstbifity as part of setung business strategy

The reputauon & responsibility committee, a formal
comniittee of the board prowides ongoing oversight,
serutiny and challenge across the enure responstble
business agendz (n addition, the board considered a
detaled review of the corporate responsibility strategy
at the June 2014 meeting Learn more onp78 ©

The Pearson executive drives implementaton of business
strategy, including our response to the key 1ssues and
opportunites we face

This year, we established 2 single responstble busimess
{eades ship business council to oversee the development
and implementation of our overarching responsible
business strategy on behalf of the board Its chaired by
our chief corporate affairs officer and comprises senior
executives from across the global business

Stakeholders

Public and private sector customers regularfy seek
information from us about how we go about our business,
while many learners and employees want to understand
our approach to sustanabity Socially responsible
investors, and non-governmental organisations look
atissues such as supply chain standards and ethics

Our approach to responsible business is informed by

the priorities and views of our many stakeholders

Learners

People

Cot porate culture and values ‘ Affordability and pricing

Communities Values and

governance

Active ciuzenship i Tax

Editoralindependence
and wntegrity

Onversty and incluston

Ethical conduct

Campaigns ang partnerships
{Code of Conduct)

Appropriateness and

development accessibifity of content

Combatting corruption

Political engagement
(Antr bribery and cor ruption}

Remuneration and Safeguarding and protection

compensation

Data privacy and security

l People recrutment and
l Health & safety
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Standards continued

2. QOur values and behaviour

Pearson employee survey

Pearson employee survey Qur people told us

in 2014, Pearson put in place a new orgarisational structure
for the company that reflects our am to shift from a
portiohio of businesses towards a single operatng mode!
with standard systems, clear accountability, aflatter,

more meritocranc culture and quicker decision-making

Change can be both exhilaraung and inspiring, but

also brings operauonal risk We recognised this and
throughout the year we conunually tracked reaction to
change to understand how best to support our people

Most notably, we asked colleagues to teil us how they
felt about worlang at Pearson, and over 24,000 people
completed the engagement survey We then shared
the findings The key messages are outhned in the
next columin

Code of Conduct

Qur values are reinforced by our Code of Conduct that
covers among other things, individual conduct, iearners
employees, community the environment and our social
obligations We make sure everyone is aware of the Code
and this forms part of the induction process Tius year, we
started a process to review the Code to make sure that it
prowvides the level of guidance and case study support that
our employees need to live by the standards we set for
ourselves The updated Code will be circulated early in
2015 10 everyone working at Pearson and they will be
asked to confirm they have read it undetstand it and
provide a check that the company complies with it

Issues and concerns

We operate a free, confidenual telephone helpline and
website for anyone who wants to raise a concern and we
have a clear non-retahation policy n place to encourage
people to share the issues they have In 2014 we had {12
concerns raised through the ethics reporuong process
These were invesugated and where possible the outcome
shared with the whistleblower This year, as in most years,
the majonity of the concerns related to HR pracuces
Material concerns raised are reported to the Pearson
audit commuittee

That our purpose to empower human prog ess

through learning was dear and compelhing, and
that our logus on efficacy 1s iImproving our products
and services Over 90% of our employees agreed that
the work of Pearson to improve the lives of athers was
important to them Bur, we could do more tobe
clearer about how we achieve that purpose and how it
transiates into every day planning and investment

That values and behavtour are criical to our

success We responded to feedback from the
survey through a global programme of focus groups
and consultation with the executive team to look at
our current values to be brave, maginative and decent
in hght of our orgamisational structure Our aim was to
understand how we could help our people to apply,
bring alive and extend the values as the touchstane
on how we behave, act and work together

Thatm this ume of change, our leaders and

managers could do more to communicate more
often and more clearly their expectauons of workmg
together mamore joined-up way We will seta
performance goal for each Pearson executive member
to improve on the results of the 2014 survey and will
continue to support teams and supportleaders to be
role models for our values and behaviours as they
embed new ways of working Our performance
assessment process has been identfied as a means to
embed ourvalues and behaviours and help people
create clear career paths

Mare work 1s needed to express how the new
structure works and to challenge that it
is helping dehiver for learners Cansequently, we are
doing more work on the Pearson brand to clanfy
who we are and how our products are effective
atimproving learning (in ways that promote
human progress
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3. Our relationships

Helping learners to learn and
progress is both the focus of our
business strategy and the single
most important contribution
we can make to society.

Leainet s and customers

Cur section on efficacy describes the commitments and
progress we are malung on our responsibilites towards
the learner A global challenge is to extend access to
affordable quality education

An important new way of working itroduced this year i
the Pearson product lifecycle framework for managing all
Pearson products, services and platforms This ntraduces
a common language and vocabulary to help us take a view
on investng In our products Thisis part of a widerfocus
on product and customer expenence that will allow us

to better Iisten and respond to what our learners and
customers need As part of this approach, we introduced
the Net Promoter Score system into Pearson, one of the
most recognised methods for measunng customer foyalty
We used thus to assess how customers viewed some of
our most important products, along with a global brand
survey through which we will measure ourselves annually

As we mncreasingly own and operate learning msututions
sG we arc active i serving learmers of all ages indluding
children, young people and vuinerable adults This
incroduces new responsibilities to safeguard and protect

Anrzona Seate University — Starbucks -- Pearson

the best interests of our leamers - prowiding a safe,
supportive and age appropriate fearning environment
whether in a classroom or anline This year, we adopred
a global policy on safeguarding and protecuon and
appointed a new head of safeguarding to tead this
important new area of worl

Qur people

We continued our focus on our broader responsibilities
as an employer Dunng the year-

We ntroduced for the first uime a single global

approach to performance assessment Thisis
designed to help our employees know what 1s expected
of them and to incentivise people to act consistently with
our values and business strategy We cascaded goals from
the top down with the executive team sharing ther 2014
objectives with all employzes

We consciidated the use of Milo as cur single pladform
to deliver raming o provide access to learning and
devetopment, and to support performance assessment
This 1s the first ime that Pearson has used a single
platform for these acuvities

Employees completed approximately 110,000 cour ses,
with the new ‘one Pearson — Explorning how we work’
being the most poputar Through Milo we delivereda
new global employee nduction called "Welcome to
Pearson’, popular programmes on 'Efficacy for Everyone’,
and a surte of management modules on performance
conversations Employees and managers also used Mio
to record their ndividual goals, mortor therr progress,
and assess ther performance

In june, ASU and Starbucks
announced a unique partnership to
offer opportunities for the more than
100,000 Starbucks employees to
access affordable higher education.

IMAGE REMOVED

ASU ontine. offers Starbucks employees who worl more than
20 hours a week affordable 1ccess to over 40 under graduate
degree progrimmes in a service power ed by Pearson

IMAGE REMOVED

100,000 40

Undergradoate
degree programmes

Stai bucks etployres
Lo acress affordable
higher educauon
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Standards continued

3. Our relationships continued

As part of our commitment to helping our employees
be safe, resibent and producuve, we introduced a
carmmon global incident reporting system for health
& safety Our overall goat 1s to achieve zero harm to
employees worlang hard through training and
communication to preventtnadents before they occur
Our performance is reviewed by the audit committee

We made sure that our people understand how we
3 are domng as a company, induding how world and
sector trends might affect them and the business We
provide comprehensive, relevant informauon including
presentauons, messages and webinars with senior
executives and consult where appropriate 5o that we
can learn and take into account the perspectives of our
people Indeveloping our brand strategy, we opened a
survey to alt our employees with 13,000 sharning their
views on the direction we should take

DCrversity and inclusion

We are commutted to attracting retaimng engaging and
developing the best people Ve know that creating and
sustainng an inclusive work environment s coitically
important, offering equai opportnity from the
boardroom down regardless of race, gender, gender
idenuty or reassignment, age, disabihty, religion or
sexual orientation

On gender diversity, we conunue to seek to support
warmen to advance in management and sequor roles
We remain an enthusiastc supporter of the 30% Club
which brings together chairs and CEQs who work to

Diversity performance (as at 3| December 2014)

encourage a better gender balance across ther
companies Duning 2014, we actively supported the
Mentoring Programme set up by the 30% Club which
provides talented mid-career women access tO Cross-
company, cross-sector mentoring At board level, Pearson
appointed Elizabeth Corley as a non- executive director
and has exceeded the target to have atleast 25% female
directors ahead of the 2015 umeframe sez by Lord Davies

We also supplemented the diversity toollat launch last
year by launching Women i Learning and Leadership
{WiLL) aglobal employee networkin Pearson To date,
over 2,000 employers have joned as members of
WILL chapters around the world The ambiton of the
12 chapters established in 201415 to proacuvely drive
change in support of women at Pearson

At the end of 2014, 58% of our global workforce was
female Women represent 35% of our senior leadership
team The gender batance based on our orgamsaponal
structure can be seenin the table below

We continued to progress on supporting the Lesbian,
Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) community at
Pearson During 2014, Spectrum was launched as a
global employee resource network dedicated to support
the advancement of LGBT colleagues across Pearson
Pearson agamn received a perfect score of 100% in the
2014 Corporate Equality Index recogrusing excellence

In corporate policies and practice n supporung LGBT
employees m the US, administered by the Human Rights
Campaign in the UK, we are members of the Stonewall
Dwersity Champions programme

Commumity investment

Wamen i Peai son (%) 2013 2014
Bourd of Dhrectors 22% 30%
Senior teader ship team

\nworepo ong koes b o the CEOY N 35%
All ernployees 57% 582
Employees by gender (umber} Mon Watmen
Board of Drrectors 7 3
Sermor feaderstup team (wo reporung mes

from CEQ excludmyg bxecuive Board Direciors) 64 35
All employces i7064 23470

MAGE REMOVED




Section 3 Ouw uaizhorpart 54

Disabikity forms part of curwider commitiment to equal
opportunity We work to ensure that appropriate
policies procedures, traning and support are available
for people with disabilities to ensure fair access to career
opportunues to realise their talent

Supply chain and partners

Pearson purchases goods and services valued at over
£2bn each year This total includes our investmentn
research and development of new dgital products and
services as well as advances to authors Pearsonwasa
founder signatory to the UN Global Compactin 2000
We were clear from the outset that we would use our
influence with our suppliers to mprove standards for their
employees and the communities in which they operate
Ever since, we have momitored our performance against
both the Global Compact princples and a set of
cormmitments we made to them, reportng annually on
our progress The scope of the UN Giobal Compact
coverslabour standards and human nghts, combatung
corruption as well as environmental responsibility Specffic
clauses relating to these standards are an mtegral part of
cur contracts for key suppliers These standards include
the rejection of forced and compulsory labour a respect
for diver sity, 3 mimimum age to work on Pearson projeets
and compliance with employment laws and regulations

Communities

Not for pi ofit partners help us to extend our reach and
impact helping further learmng — especiafly for the most
disadvantaged or hard to reach — in ways that are
complementary to our business objectives We therefore
partnerwith a number of charitable organisations and{or
a decade, the Pearson Charitable Foundation has been
the largest of these

During 2014, we reviewed our community mvestment
activity and concluded that we coufd greatly increase our
impact by adopting a more mtegrated approach that
places social Impact at the heart of the business model
The Pearson board approved in Jure 2014 a new strategy
which estabhshed mcreasing bteracy rates worldwide as
our anchor social impact campaign issue for the next five
years Qur section on Project Literacy explains more
about our new strategy in 2014, our community
investment was £14 4m, or 2% of pre-tax profits

As part of this review, we assessed our existing charity
partners and their fit with our new approach and strategy
A number of these, most notably, the Pearson Charitable
Foundatien, no longer align wath our approach Therefore,
as of 2015, Pearson adwsed it would no fonger fund the
Foundation as the primary vehicle for its philanthropic and
community activities Having been informed of this change
in its funding, m November the Foundation board of
directors passed a resolution to wand down its operations
and to ddose at the end of 2014 Pearson wacked with the
chanity to ensure that new parters were found wherever
possible for the Foundation programmes
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Standards continued

4. Our planet

We believe that better education

is crucial to building a better world.
To be passionate about a better
world goes further and we recognise
a shared responsibility to protect
the natural resources needed to
deliver learning today.

Chmate change

Pearson continues to be climate neutral for our directly
controlled operations, a comrmitment we first achieved
n 2009 and have mamtained ever since Ve have set
amintious targets to reduce our operatonat emissions
by the end of 2020 and we work with employees and
supplers to measu e and reduce carbon emissions in
our value chain — from sourcing of raw materals to the
wansport and distribuuon of our products

We continue to mamtatn our commitment to cimate
neutrality through carbon reduction, pu: chase of
renewable energy, renewable energy generaton at our
sites and the purchase of carbon offsets We have also
started worlang on a carbon footprint analysis of our
bool publishing in the US and UK to help us target the
most effecuve reductions

Enviropment highhghts

Highlights of our actviiies include

Pearson 1 etaned global cer uficanion aganst the Carbon
Trust Standard WWe were the second ever organisation
to secure the standard which recognises leadership

In measuring, managing and reducing year-on-year
carbon emussions

We maintained our record of purchasing 100% of the
electriaity we use from green power Thatrepresented
over 186,000 MWh of electricity in 2014

We opened a new solat installauon at our distrnbution
centre 1n South Africa We now have invested in
renewable energy generation at five sites and have

2 4 Megawatts of wind and solar assets instalied

Pearson is cerufied aganst 1ISO14001 in the UK and
Australia Our Hudson Street offices in New Yoric
became the fatest to secure LEED cerufication, an
nternationally recognised mark of environmental
excellence in faclities management Pearson occupies
740,000 square feetn LEED cernfied buldings

Pearson invests u forest-based carbon offsets for any
part of our dimate footprint we cannot reduce or avord
through other means Since 2009, this programme has
seen over | 000 hectares of forest protected in Canada,
Colombia Costa Rica, the US and the UK

Our approach to managing other materally important
emissions —such as embedded carbon dioxide in
purchased raw matenals as well as business travel by ar
are detaited in our 2014 Environment report

Green power

N 22%

Our target was to reduce our oper anoni enussions
by 20% the end of 2045 basced on a 2009 base yeat
We aclweved & 22% reducuon in 2004 inpart due 16
the crcaron of Pengun Random House

ISOH400I

Peatson s cernfied agunst [5O1400(
m the UK and Austraha

100%

We mantamed our record of
pur.hasing 100% of the elecwcity
we use from green power

IMAGE REMOVED
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5. Our performance g
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Materal use forests Our socal impact ranking “a
As a purchaser of papel and newsprint for our books, One way we assess how we are doing as a responsible
magazines and newspapers, security and sustainability business Is ta maintain our positon i key indices and
of supply arc very impartant to us Paper use remains benchmarks of social responsibiliy
a priority environmental issue and we continue to focus S S Tl
an sustanability seurcing and being more efficent mhow Indexfyear 2011 201 2013 2014
Wwe use paper We Bow Jones Glebal Gold Sever Bronze o -
Sustamability Sector Class Class Class S
First adopted and pubhicly disclosed our paper Indices feader 2
environmental sourcing policy 1n 2003 BITC Corporate Plavnum  Platnum Platinum Platnum Ed
Responsibility Index (retained) ({retained) 8
Collect and map data on the forest of origin, certficaton et i 2
nivsionin
systerns applicable and recycled content for the papers FTSE4Good Yes Yes Yes Yes 2
—_—— m

we purchase

Talk about our guidelines with aur key paper suppliers
when we meet and as part of our contract discussions

Eiscuss our approach to paper purchasing with
customers, environmental groups investor analysts and
other interested parues

Hold Forest Stewardstup Counci (FSC) chain of custody
ceruficavon allowing booles o carry the FSC label for our
businesses in North Amerca

Are members of ndustry bodies dedicated to responsible
forest management We have been members of the
WWEF forest and wrade network for over a decade and
are afounder member of PREPS — the publishers database
for responsible environmental paper sourcing - which we
use across our global busiress

Visit pearson com/environment to learn more ©

Pearson continues to score highly in the Dow jones
Sustamability Indices rating For the last decade, we have
been included in the DJSI World index which includes only
the top 10% of comparies m each industry and our bronze
dass rating recognises companies within 10% ofthe
sectorleader

We welcome feedback on this aspect of the
company as we do on any other Please e-mail
peter hughes@pearson com with any questions
orideas you may have

Global Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions data (Metric tonnes of CO,e)

Criendaryear  Cafendu yea Calendaryear  Calendar yesr
Emissions from 2013 2014 Intensity ratios 2013 2014
Combusuon of fued and operation of 30,170 25,027 Scopes | and I (rannes CO )/ 281 26 6
factities {GHG Protocol scope 1) 17% sales revenue £ (millons) 33
Electnuty heat steam and cooling Scopes | and 2 {tonnes CO.e)FTT e 37

nss48 {04,715
purchased {or ownuse (GHG Piotovol %
scope 2)

Totaf 125,742

<%

145,718

Carbenemlisans Thescope 1 indsvope 2 carbon em ssio s an calcu sted
accorlyg b The Greenheuse Gas Prosueo’ Coene e Accountmp, and

Renor tog Standard (Revied Ediwo i tagether witn me latest #n, sson factors
fmr wrecops se d sources induding butnotdantsd re GEFR A Tieime natio !
Erergy Agency 3nd the US Emmvironiventa! Pom ct'on Agency Mo materzl seoce
1 o1 senpe 2ot ss oislive been el dediromme repor o d GHG em 85 ong

mo change
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Impact:

Introducing our flagship campaign

Project Literacy

Pearson 1s committed to maximising
our impact through community
investment. in 2014 we reviewed our
approach and believe that we can
malke more of a difference by focusing
and campaigning on a single 1ssue that
has the potential to transform lives.

A clearfocus will allow us to inspire our people 1o get
mnvolved, to harness our products and expertise and

to build partnerships and programmes that make a
measurable difference

in June 2014, the Pearson board approved increasing
literacy rates worldwide as our anchor soaal impact
campargn issue for the next five years

Why literacy?

As we fight to end poverty, literacy s crecal With words
we can make sense of the world around us. pursue life
changing opportuntties and stand up for the nghts of
othersto do the same

Despite rapid progress in the decade prior, diiteracy rates
for adults and children worldw:de have hovered at around
800 miflion since 2000, with 78] million peopie iiterate
today Of those, 123 million are young people under the
age of 24

Giobal demand for hteracy

We know too that basic literacy 1s only part of the story
The skills that indiwduals and economies need to progress
and to pr osper grow mereasmgly complex in the face

of technology Funcuonalilliteracy costs the world

%1 {9 triflion per year - equivalent to the GDP of South
Korea or Mexico

Campaign goals

Project Literacy sets out to help make this the last
generation to be held back by poor Iiteracy The new
Sustanable Development Goals, due to be sighed at the
United Nations General Assembly m September 2015,
will set ambitious goals for educanion for the next 15 years
We beheve thatitis within reach to ensure that by 2030,
every child born can grow up to be a literate adult
Furthermore, achieving this will be core to the success

of the other development goals

Pearson's contribution

Literacy is an area of need where we see clear overlap
between the opportunty for impact and Pearson's
products, expernse and networks We have significant
expenence in providing resources to communities around
the world that help improve reading and writing slafls

Ovur longstanding heriage in publishing and the history

of our commurity investment makes ending global
ilhteracy stand out for Pearson as an area n which we

can contnbute a mix of preduct, content, employee ume,
energy and interest to drive impact

IMAGE REMOVED

60m  /8Im

chifdren are notn prmary school  peopfe a ¢ dliterare soday

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED
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We envisage Pearson s contribution in three broad
categories

We have a role to play in energising the debate

around teracy Ve will act to idenafy, celebrate
and support good practice to scale, invest in research
1o uncover new opportunities and to mcrease the
prominence of iteracy in national and inter naconal
policy discourse

We have a responsibility to activate our own business
assets and influence towards the thematic and
geographic areas where we see Opportunity 1o improve
hiteracy We will place an emphasis on supporting our
employees to parucipate and contribute to literacy
instratives around the world, with the aim of launching
a number of these opportunities midway into 2015

We will invest in partnerships that pursue new

nnovauons in hteracy Where relevant, our product
development will also take account of and seek to address
barriers presented by poor literacy

Progress in 2014

Our Project Literacy campatgn kicked offin late
Septemberwith a global isterung and awareness rarsing
exerase hosted on projectiteracy com We invited
indmaduals and orgarisations already working to
smprove hteracy to tughlight publicly on the website

the programmes and projects which nspire them

Takinig ficeracy to the next level

WWe also asked that they share issues whet e increased
action 1s needed and contribute to our goals by issuing
a challenge to us To date, we've recerved 181 inspiring
hteracy submissions via the website

These projects and challenges are fundamental to
informing the new actvities, nvestmenits and partnerships
which we will be announcing in the course of 2015 and
beyond Over ume, projectditeracy comwill actas the
one-stop shop for the campaign as a whole -~ sharing
research, partnerstups and reporung onimpact

Inlate 2014 we kicked off a first partnershup with GOOD
1s GOOD The partnerstup has begun by issuing hteracy
related stories and engaging non-profit organisations who
understand the challenges of hiteracy ltwill also bring
together Pearson employees and focal communities 1n
volunteer wark

Literacy is an issue on which many different not for profit,
community and commercial organisattons are already
worlang hard to make a difference As part ofthis
campaign we will bring the private and public sectors
together with a single ambition to accelerate progress
and test new ideas

Visit projectiiteracy com to learn more €

Qur new sacial impact campaign -

Project Literacy — bunlds on exasting
community actvity

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

fumpstart s Read for 1the Record saw more
than 2 3 mifion adufts and chuldien jom
topethers 10 read Bunny Cokes by bestselling
autber and Wustrator, Rosermary Wefls

IMAGE REMOVED

Read for my School doubled its parucpation
rates on the previous yeat wath 212 000 pupils
across England together reading 876 000
books The compeanon encourages pupily
o read as many hooks 4s possible in 3 twa
month pertod drawing from an enhne free
{ibrary of books offred by Pearson and
Penguin Randon House

Fot 2015 we wili review how we reportan our community partierships in ight of our new appreach

We helped Book Aud fnternational suppart
the development of ibrar s in schools and
commuinites acs oss sub Saharan Afnca
We were the [arges. dono gwang a tdhed of
the 1 millionbools supphed by the chanty
s yoar
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Social innovation

Extending access to quality education to the poorest and
mostmx ginahsed families is a chaflenge, partcularly n
the most deprived countnes of the world Pearsonis
committed to playing our part and 1s active in helping
shape and inform the global debate around education
and learning policy VWe represent the private sector
and chantable foundaucns on the board of the
Global Partnership for Educauon (GPE) Along with
representanves from developing countries and donaor
governments, the GPE aims to strengthen education
systems in developing countrres We also continue to
champion the role of the private sector in educauon
as a founder member of the Global Business Coalitton
for Educauen

Learn more about these activities at

© www globalpartnership org

© www ghe-aducation org

Key to our socral nnovauon approach ts our belief that
conwmercal solutions can acceler ate access to quahty
education Uncovering, developing and scaling solutions,
especially in places where educauon standards fall

weil behind the best in the world, canrequire us to
challenge the way we think about our business

Pearson Affordable Learning Fund (PALF)

Commercaial sofuuons might involve new business models,
mvesting i new technology, or lesting innovative:
partnerships or distribution channels

Soctal innovation 1n practice ~ the Pearson Affordable
Learning Fund

The Fund launched in 2012 with $!5 million of capital

It supports educanion for students from the poorest

and most marginalised famites and sets improvements

in learning outcomes and market-based returns as
condittons of continued mvestment The Fund has already
invested n nnovative education startups in South Africa,
Ghana, India, and the Pivippines Half ofthe Fund 1s
currently invested in companies with female CECs

in January 2015 we announced a new $50 mithon
mvestment, through which we expect to reach milions
of addinonal students and young people by 2020

In addition - by prowviding financal backing, good
governance, and operational support to education
entrepreneurs — the Fund aims to foster and scale
innovation throughout Africa, Asiz and Latin America

it 15 also enabling innovation from wiich governments
can learn, the cost per student in the schools in the Fund
portfalic is generally lower than in government schools

In December 2013 the Pearson Affordable
Lem omg Found made « $300 000 investment
in Avant Founded i 2010 Avanu helps

e prepare szudents from {ow iIncome:
backgrounds i india {those with an annuat
farnuly intemie of $5 000 o below) for college
entrance exaim, focusing on the highly
compentve Lareer paths of engineenng and
medicmne Avants appi oach emphasises peer
tearning which walees the form of smalt group
work and concept rests Alongside our finncial
investment we have supported Avann by
reviewing then curnoudunm and content teacher

Learn more at avanufeliows org o

vraming and helping o appoint a new. boad
and imple ment a new gaver nance strugture
The results thus far have beoen extremely
impressive - aver 40% ol Avana’s students
placed s the top (% onrhe i[T JEE examination
0 2043 and 2014 wath {00% placing wn the top
20% The ifT entrance exam s considered the
world's mrst competinve with over 50U 000
students taking the exam cachyear fora
univel sty system with onty {0 000 annua!
seals Avanu costs are less than 25% of those
tradimonal classes wath students charged only
$£30per month

IMAGE REMOVED
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Governance overview

from Glen Moreng, Chairman

tMAGE REMOVED

Clear board roles and governance
processes offer balance and
experience to our strong, focused
executive team, helping to drive
strategic and performance progress.

in this Governance section

LEADERSHIP & EFFECTIVENESS p60-69 ©
ACCOUNTABILITY p70-77 Q
ENGAGEMENT p78-81 ©
REMUNERATION p82-106 @
ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES plo7-112 @

Dear shareholders,

As you may have already seen elsewhere in this report,
2014 was a year in which we completed the restructure of
Pearson, laying the foundations to strengthen our position
as the world's largest education company and embedding
eflicacy into all we do | would hie to take this opportunity
to share with you some insights as to how our board

and governance framewor k has operated and evolved
throughout the year to complement our transformaton
Learn more about our Transformaten on p4-9 Q)

Governance principles

Our role and activities As a board we organise ourworl
around four major themes where we believe we can add
value governance, strategy. business performance and
people Qurboard calendar and agenda prowide ample
trme to focus on these themes and we have setoutsome
examples of the business considered by the board, as well
as the governance pracuces ta which we adhere, onthe
pages that follow Learn more about Board meetings and
acovities on p63 @

UK Corporate Governance Code This year, asis required,

we are reporting aganst the 2012 edition of the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the Code) The board
beheves that during 2014 the company was in ful
compliance with the Code See page 73 for our positron
onaudit tendermg and rotavon A detaled account of the
provisions of the Code can be found on the FRC's website
atwww fre org uk and we encourage readers to view

our comphance schedule on the company website at
www pearson com/governance

Board and management

The Pearson board consists of senior executive
management alongside a strong team of pon-executive
directors drawn from successful international businesses
and education insututtons with experience of corporate
surategy. education, emerging markets, technology and
consumer marketing

Board changes As 1s best pracuce, we continually

assess and refresh the board to ensure we maintainan
appropnate balance and diversity of slalls and experience
We will soon bid farewell to two trusted advisers,

David Arculus and Ken Hydon, who have signalied




thewr intentions to stand down from the board at the
upconing Annual General Meeung (AGM) having each
served the company for nine years We will rruss thewr
wise counset and rgout as chairmen of the remunerauon
and audit committees respectively, and we thank them
for then set vice Lo Pearson

During the past year we have also welcormed two new
non-executive directors to our board Elizabeth Corey
joined us in May 2014 and in january 2015 we welcomed
Tum Score tam delighted to say that Elizabeth and Tim
are tobe appointed as our new remuneration and audit
committee chawrmen respectively, following the AGM mn
April 2015 Between them, Elizabeth and Timbring a
weaith of business, finance and technology expenence
to Pearson’s board, and will no doubt contribute fresh
perspectives to the board's deliberaucns Learn more
about our Board of directors on pé0-6! °

Board and executive structure and balance Our board
consists primanly of non-executive directors, who

bring a strong independent viewpoint, complementing
the execunve perspectves of john Fallon and Robin
Freestone In addition, we mvite the Pearson executive to
attend a number of the board's sesstons to bring nsights
and thoughts from across the business Learn more about
the Pearson executive on p9 €

Board evaluation During 2014 we undertookan
externally-faciitated board evaluaton process As always,
this assists us in identifying opporturites 1o refine our
processes, but the overall findings reflected a board which
funcuons well, 1s fitfor purpose and which has a strong
sense of collegiality and support — something which has
served us well through oo two-year transformatun
Learn more about the Board cvaluation on p67 @

Accountabthty See full secuon on p70-77 @

Throughout our ransformaton, our audit committee
has played a vital role in overseemng both risk and
reportng matters Ourrefocused business has seen the
introduction of a new financal reportng structure along
the ines of our pnonary geographic marteets, and our
stuft towards digital, services and ermerging markets

has brought new opportunities and risks ~ strategic,
operatonal and finanaal Learn more about our Pnnapal
nisks and uncertamtes on p34 @

Section 4 Lo 1 henee 5%

Engagement See full section on p78-81 €

Engagement with shareholders and society as a whole s
key to Pearson's mission to help people make progress in
theirlives through learning Duning the year. recognising
this, we formalised our reputation & responsibility
committee, headed by Vivienne Cox, whose focus
mcludes our reputatron with stakeholders (induding
investors and the education community} and oversight
of Pearson’s public commitments to soaety We also
welcomed a number of shareholders to our Annual
General Meetng which, as always, was a valuable
opportunity for our board and serior management to
respond to shareholders’ views and questions

Remuneration See full secton on p82-106 Q)

Qur remuneration pohcy was reviewed last year to align
with the company's strategy and organisation and was
approved by shareholders at the 2014 AGM We continue
to operate executive rermuneraton in line with the
approved palicy and at present do not anticipate seeking
shareholder approval for our policy again unul required to
do so atthe 2017 AGM

This year's report on directors’ remunerauon refers to
the changes we made in line with policy in 2014 to better
ahgn executive director compensation with the interests
of our shareholders and, 1o put our report into context,
contains a summary of the approved directors’
remuneration policy report from 2013 which is not
subject to avote The reportalso deals with the signdficant
minerity vote against the 2013 annual remuneranon
report which the company received at the 2014 AGM

Conciusion

| hope this report clearty sets out how your company is
run, and how we align governance and our board agenda
with the strategic direction of Pearson We always
welcome questians or comments from shareholders,
esther via our website (www pearson com) orin person
atour Annuzl General Meetng

IMAGEREMCVED

Glen Moreno Chairman
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| eadership & effectiveness

Board of directors

Clhatrman

Executrve Director s

{MAGE REMOVED

Glen Moreno Charman
aged 71 appointed | Ocroba 2005

Chanman of the nommatien committas and
membes of the remunerauon commitiee

Glen has more than faur decades of
experience n bustness and finance and

1s currenily non-executive director and
chasrman designate of Virgin Money Holdings
{UK) pk and non-executive director of
Fidelity Intern suonai Limited Heisalsoa
seruar adwiser 1o HSBC and charman of

the Global Leadership and Technoiogy
Exchange leadershup board Previously

Glen was deputy chau man of The Financial
Reporting Council Limited in the UK,

deputy charman and semor independent
director at Lloyds Banking Group plc semor
independent director of Man Group plec and
acung charman of UK Financial Investments
Lirnited the campany set up by HM Treasu y
to manage the government s shareholdings
in UK banks

iMAGE REMOVED

John Failon Civief execunive
aged 52 appomnted 3 October 2012

John became Peai son s chief executive on

{ January 2013 Since 2008 he had been
responsible for the compiny's cducavon
busmesses outsde North Amertca and
amember of the Pearson management
comnputtee Hejomed Pearsonin 1997

as dwrecton of communicanons and was
appenied presudent of Pearsor Inc , arole
he combined with his communcations
responsibilives 102000 In 2003 hewas
appomred CEQ of Pearson s educanonat
publishing businesses for Furope Middle
Fast & Africa {EMA) and g adually took on

a broaden international educauon brief

Prior 1o joiming Peai son John was direetor of
carporate afairs at Powergen plc where he
was also a member of the company s exeautve
commuttee Larkerm his carecr fjohn held
senior public policy and communications refes
n UK locat government. He (s an adwisory
board member of the Global Business
Caizhtion for Educanon

Non-executive Directors

IMAGE REMOVED

Robin Freestene Chief finantial officer
aged 56 appomnted 12 June 2006

Robin s experience i management and
accounting mncludes a previous rale as group
financtal controffer of Amersham ple (now
part of General Electric) and semor financial
posiions with iCl plc Zeneca and Henl el

UK He was also a non -executive dsrectorand
founder shareholder of eChem Limited untl]
May 2014 when the company was soid Robin
jonned Pearson in 2004 as deputy chief financial
officer and berame chief financal officer

n une 2006 He qualified as a chartered
accowmant wath Touche Ross (now Detoitre),
and currenty sits on the Adwisory Group of
the ICAEW's Finanaial Reporting Faculty and
was unil December20i4 chawman of The
Hundred Gioup of Finance Directars Healo
sits on the CBl s Econarmic Growih board

Pearson board members
bring a wide range of
expernence, skills

and backgrounds which

IMAGE REMOVED

¥en Hydon Non-cxecutive director
aged 70 appointcd 28 February 2006

iMAGE REMOVED

Josh Lewis Non-execuuve director
aged 52 apponted | March 2031

complement our strategy.
Dugical experience
SOO/ IMAGE

° REMOVED
Emerging market
experence ‘MAGE
25% REMOVED
Educaton/learning
SeCror experience IMAGE
50% REMOVED

Note Graphic llustrates expenence
of non executive directors

Chairmanof the audit commitree and
member of the nomination wnd remuneranon
Lommitiees

Ken's expenence inlinance and business
includes workingin the electronics retat
consumet products and healthcare sectors
e 1snon execunve director of Rechin
Bendaser Group pit. one of the world s
{eading bt snded consumer goods Lompanies
nhealth hygiene and home Hesalsoanon
executive dnector of Merbn Entertainmeras
e, the world s second largest wigion
atrracnon operator From 2004 1o 2073 he
wisanon execunve directol of Tesco ple
Previmwsly Ken was ctvel financial officer

of Vordafone Gr oup ple, the mufuinationat
telecormmunications company and financal
director of subsidranes of Racal Electronics

Memberof the nommnaton and remuneration
committees

Josh s experience spans finance, education
and the development of digital enterprises

He 1s the lounder of Satmon Rwer Capial LLC,
a New Yort based privite equay/ventue
capial firm focused on technology enatded
busnesses in cdutanen finandal services

and other sectors Overa 2 year careerm
actve prncpal nvesting, he has been mvoived
m abroad range of successful companses
mcluding several proneerng enterprmes

i the educanon secior (naddinon hehas
tong been acuve m the non p1ofis educaton
sector wath asoaanons mouding New

Leader s, Mew Classrooms and the Bill &
Melmda Gates Foundaton Heisalso anon
oxecunive director of eVesiment and Axioma
both financal datatechnology compamet

and Parchment zi: edutation credentals
Imanagement Lompany



Non-execuuve Directors
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IMAGE REMOVED

David Arculus Non-executive director
aped 68 appointed 28 Febr uary 2006

Chairman of the 1 crmineranon coimmittos
and member of the audit and nominaunn
commitens

Dawd has experence inbanlung,
telecommunicauons and publishmg in along
tareerinbusimess Currentiy he s chasrman of
Enerpy UK and Hassm Asset Management
and s 1 memberof counal of Cranfield
Universiy Dawd s previous 1cles include the
¢ has manship of Aldermore Bank plc Numis
Corporavonpl O plc Severn Trent plc
IPC Group and the adwisory board of the
Bratish Library 1s well as chief operanng
officer of United Business Media plc group
managng director of EMAP ple and a non-
trecutwe duecror of Telefonica § A Dawd
set ved from 2002 10 2006 2 churman of the
UK government s Batrer Regulivon Tash
Foree, which worked onicdugngburdens
on busness

IMAGE REMOVED

Elizabeth Corley, CBE Non-executive directo
aged 58 appointed | May 2014

IMAGE REMQVED

Vivienne Cox Senior independent director
aged 55 apponted | January 2012

Member of the nomination and s ¢ muneranen
committees

Chzabethis chief execuuve officer of Allanz
Glubalinvestors one of the world's leading
investment organisations She was previously
at Mot Lynch fnvestment Manager s and
Coopers & Lybrand Elizabeths amember

of the board of the Investment Assouation
amember of the European Secunties and

Mar kets Authorizy s stakeholder group an
advisory councl member of TheCityUK and

s hon orecutive drector of the Financial
Reportng Counetlinthe UK Shewsalsoa
member of the minagement committee of the
Forum of Furapean Asset Managers a member
of the CFA Futwn e of Finance Crumciland a
member of the Committee of 200 Ebzabeth
was appomnted Cormmander of the Order of
the Biansh Empire (CBE} inthe 2015 New Year
Honours for st rvices to the hnancial sevtor
She s alse alellow of the Royal Society of Aris
and an accomphished crime ficnian author

Chawman of the reputation &1 gsponsibilivy
comrmtee and member of the audit
nomyinaten and remuneration cammilices

Vivienne h1s wide experience m enargy
natural resources and business inmovatton
She wor ked for BP plc for1 28 years in Biitun
and Continentat Europe i posts mcduding
evecutive vice president and chief executive
of BP s gas power and enewnbles business
and 1ty alternative energy unit, Sheis non-
execunve director of Stena Internauonal

1nd of ener gy company BG Graup ple

and chairman of the supervisory board of
Villoure ¢ which supplies wbular systems
for the encrgy mdustry She s also lead
mdependent director atthe UK Department
for International Development Vivienne s a
commissionet of the Arrparis Comnussion
which was set up by the UK government 1o
examine any recum emcnts for addional UK
POt capacity

IMAGE REMOVED

Linda Lorimer Non-execurive director
aped 62 appeinted | July 2003

IMAGE REMOVED

Harish Manwam Non-executive director
aged 6! apponted F Ociober 2013

IMAGE REMOVED

Tim Score Non-executive director
aged 54 appotnied | January 2005

Member of the audit, nominaton and
r-putation & responsibility cornmittees

Member of the nominaton and reputation &
1esponsirlity commitzees

Member ofthe audit and nomination
committees

Linda has 3 deep background m education
strategy adrnn stration and pubhc affairs She s
vice president for Global & Strategc imeauves
at Yale University where her dunes inrlude
oversghe of Yale s Office of internanonal

Affars and Office of Dyrtal Dissermunauen,
Ovet a 30 year careerinbgder educanon

<he bas been responsble for tmany of Yales
adrmumsiranve services including the umversity s
puble commumeanons, alumntrelations and
Office of Sustainabidny Previousty Linda served
a: president of Randalph Macon VWomar s
Coflage in Vingraa and had eariier worked at
Yate in neveral sentor roles including assochate
provost. She is anon executve director of Save
the: Children (US) and was chaw of the board

of the Assocauon of Amencan Colleges and
Lisversizes

Harsh kas an exiensive barkground m emerging
rarbels and senicl expenence N a successiul
global organisation He was previously chief
optraung officer of consumer products
compaiy Umlevar havingjotmed the company
in {976 a5 a markeung management tratnee

n fndia, and held servor managementroles
around sthe world mduding North America
Latm America, Europe Afrtcaand Asi Hows
non execuave charman of Hindustan Urlaver
Lmuedmindia and senc. on tebnardsof
‘Wiyrlpnel Carporanon Qualcommine and
MNiefsen N V feis also onthe board of the
{ndian School ofBusness and the Econosmic
Developmen: Board (EDB) of Singhpore

Tur bas been chvef financal officer of

ARM Holdings ple the world's leading
semuconductor IP company for [3years
with extensive experic nee ol the technology
s ceor and m both developed and emerging
mazrhers pa tcutarly Clwna Hesan
expenenced non exetutwe drector and
currentdy sits on the boar d of The British
Land Company plc He served onthe board
of MNanonal Express Group pic from 2005 1o
208 ndudig tune s iptemin chanman and
5ix years as the sentorindependentdireclor
Earlrertn tus careet Tun held semor finance
rotes with Rebus Group, Witham B ard

BTR plc and others
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|_eadership & effectiveness

Board governance

Board of directors

Composition of the board The board currently consists
of the charman, Glen Moreno two executive director s
including the chief executive, John Fallon, and eight
independent non-executive directors Following the
2015 AGM, the board will conust of six independent
non-executive directors, following the retirement of
Dawid Arculus and Ken Hydon,

Chairman and chief executive There s a defined spht
of responsibilives between the chairman and the chuef
executive The roles and responsibliues of the chairman
and chief executve are clearly defined, set outin writng
and reviewed and agreed by the board annually

Chairman's significant commutments During the course
of 2014, the ¢hairman stepped down from s posiuon as
deputy chan man of the Financial Reportng Counail, and
with effect from t january 2015 has been appomnted asa
non executive director and chairman designate of Virgin
Money Holdings (UK) plc

Independence of directoi s Al of the non-executve
directors who served dui ing 2014 were considered by the
board te be independent for the purpases of the Code

The board reviews the independence of each of the non
execuuve dir ectors annually This includes reviewing therr
extet nal appointments and any potential confhcts of
interest as well as assessing thewr indmidual crcumstances
i order to ensure that there are no refauonships or
aircurmstances biely to affect thew character or judgement.
in addition to this review, each of the non-executive
directors 1s asked annually to complete an independence
questionnaire to sabisfy requirements arising from
Pearson's US lisung

The board has in particular considered the independence
of David Arculus and Ken Hydon who have each now
served for nine years ltis the intention of both David

and Ken to1etire as directors at the 2015 AGM, but
nevertheless the board belreves that both directors
continue to provide sufficient challenge to the
dehberations of the board as a whole, and that they are
sufficenty ndependent i character and judgement to
conunue to serve as ndependent non-executive directors
for the remainder of their terms

Key roles

ROLE MAME RESPONSIBILITY

Chatrman Glen Moreno The chairman is pnmartly responstble for the leadership of the board and
ensuring tts effecuveness

Chief John Fallon The chief executive Is responsible for the operational management of the

executive business and for the devetopment and implementation of the company's
strategy as agreed by the board and the Pearson execuuve

Senior Vivienne Cox The senior independent director’s role includes meeting regularly with

independent the chairman and chief executive to discuss speafic issues, as well asbeing

director avaitable to shareholders generally if they should have concerns that have

Gendet spht of the board

& Men H B Under Iyrire i

W Womos 3 IMAGE B 306 years IMAGE
REMOVED T — . REMOVED

Frpurs 3 3530 31 Lr Lomber 2004

Follovrng 2085 AGHM spbiwlibe o 3

not been addressed through the normal channels

The serior independent director has responsibility for appraising the
performance of the chairman, including in refation to the effectveness

of the nomination cornmuttee, as part of the annual board evaluation
process The senior ndependent director would be expected to charr
the norunation comnuttee i the event that 1t was considenig succession
to the rale of chairman of the board

Length of tenure
of non-executive dnecrors

Fipuoms asat 3L Decembar 2004
Forowrng 2013 AGH vatiowiF e 4 2 0




Confhicts of interest Under the Companies Act 2006
{the Act). directors have a statutory duty to avoid conflicts
of interest with the company The company’s articles of

Secton 4 G vrnane: 63

scheduted meenng The relevant director cannot vote on
an authorisation resofution, or be countad m the quorum
i refation to the resolunon relating to tas/her confhict or

assocation (Arodes) allow the directors to authonse
conflicts of interest The company has established a
procedure to identify actual and potenual conflicts of
interest, including ali directorships or other appointrments
1o, o relatonships with, companies which are not part
of the Pearson Group and which could give rise to actual
or potential conflicts of nterest Once noufied to the
chairman or company secretary, such potential conflicts
are considered for authonsation by the board atits next

Board meetings duting the year 2014

potenuai conflict The board reviews any authorisations

granted onan annual basis

Board meetings

The board held six full scheduled meetings in 2014, wath
discusstons and debates focused on the ey strategic
issues facing the company Major items covered by the
board in 2014 are shown in the table below

Feb 2014

Londan

Apr20i4 [l jun2014

London Wiashington DC

Oct 2014

Jul 2014

Lohdon London

Dec 2014

MNew York

3
Z
4
[
»
-
[4]
m
z
m
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» Annualleview »Focus on T »Brand 1eputatiun > Update on » Approval of
of amhorsed forthcoming AGM 2 and LIS Pearson COMAMTIEC W IS
conficrs of nd review of « gevernment polcy fuundation of reference
nteresy shareholder msues %= Kendmore unp78 )y Enterprise risk
3 Review of divisian E management
ol 1csponsbilines r Teview
between chairman s ¥ Approval of
and chief executive * schedule of
authonty limts
STRATEGY

» 2014 operatng »Updaie onnew » Overview of » Strategic St ategic offsite 3 Penguin Rundom
phn orpanisanonand US business plan update mecting focucing House review
> Review of product strategy ¥ Systems supply on 3 Business portfolio
transfor mation appoach chain and ? Geograplues and and t ansaction
1 date and phins »Pearson procurernent Lines of Business update
for2014 Tachnoiogy - view Sirategic reviews
from new chel mncluding post
in‘ormat.on officet aequisinon
reviews
» Focus sesstons -
Financial Times
and UK educauon
» Technology
deep dve
PERFORMANCE
¥ 2013 report ) Reviewr of nvestor » bterum esules and » Tradwg update 3> Th ading update
and accounts relanons strategy divsdrnd approvil and p1 ehiunary
and divigernd and shareptice view of 2015
1ecommendation performance
» Trading, update
PEOPLL
SRewview > Rysing Stars » Organisationat 3 Rising Star« » Talent review
remuneration brealdast design and breakfast
committee Read more structure Read more
revonvmiendations on pb5 o phs

I addimon .ons sx forr sl meetnps the board held one further mesting ip Feliruary 2014 wo approve the 2013 prebminsry resu'ts.and ta slee s deramnnieonthiat
me 20(3 Anauai report was fair balarced and ynderstindable The board also undertook deusssions 0 oughout the year, as requrred 1o cons derihe progrose and
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[Leadership & effectiveness
Board governance conunued

The role and business of the board

The board is deeply engaged in developing and measuring
the company s {ong-term strategy, performance and
value We belteve that it adds a valuable and diverse set
of external perspectives and that robust, open debate
about significant business sssues brings a vatuable
addinonal discipline to major decsions

A schadule of formal matters reserved for the board's
decrsion and approval 1s avilable on our website. at
WwWW pearson com/governance

The board receives umely, regular and necessary finanaal,
management and other nformation to fulfilits duties
Comprehensive board papers are arculated to the board
and committee member s at least one week in advance
of each meeting and the board recerves regularreports
firom the chuef executive In addiion to meeung papers,

a library of current and histaric corporate informauon is
made avalable to directors electronically to support the
board's deasion-making process Directors can obtain
mdependent professional advice, at the company’s
expense, in the performance of their duties as directors
Al directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary

Non-executive directors meet with local sentor
management every ume board and committee meetings
are held at the locations of operating companies such

as duning the board's 2014 trip to Washington, DC

Ths allows the non-executive directors to share their
expenence and expertise with senior managers as well
as allowing them to better understand the abihues and
motivatiens of seryor management, which i wimn will
help them assess the company's prospects and plans

for succession

Standing committee

A standing commuttee of the board has been established
to approve certan ordinary course of business items such
as banking matters, guarantees, intra-Group transacuions
and routine matters relating to employee share plans

The commuttee has wnitten terms of reference reviewed
and appraved each year, which clearly set outits authanty
and duties These can be found on the company website
at www pearson com/governance -

Culture and values of the board

As part of its annual evaluation, the board consideted its
own culture and dynamics, and how these have evolved
alongside the wider transformation

The board agreed that it has a reat sense of collegrality,
with an open and transparent approach where dwversity
of opinion and challenge are encouraged and welcomed
As awhole and at an indmidual level, the board feels
wholly committed to Pearson’s values and russion, and
throughout 2014 has received regutar updates on the
transformation as it has progressed Learn more about
our Board evaluatron on p67 (3]

Board attendance

The following table sets out the attendance of the company’s
directors at scheduled board meenngs during 2014

Board
meetings
attended

Chairman

Glen Morenc 6/6
Executve directors

John Fallon 6/6
Robin Freestone 6/6
MNon-executive directors

Dawvid Arculus 6/6
Elizabeth Corley* 4/4
Vivienne Cox 6/6
Ken Hydon 6/6
Josh tewis 6/6
Linda Lorimer 6/6
Harish Manwan 6/6_

* Apprapted on | May 1014




Succession planning

The board considers oversight of succession planning -
not only at board and executive management lovel but
for all key positions throughout the busimess —as one of
its prime responsiblines At board level, the primary
focus in the latter part of the year has been to «denufy
'switable candidates for the role of chuef financial officer

The company has formal conungency plans in place for
tempoi ary absence of the chief execunive for health or
otherreasons The matter of chief executive succession
15 a standing item for discussion and review by the
chairman and chief executive annually Succession
planning for the board and chair are also undertaken

annually

Talent review

The board dedicated part of its December 2014

meeting to reviewmng chief executive succession and the
leadership talent pipeline at Pearson In preparation for
that, the Pearson executive team undertook a rigorous
talent review programme assessing performance and
potential of its top |00 executives {their direct reports)
as well as the strength of the succession pipeline for thew
own roles and thetr team’s roles

All members of the executive team aiso took partina
multi-rater feedback process (360 feedback process),
recewing feedback from duect reports, colleagues
and the chief executive on key leadership trates and
behaviours

At the board meeting, the board discussed chief
executive succession and together they reviewed
the 360 summary reports for the executives, as
well as overall themes from the 2004 employee
engagement su vey

Thus discussion was fallowed by a session on the

broader talent pracess, looking into succession for each
executive role, analysing diversity stauistcs and discussing
key capabilities that will be crvurcal for the effectve

delivel y of our strategy (pedagogy, technology and
product management)

As aresult of this process, we are desigming structured
development plans for the top 100 executives i the
orgamsation and starting a deeper assessment of our
capabifiaes in the areas of pedagogy. technology and
product management

Section 4 G runpenee 65

RISING STARS

tn addition to the board’s
established succession planning and
talent review process for senior
roles throughout the business,

it was deaided in 2014 to intiate

a sertes of Rising Stars sessions

SSANISNE dNO

The first of these sessions took place over informal
breakfasts during each of the board's offsite meetngs
in Washington, DC and London The purpose of the
sessions 15 to provide the board with the opportunity
1o meet a cross-section of junior or nud-level
colleagues from the host country who have been
identified by seruor executives as showing

real promise The board’s feedback on these
sessions in 2014 was overwhelmingly positive -

they valued the opportunity to meet and

hear from colleagues from all levels,

finding the sessions rich and

interesting, and taking away a

clearer sense of Pearson’s

working culture

Rising Stars
gender spht

IMAGE REMOVED

; Malc 475
B Fo nate 51%
as a3l Decomber 2014

“The Rising Stars offered the directors
incredible insights into the worlangs of the
company's enterprises These menand
women are a key part of the future of the
company, and we were mpressed by their
sagacity and by their passion for the mission
of Pearson - and by their good ideas for our
collective future ™

tinda Lorimer Non-executive director
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Leadership & effectiveness
Board governance continued

Directors’ traning and sinduction

Board committees

Dhrectors recetve a significant bespoke induction
programme and a range of information about Pearson
whien they join the board This includes backgr ound
mformation on Pear son and details of board procedures,
directors’ responsibilizes and various governance related
1ssues, including procedures for dealing n Pearson shares
and their legal abliganons as directors The inductron
also includes a seres of meetings with members of the
board, the Pearson executive and sentor management,
presentatons regarding the busimess from serior
executives and a briefing on Pearson’s investor refations
programme The induction programmes for Ekizabeth
Corley and Tim Score are ongoing, taiored to their
specific nterests, and relevant to the board committees
they have joined

All directors recerve traiming in the form of presentations
about the company’s operations through board meetings
hetld at operational locations and by encouraging the
directors to visitlocal operations and management as and
when their schedule allows including of they are wraveliing
1O a country or region on non-Pearson business The
company secretary and general counsel, i copjunction
wath the Group's advisers, morutor legal and governance
developments and update the board on such matters as
agreed with the charman Directors can also make use of
external courses

Dhrectors' mdemnites

In accordance with secuon 232 of the Act the company
grants an indemnity to all of ts directors The ndemnity
relates to costs incurred by them in defending any avil or
crirninal proceedings and in connection with an apphcation
for reliefunder sections 661(3) and (4) or secuons 1157(1)-
(3) of the Act so long as monies are repaid not (ater than
when the outcome becomes final if

{1} they are convicted in the proceedings
(1) judgment s given against them or
{u) the court refuses to grant the relief sought

As permitted by Pearson's arades of associauon, the
directors have the benefit of an indemnity which s a
quahfying third party indemnity provision as defined
by section 234 of the Act The indernmity was ih force
thr oughout the last financial period and is currently
in force

The company has purchased and mantains directors’ and
officers’ nsurance cover against certain legal iabines and
costs for claims in connecuron with any act or omusston by
such directors and officers n the execution of their duves

The board has established four formal committees

the audit commuttee, the nomination comimittee

the remuneraton comnutiee and the reputation &
responsibihty commuttee, which was formally constituted
i1t 2014 having operated on an mformal basis during 2013
The chairmen and members of these committees ale
appointed by the board on the recommendauon

{where approprate) of the nomination committee and
in consultaton with each retevant committee chairman
In addition to these formal board committees, the
standing committee also operates with board level input

More committee information

AUDIT COMMITTEE p70 Q)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE P68 @
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE p82 QO
REPUTATION & RESPONSIBILITY

COMMITTEE p78Q
STANDING COMMITTEE p64©

The approach adopted by the board 15 for committees to
focus on their own areas of expertise enabling the board
meeungs to focus on governance, strategy. performance
and people, thereby malung the best use of the board’s
ume together as a whole The committee chairmen
report to the full board at each meeung immediately
followmng their sessions, ensuring a good commurication
flow whilst retaining the ability to escalate items to the full
board’s agenda if appropnate

Board committee attendance

The foltowing table shows attendance by directors at
commuttee meetings throughout 2014

Reputat on &

Audit Remuperation Nomipacon  respans'brucy

Glen Moreno - 4/4 6/6 -
john Fallon - - 6/6 -
Dawvid Arcutus 5/5 4/4 6/6 -
Ehzabeth Corley" - /1 4/4 -
Vivenne Cox 5/5 4/4 6/6 3/3
Ken Hydan 5/5 4/4 6/6 -
josh Lews - 4/4 6/6 -
tinda Lormer 5/5 - 6/6 373
Harish Manwan - - 6/6  3/3

* jotned nomunanen comontees on | May 2004 and remumerat o oo mmitee
on E Ayt 1014
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BOARD EVALUATION

A formal evaluation of the board, its committees and
indivdual directors’ performance was completed at
the end of 2014

lt1s recommended by the Code that this process s
fachitated by a third party every three years This
effectiveness review was conducted by external
evaluator, JCA Group in additon to facltating this
review, [CA Group provided benchmarking and due
diligence services In connection with the appointment
of Elizabeth Corley as a non-executive director

JCA Group has no other connection to Pearson
apart fromn relation to board evaluation and search
consultancy services

EVALUATION PROCESS

On|CA Group's recommendaton, the process forr
the evaluation was as follows

Initral briefing An iniual briefing on the
company to provide contextand msights
into the strategic prionties for the business
as well as any 1ssues or concerns to address
more specifically

N
Discussion guideline Development of a
‘discussion guidelne’ which was shared with
the partiapants ahead of one to-one meetngs,
to address ey topics but notfimut the
discussion to anly these, such topics induded
the orparsaucn of the board, hoard and charr
succession, judgement of the strategy and
business performance the dynamics and
campositton of the board and feedbadc on
the commuttees and individual directors

~
One-to-one meetings One-to-one meetngs
with each board member, both executive
and non-exequtive, these conversanons
were conducted on a confidenual,
un-atmrbutable basis

N
Effectiveness report A full reportwas
presented to the board, contaning the
ey findings recomimendations for actions
and suggested next steps

Conclusion and recommendations

The review concluded that overall the board and

its commuttees remamn effectve in fulfifling their
responsibilites appropriately Actions agteedasa
result of the evaluation included ongoing review and
assessment of the strategy and its success, given the
significant transformation being undertalen by the
company The frequency of board mestngs was judged
to beappropriate However, buidding on the success of
the recommendation of the chief executive’s monthly
tetter from fast year's mternal board review, there was
also a suggestion to introduce addivonal board calls 1in
between board meeings to keep the board current on
15sues and progress Inaddinion, it was highlighted that
itis essentral the board pays continuing attention to
ensure all directors are well informed and have 3 deep
understanding of the issues for the business and the
broader global education environment m order to
provide appropriate strategic direction and challenge
goingforward This might incdude creating ongomng
opportunites for board members to wisit Pearson’s
operations n different global venues

Personal objectives

In addition to the evaluation of the board as awhole,
executives are also evaluated each year on theu
performance aganst personal objectives under the
company's annual incentve plan Learn more about our
Annual incentive plan on pl04 o

The non-executive directors, led by the senior
independent director, also conduct a review of the
chairman's performance

Commuttee evaluation

in addiion to the review of the board and indwidual
directors, the audit and remuneration committees each
undergo an annua! evaluation process to review ther
performance and effecuveness

The process mvolves distribution of quesuonnatres to
audu and remuneration commiziee members, as well as
ikey stakeholders in each committee, seeking wiews on
matter s ncluding comnuttee roles and responsibiines,
guahty and umehness of meetng matenals, opportunity
for discussion and debate, dialogue wath management
and access to ndependent advice Responses are then
evaluated and presented to the respective committee at
a scheduled meeting, with key themes being drawn out
for discussion
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Leadership & effectiveness
Board governance continued

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Charrman
Glen Moienc

IMAGE REMOVED

Members David Arculus, Elzabeth Corley, Vivienine Cox,
{en Hydon josh Lewss, Linda Lormer, Hatish Manwary
Glen Moreno and Tim Score

Key activities in 2014

QObjectives Actions

Appointment of
Elizabeth Corley and
Tun Score

tdentdy and appoint additronal
non-executive directors, at
teast one of whom to be female

Appomntment of Tiw
Score and Elizabeth

Corley as respective
committee chawrmen

Audit committee and
remuneration committee
chair succession

Appointment of Caram
Williarns announced —
to jotn board on

I August 2015

Commence seaich for new
chief financial officer

For nomination comrvittee attendance
see overview table on pbb ©

COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES INCLUDE:

I Appointments ldentfying and nominating
cand:dates for board vacancies

2. Batance Ensuring that the board and its committees
have the appropriate balance of skills experience,
independence, diversity and knowledge to

operate effecuvely

3. Succession planming Reviewing the company’s
teadership needs with a view to ensuning the conunued
ability of the organisation to compete effecuvely n

the marletplace

Nomination commuttee role and compoesttion

The commuttee primardy monitor's the compositen and
balance of the boar d and its commttees, and idenufies
and recommends to the board the appointment of new
directors and/or committee members

John Fallon stepped down from the nominaton
committee in December 2044, although he will continue
to be available to attend committee meetungs by
mwvitation Elizabeth Carley and Tim Score jomed the
nomination commuttee following thetr appontments

to the board

Commuttee meeungs and appointments

The nomination commitiee meets at least once a year and
at other umes as and when required During 2014, the
committee met six times with its primary focus being to
consider suitable candidates for the role of chief financial
officer and for non executive posttions, ncluding for the
roles of audit and remunerauon committee chairmen in
prepar avon for the reurement from the board of Ken
Hydon and David Arculus during 2015

The non-executive search culrmated n the successfut
appointment of Tim Score and Eirzabeth Corfey to the
board, who also joined the audrt and remunerauan
commutteas respectively and will assume the
chawrmanships of those committees following the
AGMn Apri 2015

Having considered a range of external and internal
candidates we announced on 27 February 2015 that
Coram Williams would succeed Robin Freestone as chief
financial officér Coram will join Pearson as CFO designate
on | july 2015 and wilt replace Robin on the board on

| August 2015

In additron, the commuttee conunued to focus on the
seardh for anon executtve director with insights into
mobile and digital technology to further conmplement
aur strategy




Pearson uses anumber of feading firms in s board
and executive search acoviies An external search
consultancy, Odgers Berndtson, was used during the
recruument process for Tin Score Odger s Berndison
does not have any other connection to Pearson apart
from as a search consuitancy

The committee identified Elizabeth Corley as a potential
non-executive candidate and an external search agency,
JCA Group, provided benchmarking and due diigence
services in cannection with Elizabeth’s appamtment

In additron to these services, [CA Group facthtated
Pearson's board evaluauon in 2014

Learn more about the Board of directors on p60 €

Chairman role

Section 4 Goser funcs 69

Lord Dawies has called for companies to target 25%

female representation on boards of FTSE 100 companies
by 2015 Pearson 15 comrmusted 1o having at least 30%
fernate directors within Lotd Dawvees 2015 umefi ame

and currently has three fermale dit ectors on its board

of eleven, representing 27% With the forthcoming
reurement of Dawid Arculus and Ken Hydon in the coming
months, this figure s expected o ncrease to 33%

Immediately below board level, the Pearson execuuve,
not including the chief executive and chief financial officer
who are main board directors, has three female members
out of atotal of 12 (representing 25%}) Our semor
{eadership team, up to and induding two repor ting levels
from the chuef executive, shows a strong pipeline of
female talent with women represenung 35% of our

Aithough the chatrrman of the board charrs the
nommation committee, he s not per mitted to char
meetings when the appointment of his successor is
being considered or dunng a discussion regardmng his
performance Atsuch umes, the semor independent
director will chasr the meetings

Terms of reference

sentar leaders

Pearson considers diversity as an #mportant Issue across
the Group, not just at board level One of the key ams
of Pearson's diversity policy is to increase the number
of [eaders coming from a diverse background nduding
advancing more women into feadership posttions such
as through our Women tn Learning and Leadership
progranime for employees

The committee has written terms of reference which

Learn more about Dwversity throughout Pearson

clearly set cutts authanty and duties These are reviewed
Y Y on p50°

annually and can be found on the company website at
Www pearson com/governance

Dversity

IMAGE REMOVED

The board embraces the Code's underlying principles
with regard to board balance and diversity, including
gender diversity The nomination committee, led by
the chairman, ensures that the directors of Pearson
demonstrate a broad balance of skulls, expertence and
nationality to support Pearson’s strategic development
and reflect the global nature of the Group's business

The comimittee and the board always take account of
diversity in s broadest sense when considenng boat d
appontments whilst ensunng that appomtments are
made based on menit and relevant experience

Glen Morene Charrman of nomination committee
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Accountability

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Charman
KenHydon
{stands down at
2015 AGM)

IMAGE REMOVED

Members David Arculus Vivienne Cox, Ken Hydon,
Linda Lormer Tim Score

In my nine years as audit committee
chairman | have learned a lot about
Pearson, Its operations, its practices
and its senior management and
have enjoyed the stimulation
generated by so much change

and world class colleagues.

Ken Hydon Chan man of audit commutiee

For Audit commuttee meeung attendance
see overview table on p66 €

COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES INCLUDE
OVERSIGHT OFf+

! Reporung The quality and integrity of financial
reportng and statements and related disclosure

2. Policy Group policies, including accounting potiaes,
and pracuces

3. External audit External audit, nduding the
appoitment, qualficanon, independence and the
performance of the external auditor

Audit commuttee role

The committee has been estabhshed by the board
primanly for the purpose of overseeing the accounting,
financial 1 eporting, internal control and nsk management
processes of the company and the audit of the financial
statements of the company As acommittee, we are
responsible for assisung the board's oversight of the
quality and integnity of the company’s externat financial
reporting and statements and the company’s accounting
policies and practices

The Group's nternal auditor has a dual reporting ine to
the chief finangal officer and me, and external auditors
have direct access to the committee to raise any matter

of concern and to report on the results of work directed
by the committee | report to the full board at every board
meeung immedately following a committee meetng

As a committee, we also review the independence of the
exter nal audiors, including the provision of non-audit
services (further details of which can be found on page 107
and note 4 to the financial statements), ensure that there
1 an appropnate audit relaonshup and that auditor
objectvity and independence are upheld

Audit committee changes

{1nda Lonmer joined the audit commitiee in january 2014
and we have also recently welcomed Ttm Score who
joned the committee upon his appointment to the board
on | January 2015 Following rine years with Pearson, and
as chairman of the audit commutzee, { will step down from
the board at the 2015 Annual General Meeting Tim Score
will take over the chairmanship of the committee
following my retrement and | am sure Tim will bring his
own challenge and ngour to the commuttee’s defiberations
as an experienced audit committee charman

Fair, balanced and understandable reporung

4 Risk and internatl control Risk management systems
and internal control envirenmentincluding the
performance of the nter nal audit funcuon

5 Compliance Complianice wath legal and regufatory
requirements in relation to finanaal reportng and
accounting matters

Terms of reference

The comnuttee has written terms of reference which
clearly set out its authority and duues These are reviewed
annaually and can be found on the company webstte at
www pearson com/governance @

We are mindful of the Code s revised princple C | |
relaung to far, balanced and understandable repor ting
and accordingly we burltin addonal steps to our Annuat
report umetable to ensure that the full board was given
sufficent opportunity to review consider and comiment
on the report as i ptogressed Learn more about Farr,
balanced and understandable repot ong on pl0s @




Risk assessment, assurance and integrity

A key part of the role of the comnttee 1s m providing
oversight and reassurance to the board with regard to the
ntegnty of the company's financial reporung, internal
control policies, and procedures for the dentfication,
assessment and reporung of 1isk During 2014 we aligned
our risk and control processes with the new arganisational
structure, and conducted a number of deep dives into
sefecred principal nsks

Drata security

We view data privacy and cyber security breach as one of
our prncipal operaucnal nsks, and this s a regular item on
the audit committee’s agenda During 2014 a new cluef
mformation officer and a chief information security officer
were appointed, and the committee met with both
shortly following thetr appointments to receive ther-iitiat
assessments on Pearson’s data security programme ang
subsequently for progress updates throughout the year
The committee learned that the key areas of focus are to
ensure consistenty secure applications and mfrastructure
across all parts of the Group, with the am of adopting
best-m-class pracuces for our customers and employees

Anu-bnbery and corruption

Given our geographuc focus and profite, and a number

of recent acquistzons in growth markets, anu-bnbery
and corruption (ABC) s a speafic risk for Pearson The
commuttee conducted a deep dive into ABC riskin 2014,
joined by legal advisers the SVP general counsel and SVP
interna audit and compliance The focus of the deep dive
included the mcreasingly co-ordmated approach taken
by authonues m higher-nsk jursidicuons in which we
operate, as well a5 a review of recent enforcement actions
elsewhere in the education sector The committee noted
that Pearson's ABC policy 1s updated on an ongoing basts
to reflect legislauve changes, and learned more abour
how the nternal ABC training programme conunues to
evolve to reflect our new busimess models and market
specfic nsks

Health & safety

One year on from the mtroducton of our global health
& safety policy, the comnuttee conducted a deep dive
reviewing implementation and findings to date As wedl
as reviewing findings of audits at Pear son sites around
the world, the commitiee discussed the Group's health
and safety pnonues A primary focus is the safeguarding
and protecuon of our students and, to this end, a new
global safeguarding officer has been appointed and a
safeguarding and protecuon policy introduced Qur inittal

Section 4 G Flwnics 7t

focus has been on our direct delivery businesses — the
areas of greatest nslc—and a training cout se is being
developed for those staff who have contact with students
We have also engaged thr oughout the Group to ensure
that our safeguarding ts robust whenever we come into
contact with children, young people and vulnerable
adults Corporate security s another key area of focus,
particularty m refation to the safery and secunity of our
stafl worlung in, or t avelling 1o, high-risk destinations
Significant progrress has been made in implementauon
of the new policies across our businesses, atthough
there remains work to be done, and the committee
will maintain oversight as we move forward with our
health & safety and safeguarding strategies

Audit committee meetings and activities

The commitiee met five tmes during the year with

the following in atrendance the chief financial officer,
SVP internal audit and comphance, members of the
senior management team, and the external audrtors
Addiuonally, the chief executve and charrman perodically
attended commuttee meetings Since the remit of the
SVP internal audit and comphance expanded to include
compliance the internal audit dir ector and the VP
cormpliance and risk assurance have also attended
meetngs, so the committee has direct contact with
those areas The committee also met regulary n
private with the external auditors and the SVP internal
audit and comphance

At every meeting, the commuttee considered reports

an the acuvittes of the Group mter nal audit funcuon,
including the resulis of internal audits risk reviews, project
assurance reviews and fraud and whistleblowmng 1 eports
The committee also monitored the company's financal
reportng, internal controls and nsk management
procedures, reviewed the non-audit services provided

by PwC and considered any significant legal claims and
regutatory issues in the context of their impact on

financial reporting

Finalty, | would liie to thank my fellow comnuitee
members, the chiel finanaa officer and the SVP intermal
audit and compliance for thewr enthusiasm and suppor t

Learn more about the Key acuvines of the audit
committee on p72°

IMAGE REMOVED

Ken Hydon Chawman of audit committee
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Accountability continued

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit committee meetngs durng the year

Every

Feb2014  f Apr20t4

jul 2014

Sep 2014

meetng
REPORTING
» Accounting » The 2013 Annuai > Interim »Rewview of the y Overview of
and tedwnical reportand accounts  rRnagement nterim resufis: 2014 Annuat
updates prelirunary statenent and frading 1 epol 1 process
announcement, announcement

»hmpactoflegal

financial staternants
and mcome statement
»Form 20-F and related

cairos and
regutatory disclosures mduding
|SSUES ON the annual Sarbanes-
finanaal Oxley Actsection 404
reporung attestauon of financal
repor ung internal
conti ols
POLICY
» Accounung » Taxreporung » Arnual review and > Arnuat review of
matter s and process approval of external treasury policy
Group auditor pohicy and strategy
accounting yInformation security
polices and policy update
EXTERNAL AUDIT
s Provision of » Recetpt of the external » 2014 exter nal »Lipdate on audit
non audit auditots reporton audit plan tendenng requirements
Cervices the Farm 20-Fand on yRemuneratonand  »Review of the
by PwC the year end audit engagement letter effecuveness of the
» Reappomtment of the of the external external auditar s
external audirors auditors
» Confirmauon of » Review opinion on
auditor independence mterim results
RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL
» Internal audit rAssessment of the > Risk deep dive y Annudl iternai »Rusk deep dive » 2015 internal
acuvity repoiis effecuveness of the tesung risk audut plan anu bribery and audit plan
and review of Group'smternal > Risk deep dive CoOrupLon > Crisis management.
key findings control esvironment business continuty y Riskcdeep dive tax and ebols
» Enterprrse 115k and risk management planning preparedness
management systems » Risk deep dive ) Health & safety
y Datasecunty »Review ol Group hiealih & safery

internal audn terms
of reference

COMPLIANCE AND GOVERNANCE

»fFraud y Compliaince » Review of the commutice s
whistleblowng with the Code terms of reference
reporisand » Compliance with »Review of the
Code of SEC and INYSE eflectiveness of the
Conduct requirerments mcuding committee and the group
matters Sarbanes Orley Act nternal audn functon




Members

Alf of the audit commttee members are independent
non-executve directors and have financial and/or refated
business experience due to the senior positions they hold
or have held in other listed or publicly traded comparies
and/or similar public organvsanons Ken Hydon, current
chairman of the commuttee, 1s the company's designated
financial expert He s a Fellow of the Chartered institute
of Management Accountants, the Assocration of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Assoaauon of
Corporate Treasurers He also serves as audit comimittee
chatrman for Reckitt Bencluser Group plc and Merhin
Entertanments ple, and untl 2012 for Tesco ple and Royal
Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust Tim Score, who will
assume the chairmanship of the committee during 2015
1s an Associate Chartered Accountant He also serves as
audit commuttee chairman for The Briush Land Company
plc and unal 2014 for Navonal Express Group pic

The gualfications and relevant expertence of the other
committee members al e detaled on p60-61 @

Audit commuttee meeungs duiing the year 2014

During the year the matters considered by the
committee included those shown on the table opposite

in February 2015, the commuttee also considered the 2014
Annuaf report and accounts, mduding the prelimnary
announcement, financial statements, strategic report,
directors’ report and cot porate governance complhiance
statement

External audic

Based on management s recommendations, the
committee reviews the proposal on the appointment

of the extermal auditors The committee reviewed the
effectiveness and independence of the externat auditors
dunng 2014 and remamns sausfied that the auditors provide
effective independent challenge to management

The review was conducted by distnbuting a questionnaire
to key audit staleeholders mduding merbers of the audit
committee, the chief executive, chieffinancial officer, SVP
company secretaral SVP internal audit and compliance
SVP finance for each Geography and Line of Business and
heads of corporate functions Feedback overall was very
positve, indicating an effecuve external audit process

The lead audit partner explained to the committee how
PwC were monitoring and reviewing each highlighted area
and confirmed that they would consider how to adapt
their approach i fight of speaific camments receved

Secuon 4 Cunut1enes 73

In addition. in accordance with our external auditor policy.
Group internal audit pet forens an annual assessment of
audit fees, services and independence which forms the
basis for a recommendauon by the comrmuttee to the
board n respect of the appomiment and compensation

of our external auditor Learn more about Auditors’
independence on pl07 @

The committee will continue 1o review the performance
of the external auditors on an annual basis and will
consider therr ndependence and objecuwvity, taking
account of all appropriate guidelines Thereareno
contractual obligations restricong the committee’s chouwce
of external auditors [nany event the external auditors
are required to rotate the audit partner responsible for
the Group audit every five years The cutrentlead audit
partner i otated onto the Group’s audit n 2013

Pearson’s last audit tender was in respect of the 1996 year
end resulting in the appomtment of Price Waterhouse as
auditors VWe reported last year that a tender process
would commence nofater than 2017 to ensure auditors
have been appomted i ume for the 2018 year end audit,
following the end of the current lead par tner’s term, i ine
with the FRC’s suggested transiwonal arrangenents on
audittendermg Developments at an EU level regarding
mandatory audit rotation for isted companies have
changed the UK fandscape on audr tendering and rotation
and, as a result, Pearson would be required to change
auditors no later than the next audit appointment after

17 June 2023 The audit committee will continue 16 monitor
developments in this area and to consider the timing of the
next tender so as to achieve the most efficient and effective
outcome and expects to have conduded onits planned
approach wathin the next year Once the nextaudit tender
oceurs, the Group will adopt a policy of putung the audit
contract out to tender atleast every ten years

Audit commttee traimng

The committee recewves regular technical updates as
well as speafic or personal training as appropriate In
September 2014, as par t of a deep dive wato antr-bitbery
and corrupuon (ABC) risk, the commuttee held a
session with legal advisers to better understand global

ABC developments

Committee members also meet with local management
on an ongong basis in order to gan a better
understanding of how Group polictes are embedded

i operations
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Accountability continued

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Signficant issues

ARLA OF FOCUS (SSUE ACTION TAKEN &Y AUDIT COMMITTEE OUTCOMF

New Foliowang the intreducuon of the | he comnuttee reviewed restated finanoials and Segments and
otganisation  new management siructure and  discussed the conclusion that the Group’s primat y CGUs redefined
sTrucre operatingmodel, the Grouphas ~ segments were now made up of the businesses within

andiIFRS 8 changed ns externally reported the three regions ~ North America, Core and Growth
segments in 2014 n accordance The committee confirmed that reporong {or the new

wath the guidance m IFRS 8 segments was consistent with boai d reporting for
‘Operating Segments’ As part internal purposes The commutiee also discussed the
of the exercise to dennfy new definition of CGUs and the allocation of goodwill to
segments and restate financial these CGUs for the purpose of impai ment testing

1eports, underlying cash
generaung unuits (CGUs) were

also defined
Imparment  The Group cai ries significant T he committee consides ed the results of the Groups Annual
reviews goodwill mtangible asset balances  annuak goodwill impairment review in the hght of new 1mpa: ment
There s pudgement exercised in and agg egate CGUs The key assumplions are 1eview
the identification of CGlUs and the  considered to be the cash flows derved from strategic finalised with
process of allocating goodwilito  and oper atng plans, long ter m growth rates and the confirmation of
CGUs and aggregate CGUs and in - weighted average costof capial The committee ansmparment
the assumptions underlying the consigel ed the sensitivies to changes in assumpuons n india and
mparment review and the related disclosures required by 1AS 36 sufficient
“Impan ment of Assets' In particular the committee fieadraom m all
reviewed the analysis and disciosw e refaung to the other CGUs
Growsh CGUs where valuanions ndicated an impainient
i the india business and sensitivity 10 assumptions was
also reviewed n relation to other businesses
Revenue Pearton has a number of revenue  The commitree regularly reviews revenue recogniticn Assumptions
recogmucn  streams where revenug pt actice and the underlying assumptions and estimates undertying
recognition pi actices are complex  inadditon the committee bas visbiity of internalaudit  revenue
and management assumptions findings refatng 1o revenue recognition controls and recognition were
and estmates al & necessary processes and routnely momitors the views of external  reviewed and
auditos s on revenue recogritonssues Duringtheyear  challenged
the committee reviewed revenue recognition in respect
of services provided to universities and higher educaton
institutions to facihitate online courses and looked at
significant new school tesung and teacher certificanon
contracts The commuttee also discussed the impact of
the new revenue recogmtion standard, IFRS I5 ‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’ and noted that although
the standard would not be adopted by Pearson until
2017 the committee would need Lo understand the
imphcations of the change well before thatdate
Tax Then e are a number of issues The committee constdered the Group sapproachiotax  The committee
in iffer ent countries where provistoning The Group cperates in afarge number of was satisfied
management judgements and countres and, accordingly, s earings are subject to with the Group’s
assumptions ar: made as to the tax o many unsdenons  The judgementsn celaton w appraach to tax
correct [ax treatment tax provisioning 1s a combination of the comnttee’s PrOVISIONing
assessment of the specific opentaxssues and also a takig account
review of the time penods in which the Group's tax of the views of
affars are open to engquiry by local taxinspectarsn management and
junsdrctions wirer e the Gi oup has a larger taxable the assessment
presence The commuttee addressed this macter of the external
thraugh the presentation of a management report auditors

onthe Group's tax affars by the head of group tax
and through a presentation of the external auditor's
assessment of the Group's tax prowvisioning




Sigmificant 1ssues cantinued
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AREA OF FOCUS KKSUE ACTIOM TAKEN BY AUDIT COMMITTEE CUTCOME
GrupoMula  Pear son acqun ed Grupe Mult The commuttee momiored progress on the acquisition Acquistion
ACQUISITION inFebruary 2014 for £437m accounung and fair value adjustments proposed with accounting
Management assumptions and particular emphasis on tax and legal p1 ovisions and on reviewed and
E5LHMALES Wer e necessary in the external valuauon of mtangibte assets significant
establislung fair values for the judgements
assets and habiities acquired explaned
Disposal Pear son disposed of ns 100% The commuttee reviewed the disposat accounting and Accounting
accounting  interest m Mergetmarket, nsjoirnt  disclosure and considered the mamn judgements elating  treatments
ventyr e interestin Safar Books To tax treatments, persion accountng i relation to and valuations
confirmed

Online, 1ts 5% investment in Noolk  Penguin and conungent consideration relating to Safan
The commultee also discussed the valuation of the Nook

Madia nvestment at various meetings during the year
prior 1o 1ts eventual disposal in Decermber 2014

Media and made adjustments to
the disposal of Penguin recorded
n2013

Significant issues

During the year, the comruttee discussed the planning,
conduct and conclusions of the external audit asit
proceeded

At the July 2014 audit commuttee meeting, the commuttee
discussed and approved the auditors’ Group audit plan
and reviewed the key risks of misstatement of the
Group's financial statements, which were updated at

the December 20i4 committee meeting

The table opposite sets out the significant1ssues
considered by the audit cornmittee together with details
of haw these items have been addressed The committee
discussed these issues with the auditors at the ume of
their review of the half year interim financiat statements in
July 2014 and agaus at the condusion of thew audi of the
financial statements for the full year in February 2015

All the significant issues were areas of focus for the
audwors Learn more in the Independent auditors’ 1 eport

onplid-12t ©

In December 2014, the committee discussed with the
auditors the status of thew worlk, focusing in parucutar
onmnte nal cont ols and Sarbanes- Oxey tesung, and
cavering the significant issues outlined above

As the auditors conciuded their audit, they explained to
the commuttee

» The worl they had conducted over revenue, warkmg
atongside management to assess several complex
revenue contracts

» The work they had done to understand the Group’s tax
strategy and identfy business and legislative risks, to
evaluate key underlying assumptions and assess the
recoverability of deferred tax assets

» Therr evaluation of the recoverability of digital platforms
and pre publication assets

> Thewr focus on segments, CGUs and goodwill impantment
and the impact of the Group’s transformation on those

> The results of their controls tesung to date for Sarbanes-
Oxley Act section 404 reporung purposes and in support
of therr financiat statements audic

» The review ofthe company s ‘'going concern’ t eports
The auditors aiso reported 10 the committee the
musstatements that they had found in the course of thewr
work which were insignificant, and the comrmttee
cenfirmed that there were no material items remaining
unadjusted in these financial statements
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Accountability continued

RISK GOVERNANCE AND CONTROL

Internal control and risk management

Control environment

The directors confirm they have conducted a review

of the effectiveness of the Group's systems of 15k
management and internal controfs, nduding strategic,
finanaal, operauonal and complance controls and risk
management systems, in accordance with the Code and
Turnbull guidance These systems have been operatng
throughout the year and to the date of this report

in September 2014, the Financial Reporung Council
published updared Guidance on Risk Management,
internal Controt and Related Financial and Business
Reporting, which takes effect for our 2015 year end

repot ing The changes were discussed by executve
management and the audit comrmittee and a plan has been
developed to set a clear path to compliance with the new
requirements, including ongoing rebust assessment of risk
and preparation of a viability statement

An enterprise risk management (ERM} framework s tn
place to dentfy, evaluate and manage risks, mcuding key
financial reporting risks Business areas undertake serm
annual risk reviews to identify new or potenually under-
managed risks Throughout the year, nsk discussions are
facitated by the risl assurance tearn with Group and
business area management to identify the key nsksthe
company faces in achieving 1ts objectives, to assess the
probability and impact of those risks and to document the
actrons bemng taken to manage those risks The Pearson
Executive reviews the output of these sessions focusing
on the key risks facing the business Management has the
responsibiity to consider and execute appropriate action
to inimgate these risks whenever passible The results of
these reviews are reported to the audit committee and
the board in detail

Dunng 2014 the semi-annual reporting of top risks

was reviewed by executive management as well as the
board and auditcommuittee During the year, the audit
committee considered the oversight of speafic selected
prinapal nsks, through a series of risk ‘deep dives Thists
covered i1 more detail i the separate report on the audut
committee The ey elements and procedures that have
been established to provide effectve sk management
and internal control systems are described below
During 2014, we aligned these procedures to the new
organisagon structure

Learn more about our Principal risles and mingating
factors on p34 €

The board of directars has overalf responsibifity for
Pearson’s system of internal control, which is designed
to manage, and whei e posstble mitigate, the risks facing
the Group, safeguard assets and provide reasonable.
but not absolute, assurance aganst material financial
misstatement or loss

Responstbity for monitoring financial management and
reportmg and nsk management and internal control
systems has been delegated to the audit committee

by the board At each meeung, the audit comsittee
considers reports from management, Group internal
audit and the external auditars, with the am of reviewing
the effectiveness of the internal financial and operatng
control environment of the Group

The identficanon and mtigation of significant business
risks 15 the responsibility of Group senior management
and the management team for each business area -
being the heads of the Lines of Business, Geographies
and enabling functions Each business at ea, induding
the corporate centre, mantans nternal controts and
procedures appropi ate to Its structur ¢, business
environment and risk assessment whilst complying
with Group policies, standards and gudelnes

Financral management and reporting

There 1s a comprehensive strategic planning, budgeung
and forecastng system with an annual operating plan
approved by the board of dwectors Monthly financial
informauon, mncluding trading results, balance sheets, cash
flow statements, capital expenditures and indebtedness,
is reported aganst the corresponding figures for the plan
and prior years, with corrective acoon outlined by the
appropriate senior executive Group senior management
meet penodically with business area management to
review then business and financial performance against
plan and forecast Major nisks relevant to each business
area as well as performance aganst the stated fimancial
and strategic ohjectves are reviewed in these meeungs

WVe have an ongoing process to monitor the risks and
effectiveness of controls in relation to the financul
reporung and consofidatton pi ocess induding the related
information systems This includes up-to-date Group
financial policies, formal requirements for finance




functions, Group consolidation 1 eviews and analyss of
matenal vanances, Group finance technical reviews,
including the use of techmcal specralists, and review and
sign-off by semor finance managers These processesare
subject to reviews based on Group internal audit’s nsk-
based audit programme The Group finance function alse
monitors and assesses these processes, through a finance
compliance function

These controls include those over external financial
reporung which are documented and tested in
accordance with the requirements of section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act whichis refevant to cur US hsting
One key control in thus area s the disclosure commuttee,
which subrmuts reports to the audit committee This
committee 1s chaired by the SVP internal audit and
complance, and members mclude the chief financal
officer, general counsel, SVP investor refations, SVP
company secretarial as well as semor members of
financial management The primary responsibility of
thus comimittee s to review Pearson’s public reportng
and disclosures to ensure that informaton provided to
shareholders 1s complete, accurate and comphant with
all applicable legislavon and hsung regulanons

The effectiveness of key financal controls 1s subject
to management review and self-cerufication and
independent evaluation by Group mternal audit

Group mternal audit

The Group internal audit funcuon s respensible for
providing independent assurance to management and
the audic commitiee on the design and effectiveness

of internal controls to mitigate serategic, financial,
operational and compliance nsks The nsk-based annual
internal audit plan s approved by the audit committee
Management action plans to improve mternal controls
and to miugate nsks, or both, are agreed with each
business area after each audit Formal follow up
procedures allow Group nternal audit to monitor
business areas’ progress inwnplermnenung its
recommendations and to resolve any control deficienaes
Group mternal audit has a formal collaboration process
in place with the external auditors to ensure efficent
coverage of nternal controls Regular reports on the
woi k of Group internal audit are provided to executive
management and, via the audit comymittee, to the board

Section 4 v s 77

The SVP internal audit and compliance oversees
compliance with our Code of Conduct and works with
sertor legal and human t esoui ces personnel to nvestigate
any reported inadents mcluding ethical, corrupnonand
fraud allegations The audit committee 15 provided with
an update of all significant matters receved through

our whistle-blowing reporung system, together with

an annuat review of the effecuveness of this system

The Pearson anu bribery and corruption progranime
provides the framework to support our comphance with
various anti-bribery and corruption regulations such as
the UK Bribery Act 2010 and the US Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act

Treasury management

The treasur y department operates within policies
approved by the board and 1ts procedures are reviewed
regularly by the audit comruitee Major transactions

are authonsed outside the department at the requisite
tevel, and there s an appropriate segregation of duties
Frequent reports are made to the chief financial officer
and tegular reports are prepared for the audic comnuttee
and the board

Insurance

Pearscon purchases comprehensive insurance coverage
where this s avadable on a cost-effectve basts Pearson's
nsurance subsidiary, Spear Insurance Company Limited,
15 used to leverage the risk retenuon capabihity of the
Group and to achieve a balance between retaining
msurance risk and transferring it to external insurers
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Engagement

REPUTATION & RESPCNSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Charman
Vivienne Cox

IMAGE REMOVED

Members Vivienne Cox Linda Lorimer, Hartsh Manwani

As Pearson takes a more active role
in education worldwide, we have a
responsibility to our learners and
to our shareholders to grasp new
opportunities which have a positive
impact on society. We are working
to build our brand and to sharpen
our awareness and management
of anything that risks damaging it.

Vivtenne Cox Chawrmann of reputation &
responsibility committee

COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES:

I Reputation Pearson’s reputation among major
stakeholders, indluding governments, nvestors
employees, customers, learners and the
educaton community

2. Strategy Communicauons strategies, pohaes and
plans related to reputational issues

3 Social Socal impact initiatives

4 Brand Brand and culwre developmeint

5 Ethics Ethical business standat ds

6 Rusk Oversight of reputational risk

Reputation & responsibitity commuttee role

The reputation & responsiblity committee became a
formal committee of the board in 2014 This 1 eflects the
board and Pearson executive's growing awareness and
ambition around Pearson’s corporate reputation, and our
belief in the importance of fuffiling our obligations to the
communities i which we work, and maxirmising Pearson’s
positive Impact on socety

Terms of reference

The committee has written terms of reference
which clearly set outits authority and duues
These can be found on the company website at
www pearson com/governance €

The committee's responsibiliies are shown nmore
detait below

Forreputation & responstbiity commitiee meeting
attendance see overview table on p66 @

BOARD VISIT TO WASHINGTCON, DC

In June 2014, the board visited
Washington, DC for a three-day
meeting to understand the forces
behind changes in the education
landscape across the US and the
implications for Pearson’s brand
and reputation In our largest, most
successful market. Specifically, the
presentations and discussions
focused on four key areas, outlined
oppostte...




Key actvities in 2014

Section 4L wrings, 72

Commuttee aims for 20(5

{n the second year of Pearson’s transfor mation, the
committee acted to scruunise and challenge the long-term
strategy and approach th oughout 2014, meetng three
times and receving presentations from business leaders
across anumber of key areas

in parucutar the commuttee reviewed and provided
Input on

» Qur long-term wvision for corporate transparency and
reporung. in particular adopung oversight of our pohucal
contributions policy and spending

s The wind-down of the Pearson Chartable Foundation
and ourtevised approach to socal impact actvity

» The rationale and future su ategy for the Pearson
Afordable Learning Fund

» The review of the Pearson master brand and employee
values, and our approach to tracking the equity of the
Pearson brand globally

[ How tomcrease productvity and demonstrate return
on investment m our schools and colleges, and how to
prepare more students to compete and succeed n a
21st century global economy

2 Increasing polarisation and polinaisaton of education
issues and how the explosion of soctal media has altered
the public policy fandscape and the rules of the game

3 Learning to engage with new players and new 1ssues
that come from ncreasing private sector investmentin
education, particularly from venture capital and
philanthropy, and the shift into new digttal and serwices-led
busimnesses

4 Growing public scrutiny of Pearson’s role in education,
i particular how our size and our success makes Pearson
a target for cnucs and competiters and how the public
demand for transparency and proof of positve soaal
impactis posing new challenges — and opportunities —
for companies

in 2045 the commuteee will conbinue to focus onhow our
strategy for managing our 1 eputation and maximising ou
conutbution to soaiety 5 changing with the orgarisation
The committee will adopt oversight of health & safety
management, policy and issues, reflectng its mcreasingly
significant role in safeguarding our reputanon as we
become more active in the duwect delivery of education
to students In parucutar, the committee will  eview
progress on the integraton of social impact into Pearson’s
business following the cdlosure of the Pearson Charitable
Foundation, the development of our reputaton
management approach in our newer markets, and our
progress towards our 2018 efficacy commitment

IMAGE REMOVED

Vivienne Cox Chatrman of reputation &
responsibility committee

The board had a deep dive session examining how
Pearson was building and esecuung a more robust,
proactive government relatrons and reputation
management capability

The board spent trme getung a first-hand look at
blended learning in acton meeting educators, parents
andlearners duning a wisit to College Park Academy, an
innovative charter school run by our Connections team
i partnership with the University of Maryland's School
of Educauon

Thet e was an opportunity for the board 1o engage with
fcey national opinion feaders, policymakers, reformers
and innovators i education, induding Melody Barnes,
former domesuc policy adviser to President Obama,
and Ted Mitchell, US Under Secretary of Education

Finally, the board heard from the Pearson executive
team about how our new operaung modet was helping
to accelerate our shift to digital and services business
across [¢-12 and higher educaton, followed by an update

on the efficacy vutiauve
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Engagement continued

SHAREHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Engaging with shareholders

Peat son has an extensive programme of communication
with all of its shareholders ~ large and small, nsututional
and private

Shareholder outreach In 2014, we continued with our
shareholder cutreach progr amime, seeing approximately
690 insututional and private investors atmore than 420
different institutions in Australa, Brazi, Bruner, Canada,
Greater China Conunental Europe, Japan, Singapore,
South Korea, the UK and the US

Trading updates There are five trading updates each year
and the chief executive and chref financial officer present
our prefiminary and nterim resuits updates They also
attend regular meetings throughout the year with
investors tn the UK and around the world, tallored to
mivestor requirements, to discuss the performance of
the company, the company’s strategy, our restructuring
programme, structural changes in our markets and nsks
and opportunites for the future

Charman meeungs The chairman meets regularly with
sigrificant shareholders to understand any issues and
concerns they may have Thus 15 in accordance with both
the Code and the UK Stewardship Code The non-
executive direciors meet infor mally with shareholders
both before and after the AGM and respond to
shareholder quenes and requests as necessary The
charman ensures that the board ss kept informed of
principal investors’ and adwisers’ views on strategy.

and corporate governance

Consultanons During the year we also consulted with our
major sharehioldes s and wath shareholder representative
hodies on our directors’ 1 emunerauon policy Read about
Remuneration on p82 @

Senwunars We have an established programme of
educational serinars for our insututonal shareholders
focusing on individual parts of Pearson These seminars
are avatable to all shareholders via webcast on

www pearson com @

Private investors represent aver 80% of the shareholders
on our register and we malce a concerted effort to engage
with them regutarly Shareholders who cannat attend the
AGM are invited to email questions to the charman in
advance at glenmoreno-agm@pearson com ]

We encourage our private shareholders to become
more informed investors and have provided a wealth of
information on our website about managing Pearson
shareholdings, see www pearson com/mvestors/
shareholder-information htmi for fur ther information,
or turn to page 212 of this report We also encourage all
shareholders, who have notalready done so, to register
their email addresses through our website and with our
registrar This enables them to recesve email alerts when
trading updates and other important announcemens are
added to our website

See additional Shareholder information on p212 @

AGM

24 Aprd 2015

8 Northumberfand Averue
Lundon England WC2N 58Y

690

inswiutenal and private
invaestor meetings in 2014

QOur programme of educanonal
sominars {s avatable for
wisttunenal nVestors wa
webrast onpesisen com £

IMAGE REMOVED




Share dealing

Section 4 Gerv 1 imrts 8i

WIDER ENGAGEMENT

Engaging wath all stakeholders

Due to1its continued popularity we agamn provided
shareholders with smaller holdings the opportunity to use
ourregstrar's tow cost share dealing service, giving them
the chance to add to or1educe their stake in Pearson at
significantly reduced dealing rates, or to donate shares to
chanty with ease This service proved very popuiar with
sharcholders and consequently we intend 1o offer this
service again at a future date

We believe 1t1s impartant that our employees have a
sharedinterest in the direction and achievernents of
Pearson and are pleased to say that a large number of
our employees are shareholders in the company

Annual General Meeting

Our AGM, on 24 Aprii 2015 s an opporwmnty for ali
shareholders to meet the board and to hear presentauons
about Pearson’s businesses and results

We post all company announcements on our website,
www pearson com, as soon as they are released, and
major shareholder pi esentations are made accessibte
via webcast or conference call Our website contains a
dedicated investor relations section with an extensive
archive of past announcements and presentations,
historical financial performance share price data and a
calendar of events Italso indudes informaton about all
of our businesses, links to therr websites and details of
our corporate responsibikty policies and activities

LLearn more about our approach to corporate
responsibility tn the Social impact section on p45-56 ©

Visit pearsan com for
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Report on directors’ remuneration

PART | - LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chairman Introduction
Drwd Areulus {am pleased to present our report on directors’
IMAGE REMOVED remuneraton for 2014

The 2014 annual remuneration report wifl be put forward
for your consideraton and approval by advisory vote at

Members David Arculus, Elizabeth Corley, Vivienne Cox, the Annual General Meeung on 24 Aprd 2015
Ken Hydon, Josh Lewns and Glen Morens

In accordance with the UK remuneraucn reporting
requirements, this report contains

The committee believes that » A summary of the directors’ remuneration policy on p85
’ The full policy was approved by shareholders at the

Pearson’s r‘emuneratlop pOhCy Annual General Meetng on 25 Apnl 2014 and can be
supports the company's strategy found on the Governance page of the company's website
to deliver sustained performance at www pearson com/governance
and create long-term value in the
interests of all stakeholders.

We believe this report clearty demonstrates the tink

Dawvid Ay culus Chairman of repuneration comnitiee between our remuneration pokicy and practice, and the
company's strategy and perfor mance, as well as our
comimtrnent to sharcholder engageinent

» The annual 1 emuneration report, on p89- 106, describing
afl aspects of remuneration practice m 2014

les o n
ln this remuneration section Principles of i emuneraton pohicy

PART | LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN p82 The purpose of the remuneration policy 15 to

PART 2. REMUNERATION POLICY a5 support the company's strategy to deliver sustaned
P performance and create long-term value m the

PART 3 REMUNERATION REPORT p8% interests of all stakeholders Thisis summarised i
the panel overleal

Terms of reference

We continue to keep our remunerauon policy under
review in ight of the prevaiing social and econamic
condions and the mpact of these on the company's
objectives and strategy

The comnuttee’s full charter and terms of reference
are avaifable on the Governance page of the
cormpany’s website at www.pearson com/governance




REMUNERATION POLICY PRINCIPLES

§SINIsN8 dno

| Sustainabilkty and affordability We seek a careful and
sustainable balance between market competitveness,
affordability and the long-term interests of the
company and its shareholders, whilst also being
mindful of pay condiuons elsewhere in the Group and
the wider social and economic context The process
for setung levels of executive remuneration 1s robust
and transparent

2 Pay for performance A high proportion of total
remuneration is delivered as vanable pay thatis
drrectly inked to both shoi tand long-term
performance of the company, through annuat
mncentves that reward the achievernent of annual
strategic goals and long-term mcentivas that drive
{ong-term earnings and share price growth
Performance conditions are sufficrently stretching
and recogrise mdividual contribution as wedl as the
company's financial resufts

3 Alignment We encourage executives to acquire
and hold Pearson shares u iine with shareholders’
interests Long-term mcentives reward the
achievement of sustainable, long-term value creatron
that will be beneficial to shareholders We actvely
seek feedback from shareholders on all aspects of
executive remuneration

Remuneration supporting strategy

Pearson’s executive remunerauon arrangements
were reviewed last year to align with and support the
company’s new strategy Executive remuneratuon
decistons have been made after consultation with
shareholders, careful consideraucn of the needs of the
business, the transformation and reorgamsation of the
company changes i roles and responsibilizes, the pay
markets in which Pearson operates and pay elsewhere
n the o1 gamsation

Peat son's strategy mforms our remuneration phifosophy
and policy and complements our more b adiional financal
goals, which are to achieve sustainable growth on three
lcey measures (earmings, cash, and return on invested
capital) and to delver reliable casi returns to our
investors threugh healthy and growing dividends

Section 4 Gowrbeng: 83

We beheve those are, in concert, good mdicators that
we are bultding the long-term value of Pearson These
measures {or others that contribute to them) therefore
form the basis of our annual budgets and strategic plans
and the basts for annual and long-term incentives

What we did in 2014

We consulted with our major shareholders and with
shareholder representatives on the directors’
remunerapon policy priorto its publicavon However,
following publication a number of shareholders expressed
concern that the policy alowed the committee to
exercise discretion to approve remuneraton elements
outside of the normal hnts in exceptional and unforeseen
arcumstances Inresponse to this, prior to the Annual
General Meeting, on 9 April 2014, and following further
consultaton, we issued a RINS statement Lo clanfy the
basts on which certain elemnents of the policy would

apply and, in particular, o define and limit when and how
remuneratton arrangements outside the normal terms

of the policy might be applied The poficy was appr oved

at the Annual General Meeting on 25 April 2014

Performance in 2014 at a glance

In 2014, despite continuing challenging market
conditions, we had a good competitive performance
Overall, we saw

» Growth in sales of 2% and in adjusted operating profit
of 5% at constant exchange rates

» Anincrease in our dividend of 6% which was Pearson's
23rd straight year of increasing our dividend above the
rate of mflavon

Over the past ten years we have increased our dividend
at a compound annual rate of 7%, returning £2 9bn

to shareholders

Remuneration in 2014 at a glance

Base salary +2%
Allowances and benefits No change in arrangements
from 2013

Retirement benefits
Annual incentives
Long-term mcentives

Pay out below taiget
Nitvesting

MNote This reflects changes to remunerauon fon the dlxef e Feutive and the
chve{finanual officer notior the ostofthe Pearson exe cunvr
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART | —~LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUMNERATION COMMITTEE

Lootung back to some speafic aspects of policy
and practice in 2014

~We estabhshed maximum opportuniies for cach
element of remuneraton

» We changed the weighting of the perfor mance metries
under the Pearson long-term incentive plan from one
third on each measure to half on earnings per share
growth, one-third (no change) on return an invested
capital and one-sixth on relauve total shareholder return

» We introduced a mandatory restriction on participants
ability to dispose of the 75% of vested long-term incentive
shares that are reteased after three years (other than to
meet personal tax habilhity) for a further two years and
for the remaining 25% of vested shares to be subject to
conunuing employment over the same pertod

» We increased the randatory shareholding guidehnes to
300% of satary for the CEO and 200% of salary for other
executive directors

» These shareholding gurdelines were also extended to
other merbers of the Pearson executive at 100%
of salary

1 We clarffied the arrangements for malus and
strengthened the clawback provisions

> The annual bonus share matching plan was ceased
The tast award under this plan will vest or not, subject
to performance, during 20t6

» We undertook a regular perodic revtew of base salaries
for 2014 taking nto account general economic and
market conditions, the level of ncreases made across
the company as a whote, the remuneraton of execunves
in sirnifar positions In comparable companies, and
individual performance

» Annual mcenuves paid 1o executives for 2014 were
below target, as they were in 2013, reflecting befow
target performance 1n a tough trading environment

» There was the second consecutive nif pay-out on fong-
term incentives, reflecung below threshold performance
for 2014 against the company's three-year targets for
earnings per share growth, return on wwvested capital
and relavve total shareholder return

» To increase alignment with shareholder interests and
the long-term growth of the company we reviewed the
operatton of the long termincenuve plan for the senior
feadership populaton below the Pearson execuive

For 2014 and beyond, awards for this g oup of employees
will be subject to performance based on an earnings
per share growth target

What we've planined for 2015

Looking forward, for 2015

y We will continue to operate directors’ remuneration
in fine with the approved remuneration policy and
antigpate putting the policy to shareholder vote next
at the 2017 Annual General Meeting

» As approved in the 2013 directors’ remuneration
report for performance-related long-term incenuve
awards for 2015 and onwards, the averaging penod for
the catculanon of relatve total shareholder return wall
be moved to the period r unning up to the year end and
the length of the averaging period will be increased to
three months

» On long-termincentves, we have reduced the
proportion of the maximum award that vests for
threshold performance from 30% to 25% in line with
insttstional investors' preferences

» Based on our guidance for 2015, we will face a challenge
in defivening a pay-out under the long-term incentive
plan award for 2013

The commuttee welcomes the positive engagement with
shareholders on our approach to this year's report on
directors' remunerauon and, speafically, on the issue of
the vote against our annual remuneration report at the
2013 Annual General Meeting

The committee 1s commuitted to an ongoing dialogue
with shareholders regarding executive remuneration
and would therefore welcome any observations or
quesuons that individual shareholders may wish to raise

[ would like to thank my fellow members of the
commuttee and the people who have assisted us for
theu contbuuon aver the past year

Finally ast step down from the board and from chamning
the commuttee, | fook forwai d to handing over the reins
to my successor, Elizabeth Corley

Yours sincerely

IMAGE REMOVED

Dawvid Arculus Charman of the remuneration committee
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Section 4 ey o tenes

Introduction to summary of remuneration policy

The company’s pohcy on diectors’ remuneration was
approved by shareholders at the Annual Genetal Meeung
on 25 April 2014 We issued an RINS staternent of further
informaton on the remunerauon policy on 9 April 2014,
to clanfy the use of the commuttee’s discrenon over
certain elements of remuneration in exceptional
circumstances

To help sharehelders understand the context of
remuneranon practuce reported n the annual
remuneration report that follows, and specifically the
hmuts apphed to directors’ remunerauon, we have
mcluded below some key points and a summary of
pertunent sections of the remuneration policy for
informaton only For further detad, please refer to the
full remuneranon policy and the danficaton statement
on the Governance page of the company's website at
www peat son com/governance

Scope of policy
The policy appltes to executive directors, the chaiwrman

and non-executive directors

Reference s also made to the remuncration policy for
other members of the Pearson executive (currenty
12 tn number) who are not directors but who fall within

the commitiee's remit

Duration of pohcy

The policy took effect on 25 Apnl 2014 and 1s expected to
last untd the next binding vote on aur rermuneration policy
which at i esentis planned for the 2017 AGM

Use of discretion

The committee has avoided, where possible, mduding
general discretions in the policy table However,
exceptional or genuinely unforeseen circumstances may
anse in the future and in those circumstances it may be
in shareholders’ interests for Pearson to putin place
remuneration arrangements thatare outside the terms
of the policy Ifthis happens, the conamittee wli be
permetted to implement remmuneranon arrangements that
1t congiders appropriate in the circumstances Inthese
circumistances, Pearson would consultin advance with
major shareholders before 1t does so and would explain
the exercise of this discretion in the following year's
directors’ remuneration report

As danfied in the RNS statement of further information
on the remuneration policy on 9 April 2014 this discretion
wauld only be used in the very narrow arcumstances

aruculated in the policy ~ thatis in exceptional or
genumnely unforeseen arcumstances The committee
congders that these arcumstances would avise highly
infrequently, if at all, in the hfetime of the policy The
commuttee would regard reliance on this discretion as a
matter of utmost senousness and, i relation to our stated
abligation to consult n advance with major shareholders,
wolld not proceed unless there was clear consensus n
favour among those consulted Further, the committee
would ensure that the value of the remuneravon
arrangerment put in place in rebance on this discretion
would fall within the normal lire {as stated i the policy)
for the element of remuneraton to which the
arrangement relates

As part of the approved policy, the committee also has
discretion to award base salary increases, allowances and
benefits, and long-term imncentive plan awards m excess of
the normal maximum limits to current or new directors
As clarfied in the RNS statement, this discretion will
only be exercsed in excepuonal circumstances other
than in the case of mcreases m the cost of benefits that
are outside Pearson’s control and changes in benefit
providers Again, Pearson would consult with major
shareholders before exerasing any such discretion and
such exerase would be hnited by reference to the
safeguards described above, induding only proceeding
where there was dear consensus in favour among those
consulted In these arcumstances, the committee would
ensure that the maximum value of the remurneranon
arrangement putin place in rehance on this discretion did
nat exceed a margn of 25% over the pormal maximum
fimit for the element in question (as stated in the policy)

Legacy arrangements

Given the long-term nature of some of Pearson’s
remuneration structures —including obhgations under
Service Conmacts, incentive plans and pension
arrangements — a number of pre-existing obligations
remaned in place at the ume that the new policy became
effective, ncluding abligatons that are grandfathered’ by
virtue of beung in force at 27 June 2042 Pearson s policy 1s
to honour all pre-existing obligatons, commitments or
other entdernents that were entered into before the
effecuve date of this policy

Summary of remuneration policy table

For more mformation on how ! emuneraton is operated,
please refer to the full remuneration pohcy onthe
Governance page of the company’s website at

www pearson com/governance

SSIANIENY WNO i
|

3ONVHYEO4Y43d YN0 I

LYW Y1308 ¥10 l

AOQD

T
Z
3
rd
)
m

SENIWILYLS TVIDNYNEL




86 Pearson plc Anmngl repo

and oo 15 200

Report on directors’ remuneration continued

T 2 - SUMMARY OF REMUNERATION POLICY

Efement of

remunerauen  Purpose and knle 1o seracegy

Perlormance condinans

Mormak hnue

Excepranal it as clanfied in RNS
stattment of 7 Agnl 2014

Hedps Lo Tertnl 1 Dwisrd and
1ctatn

Retlelts competiove 1narket
{evel. role :Liils experence

and indmiduat contnbuuon,

Base salry

Allawances
and benefits

Help to recrutand retam
Refwct the local tompeutive
mariet

Retirement Help Lo recrist anG 1 eTain
benefits Recognise long tern
comimitment
Annual Monwate achiev et of
tRCEnTIves aneidl strategw goals
Foous onkey
finangizl memes
Reward manadual
ronthbution
Long-term t-efsio recnnt roward
ncantives 2nd 1 etan

Drive long termearnmgs
share prite prowth and
value cre won and align
nierests of executvas
and shareholders
Cncou age long te1m
sharehalding and
cCmTITment 1o company
Lreemanage rnent = fong
term reward and wealth
16 carpor; te performance
1 a flenble way

Neme aithoughperformance of borh
the coumparty and the wdrigual are
takrninLo account when determining
anappropnatelevel of base silary
mncrease each year

None

None

The connnurres b the diserenion e
sely ot the performance medsures
targets snd rotatse weightmgs from
YRAr L0 year

Funded by Pearsan globat annual
tmancel results and wesghee d

60" on djsied o1 nings pet share
20% onsales

20% onoperanng ¢ ash flow

Pay outs take imo account indvidund
perfarmance agamst personal obyecuves

Tht compmmtted wil deto rrmne the
performance measyres woghtigs
and tar gets governng an award of
rostcied shares prici 10 grant ro
en.ure ¢ ontnung shgnment with
strategy and wo ensure the targess
a e sufficently stretching

Awdards vestsubp c110 the foliowing
per formance condiuens one half on
earnngs per share growth one thad
onreturn on nwestrd capial {ROICH
one-sixth on relatve total <harehnlder
return (T5R)

Performance tested over three years

Bake salary mereases are
not ofdinarly more than
1% pec annum

Totalvafue not ordinanty inexcess
of 157 of base splary i any yeir

As 381 OUTIN Approved
remuneration pohcy

Over all imut 200%5 of base salsry
2015 mamum opportunity is
180% torihe chiefl executive and
no mere than [20% fer otber
ercunve diertars avd members.
of the Pearson exveunve

May rmwn face value of 400% of
base salary

Other than i exeepuonal
CHTUMSIANCES ONd PCrUmINent

i, the cotnpany s normal pokcy
not 10 award restricted shares o
executive directors and cther
members afthe Pe o executive
without perfarmance cundimons

Up to 25% over normathnvon
pescati, vt dugd SiTuahons inguding
mite rmal promotons uwd mateny
changes 1o the buness os the role

Up to 25% over narmal it m
speofc ndmdual susanons nchiding,
changes i ndredual wreumstanres
suchs s heusith status and changes

in the role such as efocaven

In excess of 25% over normnal b
n the case of mereases m the £ost
of benefas that are outside of
Pearson s contral and dhanges

n benefir prowders

None

Mo

Uiy wy 25% over narmal kna in
exceptional arcumstances for
exanple for retenuon purpuses
1o reflect prrucutar business
sruations The dscretion s
award reancied shares without
perfmance condsbons to execuive
dwreriors wil not be used other
than whers is appropnate o
rCMPEISHTE d NEW dractor ona
Uer for ke bas for nennves

foregnne at a previous emnploys

Jorat shas ehoider 1 eturn { 1SR} 15 the sewrnw sharehelders from any growthn Poarson sshareprice and ranvested divide wis over the performant e period
Fur long term mcennive twirds T5Rs meazured refative Lo the constieents of the FTSE World fwedia Index aver athree yoat penod Companies thas drop
et of theindex are normally excluded 1¢ oaly compamnas mthe index or the entn e pertod e counted  Shas o price 15 zveraged over thee months atthe
suirtand end of the performance penod Cradends are treaed 3s einvasted sntht U dvidend daie, in e wik th Dzasercam methogology The vesung of
shar os based oniefatve TSR 15 sufyecl 1o the commiitee saredyngitseffihal the 1eeor ded 15 o gentnne relleduon of the underlweng financnt performiance

of the busmess

Fetur non mvested cepital (ROIL) s adjusied opararng profitless cash tax rpressed 35 A peroonzage of pross wwested capual (e T operaung assets plus

gross goadwili)

Adjusted earpng: pershare (EPSY i caleulated by dwidng the adjusted earnuaygs atmburabhe to equity sharchclders of the tompany by the weightud

wverage number of ordiniry shases inassue dunng the year excluding any areinary shares purchased by the company and hedd w0 cruse (see note B of the financiad
statements for 4 detad d dercrpuo of adusted earm igs per thare) E7S prowthes ciluilated asmg the per 1w pent metbud This meshad compares

the agdjusted £P%in the company s accounts fon the inancial year ended prior 1o the giancdate with the adistad FRS fo1 the franoal ye i ending theee years
later and calrulytes the implrait compaund sinuat graweh iate over the penod




MNaon-executive directors and chairman
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Pay and performance scenario analysis

Non-executive director remuneraton has been
designed 10 attract and retain high calibre indiduals,
with appropriate expenence of industry relevant skiffs,
by offering market competitive fee levels

The structure of non-executive diractor s' fees with effect
from | May 2014 15 as follows

Director Fee
Non-executive director £70,000
Chairmanship of audit committee £27.500
Charmanship of remunerauon committee £22,000
Chasrmanship of reputatron &

responsibility commuttee £10,000
Membership of audit committee £15,000
Membership of remuneraton cormrmittee £10,000
Membership of reputation &

responsibility committee £5,000
Sentorindependent director £22.000

The total fees payable to the non-execuuve directors are
subject to the linut set cut i the arudes of association

of the company {currenty £750,000) and are increased
by ordinary rescluuon from time o ume

The chairman’s fees remam unchanged at £500,000

per year

For more information on non-executive directors’
remuneration, please refer to the full remuneration pohcy
on the Governance page of the company's website at
www pearson com{governance

The remune atton poiicy approved by shareholders in
2014 required a scenaro chart n the format set out
below for 2044 remuneranon Although not required,
the company has updated the scenario cha ts below so
as to apply to 2015 remunerauon

Congistent with its policy, the comemitiee places
considerable emphasis on the performance-linked
elements, t e annual and long-term incenuves

The chartbelow shows what each director could expect
1o recerve in 2015 under different performance scenarios,
based on the following defirutions of performance

Peslarmanct scenano Erements of remuner zuonind assumptions

2015 base salaty, allowances,
benefits, and retrement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
asin 2014, maximum ndwidual
annual ncenuve as per policy,
maximum value of 2014 long-term
incentive award

2015 base safary. allowances,
benefits and retrement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
asin 2014 target individual annuat
ncentve as per pohicy, target value
of 2014 long-term incentive award
(Towers Watson's independent
assessment of the expected value
of the award, 1e thenetrpresent
value taking into account all

the conditions)

Masximum

Target

Mingmum 2015 base salary, allowances,
benefirs, and retirement benefits
atthe same percentage of base
salary asin 2014, no annuat or

long-term incentives

Mute The Yaluc offong tesmacennves docs noLtele nvo nccount
divefend awards that 3t e payable o the reicase ofvestncier sharr s
nRr any Canges m share price

On this basss, the relative weighung of fixed and
performance related remuneraton and the absolute
size of the remuner ation packages for the chief executive
and the chief financial officer (as represenced by the
current mcumbent) are as follows on the next page
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 7 — SUMMARY OF REMUMERATION POLICY

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

We wili continue to review the mix of fixed and
performance-hnked remuneraton on an annual bass,
consistent with our overall policy

Recruitment

The commitiee expects any new executive directors
to be engaged on the same terms and to be awarded
variable remuneraton within the same normal invits
and subject to the same conditions as for the current
executve directors outhined in the pohey As clarfied
i the RNS statement of further mformation on the
remuneration policy on 9 Apri 2014, this applies other
than in the circumstances set out below where it s
approprate to take account of the terms of the new
dir ectors’ existing employment and/or their personal
cIrcumstances

The committee recognises that it cannot always
predict accurately the circumstances in which any

new directors may be recruited The commitiee may
determune that it 15 in the interests of the company

and shareholders to secure the services of a

particular indivwdual which may require the committee
to take account of the terms of that individual's exasting
employment and/or ther personal arcumstances
Exarnples of circumstances in which the committee
expects it might need to do ths are outhned in full in the
remuneration policy on the Governance page of the
company's website at www pearson com/governance

In hght of the various legacy pension arrangeiments
enjoyed by the ncumbent execuove directors, in
derermining the pension arrangements for any new
recrut, the committee expects to offer a defined

contbutien arrangement with company contributions
notexceedng those set in our approved policy on

the Governance page of the company s website at

www pearson comigovernance but would have regard
for the recruit s existing arrangements, the market norms
in the home country and the exisung penston vehides
avallable within the company

in maleng any deasion on any aspect of the remunaeration
package for a new recruit, the committee would balance
shareholder expectations, current best pracuce and the
requirements of any new recruit and would strive not to
pay more than s necessary to achieve the recruitment
The comnuttee would give fuli details of the terms of

the package of any new recruitin the next annual
remuneration report

Pearson expects any new charrman or non-executive
director to be engaged on terms that a e consistent

with the general remunerauon prinaples outhned in the
relevant sectons of this policy However, in the case of
the charrman the commitiec may cansider it appropnate
1o offer a remuneration package that differs from that of
the existing ncurmbent if that 1s necessary to aitract the
most capable candidate or to reflect the individual’s
expected duties

Further mformation on remuneration policy

For further informagon on the following aspects of the
remuneration policy, please refer o the full remuneration
policy and the RNS statement of further informaton

on the remuneration policy on 3 April 20(4 on the
Governance page of the company s website at

Www DEearson comigovernance

» Selection of performance measures and target setting

» Legacy arrangements under the annual bonus share
matching plan

s Remuneration policy for other employees

» Service contracts and terminaton Provisions

> Employment condiuons elsewhere in the company
» Executive dit eciors’ non executive directorstups

y Shareholder views
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PART 3 — ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Annual remuneration report

This report comprises of a number of secuons

The remuneranon committee presents the annuat
remuneraton  eport, which will be put to shareholder s
as an adwvisory (non-binding) vote at the Annual General
Meetng to be held on 24 Apnl 2015

Remuneration compliance

This report was compiled 1n accordance with Schedule 8
of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations
2013 and was approved by the board of directors on

9 March 2015

The committee believes that the company has compled
with the provisions regarding remuneration matters
contained within the UK Corporate Govet nance Code

Where required under current regulazions, the tables
marked ‘audit have been subject to audit

The remuneration committee and its
activities on page 90to 93

Voting outcome at 2014 Annual General

Meeung on page 94
Single figure of total remuneration and
prior year comparison on page 95 *audit
Remuneration paid to the charman and
non-executive directors on page 96 ‘audit
Retirement benefits an page 96 audit
Annual incentive on page 97 faudit
Long-term mcenuves on page 98 *audit
Mavements tn directors’ interests In shate
awards on page 99 “audit
Movements in directors’ interests in share
options on page (00 faudht
Payments to former directors on page {00 “audit
Payments for loss of office on page 01 *audit
Interests of directors and value of

~audit

shareholdings on page 102

Executive directors’ non-executive
directorships on page 102

Historical performance and remunerauon
oo page 103

Comparative informauon on page 104

Information on changes to remuneration
for 2015 on page 104 and 105
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

The remuneration committee and I1ts acuvities

Compositon

independent non-execulve
dwector

Chanman  Oand Arculus

;'l_embers Elizabeth Corey

Vivienne Cox independent non executive

Ken Hydon directors

josh Lew:s

Glen Moreno Chatrman of the board

internal  JohnFalion Chief executive

adwisers Robin Freestone  Chief financial officer

Melnda Wolife Chief human resources
fficer
Robert Head VP executive reward &

global shar e plans

Stephen jones SVP company secretarial

Ewternal
adwvisers

Glen Moreno s a member of the conwmittee as permitted
under the UK Corporate Governance Code

Tower s YWaison

Internal advisers provided material assistance to the
commuttee dunng the year They attended meeungs of
the committee. although none of them was nwolved in
any decisions relabing to hus or her own remunerauon

To ensure that the committee receves independent
advice, Towers Watson supplies survey data and advises
on market trends, fong-term ncentves and other general
remuneraton matters Towers Wartson was selected
and appointed by the commmittee through a formal
tendering process Towers Watson also advised the
compary on health and welfare benefits in the US and

provided consulting advice directly to certan Pearson
operating comparies Towers Wartson 1s amember of
the Remuneration Consultants Gr oup, the body which
oversees the Code of Conductin refation to executive
temuneration consulung in the UK

During the year, Towers Watson was pad fees for advice
to the committee, wiich were charged on a ume spent
basis, of £95.100 As partofits annual review of its
performance and effectiveness, the commuittee remains
sausfied that Towers Watson's advice was objecuve and
independent and that Towers Watson's provision of other
services i no way compromises its independence

Committee performance

Annually, the commuttee reviews its own performance,
constiiutron, and charter and terms of reference to
ensure It 1s operating at maximum effectiveness and
recommends any changes it conside: s necessary to

the board for approval

The committee particpated In a SUrvey 1o rfeview Its
performance and effectiveness in july 2014, looking at
areas such as the clanty of roles and responsibiliues, the
composition of the committee, the use of wme, the quahty
and timeliness of meeting materals, the opportunity for
discusston and debate, dialogue with management and
access tondependent advice

The committee concluded that itis operating effectively
and noted the challenges for the year ahead

The commuttee and s members were subject o a
{ormal third-party external evaluaton by JCA Group
of the board, its commuttees and ndidua! directors’
performance which was completed at the end of 2014
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3 — ANNUAL REMUNERATIOM REPORT

Meeungs, actvities and decisions in 2014
The remuner aton comnttee met four umes during 2044, as described below

19 and 20 February
2014

MARKET

GOVERNANCE

23 April

2014

fMPLEMENTATION

Moted Towers Watson s over view of the
current remuneration environment and
2013/2014 market data

PERFORMANCE

MNoted management s overview of 2013
and 2014 perfor mance and plans

IMPLEMENTATION

Reviewed and appiaved the 2013 annual
incentive pay out and 2014 remuneration
package for John Fallon

Reviewed charman'’s remuneratton which
rermaned unchanged

Reviewed and approved 2013 annual
incentive plan pay outs

Reviewed and approved provisional 2011
long-term incentive plan pay-outs {pending
confirmation of TSR performance)

Appr oved vesting of 201 annual bonus
share matching awards and refcase of shares

Noted the acuwity of the standing

committee of the board in relanon
to the operaton of the company's
equity based reward programmes

Noted company s use of equity for
employes share plans

POLICY

Reviewed and approved 2013 direciors
1 eTnUNEl alon report

Reviewed and approved increases
i base salanes for 20{4 {or the
Pearson exeoutive

Reviewed and approved 2014 Pearson
annual incenuve plan targets

Reviewed and approved 201 indwidual
annual mcentve opportuniues for the
Pearson executive

Reviewed fong terrt. mcenuve awards
and associated performance conditions
for the Pear son executive

Reviewed and noted total remuneration
for members of the Pearson executive
for 2013 and 2014

Confirmed m! pay cutwnder 2041 long
term incentive plan

Reviewed and approved 2014iong
term ncentive awards and assoctated
perforrmance conditions for the
Pearson executive

GOVERNANCL

Reviewed and appt oved amendments
\o plan rules for the worldwide save for
shares and fong termincertve plans

POLICY

Consdered appr oach to 2004 long term
ncentive awards for sentor leaders and
manages s below the Pearson execunive

DISCLOSURE

Noted shareholder feedback on 2013
directors' remunerauon report and
ANS statement of fu ther nformauon
on the remuneration policy

REMUNERATION IN ACTION

Shareholding
by executives
supporting
performance
and strategy

Followtng consultatian on our
rernuneration policy approved

by sharcholders i 2014, we
introduced two arrangements
designed to encourage shareholding
by executives and suppart
performance and strategy

Fust under the long-termincenuve
plan we introduced a mandatory
restiction on partuapants’ ability to
dispose of the 75% of shares thatvest
based on performance after three

years (other than to meet personal
tax habilities) for a further two years
Furthermore, participarits’ rights to
the release of the remaining 25%

of the vested shares is subject to
conunued employment over the
same pet lod

Secondly, we increased our
mandatory shareholding puidelines
to 300% of salary for the CEO and
200% of salary for other execuuve
directors These shareholding




23 July

2014

PERFORMANCE

Sectian 4 Grves nange

4 December
2014

MARKET

93

IMPLEMENTATION

Noted management s overview of
2014 performance

GOVERNANCE

Reviewed the committee s charter and
terms of reference

Reviewed the commuttee’s performance

POLICY

Noted update on 2014 long termincentive
awai ds for senior leaders and manages s
below the Pearson excrutive

STAKEHCLDERS

Reviewed 2014 Annual General
Meeting season shareholder votng
and engagernent strategy

guidelines have alse been extended
to other members of the Pearson
executive at 100% of salary

Together, these arrangements clearly
demonstrate the commitment to
sustaned perfor mance and long
termvalue creauon and alignment
wath shareholders’ nterests

MNoted update 10 remunerauon aspects
of the UK Corporate Governance Code
and principles of remuneration of the
Investment Management Association

PERFORMANCE

Noted management s overview of
2014 performance

Noted and reviewed the staws of the
outstanding long term mcenuve awards
based on the current view of ikely Pearson
financial performance

DISCLOSURE

Noted tamplate and oudine of 2014
repor tondirector s’ 1emuneraton and
runsidered sha eholder engagement
stralegy

MNoted remuneration package for new
appotntment to the Pearson execunve,
effecuve | january 2015

Noted exit arrangements for a member
of the Pearson executive

Reviewed operation of the 2014 annual
incentive plan particulatly withregard to
the Pearson executve

Noted 201 tong termincentive awards
for senios leaders and manages s below
Pear son executive

Considered matter of former CEQ's
double taxation i the U5 and UK and
related 1ssues

“Shareholding by senior executives
demonstrates commitment to sustained
performance and long-term value creaton
and alignment with shareholders’ interests.”

Dawvid Arculus Chan man of the remuneranon commitige
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Report on directors' remuneration continued

FART 3~ ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Voung outcome at 2014 Annual General Meeting

The following table summanses the details of votes cast in respect of the resolutions on the report on directors’
1emunerauon at the 2014 Annual General Meeung

Reporr | Votes for Voaes agunst Total voirs Cast Voteswithheld {sherentions)
Remuneration policy 517,308,446 22,905,879 540,214 325 6,004,239
95 76% of votes cast 4 24% of votes cast 65 96% of 1ssued
— - ] . sharecapmal
Annual remuneraton 349,696,505 181,521,643 531,218,148 15000416
report 65 83% of votes cast 34 (7% of votescast 64 86% of issued
share capital

The commitree took this significant vote against the 2013 annual remuneration report very serously and considered the
voung result and shareholder engagement strategy at their April July and December 2014 meeungs

The primary reason for the vote against was deai investors’ objection to the commttee exercrsing its discreton to allow
a portion of Rona Fairhead’s 2011 LTIP award 1o vest without reference o performance The committee acknowledges
that the approved remuneraton policy provides a comprehensive remuneration framework with clear limits and

as a result issues of a simular nature will not arise i the future

We consulted on this voting outcome and this disclosure in the 2014 annual remuneration report with our major
shareholders and shareholder representative bodies, who were broadly sausfied with both the process for engagement

and the explanaton given

As 1n previous years and as required by law, detatls of the voung on ail resolutions at the 2015 Annual General Meeung
will be announced via the RNS and posted on the Pearson website following the Annual General Meeung.
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Single votal figure of remuneration and prior year comparison

Total aggregate emolumentts for executive and non-executive directors were £4,206min 2014 These emoluments are
induded with total employee benefit expense in note 5 to the financal statements (page 141}

Executive directors

The remuneration recewved by executive directors in respect of the financial years ending 31 December 2014 and

3§ December 2013 15 set out below

Executive director remuneratson

Eiument of remunertion John Falien Robin Freestone e Toral
£000s 2014 2013 2014 203 2014 2013
Base salary 761 750 553 545 1314 1,295
Allowances and benefits 83 43 15 14 98 57
Travel 50 I5 12 12 62 27
Healthcare 2 3 2 2 4 5
Rusle 3 25 | - 32 25
Annual ncentives 692 463 365 34t 1,057 804
Percentage of maximum (%) 51% 34% 9% 37% - -
Percentage of target (%) S1% 62% 78% 74% - -
Percentage of salary (%) 9% 62% 66% 63% - -
Long-term mcentives 74 {41 63 i 8 {37 322
Lrie - - - - - -
ABSMP - - - - - -
Dwidend equivalents 74 141 63 18! 37 322
Returement benefits 285 330 [66 163 451 493
Defined contribution cost - - 23 22 23 22
Defined benefit accrual 87 135 - - 87 {35
Allowances in hieu of benefits 198 195 143 14! 341 336

Total remuneration

Single otal fipw e of 1 eamnermuon In accor dance vath the rogulations we show
a single totat figure of remuneration winch ncludes ret.rement benefits and
long termincentives in dsdmon 1o the other elements ofremrunss aucn that
Liave becn chowe in previous reports

Base safary In 1ecordance with policy, the commuttec considered a1 eport from
the cmel executive and chief human resow ces clficer on general pay v ends
nike maret 3ng o o level of pay nurcases across the company s a whele

Tor 2014 the company had rederated s sta ung princsles tha base
cumpensanon prowides the appropreate rare of remuner suon for the job

[ 1KING IDLD ACCOUNL re1ev INT recrutment inarkets. busmess sectors and

geog aphie regions and thet total re muncrauen should 1ewand both shor cand
leng termresults delivermg competitive rewards fm target perinrmiznee , but
hghertewnrds for excepuon il company performance orthe USand LK the
budget gudedne issued ar the end of Sepremiber 233 {or adjusunents o base
pav fixe 2004 weas 3% although business unies with an Apni revew date operated
0 2% safary incregse pood. Local nflationrares and market condiwsens were
tal eninto acrount 1 par ioularmanety

Aftowances aid benedits Travel benehits compnse cotmpany Lai car alfowance
and private use of a driver Health benefus comprre ieatthcare heilth
assessment and gym subsidy Risk benefits comonse sddiionat bfe cover
andlong term disatuhty imsurance in addmwon o the above benefils and
aowinees executive drocion may ko paruopate in company benefi

or policy arrangements that have no taxable va'ue

T he mcrese m trave! beaefiss for john Fallon s atnbetable tothe festfut-year
of ropornng o fxs priva use af a dnverbased on the benefit 1t tand charge
for the 2003/ 2014 tax yoa

B s B o BEETE o7 IR

Annuatincentve For more detal see table on page 97 Annualwcenuves for
the dirertors are funded by Pearson global annuar financial results and pay outs
ke nto account ndradual performance agamut personalobjecoves

Long renn incernves The single figure of remunerauonfor 2014 ndludes ot
iong term incentive awards thitwere subject to a performance condinon
where the perfornaance pertod ended ar was substanuilly (butnos [ully)
completed at 31 Decembor 2014 and awards where the performinnce
condiuon has been satsficd but where the release ofshares i subjet toa
further hotding peciod The same inethodology bas been applied for te single
figure of remuner tion for 2003

th 7014 the performance condisons for te 2002 LRP and 2012 ABSHMPwere
NGL AL 3G there » notdsng Lo epar 7w ihe single figure of remunas iton for
2004 The arecuuve dircctors bath held vested shares under the 2009 LT8
that were refessed on { Aprd 2014 ai the end of the two year bolding perod
ind these shares were part of the single hipure of remungtavonfon 20123
reportedinthe 2012 repor ondrectors remuneranen However die
dividend equiviient shares thagwere awirded and refeased on | Aprd 2014
iave br enmcludea in die sngle T e of remwng ravondor 2084 a- below

Date of
award Numbar Shate price
Direcron and refease of shaies Yalue on1elease
John Fahon I Apr i 7054 £73 644 ' 044 Op
Robin brecsione [ A (4 ) 6_016___ ___1[_(_;3 120 ] 0‘!‘ op

fetirement benafits For more deta ! seeabie on nane 96
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Report on directors’' remuneration continued

PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Chairman and non-execuave directar remuneration
The remuneration pard to the chairman and non-executive directors i respect of the financial year s ending
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 5 as follows

2004 012
Dircetor Sabryi  Commucee  Commitee Taxable " samy? | Commiue  Commuee Toeble
£000s basicfor charmanship membership  SID  benefes  Totat  basche churmamship membershp S benefs  Toul
Glen Moreno 500 - - - - 500 500 ~ - - - 500
Dawid Arculus 68 21 4 - 2 105 65 20 - [ 96
Elizabeth Corley
{appointed
| May 2014} 47 - 4 - I 52 - - - - - -
Vivienne Cox 68 7 22 2l 6 124 65 - 15 20 5 105
Ken Hydon 68 27 g8 - 8 1 65 25 5 - 5 100
josh Lewis 68 - 8 - 9 85 65 - i3 - 9 87
Linda Lorimer 68 - 17 - 8 93 33 - - - 3 36
Harish Manwani 68 - 4 - 7 79 16 - - - l 17
Total 955 55 77 28 41 L1499 809 45 $3 20 24 94

Noto Taxabie benefirs refon to trave! acconmadauon and subsitence expens es men redwhile atiending boird mes ungs dunng 2044 that were p nd or reimburst o
by the compary which sre deermed by HMRC 1 be 1axable mrhie Ui The amounts i the @ble absve melude the grossed up cost of UK tax tobe paid by the
company on behalf ofthe directars Total remunerauon for 2013 s re steted w incude thesewaxabie expenses The company ks made a volunt iy diclosre 1o
HMRC 1o cettle the 1ax hability for 1axable expenses i prior tx yedr s

Retirement benefits

Details of the directors’ pension entitlements and pension refated benefits during the year are as follows

Vyueal Other pension

Accrued  defined benelit costs to the Othe
Normai pension at pension over  campany over allowancesin - Toryl annual
retirement U Dec 14 the period the perind  heu of pension  value in 2014
Director Plans age £000"' £000? oo™ £000" £000
john Pearson Group Pension Plan Accrual
Fallon rate of 1/30th of pensionable salary
per annum Taxable and non-
pensionable cash supplement 62 807 867 - 197 7 2844
Robin Money Purchase 2003 section of the
Freestone Pearson Group Pension Plan Taxable
and non-pensionable cash supplement 62 - - 226 143 4 1660

Note F Theacerued penston at 31 December 201415 the deferred pension tawbich the member woid be entriled on ceasing penmonible servicean 3 Deven her
2014 For john Faflon i relat s 1o the pensan pastble ramthe UK plan Rotin Freesuonc does rat scaue defined benefirs

MNote 2 This column compatses the mcreasen ke directors acorued pension over the penod (netofnflaont mluphed by 20 and from vduch the dirrciors
contnbipons are deducted

Mote 3 Finscntumn compnses contnbiutons ec defmedd comnbution arranpernents for LUK be nefies
Neste 4 This cofumn repi esents the ¢ ish aflowanses pad miew of the previous FURBS 1 e anpoments for jehnTalnn andRoebanliecone
Mote S Total amusl vafue i die s)um of the previaus thr ce eziumns

Note b There are no addimonal benefis or speaal an angements under the resresnent plans for directors who renre before thow normal retirernent date
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Annual incentive pay-out m 2014

For 2014 annual incentives were funded by Pear son globat annual financial results based on the perfol mance measures
set out below trndividual pay-outs talee inte account performance against personal objectives Actual perfor mance agamst

the financial tai gets for 2084 was as follows

Actual Pay-out

Threshold Tyrget Mawimun  performance In 2014

Measures Weighting for 2014 for 2014 for 2014 in20i4  (%ofrargec)
Group EPS (p) 60% 570 682 795 667 86%
Group sales (£m) 20% 4,695 4995 5295 4,883 63%
Operating cash flow (£m) 20% 5655 678 6 97 _648 3 4%
Tortal 100% 79%

Nete | Petson s reported hinanual results for the refevait peuod wes e used to measure perfonmance

MNate 2 The annu il wce e plan 1s desgned 1o meeniase ards ewt d under fpng porformance exclad ng the effect of foreign cuchange and pordoke changes

fac quisiuons anifdbpoaals) and other factor s that she commuree Lonsiders relevant i the perfor inance year Targets thresholds and maxima e gapressed at
2014 acwal exchange rates (L4 §1 6488} Thotargets thresholts and ma i wer e arignally setat phan exchange rates (1 $1 60} and hiwe becn wusted ro actnt
crchange  aes for compu son g umt s¢tual pesformance 1o negate the ofect of eabange rate movemnents

Note 3 No dacl cuon has been exerased ro adjust the resuling underfying pay-outs
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3~ ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Long-term incentives

The status of outstanding awards under the long -tertm ncenuve plan (LTIP} and the legacy annual bonus share matching
plan (ABSMP} and performance against the pet formance conditions as at 31 December 2014 are deserbed in the

table below

For each executive director, details of awards under the LTIP and ABSMP that were awarded, vested, released, lapsed
or held dunng 2014 are summansed in the adjacent table

Status of outstanding awards under the lang-term incentive plan and annua! bonus share matching 1 2014

Share
price %ol
Dareof on dare Vesting Performance Performance Pay-out at Pay-cut at Actual  award
Plan award of award date measures penod threshold maxmum  performance vested Status
LTIP 1 May 2084 1 102 Op t May 2017 Relavve TSR 2014 30% at median HO0% at upper - Dutstanding
02017 guat ule subject 1o
performarce
ROIC 016 30%JorROIC  100% for ROIC
of 6 5 of 7 5%
EPS growth 2016 comparcd 30% for EPS 100% for EPS
020(3 powthole 0% growthof 12 0%
LTIP 1 May20i3 L IB30p! May 2016 Redawwe TSR 2013 30% aumedian  H00% atupper - Ouwstanding
10 2016 quarnle rubject o
fi
RQIC 005 %o ROIC  100% for ROIC petiormance
of B 5% of 12 5%
EPSgiowth 2015 compared 300 for EPS 100% for £PS
102012 growthol6 0% growthnef (2 0%
LTIP  2May 2002 {16 Dp2 Mav 2015 Refatuve TSR 2012 30%atmedian  100% atupper {dy il Esumated
0 2015 quarule  porcentde 1o lapLe
w2015
ROIC 204 0%lorROIC  100% for ROIC 5 6% Nt Wiillapse
of8 5% of 10 5% n 2015
EPS growth 2014 compared 30% far EPS 100%. for FPS 8 1% Nt Witlfapse
102001 prowthofl6 0% growtholi2 0% n 0I5
ABSMP I5™May {206 0p  [15Myy Realcompound 2012 S0% of matchuing 100% of matching - ~  OQuistanding
2004 2016 annua EPS to 2015 awaid for £PS award lor EPS subjectto
growth prowthof3 0%  growthof 3 0% pet fotmance
ABSMP 15May 1,{520p  [5May Real compound 2011 50% of matchung 100% of matching 105% Nit  Pe:iformance
2042 20i5 annual FPY 2014 awmdforEPS  awardior EPS condimon
growth mowthof3 0% growthaf 5 0% normer
Wit [apse

n J0i5
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Movements 1n din ectors’ interests in share awards during 2014

Oridends
MNumbes of awarded Numbs s of
shareg as ac and shares as at
Plzn Cateofaward  Vesungdate | [an 2014 Awarded  Released released Lapsed 3 Dec 2014 Stacus
john Falloa
LT ! May20{4 [ May 2017 0 274000 - - 274000  Outstangmg subjectto petformance
L TP I May20i3 | May20f6 250000 - - - - 250000 Quusuinding <wbjertio performance
LTIP 2May 2012 2May 2015 00000 - ~ 100000 0 Expected to lipse n 2045
LTe TMar 2000 3 Mar 2003 13752 - - - - 13752 Vested and held until 3 Mas 2045
{75% vested shares released in 2043)
LTip 3Mar 2009 3Mar2012 29 887 - 19B87 7054 - 0 Redeased | Apr20i4
{75% vosted sharcs relensed in 2012)
ABSMP 15 May 2003 15 May 2016 6083 - - - 6083  Ousianding subject 1o per formance
ABSMP 15 May 2012 15 May 2015 8917 - - - 8% 0 Will lapse 11 2015
Tolal 408 63% 274000 25887 7054 108917 5434835
Robin Freestone
17IP i May2014 | May 2007 0 162000 - - i62 000 OQutstanding subject to performance
LTP FMay 2003 {May20id 150000 - - 150000 Qutstanding subjert o perforiance
(TP IMay 2012 LMoy 2005 100000 - - -~ 100000 0 Fxpreted o lapse in 2615
LTIP 3Mar2C0 3144y 2013 H 460 - - 1i 460 Vested and held untl 3 Mar 2005
{75% vested shares released in 2003)
LTie 3Mar2009% 3 Mar 2012 25617 - 25617 6046 - 0 Released | Apr 2014
{75% vested shares refeazedin 2012)
ABSMP 15May 2012 (5 May 2015 17833 - - - 17833 0 Willlpsen 2015
Toal 304910 162000 25617 6046 117833 323460

Note | Forall awirds Pearsons it purted finarm abs esults (or the 1elevant
period were used o i asure perfon mance andno diso etan has
been exerosed

t lote 2 Vesied means wbenz awards e on lonoer subacrin erlnmnnge
condivors Reteased means wher e shay exhave heentranserred to
partropams Held ineans where awards have vested but shares an held
pendog relgise on the relevant anmversary of the award date. Questanding
means awards that have been granted but are solf suppect 1o she echit vernen:
of performance cond Lona Dindends 1 efers .o dvndend equivilent shares thay
have been added withouwr per fonnaence condimons to vested sharesunder the

1 HP 3nd refease d mmediately on 2 v wd

Nore 3 WNo vav uons to germs wnd (ondiioas of plininter ests were inwde
during the yer

iNote 4in relanen wetbe LTIP award made on { May 2004 pay cutis 500 of
mwanumferananmen of RO/C of 1%

ee 5 For the LTIP award mde on 2 My 2002 nd duc to ves.on 7 May 2015
wez e esumated the out-turn of the refauve TSR performance condinon
based on performance as at'9 February 2015 av nil, actual refauve

TSR pen formanc s diffeccin on the date of vesing vee wall set tis outin

the ann sal remuneranon cporifor 1015

MNute & The single [ gure of remund rinondor 2014 ncisdes o wards thacwese
wubyect to a perforrnance condimon where e performance period ended or
ws substanuaily {but not fully) completed, & 31 Deremuer 2014 and awards
where the performinee condinon has been sausfied butwhere the refease of
shdares i subedt to afurther holding petwod T4 same methodo'ogy has been
apphicdfor carlion penods and the smgle figure for ez er reporung puanids hns
beeni estated where necasgiry

Note / The value of shares mcwded in the single fipur e cf Lo e ation s the
munber o shares msdnphed by the shere pace oprefuase

Nate & The value of gre L TIP awards in 2004 for the exerutwe daectors s shownbelows based onashiare price on the date of award of £ 102 0p

oo T e e Valur for

threshold

Face vaduc performance

Vesang Mumber Tace value {% of 2014 {hof 2014

Chrector Dite of award date of shares L3 salary} szlary)
john Falton [ May 2061 [ May 2007 174 000 €3 0{9 480 3977, 119%
Robwin Freastone | May 2014 1 May 1017 102 OO0 £1 785 240 323% A
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPCRT

Movements in dinectors’ interests in share options during 2014

john Fallon and Robin Fr eestone afso hotd oprons under the worldwide save for shares plan as foliows

Number of sha ¢z

undet opuan Earhest Value i 2014

Dhie of held as Qption exerent Expuy singie figure

Director grant 3t Dec 2014 price dato date £000
john Fallon 7 May 2010 1,930 BOS 6p | Aug LS | Feb 16 0
o i 30 Apr 014 1,109 ) l}_l_l_ZE [ Aug | 7»_“ ‘_I_F_ezb_lii o 0
Robin Freestone 4 May 2012 990 909 Op | Aug tS | Feb 16 0
30 Ap1 2014 {.109 8ii2p _L}i\ugl?_ L !mFgl_a_l_8~ o 0

tNote | No shai o option awards were vestrd or werg exerased mthe year

Nete 2 No vanations to terms and ronditions of share opuions wei e niade durig the year

Not 3 Acqusinon of shianes under the warldweidr save foor shares phin s not subject to 1pet formance condition

tNote 4 All share opuans thit become exercsable dunng a yoar are meluded in the single figu e of rordl reuneraonfor that year The value nclude d s the sngle
figus € of total 1 emunes atson 1 1he rumber of opuons nilvpl ed by the difference beiween the value on grant and the miket value onthe carliest everrise date
Mo slure oprions were exercrs bie durng 2014 and so there s nothing to nglude v the single fgure oftold eruneranion for 1014

Nove 5 rhe market price on 31 December J014 was § 190 Op per shant and the range durng the year was 996 Op o | 340 0p

Payments to former directors

{tis the committee’s ntention to disclose any payments
to pastdirectors mcluding the release of share-based
awards post-departure

The number of shares retamed from the number of
shares originally awarded takes into account lapses due
to performance, releases pror to ceasing to be a director
and pro-ratng for service m the performance perod
(where applied)

2012 long-term incentive awards

As set out in the annual remuneration report for 2013,
Marjorie Scardine Rona Fairhead, John Malanson and
Will Ethndge retained long-term incentive plan awards
made on 2 May 2012, all subjectto performance. As
disclosed elsewhere in this report, these awards are
expected to lapse in 2015

Wil Echridge

As set out m the anaual remuneration report for 2013,
Will Echridge stepped down from the board on

31 December 2013 He contnued to be eligble for the
samie base safary, annual incenuve and other benefits n
accordance with his service agreement wath the cormpany
unul he retred on 31 December 2014 No compensaton
for tass of office or severance was paid on his stepping
down from the board, oron his retirement

As also reported in the annual remuneration report for
2013 Wil Ethridge retained 100,000 (two thuds) of the
shares awarded on | May 2013 The cammuttee also
approved an award of 116 000 performance refated
shar es for Will Ethridge for 2014 on the same terms as
the 2014 awards for members of the Pearson execuuve
{n accordance with policy and after having carefully
considered alt relevant factors the commuttee further
deternuned in its absolute discreuon that on bus
retrement from the company on 31 December 2014,
WVill Ethridge would retain a pro-rata entitlement of
one-third of this award (1 e 38,666 shares) which would
vest or not, subject to performance n 2017

Marjorie Scardino

Because of payroll processing errors during the years
2007 to 2010, taxes deducted from Marjone Scardino’s
compensation were incorrectly allocated by Pearson
among tax authonties in the UK and the US This resulted
in her being subject to temporary double taxation The
committee has concluded in principle that Pearson should
reimbur se {on an after-tax basis) certam costsncurred
by Marjone Scardino i funding a proporucn of the
double-tax obligaton Detads of any reimbursement wil
bemduded i a subsequent annual remuneration report

MNon-execunive directors

The company’s voluntary disclosure to HMRC regarding
the taxable reimbursement of expenses for tax years
prior to 2014 inciudes non-executive directors who are
no longer employed by the company
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Payments for loss of office

As announced to the stock exchange on 24 October 2014 and 27 February 2015, Robin Freestone will be stepping down
from the board on | August 2015 and feaving the company during 2015 There will be no payment tor loss of office

At the time of wiriting no further decisions have been made about whether and how the committee right exercise its
discretion under Pearson's discretionary share plans |n accordance wath pohicy, the committee will have regard to al
relevant circumstances including distinguishing berween different types of leaver the arcumstances at the ume the award
was ongnally made, bis performance, and the arcumstances in which he left employment in the event that discreuon is
so exercised m Robin's favour, the details will be included in a subsequent annual remuncraton report

Directors’ interests in shares and value of shareholdings

Directors’ interests
The share interests of the contiuing directors and their connected persons are as follows

Number of Number of  Totat number of

T e condonmisbares Value Guidelme Gurdetine
Director at 31 Dee 14 ac 31 Dec 14 a1 3F Dec 14 (% salat y) (% mrlary) mes
Chairman
Glen Moreno 200,000 -- - — - -
Execunve directors
John Fallon 282,147 {3,752 295 899 549% 300% v
Robin Freestone 504,283 11460 515,743 1317% 200% v
Non-execuuve director s
Dawvid Arculus 17,117 - - - - _
Elizabeth Corley 468 - - - - -
Vivienne Cox 2,123 - - - - -
Ken Hydon 18.634 - - - - -
Josh Lewis 6632 - - - - -
Linda Lornmer §.58¢ - - - - -
Harish Manwar |.39% - - - - s

Note | Condional shares means shareswh ch have vested but remam held subject to contnuing empoymen for apre-defned holding penod

Nrte 2 The currant value of the exerutive drectors’ holdings of ordiniry and condnanad shares 1 based on the mide’s market value of Pearson shares of 1 420p
on 27 Fubruary 2015 ag unst base salarew m 2014 All executive directors comfortabiv Lrceeded the shaeholdmg guvtelines The shareholdmg puidetines do ner
apply Lo the churman and non executive dierLors

Note 3 Ordinary shares inclune botn orduw y shares histed on tre L ondon Stock Fxehange and American Depositary Recerpts {(ADRs) listed on the New Yock
Stoct Exchange The fipures mefude bath shares and ADPS aequirce by mdnaduals inensting partafthen awn afier tas anntial bonus i Pearson shares under the
annwl borus shave maicling plan

Nore 4 The regisier o drecrors’ mierests { 4chs open 16 wspection dunng narmal offire hours) contant fufl dotals of directris “hu eholdings and cpunas 1o
tubserbe for shires The marleer price on 31 Decembr 2014 war 1 90 Op per share and the range aunng the year w is 998 Cpto | 340 Op.

ute 5 Therewdr e no maverients in ordinary slar cshotween 1 janusey 2015 and ¢ snumth poer to the sign-ofl of this repor t

Nore & Ordimary shares do notinelade any shares verred but held pending refe ise undir a resimicied share plan
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Report on directors’ remurneration continued

PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Interests of directors and value of shareholdings

IMAGE REMOVED

Shareholding guidelnes

Executive directors are expected to build up a substanual
shareholding In the company in ine with the policy of
encouraging widespread employee ownership and to
align further the interests of execuuves and shareholders
With effect from 2014, target holding s 300% of salary
for the chief executive and 200% of salary for the other
executive directors

Shares that count towat ds these guidelines indude any
shares held unencumbered by the executive, their spouse
and/or dependent chuldren pius any shares vested but
held pending release under a restricted share plan
Executive directan s have five years from the date of
appointment to reach the guideline

With effect from 2014 these gindelmes have been
extended to include all members of the Pearson e<ecutve
at 100% of salar y

The shareholding guidelnes do not apply to the chanrman
and non-executive directors However, a mmimum of
25% of the basic non executive directors’ fee s paid in
Pearson shares that the non-executive directors have
committed to retain for the period of their directorships

Diluuon and use of equity

We can use existing shares boughtin the market treasury
shares or newly-issued shares to sausfy awai ds underthe
company s various share plans

For restncted stodc awards under the long-term incentive
plan and matching share awards under the annual boniss
share matching plan, we would normally expectto use
exisung shares

There are limits on the amount of new-issue equity we
canuse Inany roling ten-year period, no more than {0%
of Pearson equity will be issued, or be capable of being
issued, under all Pearson's share plans, and no more than
5% of Pearson equity will be issued, or be capable of being
1ssued, under executive or discretionary plans

At 3! Decernber 2014 stock awards to be satisfied by
new-1ssue equity granted in the last ten years under al
Pearson share plans amounted to | 7% of the company's
1ssued share capital No stock awards granted in the last
ten years under executive or discretionary share plans
will be sausfied by new-1ssue equity

In addion, for exisung shai es, no maore than 5% of
Pearson equity may be held i trust atany ume Against
this ez, shares held in trust at 31 December 2014
amounted to 0 9% of the company's 1ssued share capital

I he headr oom avallable for all Pearson plans, execunve or
discreuonary plans and shares held i trustis as follows

Headi oom 04 2003 2002
All Pearson plans 83% 84% B3%
Executve or discretonary plans  50%  50% 50%
Shares heid m trust 41% 38% 38%

Executive directors’ non-executive directorships

Executive directors served as non-executive di ectors
elsewhere but either wawved or did not receve fees
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Historicat performance and remuneration
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Total shareholder return performance

We sat out befow Pearson's total shareholder return
{TSR) performance relauve to the FTSE All-Share index
on an annual basis over the six-year pernod 2008 to 2014
This companson has been chosen because the FTSE
All-Share represents the broad market index within IMAGE REMOVED
which Pearson Shares are traded TSRs the measure

of the returns that a company has provided for its
shareholders, reflecting share price movements and
assuming reinvestment of dvvdends (source DataStream)

in accordance with the reporung regufattons, this section
also presents Pearson'’s TSR performance alongside the
single figure of total remuneration for the CEQ over the
last six year s and a summary of the variable pay outcomes
relative to the prevalding maximum at the ime The table
below summarises the total remuneraton for the CEQ
over the last five years and the outcomes of annual and
long-term ncentive plans as a pt oportion of maximum

FONYHYCHIYId ¥N0O |
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Fanca' yoar ending

Total remuneration — John Fallon

(single figure, 000s) - - - - b727 {895

LIvdiI TViD0S 4N0O I

Total remuneration ~ Marjore Scardina

{(single figure, 000s} 6370 8,466 8,340 5,330 - -

Annual incentive — incumbent
(% of maximum) 91 3% 92 1% 757% 2472% 34 3% 50 5%

Long-term incentive — Incumbent
(% of maximum)

80 0% 97 5% 68 3% 367% Nl N

Antualincennve i the acrual annuat ncentive recesved by the incumbent as 4 pereentage af maximum oppor tunaty

o
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Long-termncentive ts the pay our of performances elated resiricied sharesunder the long termincenuve plan where the yearshuwn v the final ycar of the
performance period fur the purposes of calrulanng the single total figur e of remunersvon

Totul remuneratin - john Falion john Fallon s total remunc anon opportimity 1s luwer than that of the previcus mcumbent Variahle pay ours under the antwal
and tong-terin sngentive plans reflect performance for the 1 elevan penads
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Compa auve information

Information on changes to remuneration far 2015

The following mformauon s ntended to prowvide
addironal context regarding the total remuneration for
executve directors

Relatwe percentage change in remuneration for CEO
The following table sets out the change between 2013
and 201410 three elements of remuneraton for the CEO,
tn comparison to the average for all cmployees

While the commuttee considers the mcrease in base pay
for the CEO relatve to the broader employee populaton
benefits are driven by local practices and eligibiity 1s
determined by level and indnadual crcumstances which
do notlend themselves to camparison

Allowances
Bise and Annual
sthry benefits incentives Tortal
CEO 5% 93% 49% 22%
All ermployees 1% 9% 4% 0%

Note ) The figures forall minployees reflect aves agc s rianes and average
employee numbers eachyear Amwradincenives nciude f plans inc'udinp
sales INCERDIvES

Note 2 The mereass in alowances and annethincentves {or john Faltonis
attnbutabic respectvely to (al the firr {ull year ol reporung of bus prvate use
of a driver based on the benedit in-lund charge for the 201372044 tax yoar
and {b} the year on yearincrease mhis payout under the Pearsonannuaf
meentive plan

Relauve importance of pay spend

The committee considers directors’ remuneration in the
context of the company’s atacation and disbursement
of resources to different stakeholder's

In partcular, we chose operaung profit because this
15 a measure of our ability to remvest in the company
We indude dwvidends because these constitute an
important element of our return to shareholders

Year-on year change

fm 2014 2013 £m a
Operaung profit 722 736 -4 2%
Duadends 397 372 25 7%

(,836 -i08

Total wagesand salares 1,728 -6%

tvote | Operaens profics 1 set outimn the finanoal statements

Neote 2 Wigns and malares mclude contmung operzuons onfy andarbude
dwrectors 2013 s restated i the sante bans Average vrnployee nbzers foe
continurg operarons for 2014 wey e 40 876 (2013 47 {5 Furthr detaikare
setout nnote b oo the financal statements on page 141

Executive directors’ base safaries

We have under taken a regular periodic review of base
safaries for 2015, taking into account general economic
and market conditions, the level of ncreases made across
the company as a whole, the remunerauon of executives
i simvlar posiions in camparable companies and
indwidual performance

As a result of this review, the 2015 base salares for the
CEO and CFO a1 e as folfows

Join Robin
£000s Fallan Froestong
Base salary at
3! December 2014 £765 £556

£i53 £0
Increase

2% 0%
Base salary at
{ April 2015 £7803 £ 556

Annual incentve

The key design principles underlying the company's
approach to annual mcentives for 2015 are the same as
for 2014, namely

» Full ahgnment of annual incentives with the global
educauon strategy to reinforce a ‘one Pearson’ focus

» A clear, transparent, coherent, consistent, organmsaton-
wide approach to incentives and performance
management with a common incentive framework for
Lines of Business, Geograptues and enabling funcuons

» The size of the overall annual incentive pay-out will be
nked to overall Pearson performance

For 2015, there will be no change to the overall Pearson
performance measures, namely adjusted earnings per
share (60% weighting) sales (20%) and cash flow {20%)

The Peas son financal targets will be set each year as part
of the normal operating plan process The CEO and CFO
will recommend the overall Pearson incentve funding
metncs (ncduding performance measures, targets and
weighungs) to the committee for approval in the

normal way




There will be no change in indvidual annual incentive
oppartunities for the executive directors and the
Pearson executive

Annual ncentive pay-outs are deterrined according o a
combination of Pearson-wide perfermance and individual
goals The sum of the CEC's and the Pearson executives'
on-target’ annual incentive consututes the mcenave pool
for this group wiich flexes up or down based on overafl
Pearson performance Indwidual performance 1s assessed
aganst goals set at the start of the year Indvidual pay-outs
up to indevidual maximum opportumties and within the
total pool are recommended by the CEQ (or by the
chairman in the case of the CEO himself) for review and,
in the case of the execuuve directors, for approval by
the committee

The committee considers the per formance targets for
2015 to be commercially sensiuve Details of performance
measures, weighungs and targets will be disclosed inthe
annual remuneration report for 2015 fand to the extent
that the commuttee deerns thern to be no longer
commercally sensitive

Long-term incentives

The committee will continue to operate the fong-term
mcentive plan for the executwe directors and other
members of the Pearson executive i line with the
arrangements outlined in the 2013 report on directors’
remuneration

» The weighting of the performance metrics will be half
on earnings per share growth, one-third on return
on investea capital and one-sixth on relative total
shareholder return

» Performance wilf be tested over three years and 75% of
the vested shares will be released at that point However,
there is a mandatory restriction on participants’ ability
to dispose of the 75% of the vested shares (other than
to meet personal tax liabidmes) for a further two years
Furthermore, parttcipants’ nghis to the release of the 25%
of the vested shares are subject to contnued employment
over the same petiod

Section 4 {ay vrrwng {05

» For 2015 and orwards, the averaging penod for the
calculation of refative total shareholder return will be
moved to the penod runmng up to the year end and
the length of the averaging period wilt be increased to

three months

{n addition, we will reduce the proportion of the
maximum award that vests for threshold performance
on all measures from 30% to 25% m line wath insttutional
investors preferences

At the ume of wriung, the committee has yet to approve
the 2015 long-term incentive awards and the assocated
performance targets for the executive directors and other
members of the Pearson executive

We will set the Jevel of indsvidual awards consistent with
those seen m recent years and within the policy maximum
taking into account

» The face value of individual awards at the time of grant,
assuming that performance targets are metin fult

» Market practice for comparable comparies and
market assessments of total remuneration from our
independent advisers

» Indnedual roles and responsibilities
y Company and individual performance

We will set targets for the 2015 awards that are consistent
with the company's strategic objectives over the period

10 2017

Full details of indvidual awards for the executve direcrors
and the performance targets for 2015 will be set outin the
annual remuneration report for 2015
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Report on directors’ remuneration contsaued

PART 3~ ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Appointment of CFO

As announced to the stock exchange on 27 February
2015, Coram Williams wifl join Pearson as CFO designate
on L july, and sueceed Robmn Freestone as CFO on

| August, when he will also replace Robin on the Pearson
board as an executive director Full details of the terms
of Coram's remuneration package wil be nduded in the
annual remuneration report for 2045

The package wil be n accordance with, and within the
lievuts of, our approved remuneration policy and wil
comprise nter alia a base salary of £5¢5,000 per year,
an annual incentive opportunity of 85% of salary at target
{up to 170% of salary at maximum) with any pay-out

for 2015 being calculated pro-rata for bis service,
muscellaneous and famuly relocation allowances and
temnporary accommodation assistance In accorgance
with policy, membership of the Firal Pay Section of the
Pearson Group Pension Plan with an accrual rate of

[ 760th of pensionable salary, subject to the Plan earnings
cap (£145 800 per year for the 201472015 tax year), in
accordance with earlier commitments given to fim
about the arrangements that would apply should he
rejoin Pearson in the UK having moved from Pearson to
Penguin US and subsequently Pengun Random House,
and eligibility for long-term incentive awards on the terms
normally apphicable to executive directors and other
members of the Pearson executive Full detalls of us
award will be disclosed in the 2015 1 eport on directors’
remuneration There will be no compensation for
incentves foregone at bus previous employer

in accordance with poficy, the perod of notice he
would be required to give to terminate his employment
would be 6 months and that which he would be entitted
10 recewve from the company would be 12 months

In circumstances of termmation of employment without
cause, he would be entitled to contraciual pay-in-leu
of notrce comprising 12 months’ base salary and annual
cost of providing pension and other benefits {but
excluding annual incenuve) Paymentin teu may be
pad (0 instalments and subject to reduction taking nto
account alternative employment

Chawrman and non-executive directors

The salary for the chairman and fees for the non-executive
directors reman unchanged for 2015 Full details will be
set outin the annual remuneration report and induded

w the single figure of total remuneraton for 2015

IMAGE REMGVED

Davtd Arculus Di ector
9 March 2015
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Pages 57 1o | {2 of this document comprise the directors’
reportfor the year ended 3| December 20{4

Otherinfoy mauon that s 1equired by the Compares Act
2006 (the Act) to be included in the directors’ report,
and which 1s incorparated by reference, can be located
as follows

See more

Summary disclosures index

Dividend recommendation pi2

Financal instruments and financral risk management  Note {9

Important events since yeat end pl93
Futur e development of the business p06-09
Research and development activities pH3
Employment of disabled persons p50
Employee involvement p48
Greenhouse gas emissions p53

There s no information to be disclosed i accordance
with Lisung Rule 98 4

Golng concern

Having reviewed the Group's iquid resources and
borrowing faciities and the Group’s 2015 and 2016 cash
flow forecasts, the directors believe that the Group has
adequate resaurces to conunue as a gomg concern for at
least the next [2 months For this reason, the finanaat
statements have, as usual, been prepared on that basis
Informauon regarding the Group's borrowing liabiliies
and financral risk management can be found in notes 18
and 19 on pages 164 1o 172

Share capital

Details of share 1ssues are givenin note 27 o the
accounts on page 186 The company has a single class of
shar es which 1s divided into ordinary shares of 25p each
The ordinary shares are 1n registered form As at

31 December 2014, 819 882,967 ordinary shares were in
issue Atthe AGM held on 25 Apnl 2014 the company
was autholised, subject to certain condiions, to acquire
up to 81,903 781 ordinary shares by market purchase
Sharehelders will be asked to renew this authonity at the
AGM on 24 Apnil 2015

information provided to the company pursuant to

the Fmanaat Conduct Authority’s Disdosure and
Transparency Rules (OTR) 1s published on a Regulatory
Informauon Service and on the company s website

As at4 March 2015, beng the latest pracucable date
before the publicauon of this report, the company had
been noufied under DTRS of the followng stgnificant
voung rghts in its shares

Percentape

Nuwmber of s at dote of

vabng ngho nevficaton

BlackRocle, nc 41458 030 505%

Annual General Meetng

The notice convening the AGM, to be held at 12 noon
on Friday, 24 Aprit 2015 at B Northumberiand Avenue,
London WC2N 5BY, 1s contained 1n a arcular to
shareholders to be dated 20 March 2015

Registered auditors

In accordance with section 489 of the Act, a
resolution proposing the reappomtment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) as auditors 1o
the company will be proposed at the AGM, at a level
of remunerauon to be agreed by the directors

Auditors’ independence

Inime with best pracuce, our relavonship with Pw(C s
governed by our external auditors pohicy, which is
revtewed and approvad annually by the audit committee
The pehicy establishes procedures to ensurce the audnors'
independence 1s not compramised, as well as defining
those non-audit services that PwC may or may not
provide to Pearson

These allowable services are in accerdance with relevant
UK and US legislauon The audit committee approves all
auditand non-audit services provided by PwC Certan
catepories of allowable non-audit services have been
pre-approved by the audit commuttee subject to the
authortues below

> Pre- approved non-audit services can be authonsed by
the chief financia officer up to £100 000 per project,
subject to a curnudative it of £500,000 per annum
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Additional disclosures continued

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

» Acquisiuon or disposal transacuons and due diigence
up to £100,000 per project may be performed by our
external auditors, in hght of the need for canfidentiality
Any project/transacuon gencrating fees in excess
of £i00,000 must be specffically approved by the
audit committee

» Tax compliance and related actvities up to the greater of
£1,000 000 per annum or 50% of the external audit fee

s For forward-looking tax advisory services we use the
most appropnate adwiser, usually after a tender process
Where we decide o use our ndependent auditors,
authonty, up to £100,000 per project subjectto a
curmulanve inue of £500,000 per annum, has been
delegated by the audit committee to management

Services provided by PwC above these limits and al other
allowable non audit serwices, irrespective of value, must

be approved by the audit commuittee VWhere appi opriate,

services will be tendered prior to 2 deasion being made
as to whether to award work to the auditors

The audit committee recerves regular teports
summansing the amount of fees paid to the auditors
During 2014, Pearson spent considerably less on non-
audit fees with PwC compared to 2013, when there was
sigmficant expenditure refated to spectfic assurance and
tax advisory services assocrated with the creanon of the
venture between Penguin and Random House For 20i4,
non audit fees represented 37% of external audit fees
{89% n 2013)

For all non-audit worl in 2014, PwC were selected only
after consideration that they were best able to provide
the services we required at a reascnable fee and within
the terms of our external auditors policy Toassistn
ensuring that independence and objectvity s mamtaned,
for forward-looking tax advisory and due diligence work
Pw(C assign a different partner from the one leading the
external audit

Significant non-audit work performed by Pw( during
2014 ncluded

» Tax comphiance ser vices refated to a rouune audit by
the US Internal Revenue Service

» Tax advisot y worl on a number of UK, US and
nternatonal tax matters

» Audit refated work i refation to potenuial and actual
corporate finance transactions

» Assw ance services on a corporate bond 1ssued in
May 2014

A full statement of the fees for audit and services s
provided in note 4 to the accounts on page 140

Fair, balanced and understandable reporung

As required by the Code, we have established
arrangements to ensure that all informauon we

report to investors and regulators 1s far, balanced

and understandable A process and umnetable for the
production and approval of this year's report was agreed
by the board and audit commuttee at their meetings in
December 2014 The full board then had opportunity 1o
review and comment on the report as it progressed

Representatives from financial reporting, corporate
affairs, company secretanal and internal audit and
compliance are nvolved in the preparation of the Annual
report to ensure a cohesive and balanced approach and,
as with all of our-financial | eporaing, our disclosure
committee conducts a thorough verification of narrabve
and financial statements

The audit committee 1s also avalable to advise the board
on certain aspects of the report. to enable the directors
to {ulfit thesr responstbility in thus regard

Director s in office

The following directors were m office during the year and
up untl signing of the financal statements

G R Moreno

] Fallon

R A D Freestone

T D G Arculus

E P L Corley (apponted | May 2014)
V Cox

iKjHydon

S| Lewis

L K Lonmer

H Manwaru

T Score {appomted | January 2015)




Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual
repot ¢, the report on directors’ remuneration and the
financial statements n accordance with applicable faw
and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under thatfaw the
directors have prepared the Gioup and parent company
financal statements in accordance with Intermatonal
Financral Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union Under company law the directors must
not approve the financiaf statements unless they are
sausfied that they give a true and far view of the state of
affarrs of the company and the Group and of the profit or
loss of the Group for that period

I preparing these financial statements. the directors
arerequired to

» Select suntable accounting policies and then apply
thern consistently

> Malke judgements and accounting esumates that are
reasonable and prudent

» State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the
European Unton have been followed, subject o any
matenal departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements

» Prepare the financal statements on a going concem basis,
unless it 1s mappropriate to presume that the company
and/or the Group will continue m busiress

The directors are responsible for keeping adeguate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions a2nd disclose with reasonable
accuracy atany urne the financial position of the company
and the Group and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements and the report on directors’
remunerauon comply with the Act and, as regards

the Gioup finanaal statements, Arude 4 of the [AS
Regufation They are also responstble for safeguiarding
the assets of the company and the Group and hence for
takung reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularines

Secuon 4 G0 einangs 09

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integ ity of the company’s website Legislavion i the
UK govetning the preparation and dissermination of
finanaial statements may differ from legislation iy
other jurisdictions

Each of the directors listed above canfirms that to the
best of thew knowledge

» The Group financal statemenits, which have been

prepared in accordance with {FRSs as adopted by the
European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets,
habthues, financial posiwon and profit of the Group
and company

» The directors’ report contamed in the Annual
reportincludes a farr review of the development and
performance of the business and the positton of the
company and Group, together with a descripiion of
the principal nisks and uncertainues that they face

The directors also confirm that, for all directors in office
at the date of this report

y So far as the directors are aware, there s no relevant audit
nformation of which the company s auditors are unaware

» They have taken all the steps that they cught to have taken
as directors in order w male themselves avrare of any
refevant audit information and to establish that the
company’s auditors are aware of thatinformation

In addiuon, the directors as at the date of this report
consider that the Annual report, taken as a whole,

15 fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
informatien necessary for shareholders to assess the
company’s performance, business model and strategy

Approved by the board on 9 March 2015 and signed on its
behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED
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Additional disclosures continued

ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Additional nformaton for sharehotders

Set outbelow is other statutory and regulatory
information that Pear son 1s requu ed to disclose in
its directors’ report

Amendment to arucles of association

Any amendments to the arudes of assocauon of the
company (the Arudes) may be made in accordance with
the provisions of the Act by way of a specral 1 esclution

Raghts attaching to shares

The rghts attaching to the ordinary shares are defined in
the Articles A sharehelder whose name appears on the
company’s register of members can choose whether

his/ her shares are evidenced by share certificates (1e in
certificated form) or held electronically (e uncertficated
form) in CREST (the electronic settlement system m

the UK)

Subject to any restricuons below, shareholders may
attend any general meeting of the company and,

on a show of hands, every shareholder (or his/her
representative) who ts pt esent ata general meeting has
one vate on each resolution for every ordmar y share of
whuch they are the registered holder A resolution put
to the vote at a general meeting is deaided on a show of
hands unless before, or on the dedaration of the result of,
a vote on a show of hands, a poll s demanded A poll can
be demanded by the charrman of the meeting, or by

at feast three shareholders (or thewr representatives)
present in person and having the night to vote or by

any shareholders (or thewr representatives) present

in person having at least 10% of the total votng nghts

of ali shareholders, or by any shareholders (or thewr
representatives) present in person holding ordinary
shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up of at
least 10% of the total sum pad up on all ordinary shares
At this year's AGM voting will again be conducted on a
poll, consistent with best practice

Shareholders can deciare a final dindend by passing an
ordinary resolution but the amount of the dvidend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the board
The board can pay intenim dividends on any dass of shares
of the arnounts and on the dates and for the penods

they decide in all cases the distnbutable profits of the
company must be suffictent to jusufy the payment of the
relevant dividend

The baard may, f authonsed by an ordinary resclution of
the shareholders, offer any shareholder the nght to elect
to1 ecewve naw ordmnary shares, which will be credited as
{ully pard, mstead of ther cash divdend

Any dvidend which has not been clumed for 12 years
after it became due for payment will be forfeited and
will then belong to the company, unless the directors
decide otherwise

If the cormpany 1s wound up, the kquidator can with

the sanction of a specal resolution passed by the
shareholders, dide among the shareholders all or any
part of the assets of the company and he/she can value
assets and determine how the diviston shalt be carried
out as between the shareholders or different dasses of
shareholders The igudator canalso with the same
sancuon, transfer the whole or any part of the assets
to trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of

the sharehoiders

Voung at general meetings

Asny form of proxy sent by the shareholders 1o the
cornpanty in relation to any general meeting must be
delvered to the company (via its registrars} whetherin
written or electronic form, not tess than 48 hours before
the tme appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned
meetng at which the person named in the apponument
proposes to vote

No shareholder s, unfess the board deades atherwise,
enttled to attend a1 vote either personally or by proxy at
a general meetng or to exerasce any other nght conferred
by being a shareholder fhe/she or any person with an
interest in shares has been sent a notice under saction 793
of the Act {which confers upon public companies the
power ta require information with respect to interests

n their voting shares) and he/she or any interested
person faied to supply the company with the informauon
requested within [4 days after delivery of that nouce

The board may also decide, where the relevant
shareholding compnses at least 0 25% of the nommnat
value of thessued shares of that dass, that no dwidend

1s payable in respect of those default shares and that

no transfer of any default shares shall be registered




Pearson operates two employee benefir trusts to hold
shares pending employees becorming entiled to them
under the company's employee shaie plans There were
7,192 412 shares held as at 31 December 2014 Each trust
has an independent trustee which has fuli discretionin
refation to the voting of such shares A divdend watver
operates on the shares held in these trusts

Pearson also operates a nonunee shareholding
arrangement known as Sharestore which holds shares

on behalf of employees There were 4,709,325 shares so
held asat 31 December 2014 The beneficral owners of
shares held through Sharestore are invited to subrut
voung instrucuons online at www shareview co uk Ifno
insuructions are given by the beneficial owner, the trustees
holding these shares will not exercise the voting rights

Transfer of shares

The board may refuse to register a transfer of a
ceruficated shar e which 1s not fully pard provided that the
refusal does not prevent dealings in shares in the company
from taking place on an open and proper basis The board
may also refuse to register a transfer of a certificated

shai e unless (1) the nstrument of transfer 1s lodged, duly
stamnped (if stampable) at the registered office of the
cormpany or any other place decided by the board and

ts accompanied by the certficate for the share to which

it refates and such other evidence as the board may
reasonably require to show the right of the transfet or

to make the transfer, {1} 1t1s n respect of only one:

class of shares, and () 1it1s in favour of notmore than

fopre tranglorens

Transfers of unceruficated shares must be carried out
using CREST and the board can refuse toregistera
transfer of an uncertificated share m accordance with
the regulations governing the operation of CREST

Variation of rights

If at any tme the capital of the company is divided into
different dasses of shares, the speaal nghts attaching to
any dass may be varied or revoled either

1) with the written consent of the holders of atleast
75% in noninal value of the issued shares of the refevant
dassor

{11} with the sancuon of a special 1esolutron passed at a
separate general meeting of the holders of the shat es
of the relevant class

Secusn 4 Loy o Dange, [

Without prejudice to any special rights previously
conferred on the holders of any exisung shares or class
of shares, any share may be i1ssued with such prefen ed,
deferred or other special nghts, or such restrictions,
whether In regard to dividend, voting return of capital
or otherwise as the company may from time to time by
ordinary resoluuion determine

Appomtment and replacement of directors

The Articles contain the following provisions in relation
to directors

Directors shall be no less than two in number Derectors
may be appointed by the company by crdinary resolution
orbythe board A director appointed by the board shall
hold office only until the next AGM and shall thenbe
eligible for reappointment, but shall not be taken nto
accountin determining the directors or the number of
directors who are 1o retire by retation at that meeting
The board may from time to ume appoint one or more
directors to hold executive office with the company for
such pertod (subject to the provisions of the Act} and
upon such terms as the board may decide and may revoke
or teriminate any appointment so made

The Arudes prowvide that, at every AGM of the company,
atleast one-third of the directors shall reare by rotation
{or. fthesr number s not a muluple of three, the number
nearest to cne-third) The first directors to retire by
rotauon shall be those wha wish to retire and not offet
themselves for re-election Any further directorsso to
retire shall be those of the other directors subject to
retirement by rotation who have been longest in office
since they were fast re-elected but, as between persons
who became or were last re-elected an the same day.
those to reure shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot In addition, any
director who would not otherwise be required to retire
shall reure by rotation at the third AGM after they were
lastre-elected

Notwathstarding the provisions of the Articles the board
has resolved that all directors should offer themselves for
re-election annually, (v accordance with the Code

The company may by ordinary resolution r emove any
director befare the exprration of fus/her term of office
inaddiion the board may terminate an agreement or
arrangement with any director for the provision of his/her
services to the company
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Additional disclosures continued

ADDITIOMAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Power s of the directors

Subject to the company’s Articdes, the Actand any
directions grven by speaal resolunon, the bustness of the
company will be managed by the board who may exercse
all the powers of the company, including powers relating
to the issue and/or buying back of shares by the company
{subject to any statutory restrcions or restrictons
imposed by shareholders in general meeung)

Significant agreements

The following significant agreements contain brovisions
enttling the counterparues to exercise Lerminavon

or other nghts in the event of a change of control of
the company

Under the $1,750,000.000 revolving credit facility
agreement dated August 2014 which matures in August
2019 between, amongst others, the company, Bardlays
Banl¢ plc {as facihity agent) and the banks and financial
msatutions named theren as lenders {the Facility}, any
such bank may, upon a change of control of the company,
require its outstanding advances, together with accrued
interest and any other amounts payable in respect of such
Facrlity, and its commmutments to be cancelled, each within
60 days of notfication 1o the banks by the facility agent
For these purposes, a ‘change of control’ occursif the
company becomes a subsidiary of any other company

or one or more persons acting either individually or n
concert, obtams control (as defined in section 1124 of
the Corporation Tax Act 201Q) of the company

Shares acquired through the compary's employee share
plans rank pari passu with shares it 1ssue and have no
special nghts For legal and pracucal reasons, the rules
of these plans set out the consequences of a change of
conurol of the company
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson pic

Repot t on the financial statements

Our opinian
In our opion

» Pearson plc's consohdated financial staternents and
company financal staternents (the 'financal statements’)
give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of
the company's affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of the
Group’s profit and the Group's and the company’s cash
flows for the year then ended

» The consolidated financial staternents have been
properily prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union

» The company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as appled in accordance wath the
provistons of the Companies Act 2006

» The financial statements have been prepared m
accordance with the requirements of the Comparnies
Act 2006 and, as regards the consolidated financial
statements Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Separate opinon in refation to [FRSs as issued by

the 1ASB

As explained innote | to the financial statements, the
Group. n addiion to applying IFRSs as adopted by the
Eurapean Union, has also applied [FRSs as ssued by the
Internatonal Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

Our audit approach
Overview

in ouw opinion. the consohdated financial statements
comply with IFRSs as ssued by the 1ASB

What we have audited
Peat son plc's financial statemeints comprise N

» The consohdated and company balance sheets as at
3t December 2014

» The consolidated income statement and consolidated
staternent of compi ehenstve mcome for the year
then ended

y The consolidated and company statements of changes in
equity and cash flow statemenits for the year then ended

» The notes to the financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounung policies and other
explanatory nformatuon

Certain required disclosures have been presented
elsewhere m the Annual report and accounts (the
‘Annual report’) rather than in the notes to the finanaal
statements These are cross-referenced from the
financial statements and are identfied as audited

The financial reporung framework that has been
applied in the preparation of the financial statements 1
apphcable faw and IFRSs as adopted by the European
Unton and, as regards the company financial statements,
as applied n accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006

» Overall Group materiality £26m which represents 4% of adjusted profit
before tax as disclosed in note 8 Refer to page 119 for further details

» We conducted work in five key territories US, UK, Brazil, China and South
Afnca In addiuon we obtained an audit opinion on the financal information
reported by the associate Penguin Random House (PRH)

» The ternitortes where we conducted audit procedures, together with work

IMAGE REMOVED

profitbefore tax

> We focused on

performed at corporate functions, shared service centres and consolidated
Group level, accounted for approximately 68% of the Group's revenue, 74%
of the Group's statutory profit before tax. and 65% of the Group's adjusted

— Revenue recogmition for multiple eferment and fong-term revenue contracts
- Goodwill and intangible assets impairmentreviews
- Prowision for uncertain tax habilities

~ Retw ns provisions

— Recoverability of pre-publication assets and inventones

- Acguistnons and disposals




The scope of our audit and our areas of focus

We conducted our auditin accordance with
Internaticnal Standards on Audiung (UK and Ireland)
(1SAs (UK & Ireland})

We designed our audie by deterrining materiafity
and assessing the risks of material nusstatement in
the consohdated and company financial statements
tn parucular, we looked at where management made
subjective judgements, for example in respect of
significant accounuing estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering future events that are
mherently uncertain As in all of our audiis, we also
addressed the risk of management override of internal
controls, including evaluatng whether there was
evidence of bias that represented a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud

Arcrof focus

Section 8§ Daanoal st enenty its

The risks of matenal musstatement that had the greatest
effect on our audit, iIncluding the aflocation of our
resources and effort, are identfied as areas of focus in
the table below We have also set out iow we talored
our audit to address these specific areas in arder to
provide an apimion on the consolidated and company
financial statements as a whole Any comments we
make on the results of our procedures shoutd be read

i this context For each area of focus below, to the
extent relevant, we evaluated the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of key imernal controls over
financiat reporung set in place by management., incduding
testing the operauon of I T systems from which financiai
informauon s generated Each of the areas of focus
below are alsa referi ed to i the audit committes
report on pages 74 to 75 and in the accounting policies
on pages 128 to 135 This s not a complete hst of all risks
dentified by our audit

How our audit addressed the ares of focus

Revenue recognition for multiple element and long-term revenue contracts

Refer to note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements There are two types of complex contracts
that require sigmificant judgements and estimates,
which could be subject to either acaidental errors

or deliberate fraud

¥ Muluple element arrangements, such as the sale of
physical textbooks accomparied by digital content
or supplementary woribooks, where revenue is
1 ecognised for each element as if it were an individual
contractual arrangement requiring the estimaton of
its far value

5 Certan long-ter 1t contracts that span year end, where
revenue s recognised using estimated percentage of
completion based on costs These iIndude conwracts to
design, develop and deliver testing and accreditation
and contracts to secure students and support the
online delivery of their teaching

These complex contracts generate material deferred
revenue and accrued income balances and are areas
where misstatements i the underlying assumpuons or
estimation calculattons could have a matenal effect on
the financial staterments

Where books are sold together with workbooks
delivered later or companton digital materials avarable
online we assessed the basis for allocation of the
purchase price between each element and then tested
the detadled calculauons supporung these revenue
deferrals We used our knowledge of the Group and its
industry to assess the completeness of identification of
such arrangements We found the revenue deferrals
to be based on reasonable estimates of the relative

far value of each element and the methods used

1o cajeulate the deferrals properly calculated and
consistently applied

fFor a selection of the larger, more judgemental and
more recent long-term contacts, covering both testing
activities and online delivery of teaching, we read the
contracts and assessed the accounting policy and
methodologies being applied to calculate the proportion
of revenue being tecogrised We also tested costs
incurred to date and management’s estimates of
forecast costs and revenues by reference to histoncal
expenence and current contract status, including
examining correspondence where CoRtracts are
expenriencing disputes

Our tesung showed that revenue recogniuion pr actices
are mn accordance with Group policies with appropriate
methods for calculating the revenue recognised
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independent auditors’ report 1o the members of Pearson plc continued

Area of focus

Howr cur audu addressed the wres of focus

Goodwill and mtangible assets imparment reviews

Refer to note (| to the consolidated financial
statements At year end the Group has £5 030m of
goodwilland £1,280m of other intangibfe assets
ncluding software, acquired custorer hists, contraces
and relationships, acquired trademarks and brands and
acquired publishing nghts

The carrying values of goodwill and intangible assets are
conungent on future cash flows and there s risk that, if
these cash flows do not meet the Group s expectauons,
the assets might be impaired The impairment reviews
performed by management contain a number of
sigruficant judgements and esumates including cash
generating unit (CGU) identification, revenue growth.
profit margins and discount rate

As part of the Group restructuring during the year
management identified a new set of aggregated CGUs
and realiocated goodwill accordingly These changes
included a new North America aggregated CGU and
the disaggregation of the Gi owth segroent mto (ts main
constituent countries {refer to nate (I for detadls)

For the larger aggregated CGUs management's model
erufied signficant headroom In respect of the India
CGU management recorded an impairment charge
of £77m

We evaluated and challenged management's
identfication and aggregauon of CGUs n kight of the new
Group structure and tested the aflocaton of goodwilt
to these aggregated CGUs in our view management’s
deasion to disaggregate the Growth segmentinto its
main constituent countries appropriately reflects the
relative independence of these operations For the
aggregated CGUs in North America and Core markets,
ranagement demonstrated reasonable bases for the
aggregations, reflectng therr retatively high levels of
mtegrauon and synergies

We tested the mathematical integnty of the forecasts
and carrying values in management's impawrment model
We obtained board approved cash flow forecasts to
agree them to management's impairment analysis and
challenged feey judgements and estimates within them
We assessed the discount rates applied to each
aggregated CGU by comparison to third-party data
and wo the Group's cost of capital and relevant nisk
factors We compar ed short and fong-term growth
rates including cash converston, to historical trends
and expectauens VWe also considered the accuracy
of prior peniod for ecasts

We performed sensitvity analyses around these

key assumpuons to ascerzain the extent of change
either individually or collectively that would indicate
impairment We considered the likelihood of such a
movement and the adequacy of the disclosures made
regarding the assumptions and sensipvities

For CGUs where headroom was imied we assessed
rmanagement’s sensiuvity disclosures to check these
were approprate

We checked for addmonal impairment triggers by
reading board minutes, holding vegutar discussions

with Group and focal mianagement, and examining the
performance of recently acquired businesses to identify
underperforming operauons We did not idenufy any
further imparments
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Area of focus

How gur widig addre ssed the avea of incus

Provision for uncertain tax habilities

Refer to notes 7 and 13 to the consolidated finanaal
statements The Group 15 subject to several tax1 egimes
due to the geographical diversity of its businesses

The directors are required to exercise significant
judgement in determining the appropriate amount to
provide in respect of potenual tax exposures and
uncettain tax provistons The most significant of these
relate to US tax

Changes i assumptions about the wiews that might be
taken by tax authorities can materially impact the level of
provisions recorded in the financial staternents and there
are significant judgenments m estimaung the amount of
any provision required

Returns pi ovisions

There are matenal, judgemental provisions for
antctpated book returns on the balance sheet as at
31 December 20t4, particularly in US Higher Education

As the Group transitions from print to digeal the retur ns
profile might change to either decrease (as less books
are shipped) or increase (if bookstores underesumate
the speed of digital change and over-arder tradwonal
textbooks)

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s tax
strategy to denufy tax nsks refaung to business and
legistative developments To assess the adequacy of
the Gi oup's tax provisions we first recalculated the
valuation of tax provisions and determined whether
the treatments adopted were In ine with the Group's
tax policies and had been applied consistently

We then evaluated key undertying assumpuons about
tax authonity views on the Group’s tax arrangements,
parucularly in the US and m territories with new cross-
border tax structures In doing this we considered the
status of recent and current tax authot ity audits and
enquines, the outturn of previous claims judgemental
positions taken in tax returns and current year
estimates, and developments in the tax environment

We were satsfied that management's provision
estimates for uncertam tax Positions were consistent
with our own assessment of the related risks and
correspondence with the relevant tax authonties

We perfol med testing over returns provisions ina
number of focauons, ncluding US Higher Education

We tested the calculation of the provisions, assessing
judgements for reasonableness agamst histonical
experience and the impact on returns of the ongoing
business transition from print to digital

We ailso performed detaled tesung of shipment and
returns prowsioning This included chedang cut-off at
year end and evaluating whether any changes in shipping
volumes around year end might increase the risk of
returns No misstatements were identfied

We evaluated changes in estimates to check they wete
natindicators of management bras We found the
estimates used by management in the determinatron
of the returns provistons to appropriately reflect both
past experience and changes in the business
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Area of focus

tlow our udin addresaed the atea of focus

Recoverability of pre-publicauon assets and inventor ses

Refer ta notes 20 and 2| to the consohdated financal
statements The Group has £820m of pre-publication
assets and £224m of nventories at 31 December 2014
Pre-publication assets represent diect costs incui red
in the development of education programmes and titles
prior to ther publication and nventories are unsold
stock, usually physical textbooles

Judgement is required to assess the recoverability of
these assets, this is further complicated by the transiion
to digital as the Group invests in new less proven digital
content and platforms

Acquisitions and disposals

Refer to notes 30 and 31 to the consolidated financial
statements In February 2014 the Group acquired
Grupo Mulu for £437m, recogrising £240m of goodwill
and £254m of intangible assets Thisis a significant
transaction requiring judgement to dentfy and value
the intangible assets and assess their subsequent
recoverability

As part of the Penguin Random House transaction the
Group recorded an estimated £59m provision in 2013
for the cost of transferring the penston hability guarantee
for Pengum employees to Bertelsmann It was concluded
durmg 2014 that Pearson would retain respansibility for
this pension habiity The provision has been released
within disconunued operatons in the current year

In February 2014 the Group sold Mergermarket for
£375m resulung in a gain on disposal of £245m pre-tax
and judgementa! classification as discontinued
cperatans

We first selected a sample of costs deferred to the
balance sheet as pre-pubkcation assets or inveitories to
test then appropriateness and magnitude

We then assessed the amortisation profiles of pre-
publication assets agamst cash flows to test that the
existing amorusaton profiles remained appropriate in
hght of the transition towards digital products

We challenged the cat rying value of certan pre-
publication assets and inventortes where sales have been
tower than originally antcipated We assessed forecast
cash flows agamnst historical expertence and obtamned
supporting evidence for management's explanations

We found the Group's policies to be appropriate and
consistently applied While the carrying value of some
assets depends on management’s expectation of growth
in future sales from them overall we considered the
carrying values of pre-publicanon assets and inventor ies
to be reasonable

The Group engagement team visited Brazit and met
with local management of Grupo Mulu to gan an
unde: standing of the business

We performed detailed tesung over the acquisition
accounting, mcluding fair value adustments such as
identification and valuauon of intangible assets Post-
acquisiion performance and forecasts were assessed
to identfy potenual impairment triggers

We obtained the communicauon between Pearson

and Bertelsmann confirmung that Pearson will retan
responsibility for the pension habifity of the legacy
Penguin employees We tested the appropnate reversal
of the provisian within discontinued operations

We tested the gamn on disposal for Mergermarket by
agreeing the consideration to sales documents and
cash recewved and agreed the net assets disposed 1o
underlying records We also evaluated its presentation
ut the Annual report

No matetial musstaternents were identified by our
testing and we found that relevant disclosures were
included i the Annual report




How we tailored our audit scope

Ve talored our audit scope to ensure that we
performed enough worl to be able to give an opiman on
the finanaia! statemients as a whole talking into account
the geographic structure of the Group, the accounting

pt ocesses and controls, and the industry in which the
Group operates

The Group 1s organised into three reportable segments,
being North America, Core and Growth, plus the
investment in associate Penguin Random House

Each segment comprises a number of reporting units
The consohidated financial statements comprise these
reporung units plus the Group's centralised functions

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit,
we determined the type of work that needed 1o be
performed at the reporung units by us, as the Group
engagement team, or component auditors within

PwC UK and from other PwC network firrms operating
under our mstruction Whaie the work was performed
by component auditors, we determined the level of
involvement we needed to have in the audit work at
those reporting units 1o be able to conclude whether
sufficrent appropnate audit evidence had been obtained
as a basis for our opiion on the consolidated financal
statements as a whole

During the year the Group engagement team visited
each of the US, Brazilian, Chinese and South African
component audit teams, held a planning meeting
attended by partners from the Group engagement team
and our UK and US component teams, and had regular
dralogue with component teams throughout the year

We idenufied two reparting units i the US and UK that
required an audit of their complete financal information
due to size alone, plus a further {3 reporting units in the
US, UK, Brazil, China and South Africa that required
either an audit or specfied procedures on certam
transactions and balances We also obtained an audit
opinton on the financial infor mation of the assocate
Panguin Random House The Group consohdauan,
financial staternent disclosures and cotporate functions
were audited by the Group engagementteam This
ncluded our work over dertvative financal instruments,
hedge accounting, goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment reviews, Litigation, penstons and share-
based payments

Secuon 5 Ft wivoal statenents {t?

The reporung units where we performed audit worle,
together with work perfor med at corporate functions,
shared service centres and consohidated Group level,
accounted for approximately 74% of the Group's
statutory profit before tax and 65% of adjusted profit
before tax This provided the evidence we needed for
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole

Materiality The scope of our audit was nfluenced by our
apphcation of materaiity Ve set certain quantitative
thresholds for materiality These, together with
qualitatve constderations, helped us to determing the
scope of our audr and the nature, timing and extent

of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstatements, both individually and on the financial
staterments as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined
materiahty for the financial statements as a whole
as follows

Overall group £26m (2013 £321-*n)
materialicy

4% of adjusted profit before tax
of £658m

Raucnale for Note 8 explains that the Groups

benchmark applied principal measure of performance
1s adjusted operating profit
{£722m), which excludes one-off
gains and losses and acquired
intangible asset amorusation,
n order to present results from
operating activites on a consistent
basts From adjusted operating
profit we deducted net finance
costs of £64m (see note B) because
these reflect recurning finance
charges To the resultng adjusted
profit befote tax we then applied
4% {rather than the usual 5%) as
our matetality catculation was
based on this adjusted measure

How we
detel mined ic

We agreed with the audit committee that we would
report to them misstatements identrfied during ouraudit
above £2m (2013 £2im) as well as nisstatements below
that amount that, 1n our view, warranted reporting for
qualitaove reasons
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Independent auditors' report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Going concern Under the Lisung Rules we are required operauon, and that the directors intend them to do
to review the directors’ statement, set out on page 107, so, for at least one year from the date the financal

in relation to gong concern We have nothing to report staterments were signed As part of our audit we have
having performed our review concuded that the directors’ use of the gomng concern

. basis 15 appropriate
As noted in the directors” statoment, the directors have ppropriz

concluded that it 1s appropriate to prepare the financal However because not all future events or condittons car
statements using the going concern bass of accounting be predicted these statements are oL a guarantee as
The going concern basis presumes that the Group to the Group's and company’s ability to continue as a
and company have adequate resources to reman in golng concern

Other required reporung

Consistency of other infermation
Companies Act 2006 opinion In aur opinion, the information gven in the strategic report and the directors’ report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements

ISAs (UK & Ireland) reporting L

Under I5As (UK & Ireland) we are requ]red to report to you if, In our opmion

» Informauon in the Annual reportss We have no exceptions to report
— materally mconsistent with the information i the audited arising from this responsibiliry
finanaial statements

- apparently materially ncorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with,
our knowledge of the group and company acquired in the course of
performing our audit

—atherwise misleading

» The statement given by the directors on page 108 in accordance with We have no exceptions to report
provision C | | of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code’), that ansing from this responsibiity
they consider the Annual report taken as awhole to be fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for members to
assess the Group’s and company's performance, business model and strategy
is materally inconsistent with our knowledge of the Greup and company
acquired in the course of performing our audit

» The section of the Aanual report on pages 74 and 75, as required by prowision  We have no exceptions to report

C 3 8 of the Code. describing the work of the audit compittee does not arsing from this responstbilicy
appropnately address matters communicated by us to the audit commuttee

Adequacy of accounting records and information and » The company financial statements and the partof the
explanations received directors’ remunet ation report to be audited are notin
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are requned to agreement with the accounung records and retumns
report to you if, in our opmion
P 4 P We have no exceptions to report arising from
» We have not recerved all the nfor maton and thus responsibility

explanauons we require for our audit

» Adequate accounung records have not been kept by
the company. or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from bt anches not visited by us




Directors’ 1 emuneration

Directors' remuneration report- Companies Act
2006 opimion In our opinion, the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audited has been properly
prepaied in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Orher Comparies Act 2006 reporung Under the
Companies Act 2006 we are requi ed to report to
youlf, in our opinion, cer tan disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made We have
no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Corporate govel nance statement

Under the Lising Rules we are required to review the
part of the corporate governance statement relating to
the company's comphance with ten provisions of the
Code We have nothing to repart having performed
OUr review

Responsibihties for the financial statements and
the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’
responsibiliies set out on page 109, the directors

are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on
the financial statements in accordance with appiicable
law and iI5As (UK & ireland) Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Pracuces Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

This report. including the opmuons, has been prepared
for and only for the company s members as a body n
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparves
Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responstbility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it rnay come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wi iting

Section 5 ~nanaal T iterenty 12t

What an audit of financial statements involves

An audit nvolves obtaning evidence about the amounts
and disclosures wn the financial statements sufficent to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement whether caused
by fraud ot errov Thisincludes sn assessment of

» Whether the accounung pohcies are appropriate to the

group’s and the company’s arcumstances and have been
consistently apphed and adequately disclosed

» The reasonableness of significant accounting estimates

made by the directors

» The overal! presentation of the financial statements

We primarily focus our workin these areas by assessing
the directors’ judgements agamnst avaslable evidence,
forming our own judgements, and evaluating the
disclosures in the financial statements

We test and examine information, using samphng and
other audinng techniques, to the extent we consider
necessary, to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw
conclusions We obtain audit evidence thi ough testing
the effectiveness of controls substantive procedures or
a combination of both

{n addiion, we read all the financial and non financial
information in the Annual report to idenufy material

mnconsistencies with the audited financal statements and

to identify any inforration that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materally inconsistent wath, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing
the audit If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or Inconsistencies we consider the
imphcations for our report

Srveirt Neosen

Stuart Newman (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoapers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audiors
London, United Kingdom

2 March 2015

14} The mamienarce and imtegry of the B arson plo website i the
responnbibty of the dreciors the warl canted out by the audiwrs does
notinvolve consedi canon of these mattersand accordingly thr aurditors
acceptia responstxbty for any changes that may bave arcurred to die
finana.u staterments unce they were mualy presented on thewe bsie

{b} Legsslauon in thse Un ted Kingdamn govering the preparation and
disseminanion of fin moal sttements may differ from legisfasonin

othe: [urisdic tians
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Consolidated income statement
Year ended 3i December 2014

All figures in £ enifions Pous 014 200
Sales 2 4,874 5.069
Costof goods sold 4 {2,202) (2312
Grommote T T T T T T T T e st
Operaung expenses 4 (2.325) (2.353)
Share of results of joint ventut es and associates i2 51 54
Cperating proﬁ—t T 2 398H :4.58_
Finance costs 6 (t41) (1ih)
Finance ncome . ) A 48 35
Profit before tax - T 305 382
income tax 7 (63) (87)
Profit for the year from continuing op—él_auons 242 295
Profit for the year from discontinued operattons 3 228 244
Profit for the year B . B i 470 5_3_9“
Atrbutableto o T o
Equty holders of the company 471 538
Non-controlling interest i _(H !
Eavrngs por stare for profit from conomumg and disconanaed oparagens
ateributable to equity holders of the company during the yeal

(expressed in pence per share)

- basic 8 58 ip 66 6p
— diluted E] 58 Op 66 5p

Earnings per share for profit from conunuing operations attribucable to

equity halders of the company during the year

{expressed in pence per share)

- bas«c 8 300p 364p

- diluted 8 299  363p
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 3t December 2014

AU ﬂ;:lru n £ owll ons e s 2014 013

Profit for the year 470 539

ltems that may be 1 eclassified to the ncome statement

Net exchange differences on translation of forergn operations - Group 150 (206)
Net exchange differences on wranslation of foreign operations - associates 25 (n
Currency transtaton adjustment disposed — Group (2) (18)
Attributable tax 7 (6} 6

ltems that are not reclassified to the income statement

Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligatons - Group 15 23 79

Remeasurement of retrement benefit obligations — assoctates (15) -

Attributable tax 7y (@23)
agﬂgrcrc;rnﬁj;';ﬁ;;:e“gcﬁo_mel(expeur;;e) for the year T T 174 _—(—I-7—3_)
Total comprehensive ncome for the year a4 36
Xt;:lb_&table o T

Equsty holders of the company 645 369
Non-controlling mterest e H(’i ) @_)
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 3| December 2014

Alt fipures in £ misons flows 2014 2012
Assets
Meon-curient assets
Property, plant and equipment 0 334 342
Intangible assets t 6,310 5801
Investments in joint ventures and associates 12 .18 1,092
Defered tncome tax assets 1 295 250
Financal assets - derivative financial instruments 6 20 i
Retirement benefit assets 5 190 86
Orther financral assets 15 54 94
Trade and other receivables 27 82 _____79_
T T 8473 7846
Current assets
intangible assets - pre-publication 20 820 77
Inventories 2 224 224
Trade and other recewvables 7 {310 1,E73
Financial assets - dervative financial instruments i 24 i3
Financial assets — marketable securities 14 & 6
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) o 7 5% 729
T T T T e i 2,924 1:é62’
Assets classified as held for sate 42 - 223
Towlassers o
Ln;bllmes T ST T e T e T e e e
Non-cu rent habihities
Financial biabiities - borrowings 18 (1.883) (1,693)
Financial habilies — dervauve financial instruments lo {(73) (48)
Deferred income tax abilities 1 (714) {612)
Reurement benefit obligations 25 (163) (142}
Prowvisions for other habilities and charges 23 {82) {77
Other habiiues L R (310 @57

(3225)  (2829)

Current habihties

Trade and other liabdities 24 (1.601) (i 505}
Financal habilives — borrowings @ (342} {533)
Financal iabiittes - denvanve finanaal insteuments 16 {1} -~
Current income tax habiities (1900 (164}
Firowsnons for other habihuies ~and charges o _ n (5.3.)_“_ “(_l» 12)
oo e ' ' 2487 (2314)
Liabihties directly associated with assets dassified as held for sale 1 - (82)
Iggal habrlities o . B . {5412) {5215)

Net assets 5,985 5706
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Consolidated balance sheet continued
As at 31 December 2014

;l-ﬁgm esm £ milkons T Potes 2014 2083 8

Equity =

C

Shaie capital 7 205 205 =

Share premm Iy 2579 2,568 @
Treasut y shares X {75) {98}
Translaton reserve 70 (103)
Retanedearnings o 300 3.128
Taotal equity attributable to equity holders of the company 5579 5,700

Non-controlingmterest . ... % & —-

Total equity ~ s98s 5706 &

These financial statements have been approved for 1ssue by the board of diregfor s on @ March 2015 and signed on its 2

behalf by o

. Z

Robin Freestone Chief financal officer 4
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Year ended 31 December 20{4

Fquu.r attrbutable 1o equity hohlu 5 of thn campany

" e Stwe Toowary Taatan | Reaned conong o
Al figures n £ mitions copral  premom  shares  reserve  earnngs Tou! wersst  equiy
At { fanuary 2014 205 2568 (58) (103y 3,128 5700 6 5706
Proftt for the year - - - - 471 471 () 470
Other comprehensive income - - - {73 i 174 - 174
Total comprehensive mcome - - - i73 472 645 () 644
Equity-settded transactions - - - 32 32 - 32
Tax on equity-settled transacuons - - - - {3) (3) - (3)
{ssue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes - t - - - i - 1
Purchase of treasury shares - - (9) - - (9) - (%)
Release of treasury shares - - 32 - {32) - - -
Changes in non-controlling interest - - - - - - 2 2
Dividends - - - - (397 (397) (1) (398
M3 besmerzoit T s G %o ame san e 5
Tttt T Ty oo ey ool meconpay
Sapre Snae  fresury Tramatun  Retancd eonn ol Foraf
Alfiguresm e nmens Lap1T M ABIFES  FEMLIVE  44RVIGE Total  umerest  equiy
At | January 2013 204 2555  (103) 128 2902 5686 24 5710
Profit for the year - - - - 538 538 | 539]
Orher comprehensive expense - - - 230 62 (169) @ (173
Total comprehensive income - - - {230) 600 369 (3) 366
Equity-settled transacuions - - - - 37 37 - 37
Tax on equity-settled transactions - - - - - - - -
Issue of ordimary shares under
share optian schemes i 13 - - - 4 - {4
Purchase of treasury shares - - (47} - - (47) - (47
Release of treasury shares - - 52 - (52) - - -
Changes innon controlling interest - - - - 13 13 (15 (2)
Drvidends _ - - - - (37 372 - 372)
hed Decanber 308 T i s om0y 3128700 6 5706

The transiation reserve mcludes exchange differences ansing from the transtation of the net investment i foresgn
operations and of borrowngs and other cui rency instruments designated as hedges of such wvestments Changes
in non-controffing interest in 2014 refate to the disposal of a non controling nterestna Chinese business in 2013,
the group purchased non-controliing tnterests in the South African and Indian businesses




Section 51 manrsal statearnrg [27

Consolidated cash flow statement
Year ended 31 December 2014

Al figuras i £ mhons News 2014 2043
Cash flows from operatng activities

MNet cash generated from operations 34 704 684
Interest paid (86) (82)
Taxpad . e e 183 049)
Net cash generated from operatngacemues " 455 356
Cash flows from investing activities

Acquismion of subsidiaries, net of cash acquited 0 {448} (48)
Acquisition of jomnt ventures and associates {12} (10}
Purchase of mvestments 3 (64)
Purchase of property, pfant and equipment (75) (118)
Purchase of ntangible assets {t07) {64)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 3 327 (132)
Proceeds from sale of associates 39 2
Proceeds from sale of nvestments 9 2
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 34 9 28
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 2 2
Proceeds from sale of hgquid resour ces 12 t3
Loans to related parties (10) (44)
Loans advanced (2) (5)
lnvestment i hiquid resources (22) (14)
Interest recetved t3 9
Drvidends received from joint ventures and associates 120 64
Met cash used in investing actlv:t;; T N {148) B (375_)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of ordinar y shares 27 H 14
Purchase of treasury shares il (%) {47)
Proceeds from borrowings 404 319
Repayment of borrowings {538) (225}
Finance lease prinapal payments (4) &)
Dwidends paid to compary's shareholders g (397) (372)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest () -
Purchase of non-controlling mneerest ) it - (76)
r:f; ;-s-hnused in financing acuvities T T {534) N _(39_S}
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash eqtivalents 2y 2l
Net decrease n cash and cash equvalenes Q@9 (%7
Cash and cash equivalents at beginring of year o I . 137
Cash and cash é'q_u:-v;;ems at end of year L ,_, I j-»--- ’ —_ s St 740

The consolidated cash flow statement inchudes discontinued operatons (see note 3)
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Notes to the consolidated financal statements

General informacon

Pearson plc (the company). its subsidiartes and
assocates {together the Group) a e mternational
bustnesses covering educaton, business informauon
and consumer publishing

The company is a public imited company incorporated
and donuciled in England The address of us register ed
office 15 80 Strand, London WC2R ORL

The company has ts primary lisung on the Londen
Srock Exchange and 1s also listed on the New York
Srock Exchange

These consolidated financal statements were approved
for issue by the board of directors on @ March 2015

| Accounting policies

The principal accounung policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financral statements
are set out below

a. Basis of prepai ation

These consolidated financiat statements have been
prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance
with Internauonal Financral Reporung Standards (IFRS)
and IFRS {nterpretations Committee interpi etations as
adopted by the European Unton (EU} and with those

parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to comparies

reporting under [FRS Inirespect of the accounung
standards applicable to the Group there is no difference
between EU-adopted and |1ASB-adopted IFRS

These consolidated finanaial statements have been
prepared under the tustorical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of financal assets and
habihties (induding derwative financial insty uments)
to fair value through profit or loss

| interpretations and amendments o published
standards effective 2014 The folfowing amendments
and interpretations were adopled in 2014

» Amendments to IFRS 10, 1FRS 12 and IAS 27,
‘trvestment Enties, effective for annual reporung
periods beginning on or after | fanuary 2014 These
amendments provide an exemption from consolidaton
of subsidiares for entities which meet the defimton of
an investment enuty

» Amendments to (AS 39, "Novation of Dervatives and
Continuaton of Hedge Accounung’. effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after | january 2014
The amendments mean there weuld be no need to
disconunue hedge accountng il a hedge derivative was
novated and cel tam coteria met

s Amendments to 1AS 32, ‘Financial Instruments
Presentation’, effective for annual reporung periods
beginning on or after | January 2014 The amendments
clarfy some of the requirements for offsetting financial
assets and financial iabilities on the balance sheet

s IFRIC 21 'Levies’, effective for annual reporting pertods
beginming on or after | January 2014 This detalls the
accountng for an obligation 1o pay a levy that (s not
income tax

The adoption of these new pronauncements from
| January 2014 does not have a material mpact on the
consohdated financial statements

2 Standards, mter pretanons and amendments

to published standards that are not yet effective The
Group has not early adopted the {ollowing new
ptonouncements that are not yet effecuve

»IFRS 9 'Financal Instruments’, effectuve for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2018
The new standard details the requirements for the
classificauon, measurement and recogmitton of financial
assets and liabilrues The Group is yet to assess the full
impact of IFRS 9

yIFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’,
effecuve for annual reporting pertods beginning on
or after | January 2017 The new standard specifies
how and when an entity will recogruse revenue, and
requires mot e detalled disclosure Adoption of the
new standard 's hikely to have an impact on the Group
and management 1s currently assessing the impact

3 Criuical accounting assumptions and judgements The
preparation of financtal statements in conformity with
{FRS requires the use of cer tain critical accounting
assumpuons [t also requires management Lo exercse
ts judgement in the process of applying the Group s
accountng policies The areas requining a higher degree

of judgerment or complexity or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financat

statements are discussed n the relevant accountng
policies under the following headings and in the notes
to the accounts whet e appi Opiate




| Accounung policies conunued

a Baaus of preparation continued

Consohdation Business combinations — determination
of fan values

Consoldaton Business combinauons - dassificaton
of investments

intangible assets Goodwill

Intangble assets Pre-publication assets

Taxation

Employee benefits Pensions

Revenue recogmtion

b Consolidation
I Business combinations The acquisition method of
accounting is used to account for business combinations

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the farr value of the assets transferred, the
habtines incurred and the equity interest issued by the
Group The considerauvon transferred inciudes the far
value of any asset or hability resulting from a contingent
consideraton arFangement Acquisiion related costs
are expensed as incurred in the operating expenses line
of the income staternent

Idenpfiable assets and contingent assets acquired and
idenufiable kabiities and contingent kabibties assumed n
a business combination are measured initially at ther {air
values at the acquisiion date  The determination of fair
values often requires significant judgements and the use
of esumates, and for material acquisitions, the fair value
of the acquired intangible assets 1s determined by an
independent valuer The excess of the consideratuon
transferrad, the amount of any nan-controlling mterest
1 the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of any
previous equity mnterest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded
as goodwll

See note [e(]) for the accounting policy on goodwaill
{f this 15 less than the fair value of the netassets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of abargain
purchase, the difference 15 1ecogrnised directly m
the mcome statement

Section 5 Finan at aare rents 129

On an acquisibon-by-acquisiton basis, the Group
recogrises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair vaiue or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets

Management exercises judgement in determining the
classification of tts nvestments in 1ts businesses nfine
with the following

2 Subsicharies Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control The Group controls an entity when
the Group 15 exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its mvolvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity Subsidianies are fully consolidated from the date
on which control 1s transferred to the Group They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases

3 Transacuons with non-controlling interests
Transactions with non-controfling interests that do

not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, thatis as transactions with the ownersin
ther capacity as owners Any surplus or deficit anising

fi om disposals to a non-controlling interest s recorded
i equity For purchases from a non-controlling interest,
the difference between consideration pad and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of the
subsidiary 15 recorded in equity

4 jomnt ventures and assoctates Joint ventures are
enties i which the Group holds an interest on a long-
term basis and has rights to the net assets through
contractually agreed sharing of control Associates are
entuies over which the Group has sigarficantinfluence
but'not the power to cant ol the financal and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voung rights Investments
1R joint ventures and assocates are accounted for by
the equity method and are imitially recognised at the fair
value of consideratton transferred

The Group's share of its joint ventures’ and associates'
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
mncome statemerit and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves (s recognised In reserves
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Notes to the consohidated financial statements continued

{ Accounting policies contnued

b Consolidation conunued

The Group's share of its joint ventures' and associates’
results 1s recogrised as a component of operating profit
as these operations form part of the cor e pubhshing
business of the Group and are an integral part of
existing wholly-owned businesses The cumulative post-
acquisttion movements are adjusted against the carrying
amaunt of the investment When the Group's share of
lasses i a jomt venture or associate equals or exceeds
1ts interest in the joint venture or associate, the Group
does not recognise further losses unless the Group has
incurred obligations or made payments on behaif of the
ot veniure or assoctate

5 Contribution of a subsidiary to an associate or joint
venture The gan or loss resulting from the contribution
or sale of a subsidiary to an associate or a joint venture
15 recogised i full Where such transactions do not
involve cash consideration, significant judgements and
esumates are used in determining the fair values of the
considerauon received

c Fotegn currency translation

| Funcuonal and presentation currency {tems included
it the financral statements of each of the Group s enuties
are measured using the currency of the primary
econamic environment in which the entity operates
(the ‘funcuonal currency’) The consolrdated financial
statements are presented in sterling, which s the
company's functional and presentation currency

2 Transacuons and balances Foreign currency
transactions are transiated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transacuons Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlernent of such transacuans and from the
transiation at year end exchange rates of monetary
assets and tabliwes denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the ncome statement, except when
deferred in equity as gualifying net investment hedges

3 Group companies The results and finanaal position
of all Group compares that have a funcnonal currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows

1) Assets and habifites ai e transiated at the dosing rate at
the date of the balance sheet

u} {ncome and expenses are transfated at average
exchangeates

i} All resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity

O consolidation exchange differences arsing from
the translavon of the net investment i foreign entites,
and of borrowings and other cunrency Instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to shareholders’ equity The Group treats specific
nter company loan balances, winch are notintended
to be repaid in the foreseeable future, as part ofits net
investment When a foreign operation 1s sod, such
exchange differences are recogised inthe income
statement as part of the gam or loss on sale

The principal overseas currency for the Group is the
US dollar The average rate for the year agamnst sterfing
was $1 65 (2013 %1 57} and the year end rate was

$1 56 (2013 %1 66)

d Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
costless depreciatton Costcludes the original
purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to
bringing the asset to its working conditon for intended
use Land s not depreciated Depreciaton on other
assets 15 calculated using the straight-ine method to
allocate thew cost less thewr residual values over thew
esumated useful lives as foliows

éusldmgs (freehcld) 2_0-—50 years
Buildings {leasehold}  over the peniod of the lease

Plant and equipment  3—10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful fives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date

The carrying value of an assetis written down to its
recoverable amount if the carrying value of the asset
1s greater than its esumated recoverable amount

e Intangible assets

i Goodwill For the acquisiuon of subsidiaries rmade on
or after | January 2040, goodwill represents the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
conurolling nterest in the acquiree and the acquisiion
date fair value of any previous equity interest 1n the
acquiree over the far value of the idenufiable net assets
acqured For the acquisivon of substdiattes made from
the date of transipon ta IFRS to 31 December 2009
goodwli repr esents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the farr value of the Gioup’s share of the
net identifiable assets acquired Goodwill on acquisitons
of subsidiaries 1s included in ntangible assets Goodwil
on acquisttion of associates and joint vergures rept esents
the excess of the cost of an acquisiion over the far
value of the Group's share of the net idenufiable assets




| Accounting palicies continued

e Intangible assets continued

acquired Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and
jomt ventures s included i investments in associates
and joint ventures

Goodwillss tested annually for impairment and carried at
costless accumulated impairmenitlosses Antmparrment
loss 15 recogrised to the extent that the carirying value

of goodwill exceeds the recoverable amount The
recover able amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs
1o sell and value in use These calculations require the
use of estmates and sigruficant management judgement
A descripuon of the key assumptions and sensitivities s
included in note |1 Goodwillis altocated to aggregated
cash-generating units for the purpose of imparment
testing The allocation 1s made to those aggregated cash-
generatng units that are expected to benefitfrom the
busmess combinaton in which the goodwill arose

Gains and tosses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwiil refating to the entity sold

{FRS 3 ‘Business Combinauons’ has not been applied
retrospectively to business combinations before the
date of transition to {FRS

2 Acquired software Software separately acquired for
internal use 1s capitalised at cost Software acquired in
materal business combinations is capitalised atits fair
value as determined by an independent valuer Acquired
software 1s amorused on a straight-hne basis over 1ts
estimated useful Iife of between three and eight years

3 internally developed software internal and external
costs incurred during the preliminary stage of developing
computer software for internal use are expensed

as ncurred Internal and external costs incurred to
develop computer software for internal use during
the apphcation development stage are capitalised

if the Group expects economic benefits from the
development Capitalisaton in the application
development stage begins once the Group canreliably
measure the expenditure attributable to the software
development and has demonstrated its intention to
complete and use the software Internally developed
software1s amorused on a straight-hne basis over its
esumated useful life of between th ee and eight years
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4 Acqun ed intangible assets Acguired intangible assets
include customer hsts, contracts and relationships,
trademarls and brands, publishing nghts, content,
technology and software nghts These assets are
capitalised on acquesition at cost and included 1n
intangtble assets Intangrble assets acqun ed in matertal
business combinations are capitahsed at their fair value
as determined by an independent valuer Intangible
assets are amortused over their estimated useful hives
of between two and 20 years, using an amortisauon
method that reflects the pattern of ther consumption

5 Pre-publication assets Pre-publication assets
represent direct costs incurt ed in the development

of educational programmes and titles prior to their
publicauon These costs are recoghised as current
intangible assets where the tide wilf generate probable
future econonuc benefits and costs can be measured
reliably Pre-publication assets are amortised upon
publication of the utle over estmated economic lives
of five years or less, being an estimate of the expected
operaung life cycle of the utle, with a higher proportion
of the amorusation taken i the earber years

The iwestment in pre-publication assets has been
disclosed as part of cash genel ated from operations in
the cash flow statement (see note 34)

The assessment of the recoverability of pre-pubhcation
assets and the determinaton of the amortisation profile
involve a significant degree of judgement based on
historical trends and management estimatton of future
potenual sales An incorrectamorusation profile could
result in excess amounts being carred forward as
intangsble assets that would otherwise have been
written off o the income statementin an earher pertod

Rewews are performed regularly to estmate
recoverability of pre-publicauon assets The carrying
amount of pre-publication assets 15 set out in note 20

f Other financial assets

Other financial assets, designated as avalable for sale
investments, are non-denvative financial assets
measured at esamated far value Changes in the far
value are recorded m equity i the farr value reserve
On the subsequent disposal of the asset, the net fr
value gains or losses are taken to the income statement

|
i
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

i Accounung policies continued

g Inventories

inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value Costis determuned using the firsein
first out (FIFO) mathod The cost of finished goods and
work m progr ess comprises 1 aw matertals, direct labour,
other direct costs and related producton overheads
Net realisable vafue 1s the estmated selling price in

the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
pecessary to make the sale Prowisions are made for
stow moving and obsolete stocik

h Royalty advances

Advances of royalties to authors are included within
trade and other recervables when the advance 1s pad
less any provision required to adjust the advance to

its net reahsable value The realisable value of royalty
advances relies on a degree of management judgement
in determining the profitabiity of ndividual author
contracts f the estimated 1 ealisable value of author
contracts 15 overstated this will have an adverse effect
on operating profits as these excess amounts will be
written off

The recoverability ol royalty advances is based upon an
annual detailed management 1 eview of the age of the
advance, the future sales projections for new authors
and prior sales history of repeat authors

The royalty advance is expensed at the contracted or
effective royalty rate as the related revenues are earned
Royalty advances which will be consumed within one
year are held in current assets Royalty advances

which will be consumed after one yearare held in
non-current assets

1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement
include cash in hand, deposits held on calf with banles,
other short-term highly iquid investments with original
maturities of three mionths or less, and bank overdrafts
Bank overdrafts are mncluded in borrowings in current
liabilities i the balance sheet

Short-term deposits and markerable securties wath
matunives of greater than three months do not qualify as
cash and cash equivalents Movements on these financal
nstruments are classified as cash flows from financing
activities i the cash flow statement where these
armounts are used to offset the borrowangs of the Group
or as cash flows from invesung actvities where these
amounts are held te generate an investment return

| Share captal
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity asa
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the company’s
aquity share capital (treasury shares) the considerauon
paid. including any directly attnibutable incremental
costs net of mcome taxes, s deducted from eguity
attributable to the company’s equity holders untl the
shares are cancelied, reissued or disposed of Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration recewved, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs and the related ncome Lax effects,
1sincluded i equity attributable to the company’s
equity holders

k Borrowngs

Borrowings are recoghised initiafly at fair value, which
s proceeds received net of transaction costs incurred
Baorrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the proceeds (pet of
transacuon costs) and the redemption value being
recogrised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowmgs using the effective interest method
Accrued interestis included as part of borrowings
Where a debt instrument is in a fair value hedging
relationship, an adjustmentis made 1o its carrying value
in the income statement to reflect the hedged nisk
Interest on borrowings is expensed in the ncome
statement as incurred

| Derwvatwve financial instruments

Derwauves are recogrused at far value and remeasured
at each balance sheet date The fair value of derwatives
is determined by using market data and the use of
established esumation techrigques such as discounted
cash flow and option valuaton models The Group
designates certam of the derwative instruments within
1ts portfolio to be hedges of the far value of its bonds
{farr value hedges) or hedges of net investments in
foreign operations (net investment hedges)

Changes in the far value of denvatives that are
designated and quahfy as fair value hedges are recorded
in the mcome statement, together with any changes in
the fair value of the hedged asset or hability that are
attributable to the hedged sk




i Accounting poheies continued

| Dervauve financial instruments continued

The effectuve portion of changes in the fair value of
dervatives that are designated and qualify as net
investment hedges are recogrised i other
comprehensive ncome Gains and losses accumulated
in equity are included in the income statement when
the corresponding foreign operation is disposed of
Gains or losses relating to the ineffective portion are
recognised immediately in finance income or finance
casts in the Income statement

Certan derivatives do not qualify or are not designated
as hedging instruments  Such derwauves are classified
at fair value and any movement 1 thewr fair value s
recopmsed immediately in finance income or finance
costs In the income statement

m Taxaton

Current zax 15 recognised on the amounts expected to
be pad or recovered under the tax rates and faws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date

Deferted income tax is provided, using the hability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and habilives and their carrying
amounts Deferred income tax 1s deter mined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset 1s realised or
the deferred income tax liability 1s settted

Deferred tax assets are recogrised to the extent that it
15 probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utiised

Deferred income tax 1s provided in respect of the
undstrnbuted earnings of subsidiaries other than where
it 15 intended that those undistnbuted earnmgs will not
be remitted in the foreseeable futnre

Current and deferred tax are recognised m the income
statement, except when the tax relates to items charged
or credited direcily to equity or other comprehensive
income, inwhich case the tax s also recogmsed i equity
or other comprehensive tncome

The Gtoup 1s subject to Income taxes in nuMmerous
jurisdictions Significant judgement s required in
determining the esumates in refaton to the warldwide
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provision {for income taxes. There are many transactions
and caleulattons for which the ulimate tax determuinanon
15 uncer tan during the ordinary course of business

The Group recogruses habihues for antiapated tax

audit issuas based on esumates of whether addwonal
taxes will be due Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were imitally
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisicns in the period in which such
determinaton 1s made

Deferred tax assets and habilies require management
judgementin determining the amounts to be recognised
in parucutar, sigrificant judgement s used when assessing
the extent to which defen ed tax assets should be
recognised with consideration given to the unwng and
level of future taxable income together with any future
tax planning strategies

n Empioyee benefits

| Pensions The retirement benefit asset and obligation
recognised in the balance sheet represents the net of
the present value of the defined benefit obligauon and
the fair value of plan assets at the balance sheet date
The defined benefit obligauon s calculated annually by
independent actuanies using the projected umt credit
method The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounung esumated future
cash flows using yields on tugh quality corporate bonds
which have terms to maturtty approximatng the terms
of the related fiabthty

When the calculauon results in a potenual asset. the
recognition of that asset s imited to the asset celing~
that 1s the present value of any econarmic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the planora
reduction in future contributions Management use
judgement to deterrmne the level of refunds available
from the plan in recognising an asset

The determination of the pension cost and defined
benefit obligation of the Group's defined benefit
pension schemes depends on the selection of certam
assumptions, which indude the discount rate, nflation
rate, safary growth and longewty

Actuaral gains and losses arising from expenence
adjustiments and changes i actuarial assumpuions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
come in the period in which they arise
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Notes to the consolidated financial staternents continued

! Accounung policies continued

n Employee benefits continued

The service cost, represenung benefits accrumg over
the year, s included m the iIncome statement as an
operating cost. Net inter est (s calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net defined benefit obligation
and 1s presented as finance costs or finance income

Obihigations for contributions to defined contnbution
penston plans are recogmsed as an operaung expense
in the income statement as incurred

2 Other post-retirement obligations The expected
costs of post-retirement medical and life assurance
benefits are accrued over the period of employment,
using a simifar accounung methodology as for defined
benefit pension obhgations The habiiues and costs
relating 1o significant other post retrement obligations
are assessed annually by independent qualified actuaries

3 Share-based payments The fair value of options or
shares granted under the Group's share and option pians
1s recogrised as an employee expense after taking into
account the Group's best estmate of the number of
awards expected to vest Fairvalue 1s measured at the
dare of grant and 1s spread over the vesung period

of the option or share The fair value of the options
granted 1s measured using an option madel thatis
most appropriate to the award The fair value of shares
awarded s measured using the share price at the date
of grant unless another method 1s more appropriate
Any proceeds receved are credited to share capnal
and share prermum when the opuons are exercised

o Provisions

Prowisions are recogrused if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
itis more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligaton and the amount
can be reliably estimated Provisions are discounted to
present value wher e the effect 1s matenal

The Group recognises a provision for deferred
constderation at far value VWhere this 1s conungent
on future performance or a future event, judgement
1s exerased in establishing the far value

The Group recognises a provistan for onerous tease
contracts when the expected benefits to be dertved
firom a contract are fess than the unavoidable costs of
reeting the obligasons under the contract

The provision 1s based on the present value of futwie
payments for surplus leased ptoperties under non-
cancellable operaung feases, net of estimated sub-
leasing income

p Revenue recognition

Revenue compt ises the fair vaiue of the consideration
received or recervable for the sale of goods and ser vices
net of sales taxes rebates and discounts, and after
eliminaung sales within the Group

Revenue from the sale of books is recognised when utle
passes A provision for anticipated returns 1s made based
primarily on historical return rates [f these estumates

do not reflect actual returns in future periods then
revenues could be understated or overstated for a
parucular period

Crreulauon and advertising revenue is recognised
when the newspaper or other publicanon is published
Subscripuan revenue is recognised on a straght-line
basis over the fife of the subscription

Where a contractual arrangement consists of two or
more separate efements that can be provided to
customers either on a stand-alone basis or as an
opuonal extra such as the provision of supplementary
matenals or online access with textboaks and muleiple
delverables within testing or service contracts, revenue
15 1ecogmsed for each element as if it wer e anindwidual
contractual arrangement

Revenue from mulu-year contractual arrangements,
such as contracts to process qualifying tests for indwidual
professions and government departments, 1s recogrised
as performance occurs The assumptions, risks, and
uncertamties mherent mn long-term contract accountng
can affect the amounts and tming of revenue and related
expenses reported Certan of these arrangements,
either as a result of a single service spanning more than
one reporting period or where the contract requires
the provision of a number of services that together
consutute a single project are treated as long-term
contracts with revenue recogrised on a percentage of
compleson basis Percentage of completion s calculated
on a cost bass using the proporuon of the total
estemated costs incurred to date Losses on contracts
ate recogrised m the period i which the foss first
becomes foreseeable Contract losses are determined
to be the amount by which estmated total costs of the
contract exceed the esumated total revenues that will
be generated by the contract




} Accounting policies conttnued

p Revenue recognition continued

On certan contracts, where the Group acts as agent
only commissions and fees recetvable for services
rendered are recognised as revenue Any third party
costs incurred on behalf of the prinapal that are
rechargeable under the contractual arrangement are
not mcluded i revenue

income from recharges of freight and other activities
which are mudental to the normat revenue generating
activities 18 induded in other income

q Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially alf the risks and rewards of
ownei ship are classified as finance leases Finance leases
are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at

the fower of the fair value of the feased property and
the present value of the mimimum lease payments

Each lease payment s allocated between the hability
and finance charges to achicve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
financial habilizes — borrowtngs The interest element of
the finance cost 1s char ged to the income statement over
the lease period to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liabihity for each
pertod The property, plant and equipment acquired
under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of the useful bfe of the asset or the lease term

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
dassified as operating leases by the lessee Payments
made under operaung leases (net of any ncentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the pertod of
the lease

r Dividends

Dmvidends are recorded inthe Group's financal
statements in the period in which they are app) oved
by the company’s sharehelders
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5 Assets and fiabilitres held for sate

Assets and babdrtes are classified as held for sale and
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
{ess costs to self if tis highly probabte that the carrying
amount wii be 1 ecovered principally through a sale

v ansactioi ) ather than through conunuing ase No
depreciation is charged in respect of hon-current assets
classified as held for sale Amounits relaong to non-
current assets and liabiliies held for sale are classified
as discontinued operatons inthe income statement
where appropriate

t Trade recewables

Trade recervables are stated at fair value after provision
for bad and doubtful debts and anucipated future sales
returns (see also note ip)

2 Segment information

From | January 2014 the Group has reorganised and 15
reporung new segmental analyses 1o reflect the new
structure and operating model The prunary segments
for management and reporting are geographies as
outlimed below In addition, the group sepas ately
discloses the results fiom the Pengumn Randoin House
(PRH) associate

Continuing operations

North Amerrca School, Higher Educauon and
Professional businesses in US and Canada

Growth School, Higher Education and Professional
businesses in emerging markets which are mvesument
priorites, ncluding Brazid, China, India and South Afrca

Cere Schog!, Higher Education and Professronal
businesses In more mature markets including UK,
Austraha and laly

In additton the Group separately discloses the results
of the Penguin Random House (PRH) asscaiate

The resuits of the Mergermarket business to 4 February
2014 are shown as discontinued in the relevant years
The results of the Penguin business to 30 June 2013 are
also shown as discontinued i 2013

Figut es for 2013 have been restated to reflect the
new segments
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

2 Segment information continued

Formore detail on the services and products included in each business segment refer to the strategic report

2044
T Ouconomoed
ATk figures i £ m foans Hotes  Amenca Conr Growth PRH  Corparate  operstiom Group
Conunuing operations
Sales 2974 [.154 746 - - - 4874
Adjusted operating profit 464 152 35 69 - - 720
intangble char ges (110 (22) {132) (54) - {318)
Acquisition costs ) {1 3 - - - {6)
Othernet gans and losses 2 - - - - - 2
aper ating profit/(loss) o 354 129 {100) I5 - - 398
Finance costs 6 (+41
Finance income ) B _ 48
Profit before tax i T T T T T T 308
Income tax A L i L {63)
Profit for the ye;r from - T T o )
continuINg Gperatians L ?:42
Segmentassets 6646 566 1407 - 660 10279
Joint ventures 1”2 } 9 3 - - i3
Associates 12 ! 9 - 1,095 - - £,105
Tomlassess o648 1583 1gl0 1095 e 11397
Other segment items
Share of results of joint ventures
and associates i - 19 3 a5 - - 54
Capital expenditure 0N 97 48 49 - - - 194
Pre-publication investment 20 209 77 72 - - - 358
Deprecation i 41 17 16 - - - 74
Amorusauen " 20 309 112 121 -~ - - 542
- 77 - - 77

imparment
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2 Segment information continued

2013
T T Dacorsmed
Al figures it £ 1 bong Mot Amenc Core  Oruwth MH  Coporae  operaup e Crrep
Continuing operations
Sales 3073 | 258 738 - - - 5089
Adjusted operaung profit 474 120 38 50 - - 682
Intangible charges (108) @n (33) (30) - - (196)
Acquisinon costs {2) 3 (7} - - - (12)
Other netgams and losses - {16) - - - (16}
Operaung profit/(loss) 366 74 @ 20 - _ 458
Finance costs 6 (i}
Finance income 3 35
Profitbeforetax o )
Income tax 7 N, -4
Fr[:ﬁ?or the year fram o o T o
295

continuing operatons

- 859 223 2.B39

Segment assets 6,326 1,450 981

joint ventures ] i 2 - - - 3

Associates 1 ] 18 1070 ) - | 089

Total assets - T ems a8 983 1070 85 223 10931

Orther segment iterns

Share of results of joint ventures

! 26 H
95 46 33
202 30 72
46 19 6
287 143 103

31 - - 54

- - ! 175
- 364
- - { B2
- - 2 335

and assoclates 12
Caprtal expenditure 101
Pre-publication tnvestment 20
Depreaation 0
Amorusation 1320
!_Tpalrment

For further mformation on adjusted measures above, see note 8

Inciuded i other net gains and losses 1 continuing aperatons n 2014 are gains on the sale of jownt venture nterests
i Safars Books Online and Cour seSmart (£40m} and a [oss on disposal of anmvestment in Nook Media (£38m)
induded in other net gams and tossesn 2013 15 aloss on the disposal of the Japanese school and foca publistung assets

Both operaung profit and adjusted operaung profit in 2014 are stated after the following restructuring charges Naith
Armerica £37m with estmated in year benefits of £2im Core £22m, with esumated in year benefits of £10m, Growth
£6m with estmated 1n year benefits of £2m, Pengun Random House £19m. with esumated in year benefits of £7m

Both operating profit and adjusted operating profitn 2013 are stated after the following restructuring charges North
America £77m, with estimated in year benefits of £24m Core £63m, with esumated in year benefits of £13m, Growth

£36m, with esumated in year benefits of £4m
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements continued

2 Segment information continued

In 2014, sales from the provision of goods were £2,71{m (2043 £2.867m) and sales from the prowvision of services
were £2,163m (2013 £2,202m) Sales from the Group's educatienal publishing consumer publishing and newspaper
business are classified as bemng from the provision of goods and sales from s assessment and tesung and other service
businesses are classified as being from the prowsion of services There were no materal inter-segment sales

Corporate costs are allocated to business segments including drsconuniued operations on an appropriate basis
depending on the nature of the cost, therefore the segment result is equal to the Group operating profit Segment
assets consist of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories, recewvables, deferred taxation and other
financial assets and exclude cash and cash equivalents and dervauve assets Corporate assets comprise cash and cash
equivalents, marketable securities and dervative financial mstruments Capial expenditure comprises additions to
property, plant and equipment and software (see notes 10 and |1}

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets acquired through business combinason were £263m (2013
£202m) (see note 30} in 2013, capal expenditure, deprecauon and amorusation included amounts relating to

disconunued operauons

The Group operates in the following marn gecgraphic areas

S1es INon it dszets
Al figures w £ mifions o4 00 2014 2013
Conunuing operations
UK 610 649 1,056 )
Other Eurcpean countries 347 366 180 200
us 2,826 2913 5,243 5,026
Canada 110 128 288 301
Asia Pacific 598 624 416 495
Other countries 383 389 66l 215
Total comteumg T T T T T 4g7a T spe9 7844 7305
Discontinued operations
UK 4 97 - -
Other European countries - 49 - -
s 4 369 - -
Canada - 24 - -
Asia Pacific | 74 - -
Other countries - 8 - -
Total discontinued 5 &2 -
Mol T T T e T ey T 7%

Sales are allocated based on the country in which the customer is located Thus does not differ materially from the
location where the order 1s received The geograplucal split of non-current assets 1s based on the subsidiary’s counu y
ofdomcile This s not materrally different to the locauan of the assets Non-current assets comprise property, plant
and equipment, intangble assets, investments in jont ventures and associates and trade and ather recevables
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3 Duscontinued operations

Dsconunued operations relate to Penguin and Mergermarket

A analyss of the results and cash flows of discontinued operations is as follows

D o 2004 2012
Al g o £ imions T Trengan Megermmber  Towl | Peme Mergemeres | Tots
Sales .. ST SIS A L U L., . T
Operating profit - 2 2 28 24 52
Pmancemcome Tl S S S |
Profit before tax — 2 ) 2 29 24 53
Incometax A L (PRSI G . (8
Profit afeer tax - l 2 15 35
Profit on disposal of Penguin 29 - 29 202 - 202
Attrbutable tax benefit - - - i5 - i5
Profit on disposal of Mergermarket - 244 244 - - -
Attributable tax expense - {46) (46} - - -
Mergermarkettransacvoncosts -~ —._.__.Z_...® &
Profit for the );ear from disconunued o
opmatons . ® e e w7 7 2%
Operatng cash flows - 2 2 36 22 58
Investing cash flows - - - &) (2 (8)
Financing cash flows L L T ® 2 (37
2 2 22 e 13

'I;o_tg_i cash flows ) - ) ~ ) .

Included withm the cost of disposal of Penguin in 2013 are amounts in respect of the setttement of hugation related

the agency arrangement for eBooks Also included in cost of disposal for Penguin for 2013 was a provision for amounts
payable to Bertelsmann upon settlement of the transfer of Penguin’s UK past service pension ltabiltues to the new PRH
venture During 2014, it was decided that this transfer would not go ahead as planned and the costs have been credited

back m the £29m gain reported agamst the disposal i 2044

4 Operaung expenses

Alfiguresin £ millons ) N 2014 2013
By function

Costofgoodssold e 22020 2312
Operating expenses

Distribution costs 87 90

Selling, markeung and product development costs 963 1027

Adrurastrative and other expenses [.315 1.{62

Restructuring costs 84 176

Other net gains and losses {2 1]

Othermcome e e M2 (UB)
Totalnetoperaungexpenses 2325 233
rotal - T ’ T 4,527 4,665

Total S . 4527 466 5

Included in other income is service fee income from Pengumn Random House of £4lm (2013 £28m) Indudedin
admurnustranive and other expenses are rosearch and efficacy costs of £22m (2003 £5m).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued

2003

Notes 014

4 Operating expenses continued

All figres m £ vulons
By nature
Royalties expensed 242 256
Other product costs 686 735
Employee benefit expense 5 1,978 2,100
Conuractiabour 185 194
Employee refated expense 146 177
Promouonal costs 16% 167
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10 74 81
Amortisation of ntangible assets — pre-publication 20 292 308
Amortisation of intangible assets - software I 63 39
Amortisation of intangible assets — other I 187 i66
Impatrment of ntangible assets i 77 -
Property and facihties 218 229
Technology and communications 139 104
Professional and outsourced services 264 259
Other general and administrative costs 128 19
Capitalised costs (203) {199}
Acquisiuon costs 6 12
Other net gains and fosses {2) 6
Otherincome (122y (118}
Toal N A
During the year the Group obtamned the following services from the Group's auditors
Alfgures mEmbons e T
The audit of parent compary and consolidated financal statements 5 4
The audt of the company's subsidiaries o 2 2
Totalaudafess T T e
Other assurance services ! |
?O_;J other assurance services o - ) B C
Tax comphance services ! 2
Taxadwsorysevices — e e 2
Total tax services N ) ) ; _ﬁ I u: - o [ Y
e N S
9 f

Totai
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4 Operaung expenses continued

Reconciliaten between audit and non-audit service fees 1s shown below

Angresmolions T 044 2017
Group audtt fees including fees for attestation under secuon 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 7 é
Non-audst fees 2 5
Tow T I R T

Total

Eees for attestation under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act are allocated between fees payable for the audits
of consolidated and subsidiary accounts Non-audit fees for 2013 includes £3m for assurance and tax services related

to the Penguin Random House transaction

5 Employee mformauon
toris 2014 2013

All figures in € nulions

Employee benefit expense

Wages and salaries (including terminaton benefits and restructuring costs) 1728 1,836
Social security costs 134 136
Share-based payment costs I 32 35
Retirement benefits — defined contribution plans 25 69 66
Retrement benefits —defined benefit plans %5 26 27
Other post retrement benefits b g -
Tow | T omrommmmmmmmm T T T ene 00,

Total

The details of the emoluments of the directors of Pearsan plc are shown in the report on directors’ remuneration

Average nunber employed 2044 2013

Employee numbers
21,204 22 144

North America

Core 7.887 8.807
Growth 1§ 603 Q975
Other B2 187

éontmiZnng operauons 40.876 42,115

The employee henefit expense relating to discontinued operations was £5m (2013 £1 68m) and the average number
employed was 73 (2013 3,592)
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Notes to the consolidated financial staterments contnued

6 Net finance costs

All Giguresn £ milons Notes 2014 1643
{nte1 est payable {82) {82)
Net finance costs in respect of retiement benefits 2 - (3)
Finance cost of put opuions deferred consideration assocated with acquisitions

and otherinterest charges related to transactions - 4]
Net foreign exchange iosses {53) -
Other losses an financial inso uments not in 2 hedging refauonship

— derauves 'y (17}
Fmamcecosts T T T Ay (L
l_n—t;_r'est:e—cewable - i8 10
Net finance income i respect of retirement benefits 5 i -
Net foreign exchange gains t7 20
Other gans on financial instruments in a hedging relationship

~ fair value hedges - i
Other gans on financial instruments not 1n a hedging relattonship

- dervauves 12 4
Fnance ncome a8 35
Nec fin—a;xce costs o B - (‘5-3) (;g}
Analysed as - o o
Net interest payable reflected in adjusted earnings {64 {72)
Other net finance costs . o (2?1 o _(4)
Total netfinance costs 77T T T @3 e

Included in mnterest recevable 1s £im (2013 £ nil) of nterest receivable from related parvies The net movement
of £nil on fair value hedges in 2014 (2013 net gamn of £1m) comprises a loss of £27m (2013 gan of £95m) on the
underlying bonds, offset by a gain of £27m (2013 loss of £94m) on the refated denivative financiat instruments

For further information on adjusted measures above, see note 8
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7 income tax

(Nraes 2014 2013

Alf fgures w £ millons
Current tax

Charge inrespect of current year {103) (129)
Adjustments i 1espect of prior yea s 30 {7)
Total current tax charge 7T 7T gy (136)
Deferedeax - a
in respect of temporary differences 8 14
Orther adjustments in respect of prior years 2 35
Total deferred tax credit o 3 10 49
Toalmrdmge T o & @

The adjustments in 1 espect of prior years in both 2014 and 2013 mainly relate to changes in estmates arising from
uncertam tax positions following settlements with tax authorities in the year

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the UK tax rate
as follows

Alt figures in £ milhans 2014 2643

Profit before tax 305 382

Tax cafculated at UK rate (2014 21 5%, 2013 23 25%) (66) (8%9)
Effect of overseas tax rates (12) (£3)
Joint venture and assoctate income reported net of tax ] I3

Net expense not subject to tax )] ({4)
Loss on sale of businesses not subect to tax -~ (6)
Utthsation of previously tinrecognised tax losses and crediis - t

Unuuhsed tax losses (19 (7}
é‘d_;_t'{sgnints‘ in respect of prior* years o 32 28
Tomeange T T T gy
UK - - o T e (6)“ - (T3_5
Overseas _ {57} {74)
Toal ax charge _ @)

207% 228%

Tax rate reflected in earnings
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

7 Income tax continued

The tax rate reflected n adjusted earrnngs s calculated as follows

Al figures m € onilhons 2014 202
Profit before 1ax 305 382
Adjustments
Other net gans and fosses (2) 16
Acquisition costs 6 12
Armornsauon of acquired mtangibles 318 196
Other netfinance costs B 29 4
Adjusted profit before tax — continuing oper;;.l;ns o o 656 610
Adjusted profit befor e tax —- discontinued operations N 2 54
Tota musted proficbefore tox ] ) e oot
Total tax charge {63} (87)
Adjustments
Tax charge on other net gans and losses i 32
Tax benefit on acquisition costs () {2)
Tax benefit on ntangtble charges {73) (51)
Tax benefit on other net finance costs {5 {0
Tax amorusation benefit on goodwill and intangibles 24 30
;d—;_u:ted income tax charge - conunum;;perntlon_s_ o (tt7) (79)
Adjusted income tax charge - discontinued operations o () (i8)
Total adjusted mc;)me tax charge T (! I8)__“wm (‘;7_)
Tax rate reflected in adjusted earnings o B o 17 9% 14 6%
For further nformauon on adjusted measures above, see note B
The tax (charge)/benefit recognised in other comprehensive icome s as follows
Aitana e T T T T T
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligatuans () (23)
Net exchange differences onwransiauon of foregnoperavons. . ® ¢
LR

A tax charge of £3m (2013 tax charge £nil} relating to share-based payments has been recognised directly in equity
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8 Earmings per share o
Basic ;;
Basic earnings per share ss calculated by dividing the profit attributable te equity sharehelders of the company by the b
weighted average number of ordinary shares in1ssue during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by the é
company and held as treasury shares “
Dntuted
Duluted earmings per share 1s calculated by adjusung the weighted average number of ordinary shares to take account
of all diuuve potential ordinary shares and adjusting the profit attributable, if applicable, to account for any tax
consequences that might arse from conversion of those shares
T S e 0
Profit for the year fram contnuing cperations 242 295 n:;
Nen-controlfing interest e L] E
Earnings from continuing operations 243 294 g
Profitfor the year from discontinued operauons s 228 244 E
Earnings ] 471 538
Weighted average number of chares {millions} gig9 8078
Effect of dilutive share options (muliions) t0 {1 o
Waesghted average number of shat es (milfions) for diluted earmings 8Ht G 8089 %
a
Earnings pe: share from contmuing and disconeinued operations =
Basic 58 [p 66 6p é
Diluted 580p  665p @ 4
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic 300p 364p
Diluted 229 363p
Earnings per share from discontinued operations §
Basic Blp 302 2
x>
Diluted ) 28 1p 302p 3
Adjusted

In order to show 1 esults from operating activities on 2 consistent basis, an adjusted earnings per share 1s presented
The company's definitton of adjusted earnings per share may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures
reported by other companies

Adjusted earnings includes the results from conunuing and disconunued operations The following items are excluded
from adjusted earnings

Orhernet gains and losses represent profits and losses on the acquisition and disposal of subsidraries, joint ventures,
assooates and other financiaf assets that are included within contming or discontinued operatons but wihich distort
the performance of the Group

Amorusation of acquired incangibles, acquisiion costs and movernents i conungent acquisition consideration are
also excluded from adjusted earnings as these items are not considered to be fully 1 eflective of the underlying
performance of the Group
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Notes to the consolidated financiat statements continued

8 Earnings per share continued

Othernet finance ncome/costs include finance costs in respect of retrement benefits, finance costs of put opnons
and deferred consideration and foreign exchange and other gains and losses Finance costs relaung to reurement
benefits are excluded as the consolidated income statement presentation under 1AS [9 (revised) does not reflect the
economic substance of the underfying assets and labilities Finance costs of put opuons and deferred consideration
are excluded as they relate to future earn outs and sumilar payments on acquisitions and do not reflect cash expended
Foreign exchange and other gains and losses are excluded as they represent short-term fluctuations in market value
and are subject to significant volathity Other gains and losses may not be realised n due course as it1s normally the
intention to hold the related insouments te maturity Other net finance costs of Group companies are included in
finance costs or finance income as appropriate Other net finance costs of joint ventures and associates are included
within the share of results of joint ventures and associates within operatng profit

Tax on the above items 1s excluded from adjusted earnings Where relevant the Group also excludes the benefit from
recoghising previously unrecognised pre acquisition and capual losses The Group includes the benefit of tax
amorusation of goodwill and mtangibles as this benefit more accurately aligns the adjusted tax charge with the
expected rate of cash tax payments

Non-controlling inter est for the above items 1s excluded from adjusted earnings The following tables reconcile
statutory earnings to adusted earnings

TrTmoTT T Ty o ) 014

Staturory Orther net Cther net Tax Adjusted
mearne  Duiscontnued gansnd  Acquisiuon [ntangibie finance Mol tisanon ncome

Alt figuiosin £ millions sratement optrat ans losses costs charges  sncome‘costs benchir statement

Operaung profit 398 2 (2) é 38 - - 722

Net finance costs o (93) - - - - 29 - (64}

Profit before tax 305 2 (2) 6 38 29 - 658

l_r}come tax (63) (1} ! (1} ) {73) (5 24 (118}

Profit for the year from

continuing operatons 242 | (h 5 245 24 24 540

Profit for the year from

discanunued operations 228 ) {227) - - - - -

Profit for the year 470 - {228) 5 245 24 24 540

Non-controlling interest - -~ - - - - B

Earnmgs 471 - (228) 5 245 24 24 541

Weighted average number

of shares {millions) 8109 8109

Weighted average number

of shares (mithons) for

diluted earnings Bl I git 9

Earnings per shai e (basic). 58 Ip R L . 2L

E_z_u-_r;lngs_p-e.;si'lare (d:lur.edi . 58 Op _ 666p
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8 Farningspershare continued .- — e e e 2
L.IE S
Srirto y Otheract QOrher net Tan Afpyied &
mome  Dnconcrmed savisand Acqrainor iranpeb'e fianie amerizauen Mt wime =
Allfiguresin Lmirge statenien aperaon: Irrases cos darges neo neSoss bemdit <tale PRt m
Operating profit 458 54 f6& 12 196 - - 736
Netfinancecosts (76) R . L
Profit before tax 382 54 te 2 196 4 - 664
income tax o (87} (8 32 (@ CL 30 (97
Profit for the year from . -
continunng opel ations 295 36 48 10 145 3 3¢ 567 2
-
Profit for the year from m
discontnued operauons 244 @) @9 - 2y - -
Profit for the year 539 - (tel) 10 147 2 30 567 g
Non controlling interest {1} - - - - - - (b E\
Earnings 538 - (161} 10 147 2 30 566
Weighted average number
of shdres (militons) BG7 8 B07 8
Weighted average number &
of shares {millions) for g
diluted earnings 8089 8089 &
n
Earnings per share (basic) 66 6p L 7C1p >
Earnings per share (dduted) 66 5p 700p £
e e e S e o e e e =
[a]
? Dividends B
Altfigures in € milhens ’ T T - - 2014 2044
Final paid i respect of prior year 32 Op (2013 300p) 259 242
Interim paid m respectof current year [70p (2013 16 Op) t38 130 —_
e ol e 5 et A SR ool o
o . 397 372 Q
The directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2014 of 34 0p per g
share which wilt absorb an estimated £276m of shareholders funds |t will be paid on | May 2015 1o shareholders i

wha are on the register of members on 7 Apnil 2015 These financial statements do not reflect this dividend
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

10 Property, plant and equipment

Asetsm
Landand Pranta d courseof
Al igures n £ mdigns buddinps  equEment ConsuTLuen Tt
Cost
AL [ Janvary 2013 352 597 8 967
Exchange differences {5 ({4 - (I
Additions 33 58 22 13
Disposals (13) (78) - on
Acquisition through business combination - 3 - 3
Dusposal through business disposal () (2) - (3
Reclassificauons 9 (i) (8 -
Transfer from software - 3 - 3
Transfer from assets held for sale - 9 - 9
Transfer to assets held for sale - (7 - N
At 31 December 2013 TTTTTTTTTTTTT T T s T s 975
Exchange differences il 7 - 28
Addions 0 58 i9 87
Disposals (% (46) (2) (57)
Acquistion through bustness combination - 2 - 2
Disposal through business disposal - (H (1
Reclassificauons | 3 (4 -
Transfer to software - (t6) (té)
T B T8 600 29 108

At 3[ December 2014




10 Property. plant and equipment continued
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Asspinm
L and and Pantsd covrre e

Al figures m € milions b dgs PGUpINERL  (DRETTUTON Tetal
Deprecation
At | January 2013 {195} {445) - (640)
Exchange differences 3 i3 - 16
Charge for the year {25) {57 - (82)
Disposats 7 64 - 71
Acquisiuon through business combination - 2) - (2)
Transfer from assets held for sale - () - (1)
Transfer to assets held for sate - 5 - 5
A3l Decomber203 TTTTTTITTT T o @3y - (633)
Exchange differences N (15) - (22)
Charge for the year (23) (5t} - (74)
Disposals 9 36 - 45
A3l December2014 N D ) . (684)
Carrying amounts ) T S
At | January 2013 £57 152 18 327
At 31 December 2013 165 [45 32 342
Ac3l December2014 T s s 09 334

At 31 December 2014

Depreciauon expense of £16m (2013 £24m) has been induded in the Income statement in cost of goods sold and
£58m (2013 £57m) in operaung expenses in 2014 £nid (2013 £lm} relates to discontnued operations

The Goup leases certain equipment under a number of finance fease agreements The net carrying amount of leased
plant and equipment included within property plant and equipment was £13m (2013 £1im}

no
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements continued

It intangible assets

Acqureed
cutometas,  Acqures Acquied Othrr
covrarsand  kademards  pudsing mniegi

AV figues £ mviions Geodwl  Software relaro whpe,  1igbrams rgnts etdumed Tot!
Cost

At | january 2013 5077 466 729 258 207 394 7,131
Exchange differences (122) {6) (25) (t)] {12) 1y (184)
Addiuens - internal developiment - 38 - - - - 38
Addiuens - purchased - 24 - - - - 24
Disposals - (503 - - - - (50)
Acquisiion through business combmation (133) - (90 - 3 7 67
Disposal through bustness disposal (6} - - - - (h {7
Reclassificauons - - (10 {1 - (i -
Transferto PPE - (3) - - - - {3)
Transfer to assets held for sate {150) - (29) (12) - (2 {[93)
Ac3lDecember 2003 4666 469 855 237 198 398 6823
Exchange differences 198 7 34 5 - i4 268
Imparment (67) - - - - - (67)
Additions ~mnternal development - 54 - - - - 54
Addions - purchased - 53 - - - - 53
Disposals - {7 - - - - {7
Acquisiuon through business combination 238 - 5 69 - 186 498
Disposal through business disposal (5) {5} - 3) (f) - (14)
Transfer from PPE - le - - - - 6
At 31 December 2014 5030 597 894 308 197 598 7,624
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i1 Intangble assets continued

Acquied

i nabns poahg wnmer
Al figures in £ mhlons Goodver  Softwie seiatomiuor  andbrands ngts  equed Total
Amorusation
At fanuary 2043 - 312) (204) (86) {139) {I72} {913)
Exchange differences . 6 0 4 ) 7 33
Charge for the year - {59) (78) (2n (15) {54) (227)
Disposals - 49 - - - - 49
Disposal through business disposal - - - - - | |
Transfer to assets held for sale - - 23 10 - 23
Acdl December20i3  — @& @) 93 (48 @16 (1.022)
Exchange differences - {13} () {3) - (12) {3%)
Impan ment - - (6) (2 - {2) (1
Char ge for the year - {63) (83) {(25) (12) (67) (250)
Disposals - 5 - - - - 5
Disposal through business disposat - f - ! - - 2
A 3| December 2014 - (386) (349) (122) {160y (297 (1.314)
Ea'r;‘);u;g;mou—nt_sv T T T e e e
At | January 2013 5077 54 525 172 68 222 6218
At 31 December 2013 4,666 153 606 (44 50 182 5800
B e R T N TR T S A T )
Goodwill

‘The goodwill carrying value of £5,030m relates to acquisitions completed after { January 1998 Priorto 1 January 1998
all goodwill was written off to reserves on the date of acquisiuon For acquisiions completed between | January 1998
and 31 December 2002 no vaiue was ascribed to intangbles other than goodwill and the goodwill on each acquisition
was amortised over a period of up to 20 years On adoption of iFRS on [ fanuary 2003, the Group chose not to restate
the goodwill balance and at that date the bafance was frozen (e amortisation ceased) If goodwill had been restated
then a significant value would have been ascribed to other intangible assets, which would be subject to amorusation,
and the carrying vafue of goodwill would be significantdy lower For acquisiuons completed after [ January 2003 value
has been ascribed to other intangible assets which are amortised

Orcher ntangible assets
Other intangtbles acqun ed mdude content, technology and software rights

Intangible assets are valued separately for each acquisiuon and the primary methad of valuation used s the discounted
cash flow method The majonty of acqur ed intangibles are amorused using an amortisation profile based on the
projected cashffows underlying the acquisition date valuation of the intangble asset, winch generally results n a larger
proporcton of amortsation bemng recognised m the early year s of the assets’ ife The Group keeps the expected
pattern of consumption under review

Amorusation of £12m (2013 £15m) 15 included i the income statement in cost of goods sold and £238m (2013
£210m) n operating expenses I 2014 £ril (2013 £2m) of amorusaucn relates to discontinued operations
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Notes to the consolidated financial staterments continued

il Intangible assets continued

The range of usefil economic lives for each major dass of intangible asset (excluding goodwill and software)
15 shown below.

T 2004
Class of intangible asset T Uselufeconamue e
Acquired customer fists, contracts and relationships 3-20 years
Acquired trademarks and brands 2-20 years
Acquired publishing rights 5-20 years
Othermtangibles acquwed 2-20 years
The expected amorusation profite of acquired intangible assets is shown below

T T T T T T T T T T T s

----- Onc to - Six e More than
Al figures i £ mukons five years ren years ten yoars Total
Class of intangible asset
Acquired custamer lists, contracts and relatonshups 340 148 57 545
Acquired trademarks and brands 97 54 35 t86
Acquired publishing rights 34 3 - 37
219 72 L 30

Other mtangibles acquired

impairment tests for cash-generating units (CGUs) contairung goodwill
Impan ment tests have been carried out where appropriate as descnibed below

Following a rearganisation of the business effective | January 2014 goodwill was allocated ta CGUs or aggregation
of CGUs where goodwill could not be reasonably allocated to individual business umits Impairment reviews were
conducted on these CGUs summarised below

All figures n ¢ miions B - 2014 2083
North America 3422 3,239
Core 618 624
Growth (includes China, Brazi, Inda and South Africa) 612 447
Pearson VUE 327 306
Financial Times Group 51 50
T ) ) T T 030 4666

The recoverable amount of each CGU is based on value in use cafculations Goodwill 1s tested for impairment annually
Other than goodwill there at e nointangtble assets with mdefinita ves The goodwillis generally denominated in
the currency of the relevant cash flows and therefore the impairment review 1s not matenally sensisve to exchange

rate fluctuations
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{l Intangible assers continued

Impairment tests for cash-generatng units cantaining goodwall continued

Following detericration i the market conditions for the Group’s online tutoring husmess based in India, st was
determined in the course of the impairment 1 eview that the value in use of the India CGU no longer suppor ted the
carryng value of the goodwiltin that CGU Animparment of £67m was booked, thereby bringing the carrymng value
of goodwili in the India CGU down to £l An impairment of £10m was also booked in respect of other acquired
intangtbles in that CGU, bringing their carrying value to £ril The India CGU incorpor ates all the Group’s trading
operations i India A pre-tax discount rate of 13 6% was used to determine the value in use of the Inda CGU

No previous assessment had been made of the value in use of that CGU as the Group s India operaucns, prior to
the | January 2014 reorgansation, were previously part of a larger Emerging Markets aggregated CGU

Key assumpuons
The value in use calcufations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering

a five-year period The key assumpttons used by management in the value in use calculations were

Duscount rates The discount rate 1s based on the risk-free rate for government bonds, adjusted for a sk premium
to reflect the increased risk minvesting n equities The nisk prermium adjustment is assessed for each specafic CGU
The average pre-tax discountrates range from 9 0% to 16 4% Discount rates are lower for those businesses
which operate in more mature markets with low inflation and higher for those operating in emerging markets

with higher mflation

Perpetuity growth rates A perpetuity growth tate of 2 0% (2013 2 0%) was used for cash flows subsequent to the
appi oved budget period for CGUs operaung in mature markets This perpetuity growth rate 1s a conser vative rate
and 1s consider ed to be lower than the long term historic growth 1 ates of the underlying ter ritor 1es i whuch the CGU
operates and the long-term growth rate prospects of the sectors in which the CGU operates CGU growth rates
between 5 0% and 5 B% were used for cash flows subsequent to the approved budget pertod for CGUSs operaung

tn emerging markets with highinflauon These gt owth rates are also below the long-term historic growth rates in

these markets

The key assumptions used by management in setung the financial budgets for the ival five-year period were
as folfows

Forecast sales growth rates Forecast sales growth rates are based on past expenence adjusted for the strategic
direction and near-term investment prioriues within each CGU Key factors include the proporuen of revenue
expected 1o arise in emerging markets, the proportion of revenue expected to corne from digital and services
businesses relative to traditional pnnt-based businesses and the changing product mix as a result of product
investment The five year sales forecasts use average nominal growth rates between 1 1% and 3 3% for mature

markets and between 8 3% and 15 7% for emerging markets with high inflation

Operatng profits Operavong profits are forecast based on historic experience of operaung margins adjusted for
the impact of changes to product costs and cost saving imtiatives including the impact of the global restructuring

programme undertaken in 20i3 and 2014

Cash conversion Cash conversion is the rauo of operaung cashflow 1o operaung profit Management fo1 ecast cash
conversion rates based on historic expenence. adpusted for the impact of pr oduct invesunent priorities and the stuft
to digital and service based business

Sensitvittes
The Group's impawrment review is sensitive to a change in assumptions used, most notably the discount rates and the

perpetuity growth rates Based on the Group's sensitivity analysis, 4 reasonably possible increase of ( 8% pts in the
discount rate or a decrease of | 0% pt i the perpetuty growth rate could cause an impaiment i respect of Brazil
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements conunued

12. {nvestments in joint ventures and assoctates

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows

Al fguies m £ omllons 2014 X
Associates 1,105 1,082
Jointventures i3 3
Totat .18 1.092
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows
Argmesmtmbeos ] 2014 EE
Assoctates 54 56
joint ventures (3) (2)
Total 5t 54
Investiment in associates
The Group has the following matenal associates
T T T T T - Pzt Gwnershe | Nawresi  Hessurcment
of blsiness L1 d228 refauonship mathod
Penguin Random House Ltd UK/ Global 47% Note | Equity”
Penguin Random House LLC us 47% Note | Equity*
The Economist Newspaper Ltd UK 50% Note 2 Equity’

*None of the associates has a quoted market price

Note | - On | July 2013 Penguin Random House was formed, upon the completion of an agreement berween
Pearson and Bertelsmann to merge their respective trade publishing companies Penguin and Random House, with
the parent companies owning 47% and 53% of the combined business respectively The shareholder agreement
includes protection rights for Pearson as the minority shareholder including rights to dividends Managemenit considers
ownership percentage, board composttion and the addiuonal protecuve rights. and exercises judgement to determine
that Pearson has significant mfluence over Penguin Random House and Bertelsmann has the power to direct the
relevant activities and therefore control

Note 2 - The Group has a 50% mterest n The Econormist Newspaper Ltd, publisher of one of the world s feading
weekly business and current affairs magazines The Economist has a unique structure of "A", “B" and Trustee shares,
which was established to ensure ts independence from proprietonal control Pearson, as holder of the "B shares,
has never controlled the Economist by virtue of its sharehalding or influence, and management assesses that it has
significant nfluence over the company
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{2 Investments In joint ventures and associates continued

Investment n associates continued
The summarised financtal information of the material associates is detated below

T T T T mem e e 204 10t restated
T hegen T e
Al figures in £ miiions Random House Economist  Random House Econon st
Assets
Current assets 1,355 110 1210 103
Non-cut rent assets 1,429 t66 1382 163
Liabiities
Current habilities {1,113) (190} (305) {190)
Non-current habiiies {424) {(86) _(45:53) __(60)
Nevwmen T T T e - e
Y T SRS 2 R I )
Profit from contnuing operations 74 42 66 52
an._ee__ eh_ 9

Other comprehensive (expense)/income
Total comprehensive income 63 22 32 51

Dwvidends received from associate 95 21 43 21

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financal statements of the associates, adjusted for farr
value and similar adjustments The tax on Penguin Random House LLC 15 settled by the partners For the purposes
of clear and consistent presentation, the tax has been shown in the associate hne items in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated balance sheet, recording the Group's share of profit after tax consistently for the Penguin

Random House assoctates
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

12. Investments n joint ventures and associates continued

Investment n associates continued
A reconchanon of the summansed financral mformation to the carrying value of the materal associates

1s shown below

044 W02 ioed
Penguin T Pengin o
AN Bigures in £ mAhans Random Hause Economist  FandomBause  Economist
Opentng net assets {,232 i6 - -
Exchange differences 52 - (68) ~
Profit for the pericd 74 42 66 52
Other comprehensive (expense)/income (11} 20 (34 g
Duvidends, net of tax pard {100) (42} @n (4
Addmions - - | 359 -
Distribution from associate n excess of carrying value - 4 - -
Bev:eis_al of cﬁstnbungn fi om associate in excess of carrying value .- - - 4
Closmgnetassers T T T T T T am e
Share of net assets 586 - 579 8
Goadwill 509 - 451 -
Cariymg i ofsoame T s T Tom s

In 2013 the Group deternuned the fair valug of the Penguin Random House venture for the purposes of accounting

for the transacuion A valuation of the Pengumn Random House ventures was determined during the negotiation of

the transaction between Bertlesmann and Pearson Ths valuation of the business was calculated using the income
approach, discountng future cash flows to the present value Cash flow projections were prepared {for both businesses
by country taking into account the front and backdist trends and extrapoiated using fong term growth rate assumptions
The cash flows were discounted using discount rates with nisk premiums speaific to each geographic region A discount
to the Group's share of the total value to reflect the Group's non-controlling minority ownership was appled

The Group finaksed its acquisttion accounting for Penguin Random House in 2014 and an adjustment to the opening
posttion with respect to deferred tax and goodwll was made The overall carrying value of the associate 1n 2013
was unchanged however the additions and goodwill balances in the table above have been restated to reflect the

final accounting

Information on other individually immaterial associates 1s detailed below

014 HHR

All figures in £ tmiliens

Loss from continuing operations (2) (h

Other comprehensive cone

Total comprehenstve expense G, ()
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12 lnvestments in joint ventures and associates contnued

Transactions with matenial associates
The Group has loans to Penguin Random House which arc unsecured and interest s calculated based on market rates

The amount outstanding at 31 December 2014 was £54m (2043 £44im) The loans are provided under a working
capital facility and fluctuate during the year The loan outstanding at 3t Decembor 2014 was repaid inus entrety n

January 2015

The Group also has a current asset recervable of £41m (2013 £27m) from Penguin Random House arsing from the
provision of services Included 1n other income (note 4) 1s £4(m (2013 £28m) of service fees

fnvestment in joInt ventures
information on joint ventures all of which are individually immaterial, 1s detaled below

Alifigures n £ milhons o ) o o 2014 0
{ oss from conunuing operations (3) (2)
Other comprehensive income - -
Towlcomprehensveexpense . .® __ @
13 Deferred income tax o e
Al figuresn £ e llons 2014 2013
Deferred income tax assets 295 250
Deferred ncome tax Irabiives I ) N 3]
Netdefaredncometax T @g) @6

Substanually all of the deferred income tax assets are expected to be recovered after more than one year

Deferred income tax assets and habilities may be offset when there 1s alegally enforceable nght to offset current
COmMe tax assets agamst current income tax iabihities and when the deferred incorne taxes relate 1o the same fiscal
authonty At3| December 2014 the Group has unrecogrised deferred mcome tax assets of £4m (2013 £4m)in
respect of UK losses, £14m (2013 £HIm) in respect of US losses and approximately £44m (2013 £36m) in respect of
losses in other territories None of the unrecognised UK losses have expiry dates associated with them The USlosses
relate o state taxes and therefore have expiry periods of between five and 20 years

The recogninon of the deferred income tax assets 1s supported by management’s forecasts of the future profitability

of the relevant business units

The movement on the net deferred income tax account 15 as follows

A figures n £ millions Motes 2014 2013
At beginning of year (362) (372}
Exchange differences (22) 9
frcome statement benefit ? {0 47
Acquisivon thrrough business combination ab - {37)
Dhsposal th ough business disposal 3 M -
Tax charge to other comprehensive rcome or equity {18) (35)
Transfer to/from current Lax (26) 25
Transfer to assets held for sale _ - {
Acendofyesr ey e

At end of year

inciuded in the income statement above for 2014 1s a £mil charge (2013 £2m charge) refating to discontnued
operaons
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contunued

13. Deferred income tax continued

The movement in deferred ncome tax assets and habilities during the year 15 as follows

Retlrement
Trad ng Renrns henefil

Al fipurcain € mlhions fosses povaoi  obapuos Onbwer “otal
Deferved ncome tax assets
Ax | january 2013 i8 45 47 it9 229
Exchange differences - {1} (1) €)] (6)
Acquisinan through business combinanion 21 - - - 21
ncome statement (charge)/benefit (24) (5) 15 22 i8
Tax charge to other comprehensive Income or equity - - (36) - (36)
Transfer to current tax - - - 25 a5
Transfer from assets held for sale - - 7 N -
fl'_rgr_ug.f_e[ic_: assets held for sale T ( 1} n_m(_f_)
At 31 December 2013 D 39 7y 154 250
Exchange differences | 2 4 5 2
Acguisiion through business combmation 2 - - 2
Ihcome statement benefit 0 3 7 35 55
Tax benefit/(charge) to other compt ehwensive income
or equity - - 10] (7 3
Transfer o current tax - - (26) (26}
Disposal through busness disposal S SO L) R - ()
Ac3iDecember20id 7T B M e M6l 05
Other deferred mcome tax assets include temporary differences on share-based payments, inventory and other
PT'OV!SIOHS
o ’ ) T T Gundai and
All figures i £ llions nitangilas O Total
Deferred income tax habilites
At [ January 2013 (475) {126} (601)
Exchange differences 13 2 15
Acquisition through business combination &h 3 {(58)
Incame statement {charge)/benefit (61) 20 29
Tax benefit to other comprehensive income or equity - ! i
Transfer to assets held for sale L ~ - 2 2
At 31 December 2013 Tyt e T 84y (28 (612)
Exchange differences {30) {4) {34)
Acquisimon through business combmation (2) - (2}
Income statement benefit/(charge) |8 (63} {(45)
Tax charge to other comprehensive income or equity — BN ) S €17

" T ey e (719

At 2l Decem_f_:_e_r 2014

Other deferred mcome tax liabiities inciude remporary differences in respect of depreaation and royalty advances
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14 Classification of financal instrurments

The accounting classificaton of each class of the Group's financial assets and financral labilittes, together with their
carrying values and market values, 1s as follows

2014
T T e Ameredeos T

Derwatves  Derwvanves Toty) Tou

Avalable diemedheld  mhedging Other  Losnsand  Other curyng  market

Al figures m £ milions Notes  forsale  fortwading  refatomships  abfives  recewables  habrites value value
lwestments in isted securmmies 5 9 - - - - - 9 9_
Investments in unlisted securities 15 45 - - - - - 45 45
Cash and cash equivalents 17 - - - - 530 - 530 530
Marketable securities 6 - - - - - t6 16
Dervanve financial instruments T - 6 108 - - - it4 {14
Trade receivables 2 - - - - 989 - _?39 _9_89
Towl francalassers 70 & 18~ Ist9 - 1703 1703
Dervamve finncal mstruments 16 - (3 @b - -« 4 (74
Trade payables b2 - - - - - {329) (329) (329)
Bank loans and overdrafts 1A - - - - = (42) (42) (42)
Borrowings due within one year n - - - - {305) (305) (31%)

Borrowings due after more than

one year 14 : . . .. . oo U.878) (1.878) (1,888)
Total fancal labiwes _ _(33) @) - - (1554) (2628) Q652

$SANISAE 4N0 |
1

LOVdHI TviD05 ¥NO i FONVYHBO4¥I4 ¥NO |
|

JONVNYIAOD '




160 Pearson plc Artualrepe 1t and s cunis 2611

Notes to the consoldated financial statements continued

4. Classification of financial mstruments contnued

2012
T Farr vatue _An ur it edeest
) L0 ivitow £ D;—| RERVRY - e Teuat Torat
Aun be decn edheld inhedr ng Ctnes Loars aind Cvbger CATPYING Murhe,
Al figures iy avitiens Notes tar nala for madng  xhonsn o kahles  recewahies  aabedies value vdue
[nvestments in unkisted securities
~ conunuing operations 15 94 - - - - — 94 94
Cash and cash equivalents —
CONUNUING operations i - - - - 729 - 729 729
Cash and cash equivalents
dassified within assets held
for sale 2 - - - - 36 - 36 36
Marketable securiuies 6 - - - - - 6 6
Derwvauve finanaal instruments 6 - 4 120 - - - {24 24
Trade recevables — conunuing
operauons 2 - - - - 882 - 882 882
Trade receivables classified
within assets held for sale o T B BB
Total financiatassets 100 4 20 - i672 - 8% | 896
Derwauve financal mstruments o - (16) (32)— - - - (48) {48)
Trade payables -- continuing
operations i - - - ~ - {(3te} (316) {(3lg)
Trade payables dassified within
liabilitres held for sale - - - - - () H (i)
Bani loans and overdrafts -
continuing operations 18 - - - - - @ @) @
Borrowings due within one year 18 - - - - - {508y (50B) (514)
Borrowings due after more than
one year __w - - - - ~- (1 671) (1.671) (1.683)

i

Toral financial habiliuies - (6 @) - (2543) (2591) (2.609)

Certam of the Group's denvative financial instruments are classified as held for trading erther as they do not meet the
hedge accountng criteria specified in |AS 39 Financial Instruments Recogmuion and Measurement’ or as the Group
has chosen not to seek hedge accounung for these mstruments None of these derivatives are held for speculative
trading purposes Transacuons in dervative financial instruments are only undertaken to manage risks ansing fiom
underlying business acuwity. in accordance with the Group's treasury policy as described m note 19

The Group designates certain qualifying dervative financral nstruments as hedges of the fair value of s bonds
(far value hedges) Changes in the fair value of these denvative financial instruments are recorded in the income
statement, together with any change in the fair value of the hedged hability attnbutable to the hedged risk

The Group also designates cet tam of its bort owings and derivauve financial instruments as hedges of sts mvestments
in foreign operations (net investment hedges) Movements in the far value of these financral instruiments (to the extent
they are effecuve) are recogrised (1 other comprehensive income

None of the Group's financial assets or labilities are designated at fair value through the income statement upon
initial recogmtton

More detaif on the Group's accounting for financral instruments is ncluded o the Group’s accounting pohcies
The Group s approach to managing risks n relaton to financial nstrumentsis described n note 19
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15 Odher financial assets

At Rgures i £ mibons 2014 w13
At beginning of year 94 3t
Exchange differences 6 -
Acquisiion of investments 12 63
Disposal of nvestments G8 -
Ater ) o B o “54 94

At end of year

Other financial assets comprise histed securities of £9m (2013 £nuf) and unlisted securities of £45m (2013 £94m)

16 Derwvatve financial instruments

The Group's approach to the management of financial risks 1s set out in note [9 The Group's outstanding denvatve
financed nstruments are as follows

T L 2014 _ 012
Eross novonal Giass notion il

All figures m £ oulions mounts Assers Lrabhites AMOLNS Astets Lnhilnes

Interest rate derwatives —

i a far value hedge relatonship 1.607 B4 (5} i.439 81 (32)

Interest rate derivatives — not in

a hedge relavonship 673 - N 634 4 (18)

Cross currency rate derivatives -

in 4 hedge relactanship 889 24 (36) 220 39 -

Cross-currency rate derivatives -

not in a hedge relationship 45l 6 )

Toral 3.620 { ‘! 4 (74) 2,293 ) L?.i ({8_)

Analysed as expiring

In less than one year 200 24 () 312 {3 -

Later than one year and not later

than five years 1,386 67 {8) 1.377 P -

Later than five years 2034 _ _2_3_ L (65) 604 = _(_4-8_)

Total 3,620 b4 (7_‘_1)___ __2?__93 o ﬁl.24 o ﬁB)
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MNotes to the cansohdated financial statements contnued

16 Derwative financial nstruments contnued

The catrying value of the above dervaave financial instruments equals therr far value Fair vatues are determined
by using marker data and the use of estabhished estimation techniques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuation models

At the end of 2014, the currency split of the mark 1o-market vafues of rate derwauves, including the exchange of
principal on cross currency rate dervatives, was US dollar £(607)m, sterling £214m. euro £430m, Brazifian real £4m
and South African rand £nil (2013 US dollar £{151)m, sterling £243m, euro £nil, Brazihan real £mi and South African

rand £{{6}m)

The fixed interest ates on outstanding rate dervatve contracts at the end of 2014 range from | (0% to {4 48%
{2013 | (0% to 9 28%) and the floaung rates are based on LIBOR in US dollar, euro and stet hng

The Group's portfolio of rate dervauves 1s dversified by maturity, counterparty and type Natural offsets between
wransactions within the portfolio and the designation of certain derivatives as hedges significantly reduce the risk

of ncome statement volatlity The sensitivity of the portfolio to changes in market rates 1s set outin note 9
Derwative financial assets and habilities subject to offsetting arrangements are as follows

2014 2013

Gross Gross  Net derbvatve Grose Gross  Nivdervtve

dervarive derivative aszets derivatne dervalve A5015S

Adl figin os tn £ methons assets hatviitles habilcies d5aeLs ERLI (N I ibhes

Counterparues in an asset position 94 {28) 66 122 (12 (10
Counterparues 1n a hability posiuon 20 (46) (26) 2 {36) (34}

Total as presented in the balance sheet {14 (74) 40 124 {48) 76

Al of the Group’s derivauve financial instruments are subject to enforceable netting arrangerments with individual
counterpartes, allowing net settlement i the event of default of cither party Offset arrangements in respect of cash

balances are shownin note |7

Counterparty exposure from all derivatives is managed, together with that from deposits and bank account bafances,
within credit imits that reflect pubbshed credit ratings and by reference to other market measures (e g market prices
for credit defauit swaps) 10 ensure that there is no significant risk to any one counterparty No single derivauve
transaction had a market value (positive or negative) at the balance sheet date that exceeded 3% of the Group’s

consohdated total equity
in accordance with 1AS 39 ‘Finanaial Instruments Recognition and Measurement the Group has reviewed alt of its

ratertal contracts for embedded dervatves that are required to be separately accounted forif they do notmeet
certain requirements, and has concluded that there are no matertal embedded dervauves
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{7 Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts)

Mifgwem Cmibons 2014 2013
Cash at bank and in hand 483 521
Shot t-term bank deposits B ~ 47 208
Contnuing operations ST T T s 79
Cashat bank and i hand classified within assets held for sale - 35
I S0 76

Short-term bank deposits are invested with banks and earn interest at the prevailing short-term deposit rates

At the end of 2014 the currency split of cash and cash equivalents was US doftar 18% (2013 28%), sterling 13%
(2013 18%), euro 3% (2013 5%). rennunbi 28% (2013 27%} and other 38% (2013 22%)

Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that approximate to thewr carrying value due to their short-term nature
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement

Alifguesmmtions 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents - continuing operations 530 729
Cash at bank and in hand dassified within assets held for sale - 36
Bank overdr afts — continuing operations ) (19) (25}
T s B e e e e e e SI-I_" 740

The Group has the following cash pooling arrangements in US dollars, sterling and euro, whet e both the company
and the bank have a legal nght of offset

T 1014 ’ 2013
Qffsar OQffsec Net ofiset wlset Offyet Net uifset
All figures ia £ mifhans assct labiity  asseclliabibry 155LL taln 1y assed/od oy
US dolfars 267 (2686) i 298 (299) )
Sterling 430 (427) 3 1018 (1,027) (9)
Euro _ _ 9 @® i 6 () |
Total for continuing Oparations as
presented in the balance sheet 5 } . ®

At the end of 2013, the Group had offset US dollar, sterling and euro asset bafances of £lm £16m and £nul respecuvely
in respect of disconunued operatuons

Offset arrangements in respect of dervatives are shown innote 16
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fNotes to the consolidated fimancial statements continued

18 Financral habibues — borrowmngs

The Group’s current and non-current borrowings are as follows

Al figures m £ mltions 2014 i3
Non-current
6 0% Sterling bonds 2013 (nominal amount £300m) - 299
4 0% US dollar notes 2016 {(nomunal amount $350m) 23t 221
6 25% Global dollar bonds 2018 (nominal amount $550m) 390 375
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 (nominal amount $300m) 210 202
| 875% Euro notes 2021 (nominal amount €500m) 408 -
3 75% US dolfar notes 2022 (nominal amount $500m) 319 283
3 25% US dollar notes 2023 (nominal amount $500m) 315 286
Bank loans and overdrafts 5 22
Finance lease habdives e 3 R 5
T e T o 1883 —I—é‘)?;_
Current T -
Due within one year or on-demand
5 7% US dollar bonds 2014 (nominal amount $400m) - 248
7 0% Sterling bonds 2014 (nominal amount £250m) - 254
6 0% Sterling bonds 2015 (nominal amount £300m) 300 -
Bank toans and overdrafis 37 25
Finance lease llabiliues 5 é
----------- T T e e ) _*--‘342 533
Total boi rowings - - ~ o 225 22%

tncluded in the non-current borrowings above is £13m of acerued interest (2013 £9m) Included i the current
borrowings above is £im of accrued nterest {2013 £4m)

The maturity of the Group's non-current bor owing ts as follows

Al figuces m £ misons 2014 013
Between one and two years 239 303
Between two and five years 602 B21

1,042 569

Qver five years

1883 1633
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18 Fwnancal iabdities — borrowings conunued o
The carrying arnounts and market values of borrowings are as follows é
T T T T e e e e IETY T e z
T theee | Caryng | Maber | Gt Hawss 8
All figures In £ midions InteresE 1At value vitue lue value
Bank loans and overdrafts n/a 42 42 47 47
5 7% US dollar bonds 2014 588% - - 248 246
7 0% Sterbing bonds 2014 7 20% - - 254 262
& 0% Srerling bonds 2015 627% 300 314 299 325
4 0% US dollar notes 2016 4 26% 23t 233 221 223 §
6 25% Global dolfar bonds 2018 6 46% 390 397 375 376 §
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 4 69% 2i0 205 202 95 g
| 875% Euro notes 2021 204% 408 407 - -
375% US dollar notes 2022 394% 3i9 327 283 286 n
3 25% US doltar notes 2023 336% 315 314 286 173
Frinance fease habiliies n/a i0 ¢ tH H
ST T T s e ams -
The market values stated above are based on clean market prices at the year end or where these are not available, %
on the quoted market prices of comparable debt 1ssued by other companies The effective interest rates above refate 8
£o the underlying debt mstruments -
The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denominated in the following currencies ;;
Aligres n € mifians S e
US dellar 1491 §,645
Stering 303 559
Euro 408 - P
Other ) i 23 2 2
T T T T T e
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MNotes to the consohdated financial statements continued

I8 Financal habilises — borrowings continued

The Group has the following undrawn capacty on its committed borrowing facilies as at 31 December

Allfigurcs n £ milions 014 2013

Foaung rate

- expirmg within one year - -

~ expiring beyond one year 1122 1,057
T ) o C » o T JA22 o I_E)__%;

I addiuon to the above facilities, there are a number of short-term facilities that are utdised in the normal course
of business

All of the Group's borrowings are unsecured in1espect of finance lease obliganons, the rights to the leased asset
revert to the lessor in the event of default

The matunity of the Group's finance lease obligations s as follows

Allfiguies n £ mlions 2014 2013
Finance lease labikties — minimum lease payments
Not later than one year &
Later than one year and not {ater than two years 4
L ater than two years and not later than three years ! !
Later than three years and not later than four years ! -
Later than four years and not later than five years - -
Later than five years - -
Future finance charges on finance leases - -
Present value of finance lease habdities L 10 1 !
The presert value of finance lease hiabities s as follows
A—‘—I ;Igun.-: nf l'l‘l";OﬂS B Tt T ";;l;-- T -;‘;E_
Mot {ater than one year 5 6
Later than one year and not later than five years 5 5
Later than five years o - -
0 b

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease obligations approximate theu fair value
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19 Financial msk management

The Group's approach to the management of financiai risks together with sensitity anatyses of its financal
nstruments 1s set out below

Treasw y policy
The Group holds financal instruments for two prinaipal purposes to finance its operations and to manage the interest

rate and currency risks arising from its operauons and its sources of finance The Group finances its operations by a
muxtut e of cash flows from operations, short-term borrowings from banks and commercial paper markets and
longer-ter m loans from banks and capual markets The Group barrows principally m US dollars eures and steriing,

at both floaang and fixed rates of interest, using derivative financtal instruments (' denvatives’), where appropriaie,

to generate the desired currency profile and interest rate basis The derivatves used for this purpose are principally
rate swaps, rate caps and collars, currency rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts The main risks ansing
from the Group's financial nstruments are interest rate nsk, kqurdity and refinancing risk, counterparty risk and foreign
currency risk These risks are managed by the chief finanaal officer under polictes approved by the board, which are
summarised in this Note Al the treasury policies remained unchanged throughout the year, except for revisions to

the Group's banl counterparty risk inuts and a clanfication of the Group sintention to mantain its credit ratings as

outimed below

The audit commuttee receives regular reports on the Group's treasury activities, pohicies and procedures
The treasury department is not a profit centre and 1ts actvities are subject to regular internal audit

Liquidity and refinancing risk management
The Group's objective Is to secure conunuity of funding at a reasonable cost To do this it seeks to arrange committed

funding for a variety of maturities from a diversity of sources The Group's policy objective s to mantan the weighted
average matunity of its core gross barrowings (treating short-term advances as having the final maturity of the facilities
avalable to refinance them) to be between three and ten years At the end of 2014 the average maturity of gross
borrowings was 4 7 years (2013 4 2 years) of which bonds represented 97% (2013 97%} of these borrowings

The Group beleves that ready access to different funding markets also helps to reduce its hquidity nsk. and that
pubhshed credit ratings and published financial policies improve such access The fong-term atings are Baal from
Moady's and BBB+ from Standard & Poor's, and the short-term raungs are P2 and A2 respectively All of the Group's
credit raungs remaned unchanged during the year, although in January 2014, Moody's changed the outiook on their
short-term and long-term ratings from ‘Stable’ ta ‘Negative’ The Group's policy 1s 1o strive to maintain a raong of
Baal/BBB+ over the long term The Group also uses a range of ratios to moritor and manage its finances internally
These mclude interest cover, ret debt to operaung profit and cash flow to debt measutes Tie Group also maintains
undrawn comrmitted borrowing faciiues At the end of 2014 the commutted facilities amounted to $1.750m (£1,122m)
and ther weighted average maturity was 4 6 years

Interest rate risk management

The Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuattons on its borrowings s managed by borrowing on a fixed rate basts
and by entering mto rate swaps, rate caps and forward rate agreements The Group also aims to avord undue
exposure to a single interest rate setting Reflecting this objective, the Group has predominantly swapped its fixed rate
bond issues to floaung rate at ther faunch Thus creates a group of derwvatives, under which the Group 1s a recasver of

fixed rates and a payer of floaung rates

The Group's policy objective has contnued 1o be to set a target proporuorn of tes forecast borrowings (taken at the
year end, with cash netted agamst floating rate debt and before certan adjustments for (AS 39} to be hedged (i e fixed
or capped at the year end) over the next four years, subject to a maximum of 65% and a minimum thiat starts at 40%
and falis by 10% at each year end At the end of 2014 the fixed to floaung lredging rauo, on the above basis, was
approximately 38% 62% Steps will be taken in early 2015 to bring the Group back into compliance with this policy
objecuve A simuitaneous [% change on [ january 2015 i the Group's vartable mterest races n US dolfar and sterling,
takung into account for ecast seasonal debt, would have an £1Im effect on profit before tax
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

19. Financial risk management continued

Interest rate risk management canunued

The policy described above creates a further group of denvatives, under which the Group 1s a payer of fixed rates
and a recever of floatng rates The Group s accounting objective in relaton t1o1ts use ofinter estrate dervatives is
1o rmunimise the impact on the income statement of changes i the mar k-to-market value of its dervauve portfoho

as a whole [t uses duration calculations to esumate the sensiuvity of the derivatives to movements in mai ket rates
The Group also identifies which derivatives ai e eligible for fair value hedge accounung (which reduces the income
statement impact of changes n the market value of a derivatve) The Gi oup then balances the total portfolio
between hedge-accounted and pooled segments, so that the expected movernent on the pooled segment 15 rinimal

Financial counterparty risk management
Counterparty credit imits, which take published credit raung and other factors into account, are setto cover the

Group's total aggregate exposure to a single financial insutuuon The hruts applicable to published creditraungs bands
are approved by the chief financial officer within guidefines approved by the board Exposures and hroits appticable to
each financial instutution are reviewed on a regular basis

Foreign currency nsk management

Although the Group 15 based in the UK, it has its most significant investment in OVerseas operations The most
sigrificant currency for the Group is the US dollar The Group's policy on routine transacttanal conversions between
currencies (for example, the collection of recevables and the settlement of payables or interest) remams that these
should be transacted at the relevant spot exchange rate The majority of the Group’s operations are domestic within
their country of operation No unrermitted profits are hedged with foreign exchange contracts, as the company judges
i1t Inappropriate to hedge non cash flow translational exposure with cash flow instruments However, the Group does
seel to create a natu al hedge of this exposure through its policy of aligning approximately the currency compositon
of its core net borrowings (after the impact of cross-currency rate derivatives) with its forecast operating profit
before deprecration and amorusation This policy ams to soften the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates on
consolidated interest cover and earnings The policy above applies only to currencies that account for more than 15%
of Group operaung profit before deprecauon and amartisation, which currently is only the US dollar The Group st
borrows smalt amounts i other currencies. typically for seasonal working capital needs The Group policy does not
requtre existng currency debt to be terminated to match dechines in that currency’s share of Group operatng profit
before depreciation and amorusation In addition, currencies that account for less than 15% of Group operating
profit before depreciation and amortisation ¢an be included in the above hedging process at the request of the

chieffinancial officer

inciuded within year end net debt, the net borrowings/(cash) in the hedging currencies above (talang it account
the effect of cross-currency swaps) were US dollar £2,005m and sterling £36m

Use of currency debt and currency derivatives
The Group uses both currency denominated debt and denvauve instruments to implement the above policy

lts intention 1s that gans/fosses on the derivatves and debt offset the losses/gains on the foreign currency assets
and income Each quarter the value of hedging nstruments 1s momitored against the assets in the relevant currency
and, whei & pracucal, a decision 1s made whether to treat the debt or dervative as a netnvestment hedge
{permiting foreign exchange movements on it to be taken to teservesj for the purposes of (AS 39
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t9 Financial misk management continued

Analysis of Group debt, including the impact of derivatives
The following tables analyse the Group's sources of funding and the impact of derwvatives on the Group's

debt nstruments

The Group s net debt pusition s set out below

All fipures n £ miffrons
Cash and cash equivalents 530 729
Marketable securities 6 6
Derwauve financial iInstruments 40 76
Bank loans, overdrafts and loan notes (42) {47)
Bonds (2,173) (2.168)
Finance lease habihtes §0)] {(rn
Comumungopetaons (e (al5)
Cash and cash equivalents classified within assets held for sale - wm?:_(g
Netdebt U 639) (1379)

The spitt of net debt between fixed and floaung rate, stated after the impact of rate derwatives, s as follows

2014 W3

Al figures in £ nuliians
Fixed rate 597 612
Floating rate 1,042 767
Total T T T T T ey 1379

Total

Gross borrowings, after the impact of cross-currency rate dervatves, analysed by currency are as follows

Allfguresm Loy 2044 2013
US dollar 2.099 {,849
Sterling 104 339
Other 22 38
Yo T T T T I T 008 a6

As at 3} December 2014 the exposure of the borrowings of the Group to interest rate changes when the borrowings
re-pnce s as follows

Less rhan Onc to More than
Al figures in £ nulhons one year five years five yeuws Total
Re-pricng profile of borrowings 3412 842 [.04¢ 2225
Effect of 1 ate denvatives £,254 (225) (1.029) -

Toral ) 1.596 6i7 12 2,225
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

19 Financial rsk management cantinued

The matu ity of contracted cash flows associated with the Group's financial habiliues are as follows

L ) 204
Al figares i £ iions usD GRP Other Tonl
MNot{ater than one year 398 160 29 657
L.ater than one year and not fater than five years 877 - - 877
Later than five years | 126 - - {126
T 60 99 2660
Aralysedas T T T e
Bonds (711 3i8 439 2,468
Rate denvatives — inflows (379) (656) (537) {1.572)
Rate derivatives — outflows 893 444 98 1435
'Ii'_a_de payables 176 54 9 329
:I'qc;l—— T T _ o _-2‘401 160 99 W{.666
Tt T T T T T T T T T T T e
A g € o e T Tar T Tomer | Tew
Not later than one year 434 36 3 863
L ater than one year and not later than five years 1,000 06 - i.106
Later than five years 648 - o 648
Total o -_j T ) o T 2082 T o '2_517'
;nalysed as. T T
Bonds 1918 604 - 2,522
Rate derwatives —inflows {350) (248) - {598)
Rate derivauves — outflows 359 ! 6 376
Trade payables 155 65 97 317
Total S - 2,082 2 3 2617

All cash flow projections shown above are on an undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on a floating rate are
calculated using Interest rates as set at the date of the {ast rate reset Where this s not possible, floaung rates are based
on interest rates prevaikng at 31 Decembrer in the relevant year All dervative amounts are shown gross, although the
Group net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credu faciities and commercial paper are assumed to mature at the maturity date
of the relevant faality wath interest calculated as payable in each calendar year up to and wicluding the date of matunty
of the faality
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19 Finanoal risk management continued o
=
Financial snstruments — fair value measurement -
[
The following table provides an analysis of those financial nstruments that are measured subsequently to intial R
recogmtion at farvalue grouped intolevels | 1o 3, based on the degree to which the fau value is observable m
A
Level | far value measurements are those dertved front unadjusted quoted prices in active mariets for identical assets
or liabiliues,
Level 2 fair value measurernents are those derived from inputs, other than quoted prices included within levet |,
that are observable for the asset or habtlity, ether directly (as prices) or indirectly (derved from prices), and
Level 3 fair value measurements are those dei ived from valuation techniques that include mputs for the asset or liability —_—
o]
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) <
e e e e o e et e n n e e e oo e et i e -
2044 2913 <
B e — e — m
All Rgures in £ mihons Level | Level2 Level3 Toral Level lew!2 Lestd Towt ;O.,
i
Financral assets ax faw value z
I
Denvative financial assets - 114 - 4 - 124 - 124 m
Marketable securiies - 16 - 16 - 6 - 6
Awailable for sale financial assets
Investments in listed securities - 9 - g - - - - —
s
investments in unlisted secuntes - - 45 45 - 94 94 =
Financial habihities at fair value &
[}
Derwatve financial hablwes - 0 - 0H - U8B - @8 2
Total - 65 45 ilo - 82 24 176 g
— —_ — e e e z
The following table analyses the movements in level 3 far value measurements
2014 2013
Investments Orther Tawe simienty Other
e unhisted finanera! Inuy sted fimanca' —_—
Al figures in £ mitlions SECUNITICS liabiiitles SLCUTRS fahdir s o
o
At beginping of year 94 - 30 (68) E
Exchange differences - - 9 £
z
Additions - 63 - a
Fair value movements - - - (8)
Dhsposals {58} - - 67
45 - 94 -

At end of year

The fair value of the mvestments in unhsted secunties is deter mined by reference to the finanaial performance of the
underlying asset and amounts realised on the sale of simudar assets
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19 Financial nisk management continued

Financial mstruments — sensitivity analysis
As at 3! December 2014 the senstuvity of the carrying value of the Group's financial mstruments to fluctuations

W interest rates and exchange rates s as follows

Impactof 1% Impactof I% Impactof 10%  Imprceof 10%

Carrying meredsein  decreisen  swengthemng  wetkening In
All figures n £ mibions value  nterestraies  mterestrates i sterling sterlmg
nvestments in hsted securies 9 - - (H i
investments in unhsted secunties 45 - - 4 5
Cash and cash equivalents 530 - - {67) 82
Marletable secunties 6 - - - -
Derwvative finanaial instruments 40 (66) 85 16 {(19)
Bonds (2,173} 7i (84) (170 208
Other borrowings {52) - - 6 7
Other net financial assets 660 - - (53} 64
Tors el varements T T T ey TS T oy s

The table shows the sensitiviues of the far values of each class of financial instruments to an isolated change in
either interest rates or foreign exchange rates The class ‘Other net financral assets’ comprises trade assets [ess

trade habiitios

The sensitvities of derivative instruments are calcufated using established esumation techmques such as discounted
cash flow and option valuation models Where modelling an inter est rate decrease of 1% led to negauve nterest i ates,
these pomts on the yreld curve were adjusted to 0% A large propor uon of the movements shown above would impact
equity rather than the income statement, due to the iocauon and functional currency of the entittes in which they arise
and the availability of net invesument hedge treatment The changes i valuatons are estmates of the impact of changes
n market variables and are not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains ot losses
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20 Intangble assets — Pre-publication

Alfiguesin Ll ons B ) 2014 013
Cost

At beginnung of year 1,933 1.876
Exchange difier ences B8O {(46)
Additions 358 364
Disposal thr ough business disposal - 29)
Disposals {234) (234)
Acquisiuon through business combination | 2
Atendofyear ) o R 1 L )

At end of year o213 h933

Amartsaton

(1216)  (1.210)

At beginning of year

Exchange differences {60 46
Charge for the year {292) (308)
Ensposal through business disposal - 23
Disposals 234 234
Acquisition through business combtnation - (1)
Transfer to recevables 3 6 -
Atend of;;l:u T omrTmm mmmm e e e e _'(“E-B-I 8_) (l”{IﬂgE
Carryngamounts - T T e
Atendofyear T T w0

At end of year

Included in the above are pre-publication assets amounting to £546m (2013 £480m) whuch will be realised 1n more
than one year
Amorusaton 1s included in the ncome statement i cost of goods sold The was ne amai tisauon within discontinued

aperatons in etther year

2! In¢cntores

AdfguresmEmboms 1014 083
Raw materials g 15
Work n progress 16 I3
Finished goods L e “52915 L l_?é

— S . 224 224

The cost of nventores relating to conunuing operations recognised as an expense and wnduded in theincome
statement in cost of goods sold amounted to £387m (2013 £472m) In 2014 £38m (2013 £53m) of nventory
provisions was charged in the ncome statement Noae of the inventory is pledged as security

i
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

22 Trade and other recervables

2083

Adt figwr exn £ ovllons " 20m

Current X

Trade recetvables 963 863
Royalty advances I8 23
Prepayments and accrued income 07 01
Orther recetvables 222 186
o ) o TTTTT T T 1310 I,F7;
Nemeumene, T T T T T o T e e e e
Trade recewvables 26 19
Royalty advances B 8
Prepayments and accrued income 30 33
QOther recervables I8 10
Tr-ade recevables are stated at fair value net of provistons for bad and deubtful debts and anucipated future sales
returns The movements on the proviston for bad and doubtful debts are as follows

Mitgmnimion T T T ow T T
At beginning of year {58} (553
xchange differences - 5
lncome statement movements {210 7
Unbsed 17 (8
Acquisition through business combimnation {tt) -
Transfer to assets dassified as held for sale - i
P e -

Concentrations of credit sk with respect to trade receivables are lmited due o the Group s large number of customers
who are internatonally dispeised
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22 Trade and other i ecervables conunued
The ageing of the Group's trade receivables is as follows

2014 013

Al fgures in £ mPtians

Within due date 869 783
Up 1o three months past due date 03 194
Three to six months past due date 40 36
Six to nine months past due date {5 22
Nine to 12 months past due date [5 9
More than 12 months past due date _ ~ H !
Total trade recevables ] 1,153 1,045
Less proviston for sales returns (164} (i63)
Net es o - 989 882

Net trade recewvables

The Group reviews its bad debt prowvision at least twice a year following a detaled review of recervable balances and
historic payment profites Management believe all the remaining 1 eceivable balances are fully recoverable

23 Provisions for other habilities and charges o

Deferred Dsposas Lega'
Al figures n £ muans coaiderstion Proper iy andclasires and owner Toral
58 i 67 53 89

At | January 2014

Exchange differences 4 - ~ i 5
Charged to income statement - t - 0 1
Released to iIncome staterment - n 43) (4) (48)
Acquisiiion through business combination - - - t4 4
Utbsed . ©) () I o) (23 _ (39
Ac3|December20t4 s 7. 0 5L 135
Analysis of pravisions
— . ——— N — e e
" Deferred ) Dok Let
Al figures n € milhons considaration Property  and clarures and other Toral
Current 7 4 20 22 53
Non-curent 3 o- 3 &
AN A N R
2013
Current 5 {0 67 30 ti2
Noncurrent . e ¥ BT
B ) 581 67 53 189

Deferred consider ation primaniy relates 1o the formation of 2 ventur e in a North Amenca business i 2011

Disposals and closures nciude labilines refated to the disposal of Pengusn In 2013 a provision was established for
amounts payable to Bertelsmann upon settlement of the transfer of Penguin's UIC past service penston habilities to the
new Penguin Random House venture During 2014 1t was decided that dus transfer would not go ahead as planned and

therefore the prowision has been released

Legal and other meludes legal claims, cont act disputes and porenual contract fosses
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Notes to the consolidated financal statements continued

24 Trade and other habwhtes

AR figures i { milions 2014 2043
Trade payables 329 316
Social security and other taxes 24 23
Accruals 501 478
Deferred income BOt 698
Interest payable 28 22
Other habilites 231 225
e T YT ¥
Less non-current portion
Accruals 22 25
Deferred income 201 155
interest payable i9 24
Other habilities 68 56
o I -2
Current B - N

Current portion

The carrying value of the Group's trade and other liabilites approximates 1ts far value

The deferred income balance comprises principally multy year obligations to deliver workboois to adoptian
customers i school businesses advance payments n assessment, testing and training busmesses, subscription
mcome in school, college and newspaper businesses, and obhgations to defiver digital contentin future years

25 Reurement benefit and other post-retirement obligations

Backgiround
The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans throughaut the world

The largest plan s the Pearson Group Pension Plan (UK Group plan) in the UK, which ts sectionalised to provide both
defined benefit and defined contrbution pension benefits The defined benefit section was closed to new mermbers
from | November 2006 The defined contribution section, opened in 2003, 1s open to new and existing employees
Finally, there is a separate section within the UK Group plan set up for auto-enrolment The defined benefit section of
the UK Group pfan s a final salary penston plan which provides benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed level
of pension payable for Iife The level of benefits depends on the length of service and final pensionable pay The UK
Group plan s funded with benefit payments from trustee administered funds The UK Group plan is administered

in accordance with the Trust Deed and Rules in the interests of its beneficiaries by Pearson Group Penston

Trustee Limited

At 31 December 2014 the UK Group plan has approximarely 26,500 members, analysed in the following table

* Active Deferred Penistaners Totul
Defined benefit 2 25 32 59
Defined contnbution 18 23 - 4]

Total 20 48 32 100
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retn ement obligations continued

Background conanued
The other major defined benefit plans are based i the US These are also final salary pension plans which provide

benefits to membersin the form of a guaranteed pension payable for life, with the level of benefits dependent on
tength of sarvice and final pensionable pay The majorizy of the US plans ai e funded

The Group also has several post-retrement medical benefit plans (PRMBs), principally in the US PRMBs are unfunded
but are accounted for and valued simdarly to defined benefit pension plans

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to actuaral risks, such as lfe expectancy, inflation 1sks, and
investment risk induding asset volathty and changes i1 bond ytelds The Group s not exposed to any unusual,

enuty spectfic or plan specific nsks

Assumptions
The principal assumptions used for the UK Group plan and the US PRMB are shown below Weighted average

assumptions have been shown for the other plans, which primarily relate to US pension plans

o T pre 2012
T OKGiew | Oter T T KGrow o
% pfan plans PRMB plan plans PREE
Inflation 30 25 25 34 25 25
Rate used to discount plan habiities 36 37 37 44 44 44
Expected rate of mcrease i salaries 35 39 40 39 39 40
Expected 1 ate of ncrease for pensions n
paynent and deferred pensians 190505 - - 23tes5l - -
iniwal rate of increase in healthcare rate - - 70 ~ - 75
50 - - 50

Ultimate rate of increase in healthcare rate -

The UK discount rate s based on corporate bond yields adjusted to reflect the duration of habihities The US discount
rate is set by reference to a US bond portfolio matching model

The inflation rate for the UK Group plan of 3 0% reflects the RPlrate Inline wath changes tolegislauonin 2010, certain
benefits have been calculated with reference to CPl as the inflationary measure and in these instances a rate of 2 0%
has been used

The expected rate of increase in salaries has been set at 3 5% for 20[4 with a short-term assumption of 2 0%

for three years

For the UK plan, the mortality base table assumpuons have been denved from the SAPS ‘all pensioners’ tables for

males and the SAPS normal health pensioners’ tables for females, adjusted to reflect the observed experience of the
plan, with CM] mode! improvement factors A i 5% long-term rate improvement on the CMi model 1s appled for

males, and | 25% for females

For the US plans, the mortality table (RP - 2014} and 2014 Impr ovement scale {MP — 2014) with no adjustrments have
been adopted for 20{4 reflecung the mortality assumption most prevalentin the US in 2013 the RP2000 table
projected to 2020 was used
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

25 Retwrement benefit and other post-retirement obligations conunued

Assumptions contnued
Using the above tables, the rematning average life expectancy in years of a pensioner reting at age 65 on the balance
sheet date for the UK Group planand US plans s as foltows

UK s

T Tom o aom 23
Male 244 243 2t 6 192
Fema!e 245 244 238 2_! !

The 1emaining average life expectancy in years of a pensioner reuring at age 65, I5 years after the balance sheet date,
for the UK and US Group plans is as follows

UK us

- ;O-H — 013 2004 T M3

Male 266 259 233 192
Female 264 259 255 21 1

Although the Group anticipates that plan surpluses will be utlised during the Iife of the plan to address member
benefits, the Group recognises its pension surplus in full in respect of the UK Group ptan on the basts that itis
management's judgement that there are no substantive restrictions on the return of restdual plan assets in the
event of a winding up of the plan after all member obligations have been met

Financral statement infor mauon
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows

2014
T " Defined N
UK Group benefic Defined
All figures m £ mithons plan othey Sub tota contnbunan FRMB Tetal
Current service cost 20 2 22 69 2 23
Curzallments 3] - {5) - {13) (18)
Admmnistraton expenses el Ao A =R
Total operating expense o 9 pi 21 69 (I 79
Interest on plan assets {103) {7 (HQy - - (i10)
Interest on plan habdities o _ 98 8 106 - 3 109
Net finance (ncome)fexpense O ! ) I S 1)
Net income statement charge/{income) ' B 4 3 7 69 ® 78
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25. Retrement benefit and ather past-renrement obhigations continued

Fmancnal statement |m’ormauon continued

3
T o o Tt
WK Group fenett ST
At Tgirese o B, FIRL) othe t Subs ton! contedmion PRMS Teay
Curtent service cost 22 3 25 72 4 101
Curtalments - - - - 4 4)
Admumstrauon expenses o 4 - 4 e 4
Total operating expense 26 3 ¥ 7N - o1
Interest on plan assets {(95) {6) (101} - - (o6
Interest on plan habilines 94 7 {0l - 3 loa
Net finance (income)/expense o (h ! - —__._" o i_ﬁ;ﬁ_‘ 3
Net income statement charge 2 A B® 3 o4

Included within the 2014 results are discontunued operations consisting of a £5m credit (2013 £2m charge) relatng
to defined benefit schemes and a £nil m charge (2013 £6m charge) relatng to defined contribution schemes

The amaunts recogmsed in the balance sheet are as follows

T ’ 2014 013

T o ome 7 owe ouwe
UKGioup  funded  umfunded UKGroup  funded  imfurded

Al figures i £ nulkons plan plans plans Tota pan P atans Toudl

Fair value of plan assets 2714 64 - 2878 2353 i56 - 2509

Presentvaluc ofdefined beneficobligauon _(2524) _(1%) __(3) (743) _(Q267)_ (711 __Q0) 0.458)

Net pen pens:on asseti(hai:ﬁnty) 150 {32) (23) 135 86 (15} (20) 51

Other post retirement medical benefit

obligaton (81) 77

Other pension accruals . (27) _ 39

Net reurement benefit assetl(obllgatlon) 27 R, 1)

Anaiysed as T T Bl

Retirement benefit assets 190 86

Retirement benefit obligations. L (163) (142}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

25. Reurement benefit and other post-retrement obligations contnued

Financal statement information continued
The following guns/(losses) have been recogmised in ather comprehensive Income

Al fuguies m £ milbons 04 W03
Armounts recognised for defined benefit plans 36 70
Amounts recogmised for post-rets ement medical benefit plans : (13) ?
Towlrecogusedmyear BT
The fair value of plan assets comprises the following
w0 T o
------ oo Other
UX Group funded UK Gioup iuded
% plan plans Total pn plns Tord
Equities 26 2 28 28 2 30
Bonds 42 3 . 45 40 3 13
Property 9 - 9 9 - 9
cher 17 | t8 t7 I 18

The plan assets do not include any of the Group’s own financral instruments or any property occupied by the Group

The table betow further disaggregates the UK Group plan assets imo additional categorres and those assets which have
a quoted market price in an actwve market and those that do not.

204 012

T Quoted | MNoqueted | Quowd | Noauoted
% marketprce  markerprice  marketpren  maketpace
UK equities 5 } 6 i
Non-UK equibes 20 2 20 3
Fixed-interest securities 19 - 19 -
Index-linked securiues 26 - 24 -
Property - 9 - 9
Other s 18 {8

Total e e 3

The hiqudity profile of the UK Group plan assets ts as follows

re “a004 o
Ligquid - call <t month 72 2
Less hiquid -- call { -3 months 2 2
26 26

biquid --call > 3 months
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25 Reurement benefit and other post-retwrement obligations continued

Financial statement information continued
Changes in the values of plan assets and habiiwes of the retnement benefit plans are as foliows

2014 ) 2003
T e ome T T e oee
Al figuresin £ svhons plan plans Yot an e Total
Fair value of plan assets
QOpentng fair value of plan assets 2,353 156 2,509 2162 165 2327
Exchange differences - 4 4 - {2} {2)
Interest on plan assets 103 7 P10 95 6 101
Return on plans assets excluding interest 286 9 255 103 6 109
Contributions by employer 62 4 66 77 5 82
Contributions by employee 2 - 2 2 - 2
Benefits paid (92) (16} (108) (8e) (@29 (I 0)
i T T T A )
Presentvalue of defined benefic obbgaton )
Opening defined benefit obligation {2,267) (1sh (2.458) (2 181) (220 (2401
Exchange diffe1 ences - (5) {5) - 4 4
Current service cost (20} {2) (22) {22) (3) (25)
Administraton expenses {4) - (4 (4) - (4)
Cur taifments 5 - 5 - - -
Interest cost (98) (8) (106} %4 (7 (loty
Actuanal gains/(losses) — experience I (h {0 5 { 6
Actuanal gains/(losses) — demographic - (8) (8) - { |
Actuanal gains/(losses) - financial {241) (20 (261) (55) 9 {46}
Contnbutions by employee (2} - (2} () - (2)
Benefits paid 92 6 108 86 24 110
Closing defined beneficoblgaton  (2524) Ten) @My e T 9y @4se)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obliganon s |6 5 years for the UK and 97 years for the Us
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Notes ta the consolidated financal statements continued

25 Rewmrement benefit and other post-reurement obligations continued

Financial statement information cantinued
Changes in the value of the US PRMB are as follows

All figures in € mifhnns 2014 2013
Openmg defined benefit obligation (77} (8%)
Fxchange differences (4) f
Current service cost (2) “)
Curtalments 13 4
Interest cost () (3}
Actuarial gans/{losses) ~ demographuc @ -
Actuanal gains/(losses) — financal (6) ?
Benefits paid 5 5
Closing defined beneflt obligation ___ ey
Funding

The UK Group plan is seff-admimstered with the plans assets being held independently of the Group in trust The
trustee of the plan 1s required to actin the bestinterest of the plan s beneficaries Assets of the planare divided into
two elements matching assets, which are assets that produce cash flows that can be expected to match the cash flows
for a proportion of the membership and include UK and overseas bonds, inftaton finked property and infrastructure,
return seeking assets, which are assets invested with a longei term horizon to generate the returns needed to provide
the remaining expected cash flows for the beneficiaries, and include equities, property and aiter nauve asset classes
The benchmark allocation is 60% matching and 40% return seekung assets

The most recent triennial actuanal valuation for funding purposes was completed as at | January 2012 and this
valuation revealed a funding shortfall The Gioup has agreed that the funding shortfall will be eliminated by june 2047
In 2014 the Group contributed £43m (2013 £56m) towards the funding shortfall Following the completion of the
triennial funding valuation the Group has agreed 1o contribute £4im per annum untl 2017 in excess of regular
contributions In addition, a mechamism has been agreed for the Group to maie supplermentary payments up to a
rnaxtmum of £15m per annum if certam conditions are met If such payments are made they are expected to accelet ate
the end date for extinguishing the deficit Regular contributions to the plan in respect of the defined benefit sections
are esumated to be £17m for 2015

The Group expects to contribute $10m in 2015 and $1im in 2016 to its US defined benefit pension plans
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Sensitvities
The effect of a one percentage point increase and decrease in the discount rate on the defined benefit obligation and

the total pension expense is as folfows

2014

Al figures in £ miffions 1% wncroase 1% decreasc
Effect.
(Decrease)/increase n defined benefit obliganon — UK Group plan 371) 467
{Decrease)/inctease in defined benefit obligauon — US plan ) N (19 22
The effect of members living one year more or one year fess on the defined benefit obhgation s as foflows
T e o T 2014

| year I year
Al figuresin £ millons Acrease decroase
Effect
Increase/(deci ease) in defined benefit obhgauon — UK Group plan 88 (85}
Increase/{decrease) in defined benefit obligaion - US plan 7 {6)
The effect of a half percentage point increase and decrease m the inflation rate « as follows

20i4

0 5% merease 0 5% deeruase

Al figures in £ millions

Effect
Increase/({decrease) n defined benefit obligation -- UK Group plan RN (104)

increase/{decrease) in defined benefit obligation -- US plan o L =

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change n an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant,

although in pracuce this is unlikely to occur and changes in some assumptions may be correfated When calculating

these sensitivittes the same method has been applied to calculate the defined benefit obliganon as has been apphed
hen calcdlating the liability recogrised s the balance sheet This metnodology 1s the same as prior periods
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

26 Share-based payments

The Group recogmised the followng charges i the income statement In respect of its equity-setded share-based
payment plans

Al figuees In £ mdhons 2014 Wiz
32 35

Pearson plans

Share-based payment charges included in discontinued operations amounted to £nil (2013 £2m) The Group operates
the following equity-settled employee option and share plans

Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Since 1994 the Group has operated a Save-As-You Earn plan for UK employees

In 1998, the Group introduced a Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Under these plans, employees can save a portion
of their monthly salary over periods of three or five years At the end of this pertod, the employee has the opuon to
purchase ordinary shares with the accumulated funds at a purchase price equal to 80% of the market price prevaifing
at the tme of the commencement of the employee’s participation in the plan Options that are not exercised within
six months of the end of the savings period lapse unconditionaliy

Employee Stock Purchase Plan in 2000, the Group established an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which aliows all
employees in the US to save a por tion of their monthly salary over s-month periods Avthe end of the period, the
employee has the option to purchase ADRs with their accumulated funds at a purchase price equal to 85% ofthe

lower of the market price prevailing at the beginning or end of the pertod

Long-Term Incentive Plan This plan was first ntroduced in 2001 renewed m 2006 and againin 204! The plan consists
of restricted shares The vesting of restricted shares is normafly dependent on conunuing service over athree 1o five-
year period, and in the case of senor management upon the sausfaction of col porate performance targets overa
three year period These targets may be based on market and/or non-market performance criteria Restricted shares
awarded to sentor management in May 2014 and May 2013, vest dependent on relative total shareholder return, return
on invested capital and earnings per share growth Restricted shares awarded to serior management in November
2014 vest dependent on earnings per share growth Other resunicted shares awarded in 2014 and 2013 vest depending

on continuing service over a three-year pened

Annual Bonus Share Matching Plan This plan permits executive directors and sentor executives around the Group

to nvest up 1o 50% of any after tax annual bonus in Pearson shares If these shares are held and the Group meets an
earnings per share growth target, the company will match them on a gross basis of up to one matching share for every
invested share, 1 e the maximum nunber of matching shares 1s equal to the number of shares that could have been
acquired with the amount of the pre-tax annual bonus taken in nvested shares Awards under this plan ceased in 2013

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share optons granted under the Group’s plans are as follows

T o T B 2014 w08
ngh.(e—d— Weghte d

Number of average Nur ber of avarge

share options exersst price <hire ogt ong LrerQse proe

0O0s 3 000+ ¢

Qurstanding at beginning of year 2792 873 3373 824
Granted during the year [ 985 81l 763 914
Exercised during the year (727) 824 (820) 712
Forfeited during the year {538) 876 (516) 875
Expired during the year . i 3 {5 743 8 575
Outstanding at end of year 3507 848 2.792 873
43 824 35 695

Opuons exercisable at end of year
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26. Share-based payments conunued

Options were exercised regulat ly throughout the year The weighted average share price during the year was £1] 4!
{2013 £12 42) Early exercises ansing from redundancy, retirement or death ar e treated as an accelerauon of vesung
and the Group therefore recopmises in the ncome statement the amount that otherwise would have been recognised

for services received aver the remander of the original vesting perod

The options outstanding at the end of the year have weighted average remaining contractual lives and exeroise prices

as follows
2014 2013
Weyghted Weighned
Numbe: of werage tuber of 1 Age
Range of exerese prices sharc oprions  contractual ife Sarcopiios  wontrwuzl ife
000s Yoais 0005 Years
0-5 - - - -
5-1i0 3,507 268 2,792 231
>0 - - - -
3,507 268 2,792 231

In 2044 and 2013 opuions were granted under the Worldwide Save for Shares Plan The weighted average estmated
fair value for the options granted was calculated using a Black-Scholes opuon pricing model

The weighted average estimarted fair values and the inputs into the Black Schaoles moded are as folfows

2014 1042

Woeghted Wepnt s

aver age averize

Fair value £2 4§ £227
Weighted average share price £1109 £t 71
£B (| £9 14

Weighted average exercise price
2027% 2205%

39years 3 8years

Expected volatitity
Expected Iife

Risk free rate | 3% G53%
Expected dividend yield 433% 384%
Forfenure rate 34%  33%

The expected volatiity 1s based on the hustoric votauhty of the company’s share price over the previous three to seven
years depending on the vesting term of the oprons

The following shares were granted under restricted share arrangements

2014 2013

Weighted Wi phted

Number of avarage fair Nuroyeral werne far

shares value Hanes value

- 000s £ 300s 3

Long-Term Incenuve Plan 5875 ft44 3482 {152
- 99 1206

Annual Bonus Share Matcting Plan e 4 ST )

The fair value of shares granted undet the Long-Term Incentive Plan that vest uncondiuionally is deterrined using the
share price at the date of grant The number of shares expected to vest is adjusted, based on iistorical expenence,

to account for patenual forfertures Restricted shares granted under the Annual Bonus Sharre Marching Plan are valued
ustng the share price at the date of grant Parucipants under both plans are entitled to dividends dunng the vesung

period and therefor e the share price 1s not discounted
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements conunued

26 Share-based payments conunued

Restncted shares with a market performance condiuon were valued by an independent actuary using 2 Morte Care
modet Restricted shares with a non-market performance condition were fair valued based on the share price at the
date of grant Non-mariet performance conditions are taken mto consideratuon by adjusting the number of shares
expected to vest based on the most likely outcome of the relevant performance criteria

27 Share capital and share pt emium

Iuypber of Ordry Share

shares shares gromum

00Ds fn m

Ac{ January 2013 817.043 204 2555
Issue of ordinary shares - -share option schemes i o 1537 113

At 31 December 2013 818,580 205 2568
Issue of ordinary shares - share opion schemes 1.303 - H

At 31 December 2014 819,883 _ 205 2,579

The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share (2013 25p per share} Allissued shares are fully paid All shares
have the same nghts

The Group manages 1ts capital to ensure that enuues in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (see note 18), cash and cash equivafents {see note 17) and equity
attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings

The Group reviews sts caputal structure on a regular basis and will balance its averall capital structure through
payments of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt ar the redemption of exisung debtin fine
weith the financal rsk policies outlined in note 19

28 Treasury §hares

Pearsen ple
Number of
shares
000 £m
At { January 2013 10,102 103
Purchase of treasury shares 4111 47
Release of treasury shares N B (493) (59
AC3 Decomber 203 T TTTTITIIITIIIITT T o0, e
Purchase of treasury shates 907 9

Relea 299 = 32
At 3t Decemher 201 7.192 75

Release of treasury shares

The Group holds Pearson pic shares in trust to sausfy its obliganons under its restricted share plans (see note 26)
These shares, represenung ( 9% (2013 { 1%} of calied-up share caprtal, are treated as treasury shares for accounting

purpeses and have a par value of 25p per share
The nomnal value of Pearson pic treasury shat es amounts to £{ 8m (203 £2 3my

At 31 December 2014 the market value of Pearson plc treasury shaces was £85 6m (2013 £124 4m)
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29 Other comprehensive income

W4
Artnburabie o equity hotders of the company
R el T e I Nean
Translaton Rerained coproling
Ali figures in £ millions reserve warmings TJora) mre1est Tocat
Items that may be reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operatons — Group 150 - t50 - {50
Net exchange differences on translanon of foreign
operations — assoclate 25 - 25 - 25
Currency translation adjustment disposed - subsidiaries (2) - {2) - (2)
Attributable tax - {6) (6) - {6)
ltems that are not reclassified to the income statement
Remeasurement of reurement benefit obligations — Group - 23 23 - 23
Remeasurement of rebrement benefit obhgations - associate - {15} (15) - {15)
Attributable tax - {n (n (1)
Other comprehensive expense for the year 173 { 174 - 174
T T e e T/ T U T
Attribut il to equiry holders of tw conpany
........ arr e b v — = et
Tranutatlon Petuned contenllng
4| firuresin £ mions reseive [T L] Total [BIZFH Torat
feems that may be redlassified to the Income statement
Net exchange differences on wranstation of foreign
operatons - Group (202) - {202) (4) {206)
Net exchange differences on transiation of foreign
operatans — associate (in - (1) - (b
Currency translation adjustment disposed — subsidiaries (18} - (18) - (18)
Artributable tax - & 6 -- 6
ltems that are not reclassified to the income statement
Remeasurement of retrement benefit obligauons — Group - 79 79 - 79
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations — associate - - - - -
Artrburable tax - (23) (23) - (23)
Other comprehensive expense for the year (23h 62 {169) 4 (173)

i
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

30. Business combinations

On 11 February 2014, the Group acquired 100% of Grupo Mudu, the leading adult English language training company
in Brazi! Fair values for the assets and habilies arising from the Grupo Multr acquisiion and other smaller acquisitions
completed in the year are set out below There were fio material adjustments to prior year acquisiiens There were
no significant acquisiuons in 2013 Adjustments were made in respect of prior year acquisiions 2013 and mcluded
the recognition of ntangibles of £185m on the EmbanetCompass acquisiton

Fair values for the assets and labilities arising from acquisittons completed in the year are as follows

T o o4 2013
Grupo Mutts Other  Tosalfar  Torxifor
Ak figures in £ rullions fow:  fairwalue  farvite valu value
Property, ptant and equipment i0 { ! 2 |
Intangible assets i 254 6 260 200
{ntangble assets - pre-publication 0 | - | |
Inventories 4 - 4 |
Trade and other recevables 35 | 36 9
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) 3 - 3 2
Financial labilives ~ borrowings (49) - (49) -
Net deferred income tax assets/(habilitres) 12 2 (2} - (37)
Prowisions for other habdities and charges 2 {(i3) {t} {14) -
Trade and other iabilines h (3) (24) 0]
Currentincome tax habiiues 20) - (20) -
Net assets acquired a¢ far value o 157 2 1 im0
Goodwill 1 240 {2} 238 (133)
Fair value of previousty held interest ansing on stepped acquisiton - - - 7
i - )
Sausfied by o B o
Cash (437) - {437) (31)
Deferred consideration - - - (2)
MNet prior year adjustments - - - 3
Toral consideration o (437) - (4.37} (30)

The goodwill arising on these acquisitions results from cost and revenue synergies and from assets and benefits that
cannot be separately recognised

Gaodwill of £240m ansing on 2014 acquistians s expected to be deducuble for tax purposes (2013 £Léem)

intangible assets acquired in 2014 have the following useful economuc ives customer lists, contracts and refatonstups

four years, trademarks and brands 20 years, and other acquired mtangibles {2 years Intangible assets recognsed
i 2013 have the following useful economc ives customer bists, contracts and refaonships 3-17 years. and trademarks

and brands two years
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30 Business combtnations contlnued

Atfguesm Cmbios 104 203

Cash flow on acquisitions

Cash - current year acquisitions 437 {25}

Deferred payments for prior year acquisitions and other items (5 (6)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired 3 2

Acqusition costs and other acquisition iabilities paid i e U9
Nevashoudow T e (9

Net cash outﬂcw

In total, acquistions completed in the year contributed an additionai £70m of sales and £29m of adjusted operatng
profit If the acquisitions had completed on | fanuary 2014 then the Group estimates that sales for the year would have
been £4,880m and total adjusted operating profit would have been £725m

31 Disposals including business closures

014 013

Adf figures in £ mi'lions Mergee man ket Penguin Qther Toteal Peuguin Oither Torat

Disposal of subsidiares

Property, plant and equipment (2) - " (3) (39 3 (42)
Intangible assets (12) - - {12} {43) - (43)
Investments in joint ventures and associates - - - {22) - (22)

- - - () - (h

Otherfinancial assets -

Intangble assets -- pre-publication -
- - - - oh (3) 94

- - (20) € (26}

Inventories

Trade and otherteceivables (23) - (2) (25) {447) (6) (453}
Cash and cash equivalents {excluding

overdrafts) {19) - (th 30 (34) )] 37)
Net deferred ncome tax habiliues/{assets) | - - | {22) - (22)
Reurement benefit oblgations - - - - - 4 4
Provisions for other habilities and charges 4 - - 4 7 - 7
Trade and other liabilives 69 - 2 81 224 10 234
Current mcome tax habilivies 6 - - 6 - - -
Non-controfling interest - - (2) (2) 3 - 3
Artributable goodwaill (156) - ({157 {370} &) (376)
Cumnulative translation adjustment X 2 - R 8 - I8
Netassewsdwposed (30) - (® (135 (837 (13) (850)
Cash received 375 - - 375 - 3 3
Defer1 ed proceeds - [3 6 - - -
Fair vdlue of assocate acquired - - - - I, 160 - 1.160
Costs M B @ % 62 (4 (13
Ganilor ondipost w m o mm ey i

The gam on disposal of Penguin in 2013 anses from the measurerent at fair value of the associate investment acquied
in Penguin Randon House Determination of fatr value s described in note 12
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Notes to the consolidated financial staterents continued

31 Dusposals including business closures continued

Al figures m £ miilons 2014 2613
Cash flow from disposals

Cash - current year disposals 375 3
Cash and cash equivalents disposed (30) 37)
Costs and other disposal habdiues pad (i8) (98)
Net cash flowifoutfiow e D
32 Held for sate

Assets dassified as held for sale n 2013 relate to Mergermarkes

Al figwes m £ milions T e 2014 2013
Property, plant and equipment I - 2
Intangble assets I - 158
Deferred income tax assets 13 - |
Trade and other receivables - 26
Cash and cash equivalents {excluding overdrafts) iy 36
;‘SS_et_S classified as h-gfd for S‘;l-e‘ CTrTTTonm oo e e HWﬁ', ZE;
Deferred income tax habiities i3 - {2}
Provisions for other kabiines and charges - (4)
Trade and other liabhities - {71)
Current income tax habdines - {5)
Liabiliies dlr'ectl;;ssoclated with assets classified as held fon sale . -2
Net assets classified as held for sale S -

33 Purchase of non-controlling interest

There were no purchases of non-controlling interests in 2014 In 2013 the Group purchased non-controlling interests
in the South African business for £65m, and in the Indan business for £1im



34 Cash generated from operauons
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Allfguresin Cmitons. Ctoaes 2014 013
Profit 470 539
Adjustments for
Income tax (o 20
Deprevation 0 74 82
Amorusation and impatrment of acquired intangibles and goodwail 1l 264 168
Armorusation of software " 63 59
Net finance costs 93 75
Share of results of joint ventures and associates ] {51) (54}
Profit on disposals (272) (187}
Acquisition costs 6 b2
Net foreign exchange adjustment from transactions 27 (40)
Share-based payment costs % 32 37
Pre-publication (52) (77)
Inventories 6 I8
Trade and other recewvables (6%9) (50}
Trade and other habiliues 72 72
Rettrement benefit obliganons (58} (57}
Prowisions for other liabiliies and charges N N gy 3
Net cash generated from operations T T T T M 684
Dwidends from joint ventures and associates 120 64
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {79) (118}
Purchase of intangible assets (107) (64)
Proceeds from sale of pt operty, plant and equipment 9 28
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 2 2
Finance lease princrpal payments ) . {4) )]
Operamngcashflow T g49 588
Operating tax paid (163) (9n
Net operaung finance costs paid @73
Operatng fiee cash flow 413 324
MNon operating tax paid i X _ L e )
Freecashflow o 403 269
Drwidends pad (including to non-controliing interests) ) 39y (372)
Net movement of funds from o;)zr::l;;s;\s T - S s (i03;}
Acquistions and disposals (net of tax} (i37) {326}
{oans advanced {inciuding to 1 elated parties) (12) {49)
Purchase of treasut y shares 13 {9) 47)
New equity L t4
Other movements on financa mstruments . L )
Net movement of funds B T (17 (5200
Exchange movements on net deb — (43
<. Q60 el

Total movement in net debt

!
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

34. Cash generated from operations contunued

Net cash generated from operations is translated at an exchange rate approximaung to the rate at the date of cash
flow The drfference between this rate and the average rate used to transiate profit gives rise to a currency adjustment
i the reconciliation between net profit and net cash generated from operations This adjustment reflects the timing
difference between recognition of profit and the refated cash receipts or payments

Operating cash flow, operating free cash flow and total free cash flow are non-GAAP measures and have been
disdlosed as they are part of Pearson’s corpol ate and operating measures

in the cash flow statement, proceeds fi om sale of property plant and equipment comprise

Al figwes m Emitons T o T T 2014 Y013

Net book amount 12 19

(Loss)/profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - R
9 28

Proceeds fiom sale of property, plant and equipment

35. Contingenctes

There are contngent Group labilies that anse in the normal course of business in respect of indemniies, warn anties
and guarantees in relation to former subsidiaries and in respect of guarantees in relaton to subsidiaries, joint venures
and assocates In addition there are contingent habilities of the Group in respect of tegal claims, contract disputes.
royaites, copyright fees, permissions and other rights None of these claims are expected to result n amatenal gain

orloss tothe Group

36. Commitments

At the balance sheet date there wei e no commutments for capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred

The Group leases various offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases
have varying terms and renewal nghts The Group also leases vanous plant and equipment under operating fease
agreements, also with varying terms Lease expenditure charged to the mcome statement was £157m (2013 £183m)

The future aggregate msnimum lease payments i respect of operaung leases are as follows

Al figures inf rllons 014 2013
Not later than one year 161 tel
Later than one year and not later than two years 150 149
Later than two years and not fater than three years 126 £33
Later than three years and not later than four years 122 18
Later than four years and notlater than five years L5 {05

701 737

Later than five years

£,375 1,403
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37 Related party transactions

Joint ventures and associates
Amounts advanced to joint ventures and associates during the year and at the balance sheetdate are set outin note 12

Apart from transactions with the Group’s joint venuut es and associates, there were no other material related party

Eransactions
Key management personnel

From | January 2014 the key management personnel are deemed tc be the members of the Pearson Executive
{see page 9) Itis this commuttee which had responsibility for planning, direcuing and controliing the actvities of the
Groupin 2014 Key management personnel compensation is disclosed below

Al figures n Cmillions Tt T 2014
Short-term employee benefits o
Retirement benefits i
_Sb_a!rf_-based payment costs _ o 2
A O e e e e e e . i_§

Total o

There were no other material refated party transactions No guat antees have been provided to related parties

38 Events after the balance sheet date

There were no matenal events after the balance sheet date
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

39. Accounts and audit exemptions

The Pearson plc subsidiary companies listed below are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
relating to the audit of ndwvidual accounts by virtue of section 479A

Canpany rarnber

. ompany rvmber

Atdwych Finance Limited
ASET Limited

ASET Group Limited

ASET Management Limited
ASET Soluuons Limited

Blue Wharf Limited

Burmedia Investments Lirited
Edexcel Limited

Education Development Inter national ple
Embankment Finance Lirmited
eMNVQ Limited

ECL Assessment Limited
Financial Times (ASC} Limited
Financial Times Group Linuted
Fronter UK Lirmited

FT Business Information Limited
FT Labs Limited

FT Personal Finance Limited
Goal Limited

Green What f Limited
lcodeon Limtted

Joint Examuning Board Limited

Longman Group {Overseas Holdings)
Limuted

Midlands Educatonal Technology Lirmuted
Pearson Affordable Learming Fund Limited
Pearson Amsterdam Fiance Lirmited
Pearson Australia Finance Unhrited
Pearson Boaks Lamited

Pearson Brazil finance Ltd

Pearsen Canada Finance Uniirnited
Pearson Dollar Finance pic

Pearson Dollar Finance Two ple

Pearson Educauon Holdings Linited
Pearson Educauon Investments Linuted

04720439
04231636
03964551

03139404
03849880
04344573
03060487
04496750
03214767
04460625
03985948
05224778
00519261

00879531

05737591

00758738
04701650
03855520
03566588
07009228
05068195
03278422

00690236
(1448842
08038068
0304245
05578463
2512075
0BB48874
05578491
05001013
06507766
00210859
08444933

Pcarson Educauon Limited

Pearson Funding Four plc

Pearson Funding One pic

Pearson Funding Two plc

Pearson Hememann Limited
Pearson in Pracuce ATA Limited
Pearson in Practice Holdings Lirmited

Pearson in Practice Skills Based
Learming Limited

Pearson in Practice Technology Limited
Pearson International Finance Limited
Pearson Loan Finance No 2 Unlimited
Pearson Loan Finance No 3 Limited
Pearson Loan Finance No 4 bimited
Pearson Loan Finance Unliwnited

Pear son Management Services Linited
Pearson Overseas Holdings Lionited
Pearson PRH Heldings Limited
Pearson Professional Holdings Limited
Pearson Services Limited

Pearson Shar ed Services Limited

Peter Honey Publications Uimited
Sector Traiming Liruted

St Clements Press (1988) Limited
Testchange Limited

The Coaching Space Limited

The Financral Times {Benelux) Limited
The Financial Times (France) Linwted
The financiat Times (Japan) Limited
The Financal Times (M-M UIC) Limited
The Fnanaal Times (Spain} Linuted
TQ Cavaks Limited

TQ Clapham Limited

TQ Global Linvted

00872828
07970304
02911143
07210654
03099304
07679091
06337129

03755464
03786989
02496206
05632021
05052661
02635107
05144467
00096263
00145205
08561316
00149375
01341060
04623186
03754757
05342448
Q2i74119
02496240
05333023
01613899
00867316
01613%00
01398449
01214411
07307943
07307925
07802458
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The Pearson ple subsidiary companies hisied below are exempt from the requirements of the Compantes Act 2006

to prepare ndividual accounts by virtue of secion 394A

Cer npany rumbee

e usy tarnbne

Exec-Appomntments Limited 04010964
FO intelligence Limited NI040129
Financial Times Business Limited 0020228
Financal Times Electronic Pubkishing Limsted 02749250
Financial Times Investor Limited 04005565
Mandatewire Limited B 03855296

Medley Globat Advisors Linuted 00931507
The Financial News Limited 00607228
The Financial Times (Switzerland) Lirmied 01613901
The Finanaa Times (Zhengwen) Limited 01900030
Throgmot tan Publications Limited 00905696
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Company balance sheet
As at 3| December 2014

AL figuresun £ milaom ) tiotes 2014 23
Assets
Non-cur ent assets
Investments n subsidiaries } 8,740 8,537
Aumounts due from subsidiaries 27 2,009
Financial assets — derivative financial instruments 6 84 1
8851 10,657
Currentassets
Amounts due from subsidiaries 5220 380
Amounts due from related par ties 54 44
Current ncome tax assets 28 24
Financial assets -- derivative financial instruments é 24 t3
Cash and cash equvalents (excluding overdrafts) 4 13 394
Other assets 2 -
T T s T I T T T T g3a) 85
Towalassets o T4l s
Liabilities o T ) o T T
Non-current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidianes (2,346) (3.553)
Financal habilimes - borrowings 5 (210} (202)
Financial iabilities - derivative ﬁ_nancnal.mstrunjeunr.s . ) s (Z;l_ . _i@z

(2629)  (3.803)

Current habiliues

Amounts due to subsidiares (4414) (1,256}
Financial habities - borrowings 5 (62%9) (766)
Financial habitues -- derivatve financial instruments 6 1)) -
Other habihinies (2) -
Prowisions for other kiabilities and charges N _ T (42)
B ] T T e (5046 (064
Total liabihties o (7675 (5867)
Necassets T T T T T e s
Equity T T T T T e T
Share capital B 205 205
Shate premium 8 2,579 2,568
Treasury shares ° | {22)
Special reserve 447 447
Retamned earmings » ) 3 . 3285 2 4_{7_
Total equiy attrbutable to equiy holdersof thecompany . 6317 5615

These financial statements have been appt oved for ssue by the board rs on 9 March 2015 and signed onits

behalfby

Robtn Freestone Chuef financial officer
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Company statement of changes in equity
Year ended 3| December 20(4

Equity st tmburable ro equay iolders of the company

Share Share Treasu y Speceat Reramed
All figures w £ milfians coqutad premum shares reserve sarminps Totat
At | fanuary 2014 205 2,568 {22) 447 2,447 5,645
Profitfor the year - - - - | 267 {,267
tssue of ordinary shares under
shaie opuon schemes® - i - -~ - i
Purchase of treasury shares - - {9 - - (%)
Release of treasury shares - - 32 - (32) -
Dividends - - - - 397y (397)
At 31 December 2014 205 2579 1 47 3285 6517

Enquiry itndurab rto ¢ quity bunders of ' caompany
¥ H

Share sharg Tre asury Saecat Retaned
Allfiguresin £ mi t uns eapnil prem wn shares rene warn ogs Toril
At | January 2013 204 2,555 (27} 447 2,069 5,248
Profic for the year - - - - 802 802
fssue of ordmary shares under
share option schemes? f 13 - - - 4
Purchase of treasury shares - - {47) - - {47)
Releasc of treasury shares - - 52 - (52) -
Dwidends - - == {372) (372)
At 31 December 2013 R _i&am o A2‘5#6"g i _; _Q.g) L :}f—l_'l'_____ 2447 5645

The special reserve represents the cumulative effect of cancellation of the company’s share preruum account

Included within retatned eat mings 1s an amount of £131m (2013 £131m) relatng to profit on intr a-Group disposals that
is not distnibutable

'Fult derail of the share based payment plane ar e d selosed mynom» 26 10 e cotsehtdate @4 azntial scieinents
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Company cash flow statement

Year ended 3| December 2014

Adt figuret in € mihons lotes 2014 2003
Cash flows fi om operating activities

Netprofit [,267 802
Adjustments for

lncome tax (2 (51}
Net finance costs 24 167
égleungf'da{e_ to subsidiaries i (£.058) {1.053}
Net cash gveneréx_t;ad;(_u;ez_m)ﬁa‘om op~erat|ons i T 224 (u[w3+5w)
Interest pard (73) (82)
Tax reccived 6 14
Net cash generated/{used u;)‘}rcm opera_tmg ac;;t-lems' T lng——_— ﬁ{“i(-)i)w
Cash flows from investing activities

Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed - 482
Loans to related partues (10) (44)
Interestreceved 15 0
Net cash recened from investing actviies )
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from ssue of ordinary shates ] i |4
Net purchase of treasury shares %] (48}
Repayment of borrowings {250) -
Dwidends pad to company’s shareholders (397) (372)
Net cash used .l—r;_{:lnancmg acuvt-ues ) ) N T {645) {406}
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (15) i8
Net decrease i cash and cash equrvalents {498} (|11—3')'
Cash and cash equivalents at beginnmg of year (118) 25
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year B L sle) (18
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Notes to the company financial statements

i Accounoing policies

Tire imancial staterments on pages 196 to 204 comprise the separate financial statements of Pearson plc

As permitted by section 408 of the Carmpanies Act 2006, only the consolidated income statement and statement
of comprehensive income have been presented

The company has no employees
The accounung policies applied in the preparauon of these company financial statements are the same as those set

autinnote | to the consoldared finanaiaf statements with the addmon of the following

Investments
investments in subsiciianes are stated at cost less provision for impairment with the exception of certain hedged

investments that are held in a forergn currency and revalued at each balance sheet date

2 Investments tn subsidiaries

Al figures n £ mAions 2014 2013
At beginning of year 8,537 2,108
Subscripuion for share capital in subsidiaries 138 424
Dhsposals/bquidations - (985)
Currency revaluations 65 (+0)
Acendofyear - T g0 8sy

At end of year ) B0 8537

3 Financial risk management

The company’s financial nstruments comprise amounts due to/from subsidiary undertakings, cash and cash
equivalents, dervative financral instruments and current and non-current borrowings Derwatve finanaal instruments
are held at far value, with all other financial nstruments held at amortsed cost The company’s approach to the
managernent of financial risks 1s consistent with the Group's treasury policy, as discussed in note 19 to the consolidated
financal statements The company beheves the value of its finanaal assets to be fully recoverable

The company designates certain quahfying derivative financral instruments as hedges of the fair vafue of its bands (far
value hedges) Changes in the far value of these denvauve financral instruments are recorded in the income staterment,

together with any change in the fair value of the hedged hability atrrnbutable to the hedged risk

Tne carrying value of the company’s financial instruments 1s exposed to mavemennts in interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates (primarily US doltars) The company estmates thata 1% increase i interest rates would
result n a £66m decrease in the carrying value of its financial instruments, with a 1% decrease ininterest rates resulting
i a £85m ncrease m their carrying value The company alsc esumates thata 0% strengthening in sterling would
decrease the carrying value of its financial instruments by £169m, while a 10% weakening in the value of sterling would
increase the carrying value by £89m These increases and decreases i carrying value would be recorded through the
ncorne statement Sensitivities are calcufated using estmation techriques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuation medels Where modeling an interest rate decrease of 1% led to negative interest rates, these ponts on the

yield curve were adjusted to 0%
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

3 Financial nisk management continued

The maturity of contracted cash flows on the company's bor rowings and all of its derivauve financial instruments
are as follows

2014
Al figures n € mdions T Tue T aee T ome | Tard
Not later than one year 172 (212) (16) {56)
{ater than one year and not later than five years 224 - (97} 127

Later than five years 4[8 - (403) 15

T T T T e e T ey 8
;nalysed as ST B
Bonds 224 - - 224

Rate denvatives — inflows (303) (656) (537) (1,496)
Rate derwauves - outflows 893 444 21 i.358

Torl e B4 cle %
T T e e e i - T T T
Al figucss i £ mihioss T T Ot Totat

Not later than one year {20y 233 e 229

Later than one year and not fater than five years 287 (212} - 75

Later than five years o (39 - - 39
Towl T T T T T T e T s
vAnalysed as - - T

Bonds 219 268 - 487

Rate derivauves — inflows (350) {248) - (598)
Rate denvauves — outflows 359 i 6 376

Tow e T I T T T

All cash flow projections shown above are on an undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on a floating rate are
calculated using interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset. Where this 1snot possible, floating rates are based
on interest rates prevailing at 31 December in the relevant year All dervative amounts are shown gross, although the
company net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credit facthues and commercial paper are assumed to mature at the matunty date
of the relevant facility, with interest calculated as payable in each calendar year up 1o and including the date of maturity
of the factity
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4 Cashand cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts)

All Rgures o (mt‘lcms 2014 Q3
Cash atbank and m: hand 2 269
Short term bank deposits i {35
e - )

Short-term bank deposits are invested with banks and earn mterest at the prevailling short-term deposit rates

At the end of 2014 the currency split of cash and cash equivalents was US dollar 33% (2013 76%), sterling 54% (2013
24%) and other 13% (2013 ml)

Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that appr oximate to therr carrying amounts due to their short-term nature

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement

Allfiguresin £mutons 20t4 2083
Cash and cash equivalents 13 394
Bank overdra{ts {629) (512)
O CITC N (11
5 F_u_1a4ng§! hablhtles - borf_civum’g_s _ L _ e
All figures m £ mllions 2014 002
Non-current
4 625% US dollar notes 208 (normna{ amount $300m) 21 9 202
T S T e
Current
Due within ane year or on-demand
7 0% Sterling bonds 2014 (norminal amount £250m) - 254
Bank loans and averdrafts 629 Si2
o T 629 766
atborrowings T o - 83% ) 968_

Total borrowings

Included in non-current borrowings above s £ni of accrued interest (2013 £nif) Included in curt ent borrowings above
1s £nil of accrued interest (2013 £3m)

SSANISNE 4NOC

JINVRYO4YI4 ¥NO I
1

LOvdHI A0S 4nO |

IINYNYIACD l




202 Pearson plo imoal repes tand acoour t2 2049

Notes to the company financial statements continued

5 Financial habilioies - borrowings continued

The maturity of the company's non-current borrowings is as follows

A% figures n £ mikons 2014 2013
Between ohe and two years -
Berween two and five years 210 202
Overfive year s - -

h ] 210 202

As at 31 December 2014 the exposure to inter est rate changes of the borrowings and amounts due to subsidiaries

when the borrowings re-price s as follows

Less than Oneto #ore than
Allfigures i £ millons one year five yuars five years Taral
Re-priang profile of borrowings 629 210 ~- 839
Amounts due to subsidiaries 4,414 960 1,386 6,760
Effect of rate derwvauves | 254 (225)  (1.029) -
T e e e Ty s
The cai rying amounts and market values of borrowings are as follows:
e v .
T it Campmg | Muke | Comop | thoer
All fipures o £ milions nterest rate amount wilue amoune vae
Bank loans and overdrafts n/a 629 629 512 512
7 0% Sterting bonds 2014 7 20% - - 254 262
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 469% 210 205 0 195
. o T B §3—"; :_ 834 968 969

The mat ket values are based on clean market prices at the year end or, where these are not avatlable, on the quoted
market prices of comparable debt issued by other companies The effective interest rates above relate to the

underlying debt nstruments

The carrying amounts of the company's borrowings are denorminated in the following currencies

Al figures n £ mlhans 014 013
US dolfar 477 202
Steriting 354 762
Euro B 8 4
T e S T I T T T ey 9
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&6 Denwvauve financial instruments

The company's outstanding denvatve financal instruments are as follows

o 2014 e
Gross notional Groys nott nal

All figures i £ rmllions amounts Asscrs Lixbsiines (R Assets L atyht 02
Interest 1 ate dervatives -
in a far vatue hedge refationship 192 18 - 231 22 -
Interest rate dervatives — notin a
hedge relationship 2,404 &7 (34 i 842 63 {48}
gtcisi-cu[[gicz c_ie_r-watwes 952 2‘3 (43) o 220 39 =
Total . o _3.548 {08 ) (_74) B 2,293 124 o {48)
Analysed as expiing
In less than one year 200 24 (1) 312 13 -
Later than one year and not later than
five years 1,314 6! (8) 1,377 tH -
Later than five years . 2,034 LI o . e (48)
Total 3.548 108 (Z‘Q ) 2.2?3 . _I 24 _ (48)

The car rying value of the above derivative financial instruments equals their fan value Fair values are determined
by using market data and the use of established esumation techmiques such as discounted cash fiow and opuon

vatuatton models

7 Prowisions for other habilities and charges

Provisions in the prior year were comprised of iabilities assumed on the closure of tive business of a Group subsidiary
As anticpated, the provisions were utiised during the year

8 Share capital and share premum

TTTTTT T Muntber of Orginury Share
harpes shares Prens um

oon- Zin [A ]

Ac ! january 2013 817.403 204 2555
Issue of ordinary shares — share option schemes o 1,537 L _ 13
At 31 December 2013 818,580 205 2,568
tssue af ordinary shares — share option schemes B L 4303 0 - H
At 31 December 2014 819,883 205 2579

The ordinary shares have a pa value of 25p per share (2013 25p per share) Allissued shares are fully paid All shares
have the same nights
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

9. Treasury shares

Number of

"o o
At | {anuary 2013 10,102 27
Purchase of treasury shares 44114 47
Release of treasury shares . i (4931) (52)
At 31 December 2013 T T T s »
Purchase of treasury shares 967 9
Relcase of wreasury shares {2997) ~(32)
At 31 December 2014 ' T B 7192 ()

The company holds 1ts own shares in trust to savsfy its obligations under its restricted share plans These shares are
treated as treasury shares for accountng purposes and have a par value of 25p per share The norminal value of the
company's treasury shares amounts to £1 8m (2013 £2 3m) At 3i December 2014 the mariet value of the company’s
treasury shares was £85 6m (2013 £124 4m) The gross book value of the shares at 31 December 2014 amounts to
£75m This value has been netted off with contributions receved from operatng companies of £76m, vesultng na
net credit value of £lm

10 Conungencies

There are contingent habthties that arise i the normal course of business in respect of ndemnities, warranties and
guarantees in relation to former subsidiaries and In respect of guar antees in refation to subsidiaries In addition there
are conungent liabiliwes in respect of legal claims None of these claims are expected to1 esultn a matenal gain or

loss to the company

{1 Auditfees

Statutory audit fees relating to the company were £35,000 (2013 £35.000}

12 Related party transactions

Substdaries
The company transacts and has outstanding balances with its subsidiaries Amounts due from subsidiaries and

amounts due to subsidiaries are disclosed on the face of the company balance sheet

These loans are generally unsecured and interest is calculated based on market rates The company has interest
payable to subsidiares for the year of £143m (2013 £144m) and interest receivable from subsidianes for the year
of £73m (2013 £59m) Management fees payable to subsidiaries in respect of centrally provided services amounted
to £19m (2013 £55m) Dividends recewved from subsidiaries were £1 300m {2013 £1,363m)

Assocrates
Amounts due from related partes, disciosed on the face of the company batance sheet, 1 elate to loans to Penguin

Random House, an associate of the Group These loans are unsecured and interesuis calcutated based on

mariet rates The amount outstanding at 31 December 2014 was £54m (2013 £44m) The{oansare provided under
aworking capital facility and fluccuare dunng the year The loan outstanding at 31 December 2014 was repaid in its
entirety m January 2015

Key management personnel
From { January 2014, ikey management personnel are deemed 0 be the members of the Pearson Execunve

It s tus commuttee which had responsibidity for planning, direcung and controliing the activities of the company in 2014
Key management personnel compensation is disclosed th note 37 to the consolidated financial statements

There were o other matenal related party transactions No guarantees have been provided to related parties
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Principal subsidiaries

The prinapal operaung subsidiaries at 31 Deceraber 2014 are listed below They operate mainly in the countries
of incorporation o1 registration The nvestments are in equity share capital and they are all 100% owned

Country of ingorpariton or YepFuALn

Pearson Educauan inc us
Pearson Educavon Lud England
NCS Pearson inc us
The Financial Times Ltd England

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 410(2) of the Companies Act 2006 by providing
informauon only (n relation to subsidial y undertakings whose resufts or financial position, in the opinion of the
directors prinapally affected the financial statements A complete list of subsidiai y and associated undertakings
will be included i the next Pearson pic annual return filed with the Registrar of Companies
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Five-year summary

013
Al figu s in £ orliions 010 261 i restated 2014

Sales By geography>

MNorth America 3073 2974

Core 1,258 1,154

Growth 738 746

Contnung TTTTTTT T usn 4718 4959 5069 4874
Discontinued 1,427 | 134 1,153 621 9

Total sales T 059 seer 6012 5690 4883
Sales By line of business*

School 2,303 2,027

Higher Education | 664 1,695

Professional 1,102 1,152

Contioung 4532 4728 4959 5069 4874
Dlizgnﬂnued 1,427 1,134 1153 621 9

Toalsles T T Tsew sam el S0 dee
Adjusted operating profit By geography”

North America 474 464

Core 120 152

Growth 38 35

Penguin Random House - - - 50 69
Contnuing 72 80s 809 682 720
I;Disconunued _ _ 206 __1_3_2 B 123 54 2
Toval adusted operatingprofit %8 98 9 76 72
Adjusted aperating profit By line of business*

School 268 236
Higher Educatton 295 309
Professional 69 106
Pengun Random House - - - oS50 69

Condnumg T2 806 809 82 720
Discontinued 206 {32 123 . 2

s gt T em vw om me

‘Pernods pror to 2013 bave notbeenrestaioc torcfiect the new oramsstion sLrucTure 3§ there (s o approprate bags for reszatement ofthese ponot
2011 anwards refleccihe wdopien of 1AS (91 evived and have beenrestated asapproptizie. Paor pe riods have not been retated
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- 2041 ‘-—(;
Ali figures in £ muthons paiits] 2011 pLi1o] reotaed 2004 E
Operating Mmargin — ContiNUIng 16 2% 170% 163% 135% {4 8% g
Z
Adjusted earnings "
Total adjusted operating pi ofit 938 938 932 736 722
Net finance costs {85) (55) {65) {72) (64}
Income tax (215) (196) (200) (97) (118}
Non controfhing interest (7 ! & w -
Adpswed carmngs T T T e T Teas ee4 ses sS4l 2
Weighted average number of shares (millions) 8O 2 8OO 2 804 3 807 8 8109 =
Adyusted earnings per share 7% ®0p _@ep Ml 667 3
Allfigures.m £ milions T T T T T T T e T e e e
Cash flow
Operating cash flow {,057 983 788 588 649
Operaung cash conversion 113% {05% 85% 80% 90% 9
Operaung free cash flow 904 772 657 324 413 2
Operating free cash flow per share 1128p 96 S5p 8t 7p 40 Ip 50%p g
Total free cash flow 904 772 657 269 a3 3
Total free cash flow pershare {(28p 96 5p 817p 333p 509p ’:}:.
Net assets 5.605 5.962 5,710 5.706 5985
Net debt 430 499 98 1,379 639 g
b
Return on invested capital (gross basis) Jzz>
Totat adjusted operating profit 938 938 932 736 722 -
Cash tax pad (85) {151} 5y (1%  (le3)
Rowrn T T OTTTU T Tesy T Tam e s45 559
Average invested capital 8315 8,731 2578 10,130 9,900
Return on invested capitat 1Q 3% 9 0% 9% 54% 56%
Dwdendpershace . 387 20 450k _ 8% 30k
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Corporate and operating measures

Pearson's carporate and operating measures nclude the results of Mergermarieet throughout 2013 as the business
was wholly-owned during that period

Sales — underlying and constant exchange rate movement

Sales movements exclude Penguin the impact of acquisttions disposals and movements 1n exchange 1 ates

All figures n £ milons ) 014
Underlying decrease (2)
Portiolio changes 79
Exchange differences (272)
Total sales decrease T T _(155—5
Underlying decrease 0‘%_:
2%

Constant exchange rate increase

Adjusted mcome statement

Reconcihation of the consohidated income staternent to the adjusted numbers presented as non-GAAP measures
10 the financial statements

i L 2014
Statutory Cther net Other ner Tax Adjusied
meome Dncontinucd gansand  Acquisitien ntangpble fimance  amon esatmn ncome
All figures n € mifbons stalement  operanions Tuases casts charges smeomeltosts benefic sritement
Operaung profit 398 2 {2) 6 318 - - 722
Net finance costs {93) - - - - 29 - (64)
Profit before tax 305 2 {2) 6 318 29 ~ 658
lncometax _ (63) ) t M @) G 24 (1)
Prafit for the year from
continuing operations 242 ! ()] 5 245 24 24 540
Profit for the year from
discontinued operauons 228 {H (227) T - - - -
Profit for the year 470 - (228) 5 245 24 24 540

Non-contrelling interest ! - -

Earnings 471 - e 5 245 24 24 54i
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Adjusted income statement continued o o
23 S
) Starutesr g Orher et Other nry Tar Adpstad LDC:
om0 soone nued pavisand  ACQUSbon int wgrmah Tnance 2 vousaton meme =z
Alfiguresin £ mhons STAtErIeST  Uperalo fosses cOTis iy s umefoast. benefiz <11 e AL ]
Operatng profit 458 54 t6 12 {96 - - 736
Nezt finance costs (76) - -~ - - 4 - (72)
Profit before tax 382 54 6 12 196 4 - 664
Income tax {87) (t8y 32 (2) (51) () (30 {97}
Profit for the year from _—
CONtiNUINg Opet ations 295 36 48 10 145 3 30 567 2
=
Proficfor the year from =
discontnued operations 244 36 (@09 - 2 (D - -z
Profit for the year 539 - {f6h) 0 147 2 30 567 g
MNon-controliing interest (i) - - - - - -« i) ﬁ
Earnings 538 - (16! 0 47 2 30 566
Adjusted operating profit — underlying and constant exchange rate movement
Operating profit movement excluding the impact of acquisitions, disposals and movements in exchange rates 5
A-ﬁ ﬁguru fn.—.i:l;l-llluns T o T T T T ToTTTTTTm T T —~2-014 %
Underlying increase 35 §
Portfolio changes - ;
Exchange differences i (49) g
Total adusted operating profit decrease L (4 -
Underilying increase 5%
Constant exchange rate mcrease . o 5%
(1]
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Corporate and operating measures continued

Free cash flow per share

Operating cash flow for conunuing and discontnued operations before tax and finance charges diwided by the
weighted average number of shares in 1ssue

Allfigures m € mlhons 2014 01
Adjusted operatng profit 722 736
Cash conversion 90% B0%
Operaung cash flow 649 588
Operatung tax paid {163) (1on
Net operaung finance costs paid - _ o B (73) {73}
Toral operatmg free cash flow T T T T T s
MNon operating tax paid - (55)
Total free cash flow 413 269
Woeighted average number of shares nissue (millions) 8109 BO7 8
Operaung free cash flow per share B . 509 40 Ip
Total free cash flow per share o T T ey
f_{gg{r:r} on invested capital ~ _ e
et vt
Al Figures in £ mubens T
Total adjusted operating profit 722 736
Operating tax paid _ (163) {1917)
Return T T T e s
Average goodwill and other intangibles o o - B 8,557 8903
Average net operaung assets §.343 1,227
Average invested capital B _ B _ _ 2900 10,130
Fu{;t:n'n on invested capital o - 5 6%-_ 5 _fg

Return on invested capital 1s calculated as total adjusted operating profit less operating cash tax paid expressed as
a percentage of average nvested caprtal Invested capital includes the original unamortised goodwill and intangibles




Shareholder information

Pearsor ordinary shares ai e fisted on the London Stock
Exchange and on the New York Stock Exchange in the
form of American Depositary Receipts

Corporate website

The nvestors’ secuon of our corporate website

www pearson com/mvestors provides a wealth of
information for shareholders tuis also possible to sign
up to receive email alerts for reports and press releases
relating to Pearson at www pearson com/news/
newsletter subscribe htmi

Shareholder information online

Shareholder information can be found on ow website
www pearson com/investors/shareholder-mformation

Qur registrar, Equiniti also prowides a range of shareholder
mformation onhine You can check your holding and find
pracucat help on transferring shares or updating your
details at www shareview co ulc For more information,
please contact our registrar, Equinity, Aspect House,
Spencer Road, Lancing, YVest Sussex BIN99 6DA
Telephone 0871 384 2233" or, for those shareholders
with hearing difficulues, textphone number

0871 384 2255~

Information about the Pearson share price

The company’s share price can be found on our website
at www pearsan com [t also appears in the finanaal
columns of the national press

2014 dividends

Peyrueny dare Avount prrshare
Interim 12 September 2014 17 pence
Final ) May 2015 34 pence

Payment of dividends to mandated accounts

Shaould you elect to have your dividends paid through
BACS this canbe done directly into a bank or building
society account, with the tax voucher sent to the
shareholder’s registered address Equinit canbe
cantacted for infor manon on 0871 384 2043~

Dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP)

The DRIP gives shareholders the right to buy the
campany s shares on the London stock market with theur
cash dvidend For further information, please contact
Equiniti on 0871 384 2268+

Sectron 5 N wal w4temnt py

indwidual Savings Accounts {ISAs)

Equiet offers (SAs in Pearson shares For more
infor mation, please go to www shareview co uk/dealing
or call customer services on 0845 300 0430"

Shai e dealing facihities

Equiniti offers telephone and internet services fou
dealing in Pearson shares For further mformaton,
please contact their telephone dealing helplne on
08456 037 037* (weekdays only} or, for online dealing,
log on to www shareview co uk/dealing You will need
your shareholder reference number as shown on your
share certificate

A postal dealing service 1s also avalfable through Equiniti
Please telephone 0871 384 2248 for detaits oriogonto
www shareview co uk to download & form

ShareGift

Shareholders with smalf holdings of shares, whose
value makes them uneconomic to self may wish

to donate them to ShareGift, the share donation
charity (registered chanty number |052686)

Further information about ShareGift and the charties

st has supported may be obtained from thewr website,
www ShareGift org or by contacting them at ShareGift,
PO Bax 72253, London, SWIP 9LQ

American Depositary Receipts {ADRs)

Pearsons ADRs are listed on the New York Stack
Exchange and traded under the symbol PSO Each ADR
represents one ordinary share Forenquires regarding
registered ADR holder accounts and diwidends, please
contact Bank of New York Mellon, Shareholder
Correspondence (ADR), PO Box 30170, College
Station, TX 77842-3170, telephone | (866) 259 2289
{toll free within the US) or 001 201 680 6825

{outside the US) Alternatively you may email
shrrefations@cpushareownerservices com Voung
rights for registered ADR holders can be exercised
through Bank of New Yotk Mellon and for benefical
ADR holders (and/or nominee accounts) through your
US broles age nsticution Pearson will file with the
Securiues and Exchange Commusston a Form 20-F

~Cally 1o thewe numbers a1 e dirged a1 8p perininuie plus network exirs
Lines open 8 30am 1o § 30pin Munday w Fnday
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Shareholder information continued

Share register fraud protecting your investment

Pearson does not contact its shareholders directly

to provide recommendatan advice and neither does

tt appoint third parties to do so As required by law

our sharcholder register 1s avadable for public inspection
but we cannot control the use of informanen obrained
by persons mspecung the register Please treat any
approaches purporting to orgnate from Pearson

with caution

For more informauon, please log on to our
website at www pearson com/investors/
shareholder-informanion bl

Tips on protecung your shares

> Keep any documentation that contains your
shareholder reference number n a safe place and
shred any unwanted documentation

» Inform our registrar, Equinit, promptly when you
change address

» Be aware of dndend payment dates and contact the
registrar if you do rot recewe your divtdend cheque ot
better still, make arrangements to have the dividend
pad directly into your bank account

» Consider holding your shares elecronically ina CREST
accountvia a nonunee

2015 financial calendar

Ex-dmidend date 2 Apni
Record date 7 Apnl
{.ast date for dividend reinvestment election {0 Apri
Payment date for dividend and share

purchase date for dividend retnvestment I May
Annual General Meeting 24 Apnl
fnterim results 24 july

Payment date for interam daidend t i Septernber




Rehance on this document

Qur strategic  eport an pages 2 to 56 has been

prepared in accordance with section 414 ('Duty to
prepare a strategic report’) of the Companies Act 2006
{Strategic Report and Directors’ Report) Reguiations
2013 lcalso incorporates much of the gudance set out in
the Accountng Standards Board's Reporting Staternent
on the Operatng and Financial Review

The imention of this documentis to provide information
to shareholders and 1s not designed to be refied upon by
any other party or for any other purpose

Forward-looking statements

Exceptfor the historical informauion contained hereun,
the matters discussed in this document include forward-
ooking statements in particular, all statements that
express forecasts, expectations and projections with
respect to future matters, including trends in results
of operations, margmns, growth rates overall market
trends, the impact of interest or exchange rates, the
availabihty of financing, anticipated costs savings and
synergies and the execuuon of Pear son's strategy, are
forward-locking statements By their nature, forward-
looling statements involve risks and uncertaintes

MAGE REMOVED

D signed and Praduted by Friend www mendstudio com
Print, Purepriat Graup

Pearson has supported the planung of 167 square metres of now nathse
woodland with the Woodtand Trust helping to remove & 7 tonnes of
carbon dioxide emissions gener ated by e producoon of tis repore
and assocated documents

because they relate to events and depend on
arcumstances that will occur in future They are based
o numerous assumptions regarding Pearson’s present
and future business strategres and the envirenment

in which i will operate in the future Thereare a
number of factors which could cause actual t esulrs and
devclopmonts to differ mater rally from those expressed
or implied by these forward-ocking statements,
including a number of factors outside Pearson's
control These include mternational, nattonal and tocal
conditions, as well as competition They also include
other risks detailed from time to time 1n Pearsons
publicly-filed documents and you are advised to read,
in parucufar, the risk factors set out in this document
or otherwise n Pearson’s latest annual report

and accounts, which can be found on its website
(www pearson com/investors) Any forward-lookang
statements speak only as of the date they are made
and Pearscon gives no undertaking to update forward-
loolung statements to reflect any changes i s
expectations with regard thereto or any changes to
events conditons or circumstances on which any such
statement is based No reliance should be placed on
forward-looking statements

t s report has been pented o £ doaon Challenger Offset which

= ESCY cerufied and made from {GO%, Elemental Chiorne Free
(ECF1pulp The mifland the printer ar e bath cerufied 1o 1SO 14001
environmenlal managenent system and reprstered to EMAS the
ecc management Audi Scheme The report was printed using
vogetable based ks by a CarbonMNeurral ¢ printer
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